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Minute of Meeting of the North East Scotland Transport Partnership Board 

 
Aberdeen, Thursday, 21 April 2022 

 
Present:  Councillor Sandra Macdonald (Chairperson); Councillor Peter Argyle 

and Dr Margaret Bochel (Vice Chairs); Councillor Philip Bell, 

Councillor George Carr, Councillor John Cox, Councillor Martin Ford 
(as substitute for Councillor David Aitchison) and Councillor Michael 

Hutchison; and Colin Allanach, Gerry Donald and Ian Ross. 
 
In Attendance: Rab Dickson, Paul Finch, Kirsty Chalmers, Jenny Anderson, Kelly 

Wiltshire, Jon Barron, Tricia Howden and Lucy Johnston (Nestrans); 
Alan Wood, Ewan Wallace, Moira Beverley and Councillor Ian 

Mollison (Aberdeenshire Council); David Dunne, Lisa Christie and 
Mark Masson (Aberdeen City Council); and Emily Seaman and Scott 
Leitham (Stantec). 

 
Apologies: Councillors David Aitchison and Avril MacKenzie. 

 
 
Please note that if any changes are made to this minute at the point of approval, 

these will be outlined in the subsequent minute and this document will not be 
retrospectively altered. 

 
 
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 
1. There were no declarations of interest or transparency statements intimated.  

 
 
MINUTE OF BOARD MEETING, 16 FEBRUARY 2022 

 
2. The Board had before it the minute of its previous meeting of 16 February 2022, 

for approval. 
 
The Board resolved:- 

to approve the minute as a correct record. 
 

 
PRESENTATION - EMILY SEAMAN AND SCOTT LEITHAM OF STANTEC - 
ABERDEEN RAPID TRANSIT: CASE FOR CHANGE 

 
3. The Board received a presentation from Emily Seaman and Scott Leitham, 

Stantec on the Aberdeen Rapid Transit (ART) project. 
 
Emily Seaman (a) provided details in relation to the rationale and justification to 

implement the supporting changes and the behavioural change catalysts to help move 
towards lowering carbon emissions from transport, explaining why a step-change in 
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public transport was needed; (b) outlined the vision of the ART, explaining that the 

ambition was to develop a high quality, high frequency mass transit network across the 
city on key corridors linking key destinations, anchored by Park and Ride (P&R) facilities 
on each corridor; (c) provided details on the aims of the corridor studies leading to the 

preferred option to be developed to an outline business case; (d) highlighted the ‘success 
factors’ of an ART; (e) advised on the transport planning objectives and the proposed 

two corridor routes, namely (1) Westhill/Kingswells P&R to Bridge of Don P&R and (2) 
Craibstone P&R to a potential Portlethen P&R; and (f) provided information on the 
preliminary options appraisal and the project programme/timeline. 

 
Emily and Scott responded to questions from members of the Board in relation to the 

routes of the ART, addressing the local cultures and attitudes in terms of car 
parking/charges and using public transport, bus lane integration and cycle lane 
segregation and ticketing/pricing. 

 
The Board resolved:- 

to thank Emily Seaman and Scott Leitham for their presentation. 
 
 
2021/22 BUDGET MATTERS 
 

4. The Board had before it a report which provided an update on the Partnership’s 

2021/22 monitoring and forecast outturn position. It also sought consideration of any 
budget or monitoring issues that may arise. 

 
The report recommended:- 

that the Board –  
(a) note the monitoring position and forecast presented in Appendix 1;  
(b) approve the virements set out in Appendix 2;  

(c) approve the continuation of funding to next financial year to complete approved 
projects presented in Appendix 3;  

(d) note the updates on projects for which Nestrans claimed external grant funding 
and the proposals submitted for the RTP Active Travel Grant for 2022/23; and  

(e) note the Strategic Transport Fund position. 

 
Moira Beverley provided an overview of the report. 

 
The Board resolved:- 

to approve the recommendations. 

 
 
TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 
 
5. The Board had before it a report which sought agreement to the proposed 

Treasury Management Strategy Statement for 2022/23. 
 
The report recommended:- 
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That the Board approve the revised Treasury Management Strategy as set out in 

Appendix A to B of the report. 
 
Moira Beverley highlighted the key information from the report. 

 
The Board resolved:- 

to approve the recommendation.  
 
 
DIRECTOR'S REPORT 
 

6. The Board had before it a report which provided an update on liaison with other 

Regional Transport Partnerships, with the Scottish Government and other organisations. 
 
The report recommended:- 

that the Board note progress on liaison arrangements with other RTPs, the Scottish 

Government and others and arrangements for future meetings. 
 
The Director made reference to the following meetings held recently:- 

 Health & Transport Action Plan Steering Group, 18th February 2022 – minute 
unavailable at this time due to sickness; 

 Bus Alliance Board, 10th March 2022 – minute attached as appendix 2; and 

 Stagecoach Launch of Electric Buses, 11th April 2022 – attended by Paul Finch 

and Councillor Macdonald. 
 
The Board heard Paul Finch confirm that the Stagecoach launch was initially for 22 

electric buses. 
 
The Board resolved:- 

to approve the recommendation. 
 

 
ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22 

 
7. The Board had before it a report which provided details on the draft Nestrans 

Annual Report for 2021/22 and Business Plan for 2022/23. 

 
The report recommended:- 

that the Board –  
(a) consider the attached draft 2021/22 Annual Report and Business Plan 2022/23;  
(b) approve publication of the report on the Nestrans website once the design has 

been completed and any necessary updates made to reflect the actual year-end 
financial information when confirmed; and  

(c) instruct a link to the published report to be sent to Scottish Ministers and the Chief 
Executives at Aberdeen City Council and Aberdeenshire Council. 

 

The Director provided a summary of the report. 
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Kelly Wiltshire provided an update in terms of a meeting held this morning with Transport 

Scotland, noting that there would be two potential avenues for funding to progress the 
Insch Railway Station project. 
 
The Board resolved:- 

(i) to note the positive meeting held with Transport Scotland in relation to funding for 

Insch Railway Station project; and  
(ii) to otherwise approve the recommendations. 
 

 
FIVE YEAR REVIEW 

 
8. The Board had before it a report which outlined the transport developments in the 

north east over the past five years. 

 
The report recommended:- 

that the Board note the main achievements towards delivery of the previous Regional 
Transport Strategy between 2017/18 – 2021/22 and development of the new Regional 
Strategy to 2040. 

 
The report outlined various achievements and significant key Acts, strategies, policies 

and plans which had been developed and published; key processes which were 
completed; North East interests which were considered on a national stage; and 
infrastructure projects which had been delivered. 

 
The Director made reference to various significant developments including Aberdeen 

South Harbour, Aberdeen International Airport Terminal, Policy Changes (National 
Documents) and the Regional Transport Strategy. 
 
The Board resolved:- 

to approve the recommendations. 

 
 
TRANSPORT CARBON EMISSIONS REDUCTION 

 
9. The Board had before it a report which outlined Nestrans’ responsibilities in terms 

of reducing its carbon output and which brought forward proposals for a plan to reduce 
the carbon impacts from transport across the north east of Scotland. 
 

The report recommended:- 
That the Board – 

(a) note Nestrans’ responsibilities in bringing forward a plan for reducing their carbon 
emissions;  

(b) endorse Nestrans’ collaboration in Aberdeen’s commitment to Net Zero, 

committing to work with the City Council and partners to deliver the Mobility 
Strategy;  

(c) note the ongoing work with Aberdeenshire Council to address Climate Change 
issues; and  
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(d) give consideration to initiatives and policies which Nestrans could adopt in support 

of the Regional Transport Strategy’s objective of minimising harmful emissions. 
 
Kelly Wiltshire highlighted the key information from the report, making reference to:- 

 the Scottish Government’s commitment to work towards reducing carbon 

emissions, with a target of Scotland becoming net zero in all greenhouse gases 
by 2045;  

 Aberdeen City Council and Aberdeenshire Council who were leading on the 

development of plans and strategies towards net zero, both internally as organisations 
and across the wider population for their areas; and 

 Nestrans’ requirement by the Climate Change Act (Scotland) 2009 to report 
annually on its targets to reduce their carbon emissions. 

 
The Board resolved:- 

to approve the recommendations. 
 
 
BUS PARTNERSHIP FUND/ABERDEEN RAPID TRANSIT UPDATE 
 

10. The Board had before it a report which provided details on the Bus Partnership 

Fund (BPF) suite of projects, in particular the work on Aberdeen Rapid Transit and to 
approve the publication of the ART Case for Change report. 

 
The report recommended:- 

that the Board –  
(a) note the progress against each of the BPF projects;  
(b) note the ART Case for Change report; and  

(c) note the progress under engagement, marketing and communications. 
 

Kirsty Chalmers provided a summary of the report. She further advised that in relation to 
funding which was allocated to communications and engagement support for the suite of 
BPF projects, the tender period for this work had now closed and Jacobs, in partnership 

with Social Marketing Gateway had been commissioned to undertake the work. 
 
The Board resolved:- 

to approve the recommendations. 
 

 
BANFF/ MACDUFF RIVER DEVERON ACTIVE TRAVEL BRIDGE 

 
11. The Board had before it a report which provided an update on a study to consider 

an active travel bridge, linking Banff and Macduff, across the River Deveron. 

 
The report recommended:- 

that the Board note the progress regarding a potential active travel bridge across the 
River Deveron. 
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Jon Barron provided a summary of the report (a) advising that AECOM were 

commissioned by Aberdeenshire Council, with funding provided by Nestrans, to carry out 
a Detailed Option Appraisal (STAG 2) Report of potential active travel bridge designs and 
locations for a new structure between Banff and Macduff, crossing the River Deveron; 

(b) indicating that following completion of the studies and based on their findings, 
Aberdeenshire Council decided to pursue the construction of a dedicated active travel 

crossing separate from the existing bridge; (c) intimated that four bridge options were 
studied and appraised and at this stage in the overall process, it was considered that a 
downstream bridge would be deliverable, but further work was required to identify the 

most technically suitable and aesthetically acceptable design of structure which would 
form the next stage of the project; (d) advised that ongoing community engagement 

would be undertaken, then funding for construction would need to be sought following 
completion of the Technical Design which would include the production of construction 
drawings and a Bill of Quantities; and (e) intimated that the project would then be 

tendered through a procurement process and a competent contractor appointed to 
construct. 

 
The Board resolved:- 

to approve the recommendation. 

 
 
COVID-19 – TRAVEL BEHAVIOUR AND ATTITUDE SURVEYS 
 
12. The Board had before it a report which presented the key outcomes from the 

series of sixteen market research surveys undertaken to capture changing travel 
behaviour and attitudes in the north east of Scotland, between July 2020 and March 

2022. 
 
The report recommended:- 

that the Board –  
(a) note the information and key findings contained in the report; and  

(b) instruct officers to scope out a comprehensive baseline survey for the Regional 
Transport Strategy. 

 

Paul Finch provided a summary of the report (a) advising that the aim was to help inform 
the work of Nestrans and their partners on short to medium term implications of Covid-

19 on travel patterns and attitudes; (b) outlining the key findings from the work undertaken 
by Systra, across the 16 survey waves; and (c) detailing the proposed next steps. 
 
The Board resolved:- 

to approve the recommendations. 

 
 
PROGRESS REPORT 

 
13. The Board had before it a progress report which outlined the status of various 

activities in support of the Regional Transport Strategy. 
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The Board resolved:- 

to note the content of the progress report. 
 
 
PUBLICATIONS AND CONSULTATIONS 
 

14. The Board had before it a report which outlined details of recent publications and 

consultation responses. 
 

The report made reference to the following:- 

 Consultation - Review of the Public Sector Equality Duty in Scotland;  

 ZetTrans Regional Transport Strategy Case for Change; and 

 Confederation of Public Transport research on Bus Support Measures and Toolkit.  
 
The report recommended:- 

that the Board –  

(a) note the Public Sector Equality Duty in Scotland consultation response;  
(b) note the publication of the ZetTrans RTS Case for Change; and  

(c) note the publication of CPT research on the support for bus priority measures. 
 
Kelly Wiltshire provided an overview and summary of the publications and consultations 

responses. 
 
The Board resolved:- 

to approve the recommendations. 
 

 
INFORMATION BULLETIN 

 
15. The Board had before it a report which provided information and updates on a 

number of matters not requiring decisions. 

 
The report recommended:- 

that the Board note the contents of this report. 
 
The Board heard Paul Finch provide a summary of the following items within the report:- 

 Academic Engagement with Local Universities; 

 Aberdeen City Region Deal – Live Labs Development; 

 Stonehaven Rail Station Wayfinding Project; 

 Dyce Travel Planning; 

 Cairngorms National Park Heritage Horizons; and 

 Getabout Update. 

 
It was noted that a summary of Press Enquiries, Media Releases and coverage relevant 
to Nestrans since the last Board meeting was attached as Appendix 1 to the report. 
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The Board resolved:- 

to approve the recommendation. 
 
 
CONFERENCES AND PRESENTATIONS 
 

16. The Board had before it a list of recent and forthcoming conferences, training and 

presentations of interest to Nestrans. 
 
The report recommended:- 

that the Board –  

(a) note the contents of Appendix 1; and  
(b) approve expenditure of up to £2,500 to sponsor a Scottish Council for 

Development (SCDI) lunch with the Transport Minister in or around late June. 

 
The Director responded to questions from members in relation to the SCDI event. 

 
The Board resolved:- 

to approve the recommendations. 

 
 
PENDING BUSINESS AND REPORTS FOR FUTURE MEETINGS 
 
17. The Board had before it a report which (1) provided information on the progress 

on pending business and major reports scheduled for forthcoming Board meetings; and 
(2) provided the opportunity for the Board to add to or amend the scheduling. 

 
The report recommended:- 

that the Board note the report on pending business. 

 
The Board resolved:- 

to approve the recommendation. 
 
 
VALEDICTORY 
 

18. As this was the last meeting of the Board prior to the Local Government Election 

on 5 May 2022, the Director expressed his thanks for the significant contribution of all the 
elected members on the Board, but in particular, to Councillors Sandra Macdonald and 

Peter Argyle who held both positions of Chairperson and Vice Chairperson over the last 
five years.  

 
Councillors Macdonald and Argyle in turn, thanked the Board members, in particular 
Maggie Bochel as Vice Chairperson, external members, Rab Dickson as Director, the 

support staff of Nestrans and partners who worked in collaboration with the two local 
authorities. 
- COUNCILLOR SANDRA MACDONALD, Chairperson 
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NORTH EAST SCOTLAND TRANSPORT PARTNERSHIP – 22 June 2022 

 

 

  3.1  2021/22 Annual Audit Plan 

 

 
 

 Purpose of Report 

 
To inform the Board of the 2021/22 Annual Audit Plan provided by Audit Scotland which sets out 
the audit work to be undertaken to provide an opinion on the Partnership’s financial statements.   

  

 Background 

 
Local Authorities and similar bodies are required to ensure that they demonstrate proper 
stewardship of their financial affairs. Public sector audit appointments are usually for five years 
but were extended to six years due to Covid-19. The auditor for the Partnership is Audit Scotland 
and the engagement lead is Anne MacDonald. Financial year 2021/22 is the final year of the 
current appointment and the auditor will work closely with her successor to ensure a smooth 
transition. 

 

 2021/22 Annual Audit Plan 

 

An annual audit plan has been submitted which has been prepared in accordance with Audit 
Scotland’s Code of Audit Practice.  As well as the risks identified in respect of the audit of the 
financial statements, the plan sets out the wider scope requirements in respect of public sector 
audit. With regard to the Partnership’s wider scope, the auditor will focus on financial 
sustainability and governance and transparency arrangements.  A copy of this plan which has 
been reviewed by finance officers is shown in Appendix 1 and provides information on the timing 

of the audit and the audit fee. 
 

 Recommendations 

 
It is recommended that the Board: 

 
1. Note the audit plan provided by the external auditor.  

 
 
 
Mary Beattie 
Treasurer 
9 June 2022  
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Introduction 
 

Summary of planned audit work 

1.  This document summarises the work plan for our 2021/22 external audit of North 
East of Scotland Transport Partnership (Nestrans). The main elements of our work 
include: 

• assessing the risk of material misstatement in the partnership’s financial 
statements  

• an audit of the partnership’s annual accounts and provision of an Independent 
Auditor’s Report   

• an audit opinion on other statutory information published within the annual 
accounts including the Management Commentary, Annual Governance 
Statement and the Remuneration Report 

• consideration of arrangements in relation to the audit dimensions including Best 
Value. As a small body, wider scope requirements are restricted to conclusions 
on financial sustainability, and governance and transparency.  

Impact of Covid-19 

2.  The coronavirus (Covid-19) pandemic has had a significant impact on public 
services and public finances, and the effects will be felt well into the future.  

3.  The Auditor General for Scotland, the Accounts Commission and Audit Scotland 
continue to assess the risks to public services and finances from Covid-19 across 
the full range of our audit work, including annual audits and the programme of 
performance audits. The well-being of audit teams and the delivery of high-quality 
audits remain paramount. Changes in our approach may be necessary and where 
this impacts on annual audits, revisions to this Annual Audit Plan may be required.  

Adding value 

4.  We aim to add value to Nestrans through our external audit work by being 
constructive and forward looking, by identifying areas for improvement and by 
recommending and encouraging good practice. In so doing, we will help Nestrans 
promote improved standards of governance, better management and decision 
making and more effective use of resources. Additionally, we attend board meetings 
as appropriate. 
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Respective responsibilities of the auditor and Nestrans  

5.  The Code of Audit Practice (2016) sets out in detail the respective responsibilities 
of the auditor and Nestrans. Key responsibilities are summarised below.  

Auditor responsibilities 

6.  Our responsibilities as independent auditors are established by the Local 
Government (Scotland) Act 1973 and the Code of Audit Practice (including 
supplementary guidance) and guided by the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical 
Standard.  

7.  Auditors in the public sector give an independent opinion on the financial 
statements and other information within the annual accounts. We also review and 
report on the arrangements within the partnership to manage its performance and 
use of resources. In doing this, we aim to support improvement and accountability. 

Nestrans’ responsibilities 

8.  Nestrans is responsible for maintaining accounting records and preparing 
financial statements that give a true and fair view.  

9.  Also, the partnership has the primary responsibility for ensuring the proper 
financial stewardship of public funds, compliance with relevant legislation and 
establishing effective arrangements for governance that enable them to deliver their 
objectives. 

Managing the transition to 2022/23 audits 

10.  Public sector audit appointments are usually for five years but were extended 
to six years due to Covid-19. Financial year 2021/22 is the final year of the 
current appointment and we will work closely with our successors to ensure a 
smooth transition.    
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Financial statements audit 
planning 
 

Materiality 

11.  Materiality is an expression of the relative significance of a matter in the 
context of the financial statements as a whole. We are required to plan our audit 
to determine with reasonable confidence whether the financial statements are 
free from material misstatement. The assessment of what is material is a matter 
of professional judgement over both the amount and the nature of the 
misstatement.  

Materiality levels for the 2021/22 audit  

12.  We assess materiality at different levels as described in Exhibit 1 which sets 
out the partnership’s materiality values for 2021/22. 

Exhibit 1 
2021/22 Materiality levels for Nestrans 

Materiality Amount 

Planning materiality – This is the figure we calculate to assess the overall impact 
of audit adjustments on the financial statements. It has been set at 2% of gross 
expenditure for the year ended 31 March 2022 based on the latest audited financial 
statements.  

£63,000 

Performance materiality – This acts as a trigger point. If the aggregate of errors 
identified during the financial statements audit exceeds performance materiality, 
this would indicate that further audit procedures should be considered. Using our 
professional judgement, we have assessed performance materiality at 70% of 
planning materiality. 

£44,000 

 

Reporting threshold (i.e., clearly trivial) – We are required to report to those 
charged with governance on all unadjusted misstatements more than the ‘reporting 
threshold' amount. This has been calculated at 5% of planning materiality. 

£3,000 

 

Source: Audit Scotland 
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Significant risks of material misstatement to the financial 
statements 

13.  Our risk assessment draws on our cumulative knowledge of Nestrans over the 
period of the audit appointment, its major transaction streams, key systems of 
internal control and risk management processes. Also, it is informed by our 
discussions with management, meetings with internal audit, attendance at board 
meetings and a review of supporting information.  

14.  Based on our risk assessment process, we identified the following significant 
risks of material misstatement to the financial statements. Significant risks are 
risks which have the greatest impact on our planned audit procedures. Exhibit 2 
summarises the nature of the risks, the sources of assurance from management 
arrangements and the further audit procedures we plan to perform to gain 
assurance over the risks. 

Exhibit 2  
2021/22 Significant risks of material misstatement to the financial statements  

 Significant risk of material 
misstatement  

Sources of 
management 
assurance 

  Planned audit response 

1. Risk of material misstatement 
due to fraud caused by the 
management override of 
controls  

As stated in International 
Standard on Auditing (UK) 240, 
management is in a unique 
position to perpetrate fraud 
because of management’s ability 
to override controls that otherwise 
appear to be operating effectively. 

• Owing to the 
nature of this risk, 
assurances from 
management are 
not applicable in 
this instance.  

 

Evaluate external auditor 
assurances from the auditor of 
Aberdeenshire Council in respect 
of the financial services provided 
to the partnership. Assurances 
will include: 

• Detailed testing of journal 
entries. 

• Focused testing of accounting 
accruals and prepayments. 

• Evaluate significant 
transactions outside the 
normal course of business. 

• Substantive testing of income 
and expenditure transactions 
around the year-end to 
confirm they are accounted for 
in the correct financial year. 

2. Risk of fraud in the recognition 
of revenue and expenditure    

As set out in International 
Standard on Auditing (UK) 240: 
The auditor’s responsibilities 
relating to fraud in an audit of 
financial statements, there is a 
presumed risk of fraud in relation 
to the recognition of revenue. The 

• Agreements with 
partner councils 
and where 
appropriate, other 
funders.  

• Quarterly 
invoicing 
arrangements 

• Review funding agreements, 
correspondence and other 
third party confirmations to 
confirm that income has been 
correctly recognised and 
accounted for in the correct 
financial year.  
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 Significant risk of material 
misstatement  

Sources of 
management 
assurance 

  Planned audit response 

presumption is that a body could 
adopt accounting policies or 
recognise transactions in such a 
way as to lead to a material 
misstatement in the reported 
financial position. 

We do not regard funding 
requisitions to meet coordination 
and project development costs as 
an area of significant risk. (Refer 
paragraph 15.) With effect from 
2021/22 however, there has been 
a change in the funding 
mechanism for the Strategic 
Investment Programme. Council 
partners are now expected to 
provide quarterly funding to the 
partnership. This replaces the 
delay in drawdown funding 
mechanism which previously 
operated when the partnership 
was not permitted to hold a 
general fund. 

With the change in funding 
mechanism, there is a risk that 
income will not be correctly 
recognised in the annual 
accounts.  

In line with Practice Note 10: Audit 
of financial statements and 
regularity of public sector bodies 
in the United Kingdom, as most 
public-sector bodies are net 
spending bodies, the risk of 
material misstatement due to 
fraud related to expenditure 
recognition may in some cases be 
greater than the risk relating to 
revenue recognition.  

In respect of coordination, project 
development and the majority of 
the Strategic Investment 
Programme, we do not consider 
the expenditure recognition risk to 
be significant. (Refer paragraph 
16.) The main exception relates to 

including board 
approval.  

• Financial 
services 
provided by 
Aberdeenshire 
Council (council 
head of finance 
is also Nestrans’ 
treasurer). 

• Income and 
expenditure 
monitoring  
undertaken by 
partnership 
office.  

• Operation of 
partnership and 
partner internal 
controls.  

• Supporting 
documentation 
for partnership 
contributions to 
external projects. 

• Discussions with officers 
regarding the approaches 
taken. 

• Review the controls in place 
over accounting for 
expenditure – this will include 
review of the partnership’s 
internal controls and 
assurances from 
Aberdeenshire Council’s 
external auditor in respect of 
income and expenditure 
controls.  

• Substantive testing of 
expenditure/accruals, 
especially the more unusual 
transactions, to confirm 
whether they are complete, 
recorded in line with 
accounting policies and that 
the use of estimates is 
reasonable. 
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 Significant risk of material 
misstatement  

Sources of 
management 
assurance 

  Planned audit response 

contributions to third party 
projects. These occur on an       
ad hoc basis with specific terms 
and conditions. As such, they are 
more unusual transactions and 
this increases the risk of 
misstatement in their accounting 
treatment. 

Source: Audit Scotland 

15.  Nestrans’ core running costs and project development costs are met by 
funding requisitions from partner councils and Scottish Government grants which 
can be confirmed with third party correspondence and confirmations. We do not 
therefore consider the revenue recognition risk to be significant with regard to 
these funding streams.   

16.  We have also rebutted the risk of material misstatement with regard to 
Strategic Investment Programme (SIP) expenditure on projects delivered by the 
partner councils on Nestrans’ behalf e.g. where external services are required for 
SIP projects, these are commissioned by the partner councils. In these cases, 
any manipulation of expenditure is deemed more likely to be a risk of the partner 
body than of Nestrans.  

Other areas of audit focus  

17.  As part of our assessment of audit risks, we have identified other areas where 
there are risks of material misstatement to the financial statements. Based on our 
assessment of the likelihood and magnitude of the risks, we do not consider these 
to represent significant risks. We will keep these areas under review as our audit 
progresses. If our assessment of risk changes and we consider these risks to be 
significant, we will communicate this to management and those charged with 
governance and revise our planned audit approach accordingly. 

18.  The areas of specific audit focus are:   

• The value of the net pension liability: There is a degree of subjectivity in the 
measurement and valuation of the pension liability due to the specialist and 
management assumptions adopted. Changes in the assumptions could result 
in material changes in the valuation. Our work in this area includes using the 
work of an expert. In this case, we draw assurances from the work of 
actuaries. 
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• Completeness of the partnership’s transactions: Nestrans’ transactions 
are processed through a separate cost centre within Aberdeenshire Council's 
ledger and therefore there is a risk that transactions may be miscoded, and 
the partnership’s accounts are misstated. No major issues were identified in 
previous years but we will keep this matter under review.  

Audit risk assessment process 

19.  Audit risk assessment is an iterative and dynamic process. Our assessment 
of risks set out in this plan may change as more information and evidence 
becomes available during the progress of the audit. Where such changes occur, 
we will advise management and where relevant, report them to those charged 
with governance.  
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Audit dimensions and Best 
Value  
 

Introduction 

20.  The Code of Audit Practice sets out the four dimensions that frame the wider 
scope of public sector audit. It requires auditors to consider the adequacy of the 
arrangements in place for the audit dimensions in audited bodies. 

Audit dimensions 

21.  The four dimensions that frame our audit work are shown in Exhibit 3. 

Exhibit 3 
Audit dimensions 

 

Source: Code of Audit Practice 

22.  In our opinion, the full application of the wider scope is not appropriate 
for Nestrans. The partnership’s annual spend is routinely around £3m. This 
includes the core costs of running the partnership office, delivering the 
Regional Transport Strategy and carrying out a range of larger projects 
through the Strategic Investment Programme (SIP). SIP projects can span 
several financial years and while they are commissioned and monitored by 
the partnership, they are managed and delivered by Aberdeen City and 
Aberdeenshire Councils. 

23.  The transactions processed during the year are generally routine but 
year end balances have historically been more complex. Since 2019/20 
however, transport partnerships have been permitted to hold a general fund 
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which should eventually streamline year end processes. Overall, we 
concluded that the nature and scale of the partnership’s activities are such 
that the small body clause is appropriate.  

24.  In accordance with minimum requirements permitted by the Code, 
wider dimension work will be restricted to considering the partnership’s 
arrangements in the following areas:   

• Financial sustainability – as auditors, we consider the appropriateness of the 
use of the going concern basis of accounting as part of the annual audit. We 
will also comment on financial sustainability in the longer term. We define this 
as medium term (two to five years) and longer term (longer than five years).  

• Governance and transparency – governance and transparency is 
concerned with the effectiveness of scrutiny and governance 
arrangements, leadership, and decision-making and transparent reporting of 
financial and performance information.   

Best Value 

25.  All local government bodies have a statutory duty to make arrangements to 
secure Best Value. We will review arrangements put in place by the partnership 
to achieve Best Value and report findings through our Annual Audit Report.     

Audit dimension risks 

26.  We have identified audit risks in the areas set out in Exhibit 4. This exhibit 
sets out the risks, sources of assurance from management arrangements and the 
further audit procedures we plan to perform to gain assurances over the risks.  

Exhibit 4 
2021/22 Audit dimension risks  

 Description of risk  Sources of 
management 
assurance 

Planned audit 
response 

1. Capacity within the finance team 

With changing roles and a loss of experience 
in the council’s finance team, there is a risk 
that the financial services provided to the 
partnership will deteriorate resulting in poor 
quality annual accounts being produced. For 
example, the Business Partner responsible 
for the production of the partnership’s annual 
accounts changed in September 2021 and 
the Assistant Accountant who joined the 
team last year left the council in March 2022.  

• Outcome of 
discussions 
between 
Nestrans and 
partner bodies. 

• Discussions with 
senior officers.   

Source: Audit Scotland 
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Reporting arrangements, 
timetable, and audit fee 
 

Reporting arrangements  

27.  Audit reporting is the visible output for the annual audit. The Annual Audit Plan,  
the outputs detailed in Exhibit 5, and any other outputs on matters of public interest 
will be published on our website: www.audit-scotland.gov.uk.  

28.  Matters arising from our audit will be reported on a timely basis and will include 
agreed action plans. Draft management reports will be issued to the relevant 
officers to confirm factual accuracy.  

29.  We will provide an independent auditor’s report to Nestrans and the Accounts 
Commission setting out our opinions on the annual accounts. We will also provide 
Nestrans and the Controller of Audit with an annual report containing observations 
and recommendations on significant matters arising from the audit.   

30.  Exhibit 5 outlines the target dates for our audit outputs. 

Exhibit 5 
2021/22 Audit outputs 

Audit Output Target date for board consideration 

Annual Audit Plan 22 June 2022  

Independent Auditor's Report Audited Accounts are scheduled to be approved by the 
board on 7 September 2022  

Annual Audit Report 7 September 2022  

Source: Audit Scotland 

Timetable 

31.  To support an efficient audit, it is critical that the timetable for producing the 
annual accounts for audit is achieved. We have included a proposed timetable for 
the audit at Exhibit 6 which has been discussed with the Treasurer.   

32.  We will continue to work in close partnership with management with clarity 
over timescales and the requirement for high quality unaudited accounts and 
supporting working papers. Progress will be discussed with management and 
finance officers over the course of the audit.  
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Exhibit 6 
Proposed annual accounts timetable 

  Key stage    Provisional Date 

Consideration of the unaudited annual accounts by those charged 
with governance 

22 June 2022 

Latest date for final clearance meeting with the Treasurer 19 August 2022 

Agreement of audited and unsigned annual accounts 30 August 2022 

Issue of Annual Audit Report to those charged with governance. 30 August 2022 

Signed Independent Auditor’s Report  By 9 September 2022           

Source: Audit Scotland  

Audit fee 

33.  The audit fee agreed with the Treasurer for the 2021/22 audit of Nestrans is 
£11,730 (2020/21: £10,450). In determining the audit fee, we have taken account 
of the risk exposure of Nestrans, the planned management assurances in place 
and the level of reliance we plan to take from the work of internal audit. 

34.  Where our audit cannot proceed as planned through, for example, late receipt 
of the unaudited annual accounts or the absence of adequate supporting working 
papers, a supplementary fee may be levied. An additional fee may also be 
required in relation to any work or other significant exercises outwith our planned 
audit activity.  

Page 27



Other matters | 14 

 

Other matters 
 

Internal audit 

35.  International standards on Auditing (UK) 610: Using the work of internal audit 
requires us to: 

• consider the activities of internal audit and their effect on external audit 
procedures 

• obtain an understanding of internal audit activities to inform our planning and 
develop an effective audit approach that avoids duplication of effort 

• perform a preliminary assessment of the internal audit function when there is 
scope for relying on internal audit work which is relevant to our financial 
statements' responsibilities and 

• evaluate and test the work of internal audit, where use is made of that work for 
our financial statements responsibilities to confirm its adequacy for our 
purposes. 

36.  We seek to use the work of internal audit wherever possible and, as part of 
our planning process, we carry out an assessment of the internal audit function. 
Internal audit is provided by the Chief Internal Auditor at Aberdeenshire Council. 
We are also the auditors for Aberdeenshire Council and consequently, we draw 
assurance from our review of internal audit carried out in connection with our 
audit of the council. 

37.  Based on his evaluation of the council’s control environment, internal audit 
provides an annual assurance statement to Nestrans covering its use of council 
systems. This statement is intended to provide reasonable assurance on the 
adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control system and to assist the 
partnership in preparing its Annual Governance Statement. We use the work of 
internal audit to inform our consideration of the partnership’s Annual Governance 
Statement. 

Independence and objectivity 

38.  Auditors appointed by the Accounts Commission must comply with the Code 
of Audit Practice and relevant supporting guidance. When auditing the financial 
statements, auditors must also comply with professional standards issued by the 
Financial Reporting Council and those of the professional accountancy bodies. 
These standards impose stringent rules to ensure the independence and 
objectivity of auditors. Audit Scotland has robust arrangements in place to ensure 
compliance with these standards including an annual ‘fit and proper’ declaration 
for all members of staff. The arrangements are overseen by the Director of Audit 
Services who serves as Audit Scotland’s Ethics Partner. 
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39.  The engagement lead (appointed auditor) for Nestrans is Anne MacDonald, 
Senior Audit Manager. Auditing and ethical standards require the appointed 
auditor to communicate any relationships that may affect the independence and 
objectivity of audit staff. We are not aware of any such relationships pertaining to 
the audit of Nestrans. 

Quality control 

40.  International Standard on Quality Control (UK) 1 (ISQC1) requires a system 
of quality control to be established, as part of financial audit procedures, to 
provide reasonable assurance that professional standards and regulatory and 
legal requirements are being complied with and that the independent auditor’s 
report or opinion is appropriate in the circumstances.  

41.  The foundation of our quality framework is our Audit Guide, which 
incorporates the application of professional auditing, quality and ethical standards 
and the Code of Audit Practice (and supporting guidance) issued by Audit 
Scotland and approved by the Accounts Commission. To ensure that we achieve 
the required quality standards, Audit Scotland conducts peer reviews and internal 
quality reviews. Additionally, the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Scotland 
(ICAS) have been commissioned to carry out external quality reviews. 

42.  As part of our commitment to quality and continuous improvement, Audit 
Scotland will periodically seek your views on the quality of our service provision. 
We welcome feedback at any time, and this may be directed to the engagement 
lead. 
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3.2 Unaudited Annual Accounts for 2021/22  

 

 

 Purpose of Report 

 
The Board is required to consider the unaudited annual accounts for 2021/22 and approve the 
final delay in drawdown.  

 
 Background 

 
The Partnership prepares annual accounts to demonstrate the proper stewardship of its 
activities and management of its financial affairs.  
 

 Annual Accounts 2021/22 

 
The unaudited annual accounts for 2021/22 are attached as Appendix 1 to this report. The 

Board will note the accounts are prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice for Local 
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2021/22 (the Code) and presented in a format 
that follows International Financial Reporting Standards. The accounts are a complex 
document and Appendix 2 provides the standard budget monitoring statement for the year to 
31 March 2022 to allow the Board to better relate the Partnership’s budget performance to the 
changes made in preparing the presentation of the accounts.   
 
Appendix 2 shows a surplus of £1,778,624. This is due to a change in how Capital Grants 

are drawn down from the Councils. Now that Nestrans can hold a General Fund, these grants 
were drawn down quarterly in advance from the start of 2021/22. During 2021/22, historical 
Capital Grant was also drawn down as work was completed on historic projects. 

 
The unaudited annual accounts comprise a number of statements and the attention of the 
Board is drawn to the following areas in particular: 

 
Page         2 - 9        Management Commentary 
 
Page         10 – 11     Governance Statement            
 
Page         17 – 18     Movements in Reserves Statement 
 
Page         19            Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement 

Page         20        Balance Sheet showing the unaudited financial position  
        as at 31st March 2022 

 
 
Other prescribed financial statements are included as required along with notes to support the 
core accounts where these are considered appropriate.  
 
The Governance Statement, pages 10 and 11 of the unaudited accounts, provides reasonable 
assurance that the general management structure, framework of financial regulation and 
internal control, level and quality of financial management information and level and method 
of accountability are adequate and effective. 
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The value of contributions remaining under the Strategic Transport Fund, plus interest 
accrued, at 31st March 2022 is £484,594.48. This sum is included in the Balance Sheet on 
page 20 and included in Note 12 on page 31 of the accounts.  
 
The Board are asked to consider the Management Commentary and Governance Statement 
sections of the draft accounts which includes a short description of the financial performance 
of the Partnership over the period.  This is supported in more detail by the Budget Monitoring 
Statement attached as Appendix 2 and Note 15 on pages 36 and 37 of the draft accounts 

provides more detail on the performance of the Partnership. 
 

 Delay in Drawdown 2021/22 

 
Requests for final delay in drawdown for 2021/22 to be carried forward into 2022/23 are set 
out in Appendix 3.  An amount of £2,705,973 has already been previously approved by the 

Board.  The final adjustments requested to these figures are required for those projects whose 
expenditure at year end differed to the original amounts approved as delay in drawdown, either 
due to progress being slightly better or slower than expected.   
 

 Recommendations 

 
It is recommended that the Board: 

 

a) Considers the Unaudited Annual Accounts for 2021/22 and approves their issue to 
the external Auditor and the Controller of Audit as per Appendix 1 

b) Approves the final delay in drawdown for 2021/22 as per Appendix 3. 
 

 
 
 
 
Mary Beattie 
Treasurer 
10 June 2022 
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MANAGEMENT COMMENTARY

Introduction

work as a Statutory Partnership on 1 April 2006.

wellbeing. Within these pillars are six key priorities that set the tone and direction of the overall strategy.

Performance in the Year

Nestrans staff continued to work from home in 2021/22 in accordance with government guidance relating

Sustrans embedded Cycling Development Officer was made a permanent post and renamed as Active

to Covid-19, with only occasional essential visits to the office being undertaken and all Board meetings

Nestrans has continued, in 2021/22, to work towards delivering the actions within the Health and

days per week under a Service Level Agreement has been employed as a Nestrans member of staff to
work three days per week from 1 January 2022.

Progress against these measures is discussed in the next section of this report.

City Council and four from Aberdeenshire Council. In addition, Nestrans is entitled to have up to four

of the Partnership, scrutinising performance and promoting effective partnerships with those interested

Nestrans started life as a voluntary partnership in 2002 which was replaced by the
statutory partnership as established by the Transport (Scotland) Act 2005 and the Regional Transport
Partnership (Establishment, Constitution and Membership) (Scotland) Order 2005. Nestrans began

processes of the Board which provides opportunity for the consideration of proposals, debate and

non-councillor members, with the four current members appointed for the period to October 2024.

The Board is responsible for providing leadership, setting the strategic direction, priorities and policies

in transportation matters generally. These responsibilities are fulfilled through the decision-making

Partnership and which identifies key projects and actions to deliver the Regional Transport Strategy (RTS).

decision making.  

Each year, the Director prepares a plan that supports the delivery of the strategic priorities of the

The Nestrans Board is its main decision-making body and consists of four Councillors from Aberdeen

The final Regional Transport Strategy (RTS) to 2040, was approved by the Nestrans Board on 10
February 2021 and submitted to the Cabinet Secretary on 24 March 2021 for his consideration. Ministerial

Travel Development Officer. The Communications and Public Relations officer that provided support two

it as the statutory Regional Transport Strategy for the area when they met on 10 November 2021. The new
Strategy focuses on interventions to deliver on the four key pillars of equality, climate, prosperity and

2

Transport, Bus, Freight, Rail and Active Travel Action Plans and various other Strategies that were
developed to help achieve the aims of the previous RTS and reviews of these supporting action plans will
be undertaken to ensure alignment with the new RTS in future as required. Nestrans also continued to

approval of the new strategy was received on 4 November 2021 and the Nestrans Board formally adopted

represent North East interests to seek improvements to air, maritime and rail connections from the area

The 2021/22 Annual Report and Business Plan for 2022/23 was approved by the Board in April 2022 and,
following design, will be published on the Nestrans website.

taking place virtually, with recordings published on the Nestrans website. The Board agreed a change to
full time working for the Transport Executive (Travel Planning & Delivery) from 1 July 2021 and the

to the rest of Scotland, the UK and beyond.

Nestrans is one of seven statutory Regional Transport Partnerships in Scotland and covers the City of
Aberdeen and Aberdeenshire.  
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Performance in the Year (continued)

Council.

Transport Scotland.

of the City Centre Masterplan, and the linked plan for the Beach.

was a review of the cycle network provision within Aberdeen.

for Change report issued to Transport Scotland in March 2022

made under both in the past year.

Harbour has been finalised and approved. Design work is now being taken forward by Aberdeen City

bridges on the Formartine & Buchan Way. Sustrans grant funding has been used to deliver further

Nestrans has continued to be fully involved with both Aberdeen City and Aberdeenshire Community

national approaches via its linkages with the Convention of Scottish Local Authorities (CoSLA) and

Kingswells to Westhill cycle route; for resurfacing on and path improvements adjacent to the Formartine
that could be claimed until June 2021, to complete the study to investigate options for the A944
A Regional Transport Active Travel grant was again awarded and used, along with a grant from 2020/21

grant was progressed, with a public consultation undertaken in the autumn of 2021 and an updated Case
The Laurencekirk to Aberdeen multi-modal corridor study that is being funded by a further LRDF
Fund (LRDF) grant from Transport Scotland and accepted from a technical perspective in December 2021.
The Insch Station Accessibility Study was revised using a previously awarded Local Rail Development

3

& Buchan Way; a core paths review in Aberdeen; and towards the purchase and installation of further

Nestrans has continued to undertake regular travel behaviour and attitude surveys to monitor the

Grant Scheme in addition to the Sustainable Travel Grant Scheme and a number of awards have been
and is published on the Nestrans website. Nestrans has introduced a Community Sustainable Travel
changing impact to travel during the Covid-19 pandemic and this information was shared with partners

Sub Area Model (ASAM19), to reflect the impact of the opening of the AWPR on travel patterns and latest

additional funding from the Scottish Government in conjunction with the Aberdeen City Region Deal.
the Laurencekirk junction improvement Partnership Group, both of which are being funded through
Nestrans is part of the Aberdeen to Central Belt rail journey time improvement Project Delivery Group and

with the Strategy Manager chairing the Transportation Working Group, and through this is influencing
Nestrans are also active members of the Society of Chief Officers in Transportation in Scotland (SCOTS),
for the Strategic Transport Projects Review (STPR2) for the North East, and national liaison group.
the Governance group. During the past year, Nestrans also continued to chair the regional working group
The Nestrans Chair sits on the National Transport Strategy (NTS2) Delivery Board and the Director sits on

Ministers. Nestrans has also continued to support partners in Aberdeen City Council on the delivery
and the proposed boundary has been submitted by Aberdeen City Council for consideration by Scottish
Planning Partnerships. Nestrans is also a member of the Aberdeen Low Emission Zone Delivery Group

upgrades on the Deeside Way and Formartine & Buchan Way were also funded via a Sustrans grant, as
and cycle counters that was arranged through Cycling Scotland. Health checks and a number of minor
path improvements to the Deeside Way and to supplement funding towards the installation of pedestrian

planning data and commissioning of consultancy support for scoping of Live Lab proposals. A Strategic
Business Case for the recommended option for transport link upgrades to the new Aberdeen South

involved with this work as a key regional stakeholder.
to review the plans to fully dual the A96 during 2022 and Nestrans will seek to ensure that they are fully
by Transport Scotland in December 2020, has not taken place as the Scottish Government now intends
Further work on the preferred option for the dualling between east of Huntly and Aberdeen, identified

The Nestrans Director and Transport Strategy Manager continue to provide transport input to the Aberdeen
City Region Deal. In the past year this included further progress on the update to the strategic Aberdeen
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Performance in the Year (continued)

carbon, improve air quality and to promote sustainable travel.

the STF Supplementary Guidance produced by the Strategic Development Planning Authority.

Progress against Key Performance Indicators 

           the strategy's six  priorities  providing  a more  focussed  list  of indicators  aimed  at  monitoring  the
           overall success of the strategy.
       -   A three-yearly evaluation  report  that  adds  in  other  data  of  interest  to  Nestrans, rolling  forward 
           a number of the indicators of more general  interest from the  previous monitoring report, as well as
           any additional survey data, qualitative data and lived experience from   stakeholder  groups, studies,
           projects,  partners  and  the  public. This will  aim  to  show  broader  trends  of  interest  and  more
           detail, with the ability to add supporting narrative and analysis.

National Transport Strategy

the effectiveness of policies and interventions in moving towards achieving the strategy's six main priorities.

contain other trends and information that have been monitored to help provide context.

The first annual monitoring report for the new strategy was reported to the Nestrans Board in February

A number of studies have been funded including the A98 Banff/Macduff River Deveron Bridge active travel

this process will be ongoing. Although Nestrans itself may have limited influence over delivery against

Following adoption of the Regional Transport Strategy to 2040, a review of the previous monitoring report
has been undertaken. It was agreed, by the Board in September 2021, that a new two-tier approach be

some of the indicators, it is important to understand the wider progress and trends across the region. It

Aberdeen Rapid Transit. Although no requests were received in 2021/22, Nestrans will continue to
being funded via the grant and lead on the further development of business case and designs for
of the Bus Alliance to oversee the BPF delivery and staff are involved with the various multi-modal studies

linked to each of the strategy's six priorities. Twenty indicators have been selected and agreed to measure
baseline and targets, including interim targets for 2030 if applicable, for a range of focussed indicators
2022 and is now published on the Nestrans website. It sets out the overall aim and provides the

This two-tier reporting reflects the approach being taken by Transport Scotland for the monitoring of the

is intended that the first three-yearly evaluation report will be prepared in Spring 2024 and it will

4

feasibility study, multi-modal corridor studies on Aberdeen's Wellington Road, the A93 and A947 corridors

refund Strategic Transport Fund (STF) payments, as requested and verified following the quashing of

maintenance schemes, bus and cycling and walking improvements, support towards projects to reduce
park that was agreed with Transport Scotland, progressing various strategic road capacity, safety and
This has included the cost of Nestrans' contribution towards Kintore Railway Station, access road and car
been used to further develop and deliver projects to achieve the aims and objectives within the RTS.
funding provided by Aberdeen City and Aberdeenshire Councils and the Scottish Government. This has
The Nestrans Board oversaw the delivery of projects that amounted to over £6 million as a result of

for, of just over £12 million, was awarded. Nestrans chairs the working group established with all partners
submitted by Aberdeen City Council on behalf of the North East Bus Alliance and the full amount applied
Rapid Transit. The subsequent bid to the Scottish Government's Bus Partnership Fund (BPF) was
and consultancy support to prepare a bid to the Bus Partnership Fund and develop proposals for Aberdeen

recognised that it may take many years for the strategy to decisively influence most of the indicators and

adopted based upon:

       -   Annual monitoring of headline indicators which focus  on trends over time and are directly  linked  to

The monitoring report was designed to show progress against the main priorities of the RTS, but it is
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Progress against Key Performance Indicators (continued)

considered as a basis for preparing annual budgets to 2025.

Plans for the Future

20%, and this will also include how this may be achieved.

appropriate bus priority and active travel infrastructure for those routes will be progressed.

Zone. 

grant funding opportunities.

the A96 dualling review. Work will also continue on the implementation of the Aberdeen Low Emission

in the year ahead. Nestrans will continue to endeavour to seek and maximise any other relevant potential
Transport Scotland should they wish to provide an Active Travel Grant to Regional Transport Partnerships
Partnership working with Sustrans will continue and Nestrans has submitted proposals for consideration by
to the Board, to ensure the budget remains agile and best placed to deal with regional transport needs.
approved budget may continue to be subject to risk in the year ahead, but regular reporting will take place,
storms and continued working restrictions during the Covid-19 pandemic, will also be completed. The
or from resources being diverted to other Council priorities such as dealing with the impacts of a number of
A number of projects within the 2021/22 budget, that were impacted due to a lack of staff resources,

to enable budget implications to be factored into partner authorities' medium term financial strategies. This
this organisation. The Board also approved a 3-year Strategic Investment Programme in February 2022

5

Using City Region Deal Strategic Appraisal funding, the update to the Aberdeen Sub Area Model (ASAM)

road safety and active and sustainable travel.

to a 2019 base year will be completed along with a range of future year scenarios. Reflecting the priorities

regional implications of the Scottish Government's target to nationally reduce car vehicle kilometres by

The proposals for Aberdeen Rapid Transit and work on key corridor studies that will consider the most

Plan for the new Regional Transport Strategy will be developed and also a Climate Change Action Plan, in
accordance with the new reporting duties for public bodies. Specific policy work will be undertaken on the

Ride, reducing emissions, strategic maintenance, road safety, access for all and places for people projects
The Nestrans Board has approved budgets for 2022/23 to implement further active travel, rail, bus, Park &

the Board agrees a budget in advance of each financial year and considers a detailed budget monitoring
report, with a forecast of income and expenditure for the year, at each meeting. This allows regular and
close scrutiny of activities against specific financial targets to take place and is considered adequate for

works based on current estimated costs linked to partner Council's own programmes that can be

where necessary, including the Active Travel Action Plan and Health and Transport Action Plan. A Delivery

hybrid model of office-based and home working will be adopted. There will be a revised Nestrans Board
following local government elections on 5th May 2022 and support will be given to new Board members.

regional transport schemes. Nestrans will continue to be involved with the other City Region Deal

No performance indicators have been specifically identified to measure financial performance. However,

indicate the potential profiling of expenditure during the 3-year period and shows a general programme of
is not an agreed spending plan as it will be subject to future budget and partner agreements, but it does

In the year ahead, Nestrans staff will commence a phased return to the office and it is envisaged that a

transport related projects and as a stakeholder for the Aberdeen to Inverness rail improvements and

of the RTS and the outcomes of STPR2, further scheme development will be undertaken of strategic

During the coming year, the action plans that supported the previous RTS will be reviewed and updated

throughout the north east. Funding is also in place to update and continue to progress the various action
plans that support the Regional Transport Strategy, to undertake project feasibility studies and promote
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MANAGEMENT COMMENTARY (continued)

Financial Performance Review

active travel promotion via the Getabout brand and on project feasibility studies.  

of the Cycle Development Officer and NCN Deeside Way grants.

Review of Out-turn against Budget for 2021/22

costs being incurred.

staff resources being utilised elsewhere.

£2,380,016 to be carried forward to 2022/23.

claimed until the end of June 2022.

working from home with little or no travel, stationery, conference, presentation material or event

Station that amounted to over £3 million. In addition, £401,258 has been spent in support of actions within

Nestrans has invested over £5.6 million in the past year on various rail, roads, bus, cycling, walking
and carbon reduction initiatives. This included the cost of Nestrans final contribution to Kintore Railway

6

The Partnership core funding and the support for its strategic programmes from partner Councils and

final payment, received in November 2021 amounted to €128,509.56. The total grant over the life of

the Scottish Government reflects their continued support. The budget provision for Coordination and
Project Development was £935,383 (£876,792 2020/21) and the budget for the Strategic Investment
Programme was £6,043,479 (£2,024,521 2020/21).

our Health & Transport, Rail, Freight, Bus and Active Travel Action Plans, travel planning, road safety and

and deliver projects. Work programmes were delayed in a number of areas with the Councils requesting

and associated costs were however reduced as a result of the vacant Transport Officer post, staff

Continuation of funding of £283,636 has been approved to 2022/23 for several projects that were

occurred very much in line with forecast following a number of virements. The Partnership Office

impacted by Covid-19, such as through events not being able to take place, normal promotion and

On the Strategic Investment Programme the Partnership relies heavily on partner Councils to manage

the four year project was €354,312. Grants have also been awarded to Nestrans from Transport Scotland
in the form of RTP Active Travel and Local Rail Development Fund grants and from Sustrans in the form

In terms of the Coordination and Project Development budget, the Partnership had forecast throughout
the year that this funding would be spent reasonably close to budget and the expenditure

satisfaction surveys for public transport not being appropriate, lockdown affecting delivery and Council

Nestrans received the final payment through the Civitas Portis project that ended in November 2020. The

Development Fund grant for the Aberdeen to Laurencekirk multi-modal corridor study can continue to be
A further £42,321 of grant funding has been requested for carry forward to 2022/23 as the Local Rail
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MANAGEMENT COMMENTARY (continued)

Review of Out-turn against Budget for 2021/22 (continued)

2020/21 2021/22 2021/22 %
Actual Budget Actual Actual 

£000 £000 £000  v Budget

Grants & Requisitions 8,355 7,070 8,396 119%
Other Income 98 0 98      -
Interest 3 0 3      -
Total Income 8,456 7,070 8,497 120%

Coordination & Project Development
 - Core Costs 571 587 571 97%
 - Regional Transport Strategy 401 348 401 115%
Strategic Investment Programme 5,688 6,043 5,610 93%
City Region Deal 109 0 136      -
Civitas/Portis 0 0 0      -
Total Operating Expenses 6,770 6,978 6,718 96%

Net Surplus/(Deficit) 1,685 92 1,779 

ahead, would be reported to the Board for their consideration.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

measures are in place to overcome or at least mitigate the impact that these may have on the

The relationships with partners are very close and each local authority partner has identified

A significant amount of this surplus has already been allocated within the 2022/23 budget to complete
previously approved projects. This continuation of funding to the following financial year was approved
by the Nestrans Board when they met in February 2022 and further revised in April 2022. The remaining

The principal risks facing the Partnership, as with many such bodies, is the reliance on third party
funding to support its annual programme and reliance on third parties to deliver its programme.

We are confident that all material risks facing the Partnership are known and that appropriate

Without these certainties, the opportunity to consider the development of any truly strategic concept
is more limited.

continued operation of the Partnership.

7

their staff to act as professional advisors to the Board to ensure the engagement is maintained
indicative budgets for the Nestrans contributions for the next 5 years and appointed senior members of

between parties at a corporate level.

for the new RTS. Any further proposals for budget allocations from within the General Fund, in the year
surplus will be held within the General Fund and will be considered when developing the Delivery Plan
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MANAGEMENT COMMENTARY (continued)

the region.

Annual Accounts

issued under section 12 of the 2003 Act.

Going Concern

appropriate to adopt a going concern basis for the preparation of these financial statements.

Audit Information

Retirement Benefits

earned by employees in the year and the associated pension assets and liabilities.

of the Partnership's Business

The Regional Transport Strategy to 2040 has now been adopted and sets out the key issues that the
Partnership will contribute towards and the relationships and direction of travel that the Partnership

International Accounting Standard (IAS) 19 has been fully adopted in preparing the accounts of the

No remuneration was paid to the Partnership’s external auditor for non-audit work during 2021/22.

levels in line with 2020/21 and the indicative budgets for 2022/23 confirm that sufficient funding is

The Board and Director at the date of this report confirms that:

• So far as they are aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Partnership’s auditor

to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to ensure that the
          Partnership’s auditor is aware of that.

          is unaware; and

Partnership will continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. It is therefore considered

Partnership. The standard prescribes how employing organisations are to account for pension benefits

funded by the 2022/23 requisitions from constituent authorities. The budget for 2021/22 with funding

that allows an agile approach towards positioning itself to accommodate any significant changes

Remuneration Paid to the Auditor for Non-Audit Work

Regulations 2014, which section 12 of the Local Government in Scotland Act 2003 requires to be

at 31 March 2022. Future actuarial valuations of the pension scheme will consider the

• They have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a Board member or officer in order

Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2021/22 (the Code)

8

available beyond September 2023 and so the Board has a reasonable expectation that the

The Partnership is required to prepare Annual Accounts by the Local Authority Accounts (Scotland)

prepared in accordance with proper accounting practices. These practices primarily comprise the

appropriate employer's rate to meet the commitments of the scheme and accumulated absences will be

affecting this sector, in particular those that have been identified in the wider development plans for

The Balance Sheet shows that the Partnership has an excess of assets over liabilities of £1,821,500

intends to follow. This is a developing area, however, and the Partnership has created a structure

supported by International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and statutory guidance

Main Trends and Factors Likely to Affect the Future Development, Performance and Position
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MANAGEMENT COMMENTARY (continued)

Retirement Benefits (continued)

mainly due to changes in actuarial assumptions.

up to the 31 March 2022.

for the time value of money a discount factor based on corporate bond rates is used.

Mary Beattie

Chair Treasurer
   

Director

Strategy are regularly refreshed which will ensure that arising issues are identified early enough to

Aberdeen City Council. Note 14 to the Core Statements details the income and expenditure charged
to the comprehensive income and expenditure statement under IAS 19 in respect of the Local
Government Scheme, based upon assessments provided by the Actuary of the Scheme.

to be funded by the Partnership. The liability relates to benefits earned by existing or previous employees

Employees are eligible to join the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS), administered by

We are not aware of any adjusting event that would have impacted on the reliability of the information
presented in this report or financial statements.

Rab Dickson

22 June 2022

These benefits are expressed in current value terms rather than the cash amount that will actually

regarded as higher than cash received in the future. In order to adjust the pension liability cash flows
be paid out. This is to allow for the 'time value of money', whereby the value of cash received now is

The Balance Sheet on page 20 shows that the Board has a net pension liability of £578,000
as at the 31 March 2022 (£750,000 31 March 2021) due to the accrual of pension liabilities
in accordance with IAS19. The movement of £172,000 in the net liability position is

Future developments will generally be identified from changes in Government or local authority policy,
changes in the development plan and/or wider economic changes in the region. Close links are
maintained with appropriate government departments and the Structure Plan and Regional Transport

The pension liability represents the best estimate of the current value of pension benefits that will have

allow any appropriate action to be taken to re-position the Partnership and its activities.

TBC

Events since the End of the Financial Year

Future Developments

9
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ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

the date of approval of the annual accounts.

Board and will be considered in all financial governance procedures.

and will be kept under review on an annual basis.

     •   Internal Audit and External Audit; and
     •   Partner and stakeholder feedback. 

Governance in December 2020. The financial management arrangements conform with the governance

Partnership adheres to the principles of openness, integrity and accountability and takes all

     •   Periodic and annual financial reports; 
     •   Targets set for financial and other performance; 
     •   Clearly defined expenditure guidelines;

The governance framework has been in place at Nestrans for the year ended 31 March 2022 and up to

recorded, procedures are practical and adhered to and that material errors are either prevented or

As part of the update to the Code of Corporate Governance that was agreed in December 2020,

The revised risk register was approved by the Board on 14 April 2021 and sets out 14 key risks including

likelihood of reduced funding on the role and remit of the Board. Risks have been assigned to the Director

Risk Management is viewed as essential in the context of financial governance. An increase
in the awareness and consequences of risk have become more prevalent within the
Partnership. The consideration of risk has been recognised in the budget setting report to the

the Nestrans Risk Register was instructed to be reviewed and reported back to the Board by April 2021.

the impact of changes in government policy, interruption and recovery from a major event and the

regulations, management information and appropriate delegation with accountability. In particular, the

probity of officers. Following a review, the Nestrans Board approved a revised Code of Corporate

     •   Communication of financial information to the Director and Board; and
     •   Periodic review of all financial procedures.

     •   Feedback from the Board in carrying out its scrutiny role;

The corporate governance and internal control procedures are informed by:- 

Transport Partnership has adopted a Code of Corporate Governance which ensures the accountability and

requirements of the CIPFA Statement on the Roles of the Chief Financial Officer in Local Government

arrangements for the governance of resources, approved by the Board. The North East of Scotland

     •   The work of the managers within the Partnership;

(2016) as set out in Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: Framework (CIPFA/ SOLACE).

reasonable steps to ensure assets are safeguarded, transactions are authorised and properly

The Partnership’s Code of Corporate Governance and the related systems of internal financial control
provide reasonable assurance that objectives will be met. The North East of Scotland Transport

The system of corporate governance and internal financial control is based on a framework of financial

detected within a timely period, and corrective action taken.

Nestrans has a responsibility for ensuring that its business is conducted in accordance with the law
and proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded, properly accounted for, and used
appropriately. In discharging this responsibility, the Director and Treasurer have put in place proper

10

system includes:- 

     •   Performance management; 
     •   Comprehensive financial management systems; 

     •   Formal project management disciplines;
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ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (continued)

Review of adequacy and effectiveness

management review, as recommended in Appendix 1 of the 2020/21 Annual Audit Report.  

operating effectively.  

Signed:

Mary Beattie

Chair Treasurer

Chief Internal Auditor has responsibility for independently reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness
of the Council’s internal control environment. The Chief Internal Auditor has reported that, in his

The Partnership relies on the financial systems of Aberdeenshire Council. The Council's

11

number of minor modifications are suggested, a review of the Risk Register, the Nestrans Code of

arrangements in place provide assurance, are adequate and are operating effectively.

opinion, based on his evaluation of the Council's control environment, reasonable assurance can
be placed upon the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control system in the year to

Action Plan

While the review of effectiveness provides reasonable assurance, the Partnership is reviewing

31 March 2022. On the basis of his review and opinion, we are satisfied that the

the arrangements for the preparation of the unaudited annual accounts, to ensure there is appropriate

Conduct and the Code of Corporate Governance are being reported for consideration by the Board in June

Conclusion

Our Annual Governance Statement summarises the partnership’s governance arrangements and
affirms our commitment that they are subject to review and remain appropriate for the activities
and delivery of services. Subject to the implementation of the action plan and on the basis of the
evidence contained in this statement, we are satisfied that the arrangements are adequate and are

Rab Dickson

22 June 2022

Director
TBC

A review of the governance framework has been undertaken for the Annual Accounts and as a small

2022.
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STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

The Partnership’s Responsibilities

The Partnership is required to: -

     Treasurer to the Partnership.

•    approve the Annual Accounts for signature.

on 22 June 2022.

Signed on behalf of the Partnership

22 June 2022

The Treasurer’s Responsibilities

Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code).

In preparing the Annual Accounts, the Treasurer has: -

•   selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently;
•   made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent;
•   complied with legislation; and
•   complied with the local authority Code.

The Treasurer has also :-

•   kept proper accounting records which were up to date; and
•   taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

2022.

Mary Beattie

Treasurer
22 June 2022

(Scotland) Regulations 2014), and so far as is compatible with that legislation, in accordance with
proper accounting practices (Section 12 of the Local Government in Scotland Act 2003); and

I confirm that these Annual Accounts were approved for signature by the Board at its meeting

• make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that one of its
officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In this case, that officer is the

• manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and safeguard its
     assets.

12

The Treasurer is responsible for the preparation of the Partnership’s Annual Accounts in

TBC, Chair

accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority

I certify that the Annual Accounts give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Partnership at the reporting date and the transactions of the Partnership for the year ended 31 March

• ensure the Annual Accounts are prepared in accordance with legislation (The Local Authority Accounts
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(Nestrans) and the Accounts Commission
Independent auditor’s report to the members of North East of Scotland Transport Partnership

13
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(Nestrans) and the Accounts Commission for Scotland (continued)

14

Independent auditor’s report to the members of North East of Scotland Transport Partnership
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(Nestrans) and the Accounts Commission for Scotland (continued)

15

Independent auditor’s report to the members of North East of Scotland Transport Partnership
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EXPENDITURE AND FUNDING ANALYSIS

Net Net

Expenditure Net Expenditure
Chargeable Expenditure Chargeable Net

to the Adjust in the to the Adjust Expenditure
General Fund -ments* CIES General Fund -ments* in the CIES

2020/21 2020/21 2020/21 2021/22 2021/22 2021/22
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Coordination & Project
(208) 24 (184) Development (137) 35 (102) 

Strategic Investment 
0 0 0 Programme (1,660) 0 (1,660) 
0 0 0 City Region Deal 0 0 0 

25 0 25 Civitas/Portis (14) 0 (14) 
Financing and

(183) 24 (159) Net cost of services (1,811) 35 (1,776) 

Financing and Investment
0 11 11 (Income) & Expenditure 0 12 12 

(183) 35 (148) (Surplus) / Deficit (1,811) 47 (1,764) 

General Fund Balance
(417) at 1 April (600) 

(Plus)/Less (Surplus) or
Deficit on the General

(183) Fund (1,811) 

General Fund Balance
(600) at 31 March (2,411) 

*Adjustments - Adjustments between the funding and accounting basis

making purposes. Income and expenditure accounted for under generally accepted accounting practices
is presented more fully in the CIES.  

This statement shows how annual expenditure is used and funded from resources by the organisation

generally accepted accounting practices. It also shows how this expenditure is allocated for decision
in comparison with those resources consumed or earned by partnerships in accordance with

16
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MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT FOR YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

basis and funding basis under regulations".

General Total
Fund Pension Unusable

Reserve Reserves
£000 £000 £000

Balance at 01 April 2020 (416) 630 638

Surplus on provision of services (148) 0 0 

Other Comprehensive income and
expenditure 0 89 89 

Total Comprehensive
Expenditure and Income (148) 89 89 

Adjustments between accounting basis
& funding basis under regulations (36) 31 35 

Decrease/(Increase) before
Transfers to Statutory Reserves (184) 120 124 

Transfers to/(from) Statutory Reserves 0 0 0 

Increase in Year (184) 120 124 

Balance at 31 March 2021 (600) 750 762 

0 

Total

4 

(600) 12 

0 

(36) 4 

(148) 

Usable Adjustment
Reserves Account

£000 £000
(416) 8 

Compensated

This Statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by the organisation,
analysed into 'usable reserves' and ‘unusable reserves’. Usable reserves are those that can be applied
to fund expenditure subject to the need to maintain a prudent level of reserves and any statutory
limitations on their use. Nestrans, as a result of Section 122 of the Transport (Scotland) Act, which came
into effect on 19 March 2020, is now permitted to maintain a General Fund Balance. Unusable

The Deficit on the provision of services line shows the true economic cost of providing the
Partnership’s services, more details of which are shown in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.

Accumulated

reserves include reserves that hold timing differences shown in the line “Adjustments between accounting

(148) 0 

0 

4 

0 0 

(184) 

17

(184) 

Absences
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MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT FOR YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 (continued)

Balance at 01 April 2021 (600) 750 762

Surplus on provision of services (1,764) 0 0 

Other Comprehensive income and
expenditure 0 (220) (220) 

Total Comprehensive
Expenditure and Income (1,764) (220) (220) 

Adjustments between accounting basis
& funding basis under regulations (47) 48 47 

Decrease/(Increase) before
Transfers to Statutory Reserves (1,811) (172) (173) 

Transfers to/(from) Statutory Reserves 0 0 0 

Decrease/(Increase) in Year (1,811) (172) (173) 

Balance at 31 March 2022 (2,411) 578 589 

(1,811) (1) 

(2,411) 11 

18

0 0 

(600) 12 

(1,811) (1) 

(47) 

(1,764) 0 

0 0 

(1) 

(1,764) 0 
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COMPREHENSIVE INCOME & EXPENDITURE STATEMENT FOR YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

Movement in Reserves Statement.

2020/21 2021/22
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Expenditure Income Net Expenditure Income Net

Note

Coordination & Project
840 (1,024) (184) Development 972 (1,074) (102) 

Strategic Investment 
2,013 (2,013) 0 Programme 5,610 (7,270) (1,660) 

188 (188) 0 City Region Deal 136 (136) 0 

115 (90) 25 Civitas/Portis 0 (14) (14) 

3,156 (3,315) (159) Cost of Services 6,718 (8,494) (1,776) 

Financing and Investment
11 Income 8 12 

(Surplus) / Deficit on
(148) Provision of Services (1,764) 

Actuarial (gains)/losses 
89 on pension assets/liabilities (220) 

Total Comprehensive
(59) Income & Expenditure (1,984) 

19

generally accepted accounting practices, rather than the amount to be funded from grants or
requisitions. Nestrans receives contributions to cover expenditure in accordance with agreements.
This may be different from the accounting cost and the effect on the General Fund is shown in the

15

15

This Statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance with
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2022

31 March 31 March
2021 Note 2022
£000 £000

1,799 Short Term Debtors 10 3,268 

Cash and Cash
952 Equivalents 11 5,199 

2,751 Current Assets 8,466 

(1,680) Short Term Creditors 12 (5,582) 

(1,680) Current Liabilities (5,582) 

(484) Long Term Creditors 12 (485) 
(750) Pension Liability 14 (578) 

(1,234) Long Term Liabilities (1,063) 

(162) Net Asset / (Liability) 1,822 

(600) Usable Reserve (2,411) 
762 Unusable Reserves 7 589 

162 Total Reserves (1,822) 

accounts were authorised for issue on 22 June 2022.

Mary Beattie
Treasurer

22 June 2022

reserves, i.e. those that are not able to be used to provide services.  

20

The unaudited annual accounts were authorised for issue on 20 June 2018 and the audited annual

by the Partnership. The net asset / (liability) of Nestrans (assets less liabilities) is matched by the reserves
The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of assets and liabilities recognised

held by the Partnership.

Reserves are reported in two categories. The first category of reserves is usable reserves, i.e. those
reserves that Nestrans may use to provide services. The second category of reserves is unusable
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT

providers of capital (i.e. borrowing) to the Partnership.

31 March 2021 31 March 2022
£000 £000 Note

148 Net (deficit) / surplus on the provision of services 1,764 6

(160) (Increase)/Decrease in Debtors (1,469) 
(576) Increase/(Decrease) in Creditors 3,903 

31 Pension Liability 49 

(557) Net cash flows from Operating Activities 4,247 

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash
(557) equivalents 4,247 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of
1,509 the reporting period 952 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the
952 reporting period 5,199 

The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Partnership during
the reporting period. The statement shows how the Partnership generates and uses cash and cash
equivalents by classifying cash flows as operating, investing and financing activities. The amount of
net cash flows arising from operating activities is a key indicator of the extent to which the operations
of the Partnership are funded by way of taxation and grant income or from the recipients of services
provided by the Partnership. Investing activities represent the extent to which cash outflows have
been made for resources which are intended to contribute to the Partnership’s future service delivery.
Cash flows arising from financing activities are useful in predicting claims on future cash flows by

21
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

NOTE 1 Accounting Policies

General Principles

12 of the 2003 Act.

The accounting convention adopted in the Annual Accounts is historical cost. 

The accounting policies have been applied consistently in the current and prior years.

Accruals and Income and Expenditure

when cash payments are made or received.  

not be collectable.

Requisitions and Contributions

restrictions that Nestrans has not satisfied, in which case a creditor is recognised.

Financial Instruments

liability or equity instrument at another entity.  

quoted in an active market, as well as cash and cash equivalents.  

equates to the actual carrying value at 31 March 2022.

The Partnership’s receivables are for periods of less than 12 months or are charged at a market rate

22

of interest and so are initially measured at fair value and are carried at amortised cost, which

Nestrans Financial Assets are Receivables which have fixed or determinable payments but are not

Accounting in the United Kingdom and the Service Reporting Code of Practice (SeRCOP), supported

The Annual Accounts summarises the Partnership’s transactions for the 2021/22 financial year
and its position at the year-end, 31 March 2022. The Partnership is required to prepare Annual

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset at one entity and a financial

Accounts by the Local Authority Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2014, which section 12
of the Local Government in Scotland Act 2003 requires to be prepared in accordance with proper

by International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and statutory guidance issued under section

Income and Expenditure activities are accounted for in the year in which they take place, not simply

Where income or expenditure has been recognised but cash has not been received or paid, a debtor or

Requisitions and contributions relating to Capital and Revenue expenditure are accounted for on an
accruals basis and recognised immediately in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
as income, except to the extent that the grant or contribution has a condition(s), as opposed to

creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the balance sheet. Where the debts have not been
settled, the balance of debtors is written down and a charge made to revenue for the income that might

accounting practices. These practices primarily comprise of the Code of Practice on Local Authority
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

Note 1 Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial Instruments (continued)

equates to the actual carrying value at 31 March 2022.

right to request their contributions be returned.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

2022.

Employee Benefits

a) Benefits Payable During Employment

b) Termination Benefits

financial transactions and the balance is invested through the Council’s Treasury Management

is calculated at the salary rates applicable in the following accounting year. The accrual is charged to the
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services, but then reversed out through the MIRS so that holiday

In addition to its own bank accounts Nestrans makes use of Aberdeenshire Council’s bank account for

committed to either terminating the employment of an officer or group of officers making an offer

benefits are charged to revenue in the financial year in which the holiday absence occurs.

redundancy and are charged on an accruals basis in the CIES when the Partnership is demonstrably

23

Nestrans Long Term Liabilities are shown as Long Term Creditors in the Balance Sheet which

facilities. The balance is repayable on demand and therefore treated as a cash equivalent and is
included in the Balance Sheet at amortised cost, which equates to the actual cash value at 31 March

Short-term benefits due to employees are those that are to be settled within twelve months of the year
end. For Nestrans this will include benefits such as salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave
for current employees. Costs are recognised as an expense in the year in which employees provide the
service to the employer. The leave year is based on a calendar year and an accrual is therefore made
for the value of leave entitlements due to employees but not taken before the year-end. The accrual

Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Partnership to terminate an
officer's employment before the normal retirement date or an officer's decision to accept voluntary

to encourage voluntary redundancy.

Nestrans Current Liabilities are shown as Creditors in the Balance Sheet and are for periods of less
than 12 months and so are initially measured at fair value and are carried at amortised cost, which

represent the Strategic Transport Fund monies held in anticipation of projects of sufficient strategic
importance being progressed. However, this has not been possible due to the developer's legal
challenge which was upheld by the Supreme Court on 25 October 2017. Developers now have the
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

Note 1 Accounting Policies (continued)

Employee Benefits (continued)

d) The Local Government Pension Scheme

The Local Government Scheme is accounted for as a defined benefit scheme:

The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into the following components:

•   service cost comprising:

        allocated in the CIES to the services for which the employees worked;

        CIES;

        result of contribution and benefit payments;

- past service cost - the increase in liabilities as a result of a scheme amendment or curtailment
whose effect relates to years of service earned in earlier years - debited to the Surplus/Deficit in the

- net interest on the net defined benefit liability, i.e. net interest expense for the Partnership - the
change during the period in the net defined benefit liability that arises from the passage of time
charged to the CIES - this is calculated by applying the discounts rate used to measure the defined
obligation at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability at the beginning of the
period - taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability during the period as a

24

• the liabilities of the NESPF attributable to the Partnership are included in the Balance Sheet on an

• liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate of 2.8% (based on a

Employees of the Partnership are members of the Local Government Pension Scheme, North East
Scotland Pension Fund (NESPF) administered by Aberdeen City Council.

actuarial basis using projected unit credit method i.e. an assessment of the future payments that will
be made in relation to retirement benefits earned to date by employees, based on assumptions about
mortality rates, employee turnover rates, etc., and modelling of projected earnings for current

     employees;

     weighted average of "spot yields" on AA rated corporate bonds);
• the assets of the NESPF attributable to the Partnership are included in the Balance Sheet at their

     -   property - market value.

     fair value:
     -   quoted securities - current bid price;
     -   unquoted securities - professional estimate;
     -   unitised securities - current bid price; and

- current service cost - the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service earned this year -

credits for pension enhancement termination benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to

c) Post Employment Benefits

Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions require the General
Fund Balance to be charged with the amount payable by the Partnership to the pension fund or pensioner
in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the MIRS,
appropriations are required to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and

the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year end.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

Note 1 Accounting Policies (continued)

Employee Benefits (continued)

•   remeasurements comprising:

        Income and Expenditure; and

     settlement of liabilities; not accounted for as an expense.

and any such amounts payable but unpaid at year end.

than as benefits are earned by employees.

e) Discretionary Benefits

policies as are applied to the Local Government Pension Scheme.

Value Added Tax

irrecoverable.

the amount payable by the Partnership to the Pension Fund or directly to pensions in the year, not the

The negative balance that arises on the Pensions Reserve thereby measures the beneficial impact

amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the MIRS, this means that there
are appropriations to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for
retirement benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensions

to the General Fund of being required to account for retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows rather

The Partnership also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in the
event of early retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any member of
staff are accrued in the year of the decision to make the award and accounted for using the same

• contributions paid to the NESPF - cash paid as employer's contributions to the pension fund in

In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provision requires the General Fund Balance to be charged with

- actuarial gains and losses - changes in the net pensions liability that arise because events have not
coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or because the actuaries have
updated assumptions - debited or credited to the Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive

- the return on plan assets - excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit
liability - charged to the Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure;

VAT is included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement only to the extent that it is

25
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

Events after the Balance Sheet Date

statements are authorised for issue.

There are two types of events:

    a)    those  that  provide evidence  of conditions  that existed at the balance  sheet  date (adjusting

           events after the reporting period) and

    b)    those  that  provide  evidence of  conditions  that  arose  after  the balance sheet  date 

           (non-adjusting events after the reporting period) 

Accounts.

Reserves

on page 20.

Note 2  Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies

about complex transactions or those involving uncertainty about future events.

The critical judgement made in the Annual Accounts is:

     prepared on a going concern basis.

The accounts are adjusted to reflect adjusting events after the reporting period and are not adjusted to

The unusable reserve that Nestrans holds is an Accumulated Compensated Absences Adjustment
Account. Nestrans staff are entitled to annual leave from January to December, and this reserve
represents the proportion of these holidays that staff were entitled to but remained unused at 31

between the end of the reporting period (the balance sheet date) and the date when the financial

reflect non-adjusting events after the reporting period. Where a non-adjusting event would have a
material effect, disclosure is made in the notes of the nature of the events and their estimated financial
effect. Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the Statement of

Nestrans now holds a General Fund balance, as permitted by Section 122 of the Transport (Scotland) Act
which came into effect on 19 March 2020. This is shown as the Usable Reserve within the Balance Sheet

Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable that occur

March 2022.  There is also a pension reserve which is explained on page 29.

In applying the accounting policies set out in Note 1, the Treasurer has had to make certain judgements

• There is a degree of uncertainty about future levels of funding for local government and hence to
funding for Nestrans. However, the Treasurer has determined that the level of uncertainty is not yet
sufficient to provide an indication that the activities of the Partnership might be affected by the need
to reduce levels of service provision. On this basis the Annual Accounts continue to be

26
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

Note 3  Assumptions Made About The Future and Other Major Sources of Estimation 
Uncertainty

Note 14.  

Note 4  Events After The Balance Sheet Date

in all material respects to reflect the impact of this information.

assets and liabilities.

Note 5  Movement in Reserves Statement - adjustments between accounting basis and funding
basis under regulations

Partnership to meet future capital and revenue expenditure.

General Unusable Total
Fund Reserves 2020/21
£000 £000 £000

Adjustments involving the Pensions Reserve

Reversal of items relating to post-employment benefits debited
or credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services
in the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement (112) 112 0

Employers' pension contributions and direct payments to
pensioners payable in the year 80 (80) 0

Adjustments involving the Accumulating Compensated
Absences Adjustment Account

Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on an 
accruals basis is different from remuneration chargeable in the
year in accordance with statutory requirements (4) 4 0

Total Adjustments (36) 36 0

Pension Liability - The estimation of the defined benefit obligations is sensitive to various actuarial
assumptions relating to the discount rate used, the rate at which salaries are projected to increase,

practice to the resources that are specified by statutory provisions as being available to the

27

to provide expert advice about the assumptions to be applied. More details on this can be found in
mortality rates and expected returns on pension fund assets. A firm of consulting actuaries is engaged

The unaudited Annual Accounts were authorised for issue by the Treasurer to the Partnership on 20 June
2021. Where events taking place before this date provided information about conditions existing
at 31 March 2022, the figures in the financial statements and notes have been adjusted

There have been no material events since the date of the Balance Sheet which necessitate
the revision of the figures in the financial statements or notes thereto including contingent

This note details the adjustments that are made to the total Comprehensive Income &
Expenditure recognised by the Partnership in the year. This is in accordance with proper accounting
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

Note 5  Movement in Reserves Statement - adjustments between accounting basis and funding
basis under regulations (continued)

General Unusable Total
Fund Reserves 2021/22
£000 £000 £000

Adjustments involving the Pensions Reserve

Reversal of items relating to post-employment benefits debited
or credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services
in the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement (126) 126 0

Employers' pension contributions and direct payments to
pensioners payable in the year 78 (78) 0

Adjustments involving the Accumulating Compensated
Absences Adjustment Account

Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on an 
accruals basis is different from remuneration chargeable in the
year in accordance with statutory requirements 1 (1) 0

Total Adjustments (47) 47 0

Note 6  Note to the Expenditure and Funding Analysis

transfers between reserves are explained in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Adjustments between Funding and Accounting Basis

Employee Employee
Net Change Annual Total Net Change Annual

for the Leave Adjust- for the Leave Total
Pensions Accrued ments Pensions Accrued Adjustments

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

17 4 21 Staff Costs 33 (1) 32
17 4 21 Net Cost of Services 33 (1) 32

Other Income &
15 0 15 Expenditure 15 0 15
32 4 36 Total Adjustments 48 (1) 47

28

This note provides a reconciliation of the main adjustments to Net Expenditure Chargeable to the General
Fund to arrive at the amounts in the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement. The relevant

2020/21 2021/22
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

Note 7  Balance Sheet - Unusable Reserves

31/03/2021 31/03/2022
£000 £000

(750) Pensions reserves (a) (578)
(12) Accumulated Compensated Absences Adjustment Account (b) (11)

(762) Total Unusable Reserves (589)

(a) Pensions Reserve

by the time the benefits come to be paid.

2020/21 2021/22
£000 £000

630 Balance at 1 April 750

Remeasurement of the net defined liability comprising: Actuarial
89 gains and losses arising on changes in financial assumptions (220)

719 530

Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or 
credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the provision of services

112 in the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement 126

Employer's pension contributions and direct payments to 
(81) pensioners payable in the year (78)

750 Balance at 31 March 578

b) Accumulating Compensated Absences Adjustment Account

neutralised by transfers to or from the account.

The Accumulating Compensated Absences Adjustment Account absorbs the differences that would
otherwise arise on the general fund balance from accruing for compensated absences earned but not
taken in the year. Statutory arrangements require that the impact on the general fund balance is

29

The Pensions Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for

Statement as the benefits are earned by employees accruing years of service, updating the liabilities
The Partnership accounts for post employment benefits in the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure
accounting for post employment benefits and for funding benefits in accordance with statutory provisions.

shortfall in the benefits earned by past and current employees and the resources the Partnership has
set aside to meet them. The statutory arrangements will ensure that funding will have been set aside

recognised to reflect inflation, changing assumptions and investment returns on any resources set aside
to meet costs. However, statutory arrangements require benefits earned to be financed as the
Partnership makes employer's contributions to pensions funds or eventually pays any pensions for which
it is directly responsible. The debit balance on the Pensions Reserve therefore shows a substantial
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

Note 7  Balance Sheet - Unusable Reserves (continued)

2020/21 2021/22
£000 £000

8 Balance at 1 April 12

Settlement or cancellation of accrual made at the end
(8) of the preceding year (12)

12 Amounts accrued at the end of the current year 11

12 Balance at 31 March 11

Note 8  Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure
2020/21 2021/22

£000 £000

Net Interest on net defined benefit pension liability 18 15 
Interest receivable and similar income (8) (3) 

10 12 

Note 9  Requisitions and Non-Specific Grant Income
2020/21 2021/22

£000 £000
Core Funding Requisitions

Aberdeen City Requisition 112 97 

Aberdeenshire Requisition 112 97 

Other Grants or Requisitions

Aberdeen City 944 3,708 

Aberdeenshire Council 720 2,932 

Scottish Government - Regional Transport Strategy 782 782 

Transport Scotland 144 432 

Sustrans 161 176 

Paths for All (Smarter Choices Smarter Places) 18 0 

Local Rail Development Fund 44 22 

City Region Deal 188 136 

Civitas/Portis 90 14 
3,315 8,396 

Note 10  Short Term Debtors

2020/21 2021/22

£000 £000

Government Bodies 160 1,094 

Other Local Authorities 1,362 2,052 

Other Entities and Individuals 277 122 
1,799 3,268 

30
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

Note 11  Cash and Cash Equivalents

2020/21 2021/22
£000 £000

The balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents comprises:
Bank or Cash balances held 952 5,199 

952 5,199 

Note 12  Creditors

Short Term Creditors

2020/21 2021/22
£000 £000

Other Local Authorities 1,577 5,390 

Public Corporations & Trading Funds 6 7 

Other Entities and Individuals 97 185 
1,680 5,582 

Long Term Creditors

2020/21 2021/22
£000 £000

Receipts in Advance (Strategic Transport Fund Balances) 484 485 

Total 484 485 

Note 13  External Audit Costs

The Board has incurred the following costs in relation to the audit of the Annual Accounts.

2020/21 2021/22
£000 £000

Fees payable in respect of external audit services: 10 11 

Total 10 11 

Note 14 Defined Benefit Pension Schemes

Participation in pension schemes

at the time that employees earn their future entitlement.

The authority participates in one post employment scheme:

    assets.

As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers, the Partnership makes contributions
towards the cost of post employment benefits. Although these benefits will not actually be payable until
employees retire, the Partnership has a commitment to make the payments and this needs to be disclosed

•   The Local Government Pension Scheme, administered locally by the North East Scotland Pension Fund 
    - this is  a funded defined benefit final salary scheme, meaning  that the Partnership  and employees pay
    contributions into a fund, calculated at a level intended to balance the pensions liabilities with investment

31
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

Note 14 Defined Benefit Pension Schemes (continued)

Participation in pension schemes (continued)

benefits representing 24.9% (2020/21 22.8%) of pensionable pay.

Transactions relating to post employment benefits

during the year.

2020/21 2021/22
£000 £000

Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement (CIES)

Cost of Services

97 Current service cost 111
0 Past Service cost 0
0 Loss from Settlements 0

Financing and Investment Income & Expenditure

14 Net Interest Expense 14
1 Administration Expenses 1

Total post employment benefits charged to the surplus or
112 deficit on the provision of services 126

Other post employment benefits charged to the CIES

Remeasurement of the net defined liability comprising: Actuarial
89 gains and losses arising on changes in financial assumptions (220)

201 Total post employment benefit charged to the CIES (94)

Movement in Reserves Statement

Reversal of net charges made to the surplus or deficit on the
provision of services for post employment benefits in

(112) accordance with the code (126)

Actual amount charged against the General Fund balance
for pensions in the year

80 Employers contributions payable to the scheme 78

in Reserves Statement. The following transactions have been made in the Comprehensive Income

For 2021/22, the Partnership paid £78,718 (2020/21 £79,563) to the Fund in respect of retirement

& Expenditure Statement and the General Fund Balance via the Movement in Reserves Statement

32

The Partnership recognises the cost of retirement benefits in the reported cost of services when they are
earned by employees, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions. However, the
charge that is required to be made against requisitions is based on the cash payable in the year, so the
real cost of post employment/retirement benefits is reversed out of the General Fund via the Movement
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

Note 14 Defined Benefit Pension Schemes (continued)

Pension assets and liabilities recognised in the Balance Sheet

31/03/2021 31/03/2022
£000 £000

Present value of the defined benefit obligation 4,800 4,883
Fair value of pension fund assets (4,050) (4,305)
Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation 750 578

Assets and liabilities in relation to post employment benefits

Reconciliation of present value of scheme liabilities (defined benefit obligation)

31/03/2021 31/03/2022
£000 £000

3,508 Opening value 4,800
97 Current service cost 111
84 Interest cost 100
25 Contributions by scheme participants 23

Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from changes in
1,117 financial assumptions (107)

(31) Benefits paid (44)
0 Past service cost 0
0 Loss on Curtailments 0

4,800 Closing value 4,883

Reconciliation of fair value of scheme assets

31/03/2021 31/03/2022
£000 £000

2,878 Opening value 4,050
70 Interest income 86

1,028 Remeasurement gains/(losses) 113
(1) Administration expenses (1)
81 Contributions from employer 78
25 Contributions from employee 23

(31) Benefits paid (44)
4,050 Closing Value 4,305

33
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

Note 14 Defined Benefit Pension Schemes (continued)

Analysis of Pension Fund's Assets

total assets held:
Quoted 31/03/2021 31/03/2022
(Y/N) £'000 £'000

Equities: UK quoted Y 660 551
Overseas quoted Y 950 1,269
Pooled UK Y 371 376
Pooled Global Y 416 386

Bonds: UK Government fixed Y 2 0
UK Government indexed Y 160 353
Overseas Government fixed Y 41 0
UK Other Y 1 0
Overseas other Y 21 0
UK Corporate Y 1 0
Overseas Corporate Y 15 0

Property: UK Direct N 230 281

Alternatives: Private Equity N 215 266
Private Debt N 98 102
Private Equity Infrastructure N 79 79
Infrastructure Pooled Fund Y 75 74
Private Equity Real Estate N 51 54
Multi Asset Credit Fund N 306 387
Diversified Growth Funds N 239 0

Cash: Cash instruments N 119 127
4,050 4,305

34

The Local Government Pension Scheme's assets consist of the following categories, by proportion of the
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

Note 14 Defined Benefit Pension Schemes (continued)

Basis for estimating assets and liabilities

as at 31 March 2020.

The significant assumptions used by the actuary have been:

2020/21 2021/22

Mortality Assumptions:
Longevity at age 65 for current pensioners (years)

21.5  - Men 21.5
24.2  - Women 24.2

Longevity at age 65 for future pensioners (years)
23.1  - Men 23
26.3  - Women 26.3

2.7% Rate of inflation 3.3%
4.2% Rate of increase in salaries 4.8%
2.8% Rate of increase in pensions 3.4%
2.1% Rate of discounting fund liabilities 2.8%

Take up of option to convert annual pension into
50% retirement lump sum 50%

previous period.
Increase in Decrease in
Assumption Assumption

Impact on the Defined Benefit Obligation in the Fund £'000 £'000

Longevity (increase or decrease in 1 year) 145 (145)
Rate of inflation (increase or decrease by 0.1%) 91 (91)
Rate of increase in salaries (increase or decrease by 0.1%) 17 (17)
Rate for discounting scheme liabilities (increase or decrease 
by 0.1%) (90) 90

levels, etc. The Local Government Pension Scheme has been assessed by Mercer Limited, an

The estimation of the defined benefit obligation is sensitive to the actuarial assumptions set out in the table
above. The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of
assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period and assumes for each change that the
assumption used in preparing the sensitivity analysis below did not change from those used in the

35

Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method, an estimate of
the pensions that will be payable in future years dependent on assumptions about mortality rates, salary

independent firm of actuaries, estimates for the Fund being based on the last full valuation of the scheme
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

Note 14 Defined Benefit Pension Schemes (continued)

Impacts on the Partnership's Cash Flow

The aims of the fund are to:

    taxpayers and employers

have estimated that contibutions for the year to 31 March 2022 will be approximately £78,000.

Note 15  Detailed Performance Figures

previous year.  

Coordination & Project Development

Actual (£) Budget (£) Actual (£)
2020/21 2021/22 2021/22

441,140 Partnership Office 464,515 468,037 
75,477 Partner Support Costs 80,800 76,865 

0 Board Member expenses 1,000 0 
43,046 Other Associated Costs 40,935 25,888 

559,663 Core Costs Total 587,250 570,789 

35,523 Health & Transport 34,500 34,892 
89,145 Bus 47,311 42,330 
3,000 Rail 3,000 3,000 

17,700 General 72,300 51,744 
6,737 Project Feasibility & Monitoring 51,246 51,246 
3,053 Contingency 5,000 0 

106,646 Travel Planning 134,776 123,406 
0 Paths for All 0 0 

17,900 Rechargeable Costs 0 94,640 
279,704 Regional Transport Strategy Total 348,133 401,258 

839,367 Expenditure Total 935,383 972,047 

(224,427) Council Partners (244,350) (194,350) 
(782,000) Scottish Government (782,000) (782,000) 
(17,700) Paths for All 0 0 

(350) Other Income 0 (97,547) 
(1,024,477) Income Total (1,026,350) (1,073,897) 

(185,110) Net Total (90,967) (101,850) 

The employer's contributions are set by the Fund actuary at each triennial actuarial valuation (the most
recent being as at 31 March 2020), or at any time as instructed to do so by the Council. The actuaries

The tables below identify the budget for each area of the Nestrans programme of works and shows a
comparison between the agreed budgeted costs and the costs of similar programmes from the

36

•   Maximise the returns from investments within reasonable risk parameters

•   Ensure that sufficient resources are available to meet all liabilities as they fall due
•   Enable employer contributions to be kept as nearly constant as possible and at reasonable cost to the

•   Manage employer's liability effectively
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

Note 15  Detailed Performance Figures (continued)

Strategic Investment Programme

Actual (£) Budget (£) Actual (£)
2020/21 2021/22 2021/22

25,725 Rail 3,208,808 3,086,722 
741,779 Strategic Roads 624,821 473,099 
279,336 Quality Bus Corridors 264,324 258,326 
215,698 Cycle Routes 682,145 551,703 
77,477 Carbon Reduction & Air Quality 272,678 270,979 

324,874 Various 447,493 447,117 
143,845 Active Travel 431,567 431,558 
13,465 Insch Station 0 0 

160,687 NCN Deeside Way 89,313 68,075 
30,670 L'kirk to Aberdeen Multi-modal Study 22,330 22,330 

2,013,556 Expenditure Total 6,043,479 5,609,909 

(1,664,891) Council Partners (5,339,186) (6,639,844) 
(143,845) Transport Scotland (431,567) (431,558) 
(44,135) Local Rail Development Fund (22,330) (22,330) 

(160,686) Sustrans (250,396) (176,068) 
(2,013,556) Income Total (6,043,479) (7,269,800) 

0.00 Net Total 0 (1,659,891) 

and spend have been interpreted as additional revenue activity in these Statements.

Note 16  Related Parties

Scottish Government

outstanding at 31 March 2022.

The Scottish Government is responsible for providing the statutory framework within which the
Partnership operates and provides a significant element of its funding by grant of £782,000,
(2020/21 £782,000). Grants received from the Scottish Government are set out in the subjective

The Partnership is required to disclose material transactions with related parties - bodies or individuals

the ability to limit another party's ability to contract freely with the Partnership.

that have the potential to control or influence the Partnership or to be controlled or influenced by
Nestrans. Disclosure of these transactions allows readers to assess the extent to which the
Partnership might have been constrained in its ability to operate independently or might have secured

The table above details the budget and expenditure of the requisitions for general projects advanced by
the partner Councils. The partner authorities, on behalf of the Partnership, managed various projects
and these have been split by theme. Nestrans has not created assets of its own and both the funding

analysis in Note 15 on reporting for resource allocation decisions. There were no grant receipts

37
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

Note 16  Related Parties (continued)

Board Members

contract awarded in which a Board Member had declared an interest.

Aberdeen City Council & Aberdeenshire Council

each Council are detailed below.

2020/21 2021/22 2020/21 2021/22
£000 £000 £000 £000

Aberdeen City Council 1,056 3,805 1,314 1,651 
Aberdeenshire Council 832 3,029 915 5,547 

31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2021 2022 2021 2022
£000 £000 £000 £000

Aberdeen City Council 1,015 1,875 510 285 
Aberdeenshire Council 347 177 1,030 5,103 

Officers

North East Scotland Pension Fund

members' pensionable salaries.

Note 17  Financial Instruments

Financial Instruments Balances

instruments comprise cash and cash equivalents, debtors and creditors.

document. The Director has the responsibility for planning, directing or otherwise controlling the

controls are in place to manage and monitor the activities of the key management personnel.

The management of the Partnership is disclosed in the remuneration report on pages 42 to 45 of this

activities of the Partnership. The scope of control is determined by reference to the Scheme of

administered by Aberdeen City Council. This provides staff with defined benefits upon their retirement,

Members have direct control over the Partnership's financial and operational policies and

operations of the Partnership. They provide a significant element of funding through two specific
grants and the elected Members that they appoint to the managing Board of the Partnership can
exert significant influence on its operations and decision making processes. The amounts relating to

Amounts received from Amounts paid to

Amounts due from at Amounts due to at

Delegation and Financial Regulations adopted by the Board. The Board is satisfied that appropriate

Staff employed by the Partnership are entitled to be members of the Superannuation Scheme which is

decision making. No allowances or fees have been paid to Members in 2021/22 and there was no

Aberdeen City Council & Aberdeenshire Council have a significant element of control over the general

and the Partnership contributes towards the costs by making contributions based on a percentage of

The Partnership is funded by income from the Scottish Government and Partner Councils and
therefore is not subject to significant liquidity or credit risk exposure. The Partnership’s financial

38
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

Note 17  Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial instruments disclosed in the Balance Sheet are made up as follows.

2020/21 2021/22 2020/21 2021/22
£000 £000 £000 £000

Financial Liabilities at
Amortised Cost 484 485 1,680 5,582 
Total Creditors 484 485 1,680 5,582 

Loans and Receivables 0 0 1,799 3,268 
Cash & Cash Equivalents 0 0 952 5,199 
Total Debtors 0 0 2,751 8,466 

Financial Instruments Gains/Losses

to financial instruments are made up as follows:- 

Financial Assets Loans and Receivables

Interest Income 3,000£     

The Partnership’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks

    commitments to make payments

    in such measures as interest rates and stock market movements.

Credit Risk

Liquidity Risk

risks.

The gains and losses recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in relation

Cash and cash equivalents, debtors and creditors shown in the balance sheet are initially measured at
fair value and carried at amortised cost, which equates to the actual cash value at 31 March 2022.

Long-Term Current

•   Credit risk - the possibility that other parties might fail to pay amounts due to the Partnership

•   Liquidity risk - the possibility that the Partnership might not have funds available to meet its

• Market risk - the possibility that financial loss might arise for the Partnership as a result of changes

Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to the
constituent authorities. Surplus funds are placed on deposit with the Partnership’s bankers the
Clydesdale Bank plc. The Partnership does not expect any losses from non performance by any of its
counterparties in relation to these deposits.

The Scottish Government and the constituent authorities make provision for the Transport
Partnership's use of resources in its budget for each financial year. Resources can only be used for

39

the purposes specified in the budget. The Partnership is therefore not exposed to significant liquidity
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

Note 17  Financial Instruments (continued)

Market Risk

Interest Rate Risk

 

Foreign Exchange Risk

exposure to losses arising from movements in exchange rates.

Note 18 Accounting Standards that have been Issued but have not yet been Adopted

accounting policy:

 - Definition of a Business: Amendments to IFRS 3 Business Combinations

New or amended standards within the 2021/22 Code relate to:

 - Interest Rate Benchmark Reform: Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7
 - Interest  Rate  Benchmark  Reform - Phase 2:  Amendments  to  IFRS 9,  IAS 39,  IFRS 7,  IFRS 4  and
   IFRS 16

There is no material impact on the financial statements as a result of the above.

The Code requires implementation from 1 April 2022 and there is, therefore, no impact on the 2021/22
annual accounts.

40

The adoption of the following accounting standards by the Code in 2021/22 will result in changes in

The Partnership is exposed to interest movements on its deposits. For instance a rise in interest rates
would increase the interest income credited to the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement.

amount of interest earned by £51,986 (2020/21 £9,520). (based on cash and cash equivalents above).

The Partnership has no financial assets or liabilities denominated in foreign currencies and thus has no

As an illustration, an increase/(decrease) of 1% in the interest rate would increase/(decrease) the
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)

The Partnership leases one office premise.

Partnership as Lessee

The future minimum lease payments due under non-cancellable leases in future years are:

31/03/2021 31/03/2022
£000 £000

22 Not later than one year 22
22 22

in relation to these leases was:

31/03/2021 31/03/2022
£000 £000

22 Minimum lease payments 22
22 22

41

Note 19 Operating Leases

The expenditure charges to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement during the year
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REMUNERATION REPORT

Introduction

expenses.   

The information disclosed in the tables below is subject to external audit.

Arrangements for Remuneration

placed at SJNC point 30.

Government Pension Scheme (LGPS).  

Remuneration

disclosure below.

Remuneration of Senior Employees

locally by Aberdeenshire Council and adopted by Nestrans. Officers are eligible to join the Local

The term remuneration means gross salary, fees and bonuses, allowances and expenses, and
compensation for loss of employment. It excludes pension contributions paid by the Employer.

Nestrans. The Partnership does not make payment to any member of the Board, whether elected
Member or otherwise appointed, by way of salary, enhanced pension benefits or reimbursement of

duties of these posts are covered by the postholders’ substantive posts in their respective Councils. 

(Scotland) Regulations 2014. These Regulations require various disclosures about the remuneration
and pension benefits of senior Councillors and senior employees in respect of earnings etc paid by

The Treasurer and Clerk to the Authority do not receive remuneration from the Partnership either. The

The Nestrans Board agreed to appoint a permanent Director with a salary range of £70,000 to £75,000
at the committee meeting held on 20 December 2006. With reference to this the post of Director was

The remuneration of all employees of the Partnership is set with reference to national arrangements
agreed by the Scottish Joint Negotiating Committee (SJNC) for Local Authority Services.

Nestrans does not pay bonuses or performance related pay. Officers receive business mileage and
subsistence allowances in accordance with amounts either agreed nationally by SJNC or as approved

The Remuneration Report has been prepared in accordance with the Local Authority Accounts

Pension contributions made to a person’s pension are disclosed as part of the pension benefits
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In-year pension
contributions

Accrued annual
pension benefits

Accrued pension
lump sum

Total Remuneration for Year

Gross
salary,
fees & 
allowances Bonuses

Taxable
Expenses

Non-cash
expenses
&
benefits-
in-kind

Compensation 
for loss of 
office

Total
2021/22

Total
2020/21

Robert
Dickson

Totals

82,540

82,540

0 0

0

0

0

0

0

82,540

82,540

81,540

81,5400
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REMUNERATION REPORT (continued)

Notes

The term senior employee means:

           whether solely or collectively with other persons;

            Government and Housing Act 1989 (4);  or

            is £150,000 or more.

Remuneration of Employees receiving more than £50,000

Remuneration Bands

2021/22 2020/21
£50,000 - £54,999 0 1 
£55,000 - £59,999 0 0 
£60,000 - £64,999 1 0 
£65,000 - £69,999 0 0 
£70,000 - £74,999 0 0 
£75,000 - £79,999 0 0 
£80,000 - £84,999 1 1 
Totals 2 2 

Exit Packages

Exit Package in 2021/22 (2020/21 - Nil).

Pension Benefits

the named person’s accrued pension benefits at the reporting date.

the table shows the number of employees in bands of £5,000. This information includes the senior
employee who is subject to the fuller disclosure requirements in the tables above.

1. Any employee who has responsibility for the management of the Partnership to the extent that
the person has the power to direct or control the major activities of the organisation (including
activities involving the expenditure of money), during the year to which the Report relates,

2. Who holds a post that is politically restricted by reason of section 2(1) (a), (b) or (c) of Local

3. Whose annual remuneration, including any remuneration from a local authority subsidiary body,

Those Partnership employees receiving more than £50,000 remuneration for the year were paid the
following amounts. In accordance with the disclosure requirement of the Regulations, the information in

Number of Employees

There is a requirement to disclose details of all staff Exit Packages agreed in the year. An Exit
Package is the value of all termination benefits which include redundancy costs, pension contributions
in respect of added years and any ex gratia and other departure costs. Nestrans have not agreed any

The term pension benefits covers in-year pension contributions for the employee by the employer and
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REMUNERATION REPORT (continued)

Pension Benefits of Senior Employees

Notes:

(LGPS).

adjusted in line with the cost of living.  The rate for 2021/22 was 19.3% (2020/21 19.3%).

limit set by the Finance Act 2004.

pay falls into each tier. The tiers have increased slightly.

A Scheme member’s contribution depends on his or her full-time equivalent pay. From 1 April 2009, a
five tier contribution system was introduced with contribution from members being based on how much

44

For most people, for service up to 31 March 2009, the annual pension is calculated by
dividing their pay by 80 (60 for service between 1 April 2009 and 31 March 2015) and multiplying
this by their total membership. Pensions payable are increased annually in line with changes
in The Pensions (Increase) Act 1971 and Section 59 of the Social Security Pension Act 1975.

The lump sum, which is automatically paid when the person retires for service up to 31 March 2009, is

service after 31 March 2009. Members may opt to give up (commute) pension for lump sum up to the

All employees of Nestrans are eligible to become members of the Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS provides defined benefits on retirement. The pension is based on the member’s
pensionable service (how long he or she has been a member of the LGPS) and his or her pay. For
elected members, pay is based on a “career average” – the aggregate of each year’s pay (adjusted for
inflation) is divided by the total number of years and part years they have been a member of the LGPS.

normally three times his or her annual pension and is tax-free. There is no automatic lump sum for

pay by 49 and then adding this to his or her cumulative pension account, which will subsequently be
For service after 31 March 2015, the annual pension is calculated by dividing the pensionable

Robert 
Dickson 

For year to
31 March
2022

For year to
31 March
2021

In-year pension
contributions

20,553 18,591

Totals 20,553 18,591

Accrued annual
pension benefits

Accrued pension
lump sum

As at 31
March
2022

44,609

Difference 
from
March
2021

2,404

As at 31
March
2022

Difference 
from
March
2021

79,518 963

44,609 2,404 79,518 963
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REMUNERATION REPORT (continued)

Pension Benefits of Senior Employees (continued)

The tiers and rates are as follows:

members of the LGPS is 65.

and do not override the provisions of the Scheme.

TBC Rab Dickson
Chair Director

22 June 2022

The value of the accrued benefits in the above tables has been calculated on the basis of the age at
which the person will first become entitled to receive a full pension on retirement without reduction on
account of its payment at that age; without exercising any option to commute pension entitlement into a
lump sum; and without any adjustment for the effects of future inflation. The normal retirement age for

The pension figures shown relate to the benefits that the person has accrued as consequence of their
total local government service, and not just their current appointment.

The above explanatory notes provide general information on the Local Government Pension Scheme

45

5.50%
7.25%
8.50%
9.50%
12.00%

up to £22,300
£22,301 - £27,300 
£27,301 - £37,400 
£37,401 - £49,900 

over £49,901 

up to £22,200
£22,201 - £27,100 
£27,101 - £37,200 
£37,201 - £49,600 

over £49,601 

Rate 2021/22 2020/21
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GLOSSARY OF TERMS

Requisitions:
Funding received from the constituent authorities.

OTHER

SeRCOP
Service Reporting Code of Practice

CIPFA
The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy

LASAAC
Local Authority (Scotland) Accounts Advisory Committee

IFRS
International Financial Reporting Standard

STF
Strategic Transport Fund

SJNC
Scottish Joint Negotiating Committee

The Code
The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom

FAIR VALUE

amount that would be paid for the asset in its existing use.

ECONOMIC COST
The total cost of performing an activity or following a decision or course of action.

ACAA
Accumulated Compensated Absences Adjustment

Fair Value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between
knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction for land and buildings, fair value is the

46
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Appendix 2

Revised Actual to 2021/22 Actual v

Description Budget Mar-22 Forecast Budget %

Expenditure

Core Costs

Partnership Office 464,515 468,037 468,037 101%

Partner Support costs 80,800 76,865 76,865 95%

Board Members Expenses 1,000 - - 0%

Other Associated Costs 40,935 25,887 25,887 63%

Rechargeable Costs - - - *

587,250 570,788 570,788 97%

Regional Transport Strategy  

Health & Transport Action Plan 34,500 34,892 34,892 101%

Bus Action Plan 47,311 42,330 42,330 89%

Rail Action Plan 3,000 3,000 3,000 100%

Freight Action Plan - - - *

General 72,300 51,743 51,743 72%

Project Feasibility & Monitoring 51,246 51,246 51,246 100%

Contingency 5,000 - - 0%

Travel Planning 134,776 123,406 135,801 92%

Rechargeable Costs - 94,640 94,640 *

348,133 401,258 413,653 115%

Coordination & Project Development 935,383 972,047 984,441 104%

Rail 3,208,808 3,086,722 3,208,808 96%

Strategic Roads

Capacity 57,581 57,929 57,929 101%

Safety 326,140 326,343 326,343 100%

Maintenance 241,100 88,827 88,827 37%

Bus Improvements

Energetica Corridor 121,777 121,578 121,578 100%

General Corridors 142,547 136,748 136,748 96%

Walking and Cycling

Energetica Corridor - - - *

Strategic Corridors 521,062 443,681 521,408 85%

Carbon Reduction & Air Quality 272,678 270,979 270,979 99%

Various 447,493 447,117 447,117 100%

Inverurie Interchange - - - *

Cycling Development Officer Grant 250,396 176,097 176,097 70%

Insch Station - - - *

Laurencekirk to Aberdeen Mulit-modal Study 22,330 22,330 22,330 100%

Active Travel 431,567 431,558 431,558 100%

Strategic Investment Programme 6,043,479 5,609,910 5,809,722 93%

City Region Deal - 136,017 136,017 *

Civitas/Portis - - - *

Total Expenditure 6,978,862 6,717,973 6,930,181 96%

Income

Partner Contributions

Aberdeen City Council 122,175 97,175 97,175 80%

Aberdeenshire Council 122,175 97,175 97,175 80%

Delay in Drawdown from 2020/21 - *

Scottish Government - Core costs 782,000 782,000 782,000 100%

Local Rail Development Fund 22,330 22,330 22,330 100%

Paths for All - - - *

Integrated Transport Fund - - - *

Transport Scotland 431,567 431,558 431,558 100%

Sustrans 250,396 176,068 176,097 70%

Capital Grant & Use of Balances 5,339,186 6,639,844 6,639,844 124%

Investment Interest - 2,761 2,761 *

Other Income - 97,547 97,547 *

City Region Deal - 136,017 136,017 *

Civitas/Portis - 14,123 14,123 *

Total Income 7,069,829 8,496,597 8,496,626 120%

Operating (Surplus)/Deficit (90,967) (1,778,624) (1,566,445)

SUMMARY OF INCOME & EXPENDITURE
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Appendix 3

Nestrans 2022/23

Requested continuation of funding from 2021/22

Budget Head Project Proposed 

Continuation

Comments

Rail Kintore Railway Station 122,086 Nestrans budget allocation to the 

project was not fully realised due to 

earlier expenditure being recognised 

as valid and being deducted. 

Aberdeenshire Council has 

requested that this difference be 

used to increase Nestrans proportion 

of the NE contribution and mitigate 

some of the cost to the Council as a 

result in the overall increase in 

project costs since the funding was 

initially agreed.

Walking and Cycling Sauchen/Cluny footpath 63,546

Walking and Cycling A90 Ellon / Fovean / 

Newburgh Cycleway

1,631

Walking and Cycling A96 Kintore to Blackburn 

Cycleway

12,534

199,797

Budget Head Project Proposed 

Continuation

Comments

Co-ordination and Project Development

Non Core - Travel 

Planning

Sustainable Travel Grant 

and Community 

Sustainable Travel Grant 

Schemes

12,395 A couple of projects allocated grant 

awards in 2021/22 are only now 

being completed and the grant claims 

will therefore be submited in 2022/23. 

12,395

Strategic Investment Programme

Aberdeenshire Council has advised 

that some of the work in 2021/22 on 

these schemes has been met via 

their Cycling Walking and Safer 

Routes grant from Transport 

Scotland and the amounts shown will 

be refunded to Nestrans.  The 

Council has requested that this 

budget is continued to 2022/23 to 

meet the cost of proposed road 

safety improvements and a separate 

virement is proposed in the next 

appendix should this continuation of  

funding be approved.
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NORTH EAST SCOTLAND TRANSPORT PARTNERSHIP – 22 June 2022 

 

 

3.3   2022/23 Budget Matters 

 

 

 Purpose of Report 

 
To note the funding allocations to Nestrans and provide the Board with an update on the 

Partnership’s 2022/23 budget monitoring to end May 2022 and forecast outturn position 
and to consider any budget or monitoring issues that may arise. 

 
  

 Background 

 
The Board has requested that a general budget report be submitted to each meeting, 

monitoring expenditure, identifying any potential budget issues, and reporting on any 
particular expenditure requests.  The reports are prepared jointly by the Nestrans office 
and Finance officers from Aberdeenshire Council. 

 
The Board approved a 2022/23 budget when they met in February, subject to anticipated 

funding levels being provided.  The offer of grant from the Scottish Government has now 
been received and maintains funding at the previous year’s levels.  Aberdeen City 
Council and Aberdeenshire Council have also now advised the amounts contained within 

their budget setting process as grants to Nestrans for 2022/23 and the amounts are as 
requested.  

 
A grant offer for 2022/23 from the Scottish Government’s RTP Active Travel Grant Fund 
has recently been accepted and is discussed below. 

 
 

 2022/23 Budget  

 

Appendix 1 to this report sets out a summary budget monitoring statement of 

expenditure.  This shows expenditure of  £139,093 to 31 May 2022.  It is early in the 

financial year and whilst little by way of expenditure has taken place, work programmes 
are progressing and the forecast for the year remains at the budgeted level.   

 

2022/23 Coordination and Project Development Budget 
The anticipated budget reported to the Board in February of £1,026,350 was based on a 

continuation of contribution levels from Council partners and the Scottish Government at 
the previous year’s levels, which have been confirmed. As there may be new members 
on the Nestrans Board following the local government elections in May, the budget 

approved in February along with previously agreed continuation of funding for projects 
from 2021/22 is shown in Appendix 2.  

 

As a result of two small rounding errors in the figures presented in February, the actual 
budget proposals agreed were £350 less than the available budget for the Coordination 

and Project Development budget and £200 more than budget in a balancing item within 
the Strategic Investment Programme.  To correct this, the Board are asked to approve a 

virement of £200 from the Coordination and Project Development budget to the Strategic 
Investment Programme and to allocate the remaining £150 to the Health and Transport 
Action Plan budget line for the Transport to Healthcare Information Centre (THInC) 
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service.  This suggested amendment has been included within the figures presented in 
Appendices 2 and 3. 
 

Should the further continuation of funding of £12,395 from 2021/22 within the earlier 
2021/22 Unaudited Annual Accounts report on this agenda have been approved, it would 

bring the overall Coordination and Project Development Budget to £1,322,181. 
 
2022/23 Strategic Investment Programme 

The funding for 2022/23 confirmed by Council partners totals £2,467,000, which 
comprises of an allocation from Aberdeen City Council of £1,295,000 and Aberdeenshire 

Council of £1,172,000.  
 
The budget approved in February along with previously agreed levels for continuation of 
funding from 2021/22 are shown in  Appendix 3.  

 

Should the further continuation of funding of £199,797 from 2021/22 within the earlier 
2021/22 Unaudited Annual Accounts report on this agenda have been approved, it would 
bring the overall Coordination and Project Development Budget to £5,189,334. 

 
 

 Virements 

 

As a result of some project specific variances in predicted out turns against the approved 
budgets, a number of virements are proposed for consideration in Appendix 4.  Should 

this be approved, it would bring the overall Strategic Investment Programme to 

£5,219,334 and the Coordination and Project Development budget to £1,292,181. 
 

 

 Grant Funding 

 

Regional Transport Partnerships Active Travel Grant 
An offer of grant of £500,000 for 2022/23 has been received and accepted.  The grant 

award provides full funding for the proposals submitted to Transport Scotland for 
consideration in January 2022, as summarised in the table below.  Further details are 
given in a separate report on the agenda and this grant brings the overall Strategic 

Investment Programme budget to £5,719,334. 
 

Aberdeenshire Core Path Network Survey 150,000 

Formartine and Buchan Way Bridge Replacement Works 100,000 

Quiet Road Cycling Signing – North East Cycle Network 75,000 

Bike Recycling/Reuse Scheme 100,000 

Adult Cycle Training Project 75,000 

 
 

 Strategic Transport Fund 

 
The legal challenge successfully quashed The Strategic Transport Fund (STF). The 

current balance for 2022/23 is £484,594. No repayments have been made so far in 
2022/23.  There are 16 developments remaining to be claimed.  
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 Recommendations 

 

It is recommended that the Board: 
 

1. Note the monitoring position and forecast presented in Appendix 1; 

2. Note the funding awards to Nestrans that have been confirmed for 2022/23 and 
agree the minor modifications proposed above and shown in Appendices 2 and 3  

3. Approve the virements set out in Appendix 4; 

4. Note the additional grant funding awarded in 2022/23 through the RTP Active 
Travel grant; and 

5. Note the Strategic Transport Fund position. 
 

 
Mary Beattie  
Treasurer 

 
10 June 2022 
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Appendix 1

Original 21/22 Delayed Approved c/f Delay in Revised Actual to 2022/23 Actual v

Description Budget Drawdown Virements Drawdown Budget May-22 Forecast Budget %

Expenditure

Core Costs

Partnership Office 576,181 - - - 576,181 96,030 576,181 17%

Support Costs 80,650 - - - 80,650 13,442 80,650 17%

Board Members Expenses 1,000 - - - 1,000 - 1,000 0%

Other Associated Costs 23,500 - - - 23,500 3,917 23,500 17%

Rechargeable Costs - - - - - - - *

681,331 - - - 681,331 113,389 681,331 17%

Regional Transport Strategy  

Active Travel Action Plan 105,000 - - - 105,000 - 70,000 0%

Rail Action Plan 3,000 - - - 3,000 - 3,000 0%

Bus Action Plan 24,000 55,304 - - 79,304 - 79,304 0%

Managing Demand 25,000 25,000 - - 50,000 - 50,000 0%

Reducing Emissions 13,000 - - - 13,000 - 13,000 0%

Behaviour Change 77,669 47,300 - - 124,969 2,337 124,969 2%

Maintain and Improve Transport Network 30,000 96,032 - - 126,032 - 126,032 0%

Road Safety 15,000 50,000 - - 65,000 - 65,000 0%

Health & Transport Action Plan 47,000 10,000 - - 57,000 - 57,000 0%

Contingency 5,000 - - - 5,000 - 5,000 0%

Rechargeable Costs - - - - - 17,042 17,042 *

344,669 283,636 - - 628,305 19,380 610,347 3%

Coordination & Project Development 1,026,000 283,636 - - 1,309,636 132,768 1,291,678 10%

Active Travel 777,883 1,264,860 - - 2,042,743 - 2,042,743 0%

Rail Network - 13,545 - - 13,545 - 13,545 0%

Aberdeen Rapid Transit - - - - - - - *

Bus Network 325,000 408,748 - - 733,748 - 733,748 0%

Park & Ride 18,618 112,803 - - 131,421 - 131,421 0%

Managing Demand - - - - - - - *

Reducing Emissions 250,953 110,519 - - 361,472 - 348,953 0%

Encouraging Behaviour Change - - - - - - - *

Maintain and Improve Transport Network 265,000 94,505 - - 359,505 - 359,505 0%

Freight - - - - - - - *

Air and Sea - - - - - - - *

Road Safety 529,746 375,036 - - 904,782 (0) 638,995 0%

Rural Accessibilty - - - - - - - *

Access to Health - - - - - - - *

Affordability of Transport - - - - - - - *

Access for All 250,000 - - - 250,000 (0) 250,000 0%

Places for People 50,000 - - - 50,000 - 50,000 0%

Various - - - - - - - *

Inverurie Interchange - - - - - - - *

Cycling Development Officer Grant 100,000 - - - 100,000 - 100,000 0%

Insch Station - - - - - - - *

Laurencekirk to Aberdeen Mulit-modal Study - 42,321 - - 42,321 - 42,321 0%

RTP Active Travel Grant - - - - - - - *

Strategic Investment Programme 2,567,200 2,422,337 - - 4,989,537 (0) 4,711,231 0%

City Region Deal - - - - - 6,325 6,325 *

Total Expenditure 3,593,200 2,705,973 - - 6,299,173 139,093 6,009,234 2%

Income

Partner Contributions

Aberdeen City Council 122,175 - - - 122,175 20,363 122,175 17%

Aberdeenshire Council 122,175 - - - 122,175 20,363 122,175 17%

Scottish Government - Core costs 782,000 - - - 782,000 130,333 782,000 17%

Local Rail Development Fund - 42,321 - - 42,321 - 42,321 0%

Transport Scotland - - - - - - - *

Sustrans 100,000 - - - 100,000 - 100,000 0%

Capital Grant & Use of Balances 2,467,000 2,663,652 - - 5,130,652 616,750 5,130,652 12%

Investment Interest - - - - - 2,684 3,000 *

Other Income - - - - - 17,042 17,042 *

City Region Deal - - - - - 6,325 6,325 *

Total Income 3,593,350 2,705,973 - - 6,299,323 813,859 6,325,690 13%

Operating (Surplus)/Deficit (150) - - - (150) (674,766) (316,456)

SUMMARY OF INCOME & EXPENDITURE
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Appendix 2

North East Scotland Transport Partnership

 Co-ordination & Project Development Budget for 2022/2023

Revised
2022/23 2022/23

CORE COSTS Allocations agreed agreed Budget

 in Feb in Apr

Partnership Office 576,181    

Salaries 511,481      511,481    

Accommodation at King Street (incl. rent, rates, water and insurance) 45,500        45,500      

Travel 2,000          2,000        

Training 2,000          2,000        

Conferences 2,000          2,000        

Telephone 2,000          2,000        

Computers 5,500          5,500        

Stationery 1,500          1,500        

Photocopying 500             500           

Subscriptions and Memberships 2,500          2,500        

Miscellaneous (incl. catering and postage) 1,200          1,200        

Support costs 80,650      

Legal (Aberdeen City) 5,300          5,300        

Administrative (Aberdeen City) 20,000        20,000      

Finance (Aberdeenshire) 21,100        21,100      

Personnel (Aberdeenshire) 15,900        15,900      

IT (Aberdeen City) 7,200          7,200        

Advertising Posts -             -            

External audit 11,150        11,150      

Board Members' Expenses (Non- Councillors only) 1,000          1,000        

Other Associated Costs 23,500      

Sponsorship/ advertorials/events 5,000          5,000        

Presentation Material 5,000          5,000        

Website 3,500          3,500        

Contributions to Community Planning Partnerships 10,000        10,000      

NON - CORE COSTS

Project Development

Active Travel Action Plan 105,000    

Aberdeen Paths Asset Management Plan 30,000        30,000      

Adult cycle training project (ACC officer and supporting resources costs) 35,000        35,000      

Cycle Counter Maintenance 15,000        15,000      

Cycle Infrastructure Maintenance 10,000        10,000      

Wayfinding totem maintenance 15,000        15,000      

Rail Action Plan 3,000        

East Coast Mainline Regional Forum 3,000          3,000        

Bus Action Plan 79,304      

BAP actions 55,304 55,304      

Region Wide Real Time system annual maintenance contribution 20,000        20,000      

GrassHOPPER contribution 4,000          4,000        

Managing Demand 50,000      

Regional implications of national traffic demand targets 25,000        25,000 50,000      

Reducing Emissions 13,000      

Warranty and maintenance and Sim agreements for EV charge points 13,000        13,000      

Behaviour Change 124,969    

Sustainable travel grant and Community sustainable travel grant schemes 20,000        31,300 51,300      

Travel Planning 52,669        16,000 68,669      

Car Club bay implementation and maintenance 5,000          5,000        

Maintain and Improve Transport Network 126,032    

Bridge of Dee - River Crossing Capacity Post AWPR review 72,509 325 72,834      

South College St/QE Rbt Ph2 review 30,000        16,980 319 47,299      

Cross City Connections Study - Review of outcomes 14,000 -8,101 5,899        

Road Safety 65,000      

Road Safety Education - bespoke talks in towns with high collision incidences 

by professional engagement team 40,000 40,000      

Cycle education linked to Integrated Travel Towns (Peterhead, Fraserburgh, 

Inverurie, Huntly & Portlethen) 10,000 10,000      

Road Safety North East Scotland Partnership - contribution towards activities 15,000        15,000      

Health & Transport Action Plan 57,150      

H&T Programme Support Manager 25,000        25,000      

H&T actions 10,000 10,000      
THInC   (includes proposed additional £150 omitted from figures in Feb) 9,650          9,650        

Sustrans NHS Workplace Engagement Project Officer contribution 12,500        12,500      

Contingency 5,000          5,000        

TOTAL BUDGET 1,026,150 291,093 -7,457 1,309,786

continuation of funding 

from 2021/22
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Nestrans 2022/23 Strategic Investment Programme Appendix 3

Project Project Details

2022/23 

Budget*

agreed in 

Feb

agreed in 

Apr

Revised 

Budget

Active Travel (AT)
A96 Kintore / Blackburn 

Cycleway

Contribution to land purchase and construction of Shared Used Cycleway 

/ Footway

£145,000 £145,000

A90 Ellon / Foveran / 

Newburgh

Contribution to land purchase and construction of Shared Used Cycleway 

/ Footway (match funding to be sought from Sustrans)

£112,792 £112,792

Fraserburgh - Maconochie 

Road

Contribution towards the construction of a Shared Use Footway / 

Cycleway between Fraserburgh Community & Sports Centre to Seaforth 

Street including a signalised traffic control crossing

£508 £89,746 -£17,109 £73,145

Inverurie - North/South links to 

new Academy. 

Construction of a Shared Use Cycleway / Footway connecting to New 

Inverurie Campus

£191,985 £191,985

Corsemanhill Drive, Inverurie Construction of Safer Routes to School Link as identified within the 

Inverurie Integrated Travel Town between Davah Wood and Corsemanhill 

Drive

£90,000 £90,000

Ellon Integrated Travel Town 

(ITT) projects

contribute to the design and construction of ITT projects at Caroline 

Woods, Castle Park and Knockothie Road. 

£90,000 £90,000

Kennethmont Footway Land purchase and construction £74,515 £156 £74,671

A92 Balmedie / Blackdog - 

Shared Use Path

Formalised Route between Blackdog and Balmedie £20,000 £20,000

Aberdeen Core Path 

improvements

Works to address the highest priority issues and repairs identified within 

the inventory of Core Paths work funded in 21/22.

£50,000 £50,000

Berryden corridor active travel 

connections.

Feasibility and design of segregated cycle paths on St Machar Dr (west of 

Tillydrone Ave), Ashgrove Rd, Ashgrove Rd West, Skene Sq and 

Gilcomstoun Steps

£95,000 £60,372 -£1,080 £154,292

Craigshaw Dr cycle route. Contribution to construction of segregated cycle lanes in each direction 

between Wellington Road and Abbotswell Road

£330,000 £5,000 £10,779 £345,779

Wellheads Cycle Link Provision of active travel infrastructure connecting Dyce Railway Station 

to current Wellheads facilities.

£30,000 £15,000 £45,000

Junction Alterations to Lock in 

the Benefits (LiB) of AWPR. 

Alterations to Anderson Drive / Lang Stracht junction to include crossings 

and active travel infrastructure.  Orders and engagement in 22/23.

£30,341 -£4,464 £25,877

A947 Improvements Implementation of recommended outcomes from the A947 Corridor Study 

and/or, where necessary, further design and business case work.

£50,000 £50,000

A93 Improvements Completion of STAG multi-modal corridor study and Outline Business 

Cases then implementation of recommended outcomes 

£50,000 £50,000

Cycle Repair Stations Installation of cycle Repair Stations at various Locations across 

Aberdeenshire focusing on the 5 ITT's

£40,000 £40,000

A947 Whiterashes Phase 1 Footway Reconstruction £18,000 £18,000

Shore Street, Macduff Phase 3 Footway Reconstruction £42,375 £42,375

A947 Albert Road, 

Oldmeldrum

Footway Reconstruction £26,100 -£1,298 £24,802

A98 Crook O'Ness Street, 

Macduff

Footway Reconstruction £40,625 £40,625

A98 Skene Street, Macduff Footway Reconstruction £18,750 £18,750

Seaton Park Don Street 

Entrance

This project is to provide a separate pedestrian path from the main Don 

Street entrance, which is currently shared with vehicles.  It will include 

new access through the entrance stone wall, a separate all abilities path 

with access to the Seaton wetland viewing platform and children's play 

area.

£35,000 £35,000

Donside flats This project is to implement construction on a short section of path around 

the new development at Donside flats.  This path is part of Aspirational 

Core Path 6 and is to complete a link along the Don path near the 

boardwalk connecting to Seaton Park. 

£20,000 £20,000

Path from Craigiebuckler Drive 

to Springfield Rd

Formation of a 2m wide tarmacadam path through grassed area and 

associated drainage works (aspirational core path no 64)

£81,000 £81,000

River Don Path - Seaton Park Upgrade to popular path including improvements to withstand increased 

rainfall/storm conditions.

£68,150 £68,150

CP83 Souterhead Rd to Cove 

Crescent

Works to construct and resurface the existing path area in a tarmacadam 

surface including the regrading and formation along boundary edges of 

existing materials to marry in with the finished surface levels of the tar 

path. 

£64,000 £64,000

River Don Path Improvements 

Woodside - Persley

Upgrade to popular path on the south side of the river between Woodside 

Pitches and Persley including improvements to withstand increased 

rainfall/storm conditions.

£60,000 £60,000

Cycle racks Installation of cycle rack at Aberdeen Crematorium  (for use by both staff 

and visitors to the wider area)

£500 £500

Powis Bike Lockers Installation of up to 3 outdoor community cycle lockers with space for up 

to 6 bikes each in the Powis area  

£11,000 £11,000

Rail Network (RL)
Insch Accessibility Consultancy study to assess options for improving access at Insch station £8,545 £8,545

Stonehaven wayfinding signs Contribution towards journey signing between Stonehaven railway station 

and town centre in partnership with Aberdeenshire Council and ScotRail 

Station Travel Plan Development Fund 

£5,000 £5,000

Continued from 21/22
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Project Project Details

2022/23 

Budget*

agreed in 

Feb

agreed in 

Apr

Revised 

Budget

Continued from 21/22

Bus Network (BUS)
A90/A92 Blackdog - Access to 

Bus Services

Contribution towards the Construction of a 300m Footpath connecting 

Hareburn Terrace, Blackdog to A90

£69,000 £2,326 £71,326

RTPI E-paper Major 

Component Replacements

Due to the move to renewable energy/low powered displays, there is a 

requirement to replace parts such as solar panels, batteries etc. 

Component life is estimated at present so this is principally a contingency 

budget based on best judgement

£25,000 £25,000

Refresh of Aberdeen bus stop 

flags

Updating of bus stop flags and procurement of Epaper flags for stops at 

key interchanges

£93,000 -£1,508 £91,492

Assessment of Cumulative 

impact of Bus Partnership 

Fund and Aberdeen traffic 

interventions

Use of the strategic ASAM19 model to assess the cumulative impact of all 

of the proposals following the multi-modal studies, BPF corridors, CCMP, 

Beach Masterplan and other relevant works that will limit/reduce/redirect 

traffic in Aberdeen.

£50,000 £50,000

A947 multi modal corridor 

study

Ongoing study that will include options for formalising the change of 

alignment of the A947 from Victoria Street to Riverview Drive through eg 

placemaking interventions on Victoria Street  It will also take cognisance 

of and complement the A947 Route Action Plan developed by 

Aberdeenshire Council 

£86,033 £37,086 £123,119

A93 multi modal corridor study Ongoing study that will investigate options along the corridor between 

Peterculter and Aberdeen City Centre 

£81,000 £8,819 £89,819

A96 multi modal corridor study Contingency for elements not funded via Bus Partnership Fund grant £4,992 £4,992

Aberdeen City Centre 

Masterplan 

Contribution to delivery of Union Street, Guild Street, Market Street and 

Bridge Street pedestrianisation/bus priority. Phase 1 works agreed by 

ACC with Phase 2 works to be scoped.

£50,000 £50,000

South Aberdeen to 

Laurencekirk Corridor Study

Expect that additional budget in excess of current BPF funded appraisal 

of Anderson Drive and Parkway and LRDF grant for the Laurencekirk to 

Aberdeen study will be required to complete overall multi-modal corridor 

appraisal

£100,000 £100,000

Craigiebuckler turning circle Resurface the existing Craigiebuckler terminus turning circle and also 

redesign it to accommodate the swept path of the bus service.

£28,000 £28,000

Bus Stop Upgrades in 

Aberdeen

Upgrade bus stop infrastructure at approx. 15 bus shelters per year for 

three years to replace existing infrastructure which has reached the end of 

its useable life

£100,000 £100,000

Park & Ride (P&R)
A93 Crathes Mini Interchange 

Hubs

Contribution towards designated Car Park, Improved Bus Stop Facilities 

and Pedestrian Crossing Facility

£48,461 £2,995 £51,456

Oldmeldrum Interchange Hub Contribution towards the Development of a Mini Interchange Hub £18,618 £68,382 -£7,034 £79,966

Reducing Emissions (RE)
Electric Vehicle Charging 

Points

New Locations and Potential Upgrades of 50KWh to 150KWh £250,953 £91,000 £7,000 £348,953

Low Emission Zone 

Development

Contribution to development and implementation of Low Emission Zone in 

Aberdeen

£15,000 -£2,481 £12,519

Road Network (RD)
King George VI Bridge Carriageway resurfacing between Riverside Dr and West Tullos Rd 

(dependent on structures work being completed first). This would include 

the carriageway resurfacing and the central reserve. 

£265,000 £265,000

Strategic Network Monitoring 

Ph4 - Queens Rd corridor

Expansion of the Cities current Internet Protocol closed-circuit television 

(IPCCTV) equipment at traffic signals, along the A944 Queens Road 

Corridor between Groats Road and Springfield Rd to monitor and better 

manage changes in traffic flow to assist in reducing congestion and 

improve journey times

£15,340 £15,340

ANPR Monitoring Sites Installation of further sites to monitor traffic flow and journey time and 

would have the potential to collect data on vehicle types and emissions 

associated with each vehicle.  

£79,164 £79,164

Road Safety (RS)
A947 Road Improvement 

Strategy Actions

To support the progression of the active travel study between Banff and 

Macduff, the development of  business cases for the medium to longer 

term action as well as funding any short term actions arising from ongoing 

analysis of safety initiatives on the route

£100,000 £71,241 £38,008 £209,249

Vehicle restraining system 

repairs and improvements 

(crash barriers)

Ongoing project to repair and in some cases replace VRS across 

Aberdeenshire on a prioritised basis

£120,000 £120,000

Bend mitigation/skid resistance 

improvements

Ongoing project to mitigate bends and improve skid resistrance  at 

locations identfied as having "run off" incidents across Aberdeenshire 

£145,000 £787 £145,787

General Road Safety 

Improvements 

Contribution, including bend mitigations/skid resistance, road studs 

renewal and vehicle restraining system repairs and improvements

£389,746 £389,746

A98 Watermill Road, 

Fraserburgh at B9031 Junction

Provision of Turning Lane £40,000 £40,000

Access for All (AA)
Peterhead Bus Interchange Redesign of Site to include waiting room minor refurbishments, footpath 

improvements, bus shelter replacement and upgrade of RTI to E-paper 

Displays

£250,000 £250,000
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Project Project Details

2022/23 

Budget*

agreed in 

Feb

agreed in 

Apr

Revised 

Budget

Continued from 21/22

Places for People (PP)
Aberdeen Beach Masterplan Contribution to the development of an Access Strategy that considers the 

traffic elements of the proposals and supports the Development 

Framework for the Beach area.

£50,000 £50,000

External Grants
LRDF Grant Aberdeen to Laurencekirk multi-modal corridor study £42,321 £42,321

Sustrans ATDO Grant Capital funding of up to £100K associated with Active Development 

Officer post

£100,000 £100,000

TOTAL £2,567,200 £2,254,351 £167,986 £4,989,537

(*includes proposed virement of £200 from Coordination and Project Development budget)

SUMMARY
2022/23 

Budget*

c/f agreed 

in Feb

c/f agreed 

in Apr

Revised 

Budget

Active Travel £777,883 £1,277,376 -£12,515 £2,042,744

Rail £0 £13,545 £0 £13,545

Bus improvements £325,000 £362,025 £46,723 £733,748

Park & Ride £18,618 £116,843 -£4,040 £131,421

Reducing Emissions £250,953 £106,000 £4,519 £361,472

Road Network £265,000 £0 £94,505 £359,505

Road Safety £529,746 £336,241 £38,795 £904,782

Access for All £250,000 £0 £0 £250,000

Places for People £50,000 £0 £0 £50,000

External grant £100,000 £42,321 £0 £142,321

Total £2,567,200 £2,254,351 £167,986 £4,989,537
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Appendix 4

Nestrans 2022/23

Proposed Virements as at 10 June 2022

Budget Head Project Current 

Budget

Proposed 

Virement

Revised 

Budget

Comments

Active Travel Sauchen/Cluny footpath 63,546
(if c/f in prev 

report agreed)

(63,546) 0 Project complete and no further 

funding required.

Active Travel A90 Ellon / Foveran / 

Newburgh Cycleway

114,423
(if c/f in prev 

report agreed)

(1,631) 112,792

Active Travel A96 Kintore to Blackburn 

Cycleway

157,534
(if c/f in prev 

report agreed)

(12,534) 145,000

Active Travel Cycling advance stop 

lines and advisory lining

0 17,519 17,519 Refresh of regulatory advanced cycle 

stop line boxes and advisory lining 

markings in support of cycle safety 

and promotion

Bus Northfield bus terminus 25,000 25,000 Resurfacing of the bus turning 

circle/terminus in Northfield (Howes 

Road) which is in poor condition and 

in light of the investment by 

Stagcoach in new electric vehicles 

for the 59 service between Northfield 

and Torry

Reducing Emissions Low Emission Zone 

Development

12,519 (12,519) 0 Ministerial approval received for 

Aberdeen LEZ which came into 

operation on 1 June and no further 

budget required

Road Safety Vehicle Restraining 

System repairs and 

improvements (crash 

barriers)

120,000 (120,000) 0

Road Safety Bend mitigation/skid 

resistance improvements

145,787 (145,787) 0

Road Safety General road safety 

improvements in 

Aberdeenshire strategic 

routes

389,746 343,498 733,244 Additional budget requested as more 

schemes have been identified than 

can be delivered with current budget

Road Safety A98 Watermill Road, 

Fraserburgh at B9031 

Junction turning lane

40,000 (20,000) 20,000 AC members believe that a 

signalised junction would be better 

and requested a full feasibility report 

on options instead.  Estimate for 

feasibility and design only is £20K

Road Safety A98 Ladysbridge 0 20,000 20,000 Savings from above project 

requested to be used to contribute to 

design and construction of a right 

turning lane at Ladysbridge.

Total 30,000

Strategic Investment Programme

Contribution from AC's Cycling 

Walking Safer Routes grant in 21/22 

mean that full Nestrans budget in 

2022/23 not required

Aberdeenshire Council has 

requested that these specific budgets 

be amalgamated with the general 

road safety improvements budget to 

allow for greater flexibility to increase 

spend in one area if there was 

greater demand for one type of 

intervention
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Budget Head Project Current 

Budget

Proposed 

Virement

Revised 

Budget

Comments

Co-ordination and Project Development

Non Core - Active 

Travel Action Plan

Appraisal of footway 

condition of all adopted 

paths in Aberdeen

0 5,000 5,000 Contribution to project Aberdeen City 

Council has received revenue grant 

from Transport Scotland towards.  

This Gaist footpath condition survey 

will be trialling software previously 

used on the road network to good 

effect.

Non Core - Active 

Travel Action Plan

Adult cycle training 

project

35,000 (35,000) 0 Aberdeen City Council has received 

funding for this project via 50% 

Smarter Choices Smarter Places 

(SCSP) grant, 25% Cycling, Walking 

and Safer Routes (CWSR) grant and 

25% from Sustrans, therefore 

Nestrans contribution no longer 

required towards the project.

Total (30,000)
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NORTH EAST SCOTLAND TRANSPORT PARTNERSHIP –  22 June 2022 

 

 

3.4 Pensions Discretions 

 

 

 Purpose of Report 

 
To advise the Board of the request from the North East Scotland Pension Fund 
(NESPF) for all employers to review and update their Discretions Policy held by 

the Fund.  
 

  

 Background 

 
Nestrans previously prepared a report to the Nestrans Board in February 2017 
with a statement on certain discretions under the Local Government Pension 

Scheme (LGPS) that Nestrans has the power to exercise.  The Discretions Policy 
that was adopted followed Aberdeenshire Council’s position on Employer 

Discretions and this was sent to the LGPS pension fund. 
 
 

 Discussion 

 

NESPF advised in May 2022 that following changes to the regulations in 2018, all 
employers are required to review and update their Discretions Policy held by the 

Fund.  This had been delayed due to the pandemic and resourcing issues however 
NESPF are now able to complete this exercise and have asked that all Discretion 

Policies be sent to them by Friday 5 August 2022.  A Discretion Policy template 
and employers guide were provided. 
 

The guide states that employees and former employees who are, or were, in the 
LGPS must be able to access the policy. Most employers will publish it on their 

website, however, it is the employer’s choice where to publish it.  It also states that 
employers should keep their Statement of Policy under review and if any changes 
are made following a review, they should arrange to make any necessary revisions 

to the Statement of Policy and send a published copy to NESPF within one month 
of making the changes.  It notes that there are several mandatory discretions (in 

other words discretions which employers must cover off in their Statement of 
Policy) as well as a number of non-mandatory discretions for which employers can 
decide whether or not to set a policy, but that where possible they would 

recommend including non-compulsory items. 
 

As Nestrans staff are all employed under the same terms and conditions as 
Aberdeenshire Council employees, it is again considered appropriate that 
Nestrans adopts the same pension discretions. Nestrans has Service Level 

Agreements with Aberdeenshire Council for Finance and Human Resources and 
is seeking their advice. Nestrans officers will also be consulted as part of this 

review.  Aberdeenshire Council is still in the process of undertaking their review 
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and their proposed Discretion Policy is not therefore available to report to the Board 
at this time.  As the next meeting of the Nestrans Board in September is after the 

deadline for returning the policy to NESPF, it is suggested that authority to approve 
the same policy as adopted by Aberdeenshire Council for their staff be delegated 

to the Nestrans Director to enable this to be returned by the deadline.  The 
Discretions Policy would then be reported to the Board in September for 
homologation, although should any changes then be agreed, this could then be 

submitted as part of a review to NESPF. 
 

 

 Recommendation 

 
It is recommended that the Board: 

 

1. Delegate authority to the Nestrans Director to adopt Aberdeenshire Council’s 
positions on Employer Discretions in their Statement of Discretions Policy and 

submit it to NESPF by the deadline of 5 August 2022; and 
 

2. Instruct a report to the next meeting of the Board with the Statement of 

Discretions Policy for further review prior to publication. 
 

 
 
 

Mary Beattie 
Treasurer 

10 June 2022 
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NORTH EAST SCOTLAND TRANSPORT PARTNERSHIP – 22 June 2022 

 

 

4.1    Director’s report on liaison between RTPs, and with the Scottish 

Government and Others  
 

 

1. Purpose of Report  

 

The purpose of this report is to update the Board on liaison with other Regional Transport 

Partnerships (RTPs), with the Scottish Government and other organisations.   

   

 

2. Background  

  

This report details meetings with other RTPs, Transport Scotland and other national 

transport bodies, highlighting issues of interest across Scotland.  

  
 

3. Recent Developments  

   

Although the coronavirus pandemic and travel restrictions have had a significant impact 
on meetings, as we emerge from restrictions there remains a realisation that many such 
meetings can be held remotely and most continue to be so.  In the period since the last 
Board meeting, the majority of meetings have continued online.   
 
Over the period of interest, it is noted that there have been numerous meetings of 
working groups which have been convened including those to support the region’s 
Green Freeport Bid.  Paul Finch has supported the Innovation Working Group, and also 
the Land, Sites, Planning and Environment Working Group in support of the bid.   
 
Other meetings of relevance held since the last Board meeting on 21st April 2022 
include:  
 

 Aberdeen Prospers Outcome Improvement Group, 25th April 2022 

Rab Dickson attended this meeting which is a working group supporting Aberdeen City 
Community Plan.  The meeting heard that there are 70 live projects currently being 
delivered to support the Local Outcome Improvement Plan across the City. 
 

 Aberdeen to Central Belt rail Key Stakeholders Group, 25th April 2022 

Rab Dickson and Paul Finch attended this meeting with Transport Scotland, Network 

Rail, ScotRail and other stakeholders and received updates on the progress regarding 

this scheme, which is being delivered alongside the Aberdeen City Region Deal.  The 

option selection process is nearing completion and it is hoped to have an Outline 

Business Case in the summer and the implementation can be completed during 2026. 

 

 A96 upgrade workshop, 27th April 2022 

Transport Scotland and their consultants had arranged a workshop attended by Rab 

Dickson and Paul Finch from Nestrans and Ewan Wallace of Aberdeenshire Council.  
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This was an opportunity to brief key stakeholders in advance of public consultation into 

the upgrading proposals for the A96, which had previously been committed for dualling 

but is now being reviewed as a result of the Government’s Bute House Agreement to 

reassess the implications of the scheme. 

 

 National Transport Governance Group, 28th April 2022 

Rab Dickson represents Regional Transport Partnerships on the working group 

considering the future transport Governance options across Scotland.  The group 

heard updates on Transport Scotland’s plans to manage the emergence from the 

pandemic, a safe and confident return to public transport, plans for a Fair Fares 

Review, and received an update on Local Governance Review.   

 

 RTP Lead Officers, 4th May 2022 

The Lead Officers from each of Scotland’s seven Regional Transport Partnerships 

(RTPs) meet on a regular basis to discuss matters of mutual interest and to liaise with 

Transport Scotland representatives.  This meeting heard updates on Active Travel, 

Mobility as a Service (MaaS), developing hydrogen options in various parts of the 

country and on progress with developing Regional Strategies. 

 

 Active Travel Transformation, 10th May 2022 

Local Authorities and RTPs were invited to a session on the future of active travel, 

which was addressed by Patrick Harvie MSP, Minister for Active Travel and speakers 

from Copenhagen and Scottish Canals.  Breakout groups were able to discuss the 

Scottish Government’s ambition that Scotland be perceived as a leader in Active 

Travel. 

 

 RTPs Lead Officers with Transport Scotland, 11th May 2022 

Rab Dickson attended this meeting and heard updates regarding public transport 

patronage levels, transport and health, Bus Service Improvement Partnerships, Bus 

Partnership Funds, smart ticketing and active travel.   

 

 Health & Transport Action Plan Steering Group, 16th May 2022 

Rab Dickson and Paul Finch attended the steering group, chaired by Gerry Donald.  
The minutes of the last two meetings of the Steering Group are attached as Appendix 

1 and 2 to this report.  The meeting covered brief updates from key parties, including 

emerging proposals for National Treatment Centre (Grampian).  

 

 Electric Vehicles Infrastructure Framework, 18th May 2022 

Rab Dickson and Kelly Wiltshire attending this meeting with Scottish Futures Trust, 

which heard that a sum of up to £30million will be available over four years to enable 

a framework of EV charging network such that it can be sustained without ongoing 

public subsidy. 

 

 City Region Deal Transport Working Group, 24th May 2022 

Rab Dickson and Paul Finch attending this working group, which discussed progress 

on the transport projects associated with the City Region Deal.  Proposals for studies 

to be taken forward from the Strategic Transport Appraisal budget of the deal were 

also discussed.   

 

Page 102



 Aberdeen City Region Deal Programme Board, 25th May 2022 

Paul Finch attended as transport lead, and presented proposals for studies and 

business cases associated with the Strategic Transport Appraisal element of the deal.   

 

 Regional Economic Strategy Steering Group, 27th May 2022 

Rab Dickson attending this meeting with local authority economic development 

officers, Scottish Enterprise, Chamber of Commerce and others, which discussed the 

proposed review of the region’s economic vision.   

 

 Regional Economic Strategy Workshops, 31st May / 1st June 2022 

Paul Finch attended two days of workshops with wider regional economic development 

partners, hosted by Scottish Enterprise, considering updating the existing strategy.  

Workshop themes focussed on Innovation, Internationalisation, Investment and 

Inclusivity.   

 

 Aberdeenshire Community Planning Board, 8th June 2022 

Rab Dickson attended the meeting of Aberdeenshire’s Community Planning Board.  

Items included updates on the three priorities of Addressing Poverty, Connected & 

Cohesive Communities and Health & Well-being.   

 

 North East Bus Alliance Board, 9th June 2022 

Rab Dickson attended the meeting of the Bus Alliance, which received an update from 

the consultants commissioned to undertake the marketing and communications work 

supporting the Bus Partnership Fund work.  There were also updates on the City 

Centre and Beach Masterplan work.  A draft minute of the meeting is attached as 

Appendix 3 to this report. 

 

 Scottish Freight and Logistics Advisory Group (ScotFLAG), 9th June 2022 

Paul Finch attended this national meeting alongside representatives of national freight, 

logistics, and ports organisations, and other regional transport authorities.   The group 

heard an update on the progression of the Green Freeport process, and discussion on 

Goods Vehicle speed limits.   

 

 Aberdeen City Region Deal Joint Committee, 10th June 2022 

Rab Dickson and Paul Finch attending this committee, which heard a verbal update 

on progression of the project to improve the road linkage from Aberdeen South 

Harbour, proposals for studies associated with the Strategic Transport Appraisal 

Budget, and updates from Transport Scotland on the Aberdeen to Central Belt rail 

improvement project, and Laurencekirk Junction project.   
 

 Road Safety North East Scotland, 16th June 2022 

Rab Dickson chairs the casualty reduction partnership, which includes representatives 
of the local Councils road safety teams, Police Scotland and Road Safety Scotland. 
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4. Future Programme of Meetings  

  

The following meetings are scheduled between the preparation of this report and the 

next full meeting of Board scheduled for Wednesday 7th September 2022.  

 

 30th June – Transport Governance and Review Group 

 28th July – Aberdeen to Central Belt Stakeholder Group 

 5th August – Health & Transport Action Plan Steering Group 

 16th August – Aberdeen City Region Deal Transport Working Group 

 17th August – Community Planning Aberdeen Management Group 

 22nd August – Aberdeen Prospers Improvement Group 

 24th August – City Region Deal Programme Board 

 25th August – Aberdeenshire Community Planning Partnership workshop 

 25th August – Transport Governance and Review Group 

 31st August – RTP Chairs meeting 

 1st September – Bus Alliance Board 

 

 

 

5. Recommendation 

 

 The Board is recommended: 

 

1. to note progress on liaison arrangements with other RTPs, the Scottish 

Government and others and arrangements for future meetings. 
 

RD 13 June 2022 
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APPENDIX 1 

 

HTAP Steering Group 

 

Friday 18th February 2022 (10am-11am) 

Hosted on Microsoft Teams  
 

Minute 
 

Present  
Gerry Donald, (Chair), NHS Grampian (GD) 
Rab Dickson, (Vice Chair), Nestrans (RD) 
Paul Finch, Nestrans (PF) 
Joanne Riach, NHSG (JR) 
Graham Dunne, Mobility & Access Committee for Scotland (MACS) (GDu)  
Fergus Millan, SG Primary Care Directorate (FM) 
Lynn Boyd, Aberdeenshire Health & Social Care Partnership (LB)  
Virginia Irvine-Fortescue, Public Representative (VIF) 
Andrew Stewart, HTAP Programme Manager (AS) 
 
Apologies 
Steven Gorman, SAS (SG) 
Ewan Wallace, Aberdeenshire Council (EW) 
Nicola Moss, Moray Council (NM) 
Susan Forbes, Aberdeenshire Health & Social Care Partnership (SF) 
David Dunne, Aberdeen City Council (DD) 
Daniel Shaw, Aberdeenshire Voluntary Action (DS) 
 
 

Item  Action 

1. Welcome and Apologies  
 Apologies noted as above.    

2. Previous Minute  
 Approved.    

3. Matters Arising  

 The issue raised by Community Transport operators regarding 

Blude Badge parking was highlighted to Transport Scotland and a 

review of the code of practice will consider allocation.  Any CT 

groups refused a pass should go back to their local authority in the 

meantime.   

PF has corresponded with NM regarding sharing learning from Dial 

M for Moray and the Aberdeenshire Ready to Go pilot once 

reports finalised. 

Following the last meeting AS circulated the texts produced for 

NHSG regarding planning your journey to and from hospital. 

 

4. General COVID-19 Update  
 GD updated the meeting that although the system is still running 

“hot” the situation is improved.  A test of change has been put in 
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place to improve patient flow at A&E and hospital discharge.  Two 

private ambulances (7 days per week) continue to supplement 

Scottish Ambulance Service capacity.  These changes are showing 

signs of helping reduce delays, corridor care and increase the 

capacity of acute beds.  The current set up of vaccination centres 

is under review.   

 

 

6. National Updates  

 FM has continued to meet with Regional Transport Partnerships to 

develop understanding of transport issues.  FM will be establishing 
a Strategic Advisory Group to take forward Mobility & Access 

Committee recommendations. 

Discussion centred around national strategy for making reductions 

in carbon emissions for the NHS in Scotland, and the potential 

contribution of transport, particularly in a context of more staff 

etc returning to workplaces.   

Led to wider discussion about fleet decarbonisation, and hydrogen 

hub project in Aberdeen City. 

 

7. Regional Transport Strategy 2040  

 RD confirmed Ministerial approval of the new Nestrans  Regional 

Strategy.  Nationally, focus being placed on transport 
decarbonisation, reducing private veh kms, and benefits of active 

and sustainable travel.  Work is pushing on regarding Aberdeen 
Rapid Transit proposals, seeking to achieve a step change in public 

transport provision and ridership in Aberdeen, complementing city 
centre masterplan project. 

 

8. Access to Health & Social Care Sub-Group  

 PF updated the meeting on the progress of the sub-group.  ACVO 
(Aberdeen Council of Voluntary Organisations) had presented to 

the sub-group on their home from hospital project, NHSG 
colleagues had updated the sub-group on the Flow Hub to support 

hospital discharge and bus operators have launched double decker 
hydrogen buses in Aberdeen.  The sub-group have also maintained 

updates from THInC and supported the continued funding of 
THInC in the City.  There have also been discussions about Blue 

Badge applications by community transport operators and the 
Thistle Assistance Card.   

 

9. Transport & Public Health Sub-Group  
 JR updated the meeting that following her redeployment to Covid 

work she is back in her substantive role.  on a range of activities 

where HTAP aims have been progressing.  These included links 

between NHSG and Aberdeen City Council on electric vehicle 

charging infrastructure.  JR highlighted the NHS Sustrans 

Engagement Officer promoting active travel through a range of 

activities.  These include a well received pedometer challenge, 
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cycle aware training for NHSG staff, attending the Getabout group 

and developing travel plans for the four sites set out in the 

project.  JR and AS have established communication with Anna 

Gale at Public Health Scotland.  ACTION:  GD proposed inviting 

Anna Gale to the next Steering Group.  RD highlighted the first 

electric vehicle in the area was a result of partnership working and 

that currently NHSG has Hydrogen cars through collaboration with 

Aberdeen City Council.  GD updated the meeting that the planned 
National Treatment Centre is currently looking at sites as part of 

an option appraisal process. 

 
 

AS 

10. Programme Manager Update  

 AS provided update regarding plans for training event with Adrian 

Davies, likely to place May/June 2022, focussing on the links 

between transport and public health.  AS also outlined proposals 

for update of HTAP.  Whilst the steering group would provide a 

reference panel for the work, a smaller working group would be 

required to review previous document, and develop proposals for 

the refresh.  ACTION- nominees for working group required, send 

to AS 

 

 
 

 
 

 
All 

11. AOCB  

 None.  
12. Future Meetings  

 May 6th 10-11, August 5th 10-11, November 29th 2-3  

 
Minute by Andrew Stewart. 
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APPENDIX 2 

HTAP Steering Group 

Monday 16th May 2022 (2pm-3pm) 

Hosted on Microsoft Teams  
 

Minute 
 

Present  
Gerry Donald, (Chair), NHS Grampian (GD) 
Rab Dickson, (Vice Chair), Nestrans (RD) 
Paul Finch, Nestrans (PF) 
Joanne Riach, NHSG (JR)  
Ewan Wallace, Aberdeenshire Council (EW) 
Graham Dunne, Mobility & Access Committee for Scotland (MACS) (GDu)  
Steven Gorman, SAS (SG) 
Fergus Millan, SG Primary Care Directorate (FM) 
 
Apologies 
Nicola Moss, Moray Council (NM) 
Susan Forbes, Aberdeenshire Health & Social Care Partnership (SF) 
David Dunne, Aberdeen City Council (DD) 
Daniel Shaw, Aberdeenshire Voluntary Action (DS) 
Virginia Irvine-Fortescue, Public Representative (VIF) 
Lynn Boyd, Aberdeenshire Health & Social Care Partnership (LB) 
Andrew Stewart, HTAP Programme Manager (AS) 
 
 

Item  Action 

1. Welcome and Apologies  

 GD opened meeting, welcomed attendees, apologising for having 
to reschedule the date of this meeting. 

 

2. Previous Minute  

 JR to add in some updates from the Transport and Public Health 
Sub-Group. Adjustments to be made to the Actions outstanding / 

ongoing PF to reissue following the above amendments. 

 

3. Matters Arising  

 • NM and LB to discuss transport arrangements at Dr Grays  

between NHSG and Moray Council – to be carried forward 

• Nominations for HTAP review working group to AS – to be 

carried forward. 

• EW noted that he had discussed with Anna Gale the opportunity 

to present at the group, and that he had forwarded to her the 

dates of the next meetings.   

• GD and FM highlighted value of the connections made within the 

group, regarding prompt resolution of a recent patient access 

issue. 
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4. General COVID-19 Update  
 At the end of May, the emergency operation in relation to Covid at 

the hospital is being stood down, and a resumption of Business-as-

Usual planning.  
 

Pressures remain, particularly issues of patient through put, 

manifesting as issues at emergency dept.  However, numbers in 

hospital being treated for Covid are down, as is the number of 

wards having to be closed due to Covid.  

 
The Scottish Ambulance Service is now increasing vehicle 

occupancy in their patient transport service, splitting patients into 

those with respiratory illness, and those without respiratory 

illness.  

 

Vaccination centres now being used for wider range of 

treatments, associated with those that the Health Board now have 

responsibility for.  Expecting a vaccination booster campaign in the 

Autumn.   

 

Planning now underway for National Treatment Centre 

(Grampian), and current thinking is around the use of 2 floors of 

the former John Lewis building, previously used for the regional 

vaccination centre.  Looking for other complementary public 

sector uses for the other 2 floors, creating a “health hub” 

opportunity, and supporting the City Centre.  

 

FM highlighted the early need for a transport/travel plan for the 
facility.  

 

GD suggested that the “covid update” element could be removed 

from the agenda going forward. 

 
 
 

6. National Updates  

 No specific update.  FM currently in the process of recruiting 3 

post for his team, focussing transport and rural issues. 

 

7. Regional Transport Strategy 2040  

 RD highlighted the opening of the Haudagain Link Road project 
today, should have a beneficial impact on ambulance response 

times etc.  RD highlighted consultation being undertaken on A96 
Aberdeen to Inverness “problems and opportunities”.  NHS to 

develop a consultation response, issues include the Elgin 
maternity services review.  Following local elections, Nestrans 

awaiting confirmation of the new members put forward by the 
Councils to sit on the Board.  Next board meeting is 22 June 2022. 
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8. Access to Health & Social Care Sub-Group  
 PF reporting that there had been no meeting since last Steering 

Group. 
 

9. Transport & Public Health Sub-Group  
 JR updated that the Aberdeen Low Emission Zone will launch on 

31st May 2022, alongside the other three LEZ’s in Dundee, 
Edinburgh and Glasgow.  Further information is on the ACC 

website at https://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/services/roads-

transport-and-parking/low-emission-zone 

 

At the recent Sub-Group members reported work on Getabout 

campaigns, funding awarded to Nestrans for adult cycle training, 
Aberdeenshire’s Sustainable Travel Champions Scheme and the 

Access to Bikes at schools pilot.  The Sub-Group had also received 

an update on the work being done around vulnerable road users, 

based on the motorcyclist campaign, which was published last 

year.  Caroline Hood from RGU had been invited to speak to 

Transport Scotland on this campaign.  There is also a bid being 

prepared to fund research to understand the reduction in 

casualties and fatalities in the North East in recent years.  The 

recent sub-group had also heard from ACC that Transport Scotland 

have confirmed SCSP funding for 22/23 which will cover the 

continuation of the i-bike officer post and i-Bike in communities 

(which covers families as well as children).  Updates from Moray 

included The Moray AT strategy will be completed by the end of 

the year.  The Council Travel Plan has been updated. The Moray 

Bothy project supported by Cycling UK, and includes links with 

DWP, Moray Food Bank, Women’s Aid.  The Speyside Way has 

been extended.  Also, a new Sustrans Embedded Officer will start 

shortly.  There was also an update that the Spaces for People 

funded path between Foresterhill and Woodhill House is under 

construction.  There has been good work done by the NHS 

Sustrans Project Officer including the recent Workplace Step 

Challenge, which attracted over 1000 participants, and got 

mention in a motion in the Scottish Parliament by Jackie Dunbar 

MSP.  NHSG also took part in the Workplace Journey challenge 

and came 12th nationally.  Recently, the project has delivered 

several online cyclist/driver awareness training sessions, and also 

ran an Easter Egg Hunt to promote the Cornhill Health Walks.   

MH updated that AS has invited Prof Davies to Aberdeen, to 

deliver his Public Health and Transport event.  Several group 

members commented that they found Prof Davies previous 

training inspiring and interesting.   
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10. Programme Manager Update  

 No update.  

11. AOCB  

 None.  
12. Future Meetings  

 August 5th 10-11, November 29th 2-3  
 

Minute by Paul Finch & Andrew Stewart from notes. 
 

  

Page 111



APPENDIX 3 

 

North East of Scotland Bus Alliance 

 

Minute of the Bus Alliance Board  

(Microsoft Teams)  

Thursday 9th June 2022 at 10:00am 

Present 

 

 

 

 

 

Robert Andrew, Chair (RA) 

Rab Dickson, Nestrans (RD) 

Peter Knight, Stagecoach Bluebird (PK) 

David Adam, First (DA) 

David Dunne, Aberdeen City Council (DD) 

Richard McKenzie, Aberdeenshire Council (RM) 

Greig Mackay, Bus Users Scotland (GM) 

Kirsty Chalmers, Nestrans (KC) 

Apologies  

 

In attendance 

for the first 2 

agenda items 

Ewan Wallace, Aberdeenshire Council; Duncan Cameron, First; Doug 

Bain, Bains Coaches. 

 

Tim Steiner, Jacobs 

Caley McDowall, Jacobs 

 

Item  Action 

1 Welcome & Apologies 

 RA welcomed everyone to the meeting followed by introductions for the 

benefit of the Jacobs team.   

 

 

2 ART / BPF Engagement, Marketing and Comms (Jacobs attending 

for this item) 

 

 KC provided a brief update on the progress of the ART study.  The 

Case for Change is now available on the Nestrans website and there 

was a presentation at the last Nestrans Board by Stantec which is also 

available on the website.  We have now received a draft of the 

Preliminary Options Appraisal report which has been circulated to the 

wider working group for comments.  Work is continuing in the meantime 
on the start of the Detailed Options Appraisal which in the first instance 

will look in more detail at anticipated demand and routing options.  

Anticipated timescales for committee and gateway reporting of the 

Detailed Options Appraisal were also covered.  Detailed options 

appraisal currently programmed to complete October 2022 and 

therefore will need to go to the various Committees at their December 

meetings.  A Gateway Review meeting with Transport Scotland will also 
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be required before it can move to the next stage which is the 

preparation of the Business Case. 

Presentation by CM on the Comms and Engagement workstream 

followed by general discussion as follows: 

Key Stakeholders and partners  

 Engagement with Transport Scotland – do we need to include them 
as a key stakeholder or are they partners in the process.   

 Agreed that liaison with TS is vital and they will continue to maintain 
a keen interest in the technical elements of the work and the 
Councils and Nestrans have a role through these and the BPF 
working group to ensure they continue to be engaged in the 
process.  This commission focuses on the public facing elements of 
the comms work but needs to take cognisance of the role and 
involvement of TS and the role that they can play at a senior / 
political level in terms of supporting the ART Vision and priority 
corridors.   

 Not already covered on the list of stakeholders would be economic 
development officers within the Council who have an influential role 
in disseminating messages about ART and city centre 
improvements.  DD can provide relevant contact details as well as 
links to communities.   

 Social media influencers and the media. How do we address the 
plethora of negative opinions that can dominate on social media. 
Discussions ongoing with comms teams at councils to help inform 
engagement in this forum.  There will be media briefings to try and 
inform the media in advance but of course this does not always 
translate into the articles published.  Jacobs starting to look at 
influential social media channels to try and tap into these forums.  
DD view that historically we have possibly been too focussed on 
traditional media outlets and actually a lot of people now get their 
news through other social media outlets and therefore we need to 
be stronger in that space. Fubar news mentioned as one such forum 
that generates a lot of traction. We need to learn the lessons from 
experiences with Spaces for People.  

 Engagement with elected members is a top priority in the short term. 

 Chamber of Commerce, Aberdeen BID are huge influencers with 
the printed media and social media presence.  

 Agreed that it needs to be a cyclical approach to engagement but 
there is no order of priority in terms of stakeholders.  
 

Key messages to inform engagement 

 From a passenger perspective it will be about how well the current 
bus network will connect in to ART and how accessible it will be.  It’s 
not available elsewhere so the public won’t be clear on what it 
actually means.  Important therefore to inform and increase 
understanding. 

 This point echoed by PK who feels passengers will want to see how 
it integrates into the Bluebird network.   

 The fact that there is the potential of Scottish Government funding 
here should be communicated.  It needs however to be a credible 
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plan with at least some hope of funding going forward otherwise it 
will just garner negative feedback and publicity. 

 It is important to keep the public up to date with what’s happening.  
That is key. 

 Local members in Aberdeenshire will be interested in how 
Aberdeenshire communities can link into this system. This will be 
critical in getting communities and politicians involved.   

 

Engagement with elected members 

 Agreement that this should be through the Nestrans Board in the 
first instance.  KC indicated that there will likely be a Members 
briefing in September, giving new Members and committees time to 
settle in and in advance of any technical reports on ART going into 
the public domain.  This was agreed to be an appropriate time 
frame.  

 

TS - appreciate the steer this morning and will be coming back to the 

group as we progress. 

RA thanked the TS and CM and they left the meeting at this point.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3 Minute of the Bus Alliance Board 10th March 2022  

 Minute agreed 
 
Matters arising. 

DD – action on LEZ.  There was some confusion around statutory 
exemptions and DD confirmed that there are no additional local 
exemptions.   
 
Bus campaign – KC updated that a working group has met and 
discussed an outline plan for a campaign developed by Nestrans.  This 
was circulated with the papers for information.  Nestrans will continue to 
work this up in partnership with the Councils and Bus Operators.  
 

 

 

 

 

KC 

3 City Centre and Beach Masterplans  

 Re-opening of Union Street to buses - DD updated that the re-opening 

of Union Street to buses is currently programmed for the end of June 
and discussions have been ongoing between the council and bus 

operators on this. 

CCMP – there are a series of reports going back to ACC Committees 

over the coming months. The August Committee is probably the most 

significant one in terms of decisions on the future of the city centre.  

There is a wide agenda at this meeting, but it will include the transport 

aspects of the CCMP. 

The Beach Masterplan will also be reported to August Committee. 

There is more uncertainty over this as a number of the key elements 

are outwith council control e.g. any decisions on a new football stadium. 
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RA asked what plans there are for mitigation for buses if the decision is 

to fully pedestrianise the central section of Union Street. DD updated 

that regardless of what happens on Union Street, the bus priority 

measures on Guild Street, Bridge Street and Market Street are planned 

and are a condition of the BPF funding of South College Street.  

Significant works were due to take place on Market Street by Scottish 

Water - this project has however run into problems so looks like it will 

be delayed which will free up the opportunity to move forward with the 

bus priority measures. The recommendation will be to proceed with 

these as soon as possible.   

4 Bus Partnership Fund  

 KC introduced the paper that provides an update on the status of each 

of the BPF Workstreams.   

DD highlighted that there are some issues arising through the Gateway 

reviews that relate to all the corridor studies, particularly a requirement 

from Transport Scotland that a more detailed governance plan is 

produced before projects will be approved to progress to the next stage. 
This has implications in terms of resourcing, timescales and competing 

requests from TS that we speed up progress on the corridor studies. 

Increasingly concerned that they are asking us to speed up progress 

but at the same time asking for additional work or information. 

It was agreed thar a higher-level discussion with the BPF team at TS is 

required and that perhaps there is an opportunity with upcoming staff 

changes.   

PK asked if there are other partnerships encountering the same issues 

but the feeling is that we are the most progressed and therefore 

encountering these issues first. 

There is a link here to BSIPs in terms of governance requirements and 

perhaps a need for some sort of political involvement in the Bus 

Alliance?  Need for a senior level discussion on that and it was felt that 

Nestrans may be appropriate forum for this political involvement.  This 

is covered in more detail under the item on BSIPs. 

Match in Kind contributions.  Feedback from Transport Scotland has 

also been received on the match in kind contributions that are required 

as part of the BPF grant award.  The Executive Group have discussed 

these comments and have some issues with the points raised.  It was 

agreed that a joint Bus Alliance response on this would be appropriate.  

KC to draft a response and circulate for approval of the partners.  

Governance – In addition to the discussion above DD requested that 

everyone in the Alliance prioritise the governance aspects as we 

progress with these.   

ACC are currently intending to create an additional post to support the 

BPF and now have support from CCMP team to ensure that this post 

can be funded across financial years.  DD preparing a business case 
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and will hopefully have this out fairly soon.  Will update again at next 

meeting. 

Link between Bus Alliance and Sustrans – it is the view of the Bus 

Alliance partners that it would not be appropriate for Sustrans to have a 

permanent seat at the BA Board due to the fact that, as an Alliance 

each of the partners have signed up to a partnership agreement that 

includes a data sharing agreement reflecting the nature of some of the 

commercially confidential information that is involved.  It was agreed 

that it would however be appropriate to invite a Sustrans representative 

to individual meetings as appropriate but that there are other forums 

where engagement with Sustrans and links to the BPF can be made.  

 

 

5 BSIPs  

 Linked to Match in Kind discussion above.   

KC introduced the paper that had been circulated. 

It was agreed that progressing a BSIP agreement is important and 

Transport Scotland have indicated that they wish to see significant 

progress on BSIPs this calendar year.  

It was asked if Stagecoach and First might be able to assist in 

identifying examples of good practice that they may have been involved 

in from England.  

PK supports the recommendations of the report and happy to provide 

examples of agreements they have been involved in elsewhere.  

There has a lot that has already been done through the partnership that 

aligns with the BSIP process so it should be a case of reviewing some 

of this rather than starting again from scratch. 

PK agreed to speak with colleagues about whether they could arrange 

for someone to come and speak to the Board at a future meeting about 

their experiences of BSIP agreements and Enhanced Partnerships from 

England.    

The recommendations of the report were agreed. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PK 

6 Bus Action Plan Update  

 An update of the Bus Action Plan was provided but there were no 

further comments or questions. 

 

7 Partner Updates  

 Aberdeenshire Council – The first Infrastructure Services Committee 

of the new administration was held yesterday.  There is a new Chair 

who is a new councillor from Ellon and Vice Chair who is new to ISC but 

a long-standing elected member.  The two opposition transport 

spokespersons have been confirmed as Cllr Aitchison and Cllr Reid.   

Hopefully by September there will be a greater steer from the new 

committee of key issues and the direction in which they want to go. 
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Officers had speed networking events with Councillors and a consistent 

theme coming through this was about rural transport and that this is an 

important issue for communities across Aberdeenshire. 

RA is involved with Hitrans who previously published a paper on 

funding challenges for rural transport.  RA suggested there may be 

merit in reviewing this and updating it for the current situation.  It was 

agreed that this is worth a discussion between Nestrans / 

Aberdeenshire Council and Hitrans to push this up the agenda again.  

RM agreed this is a good suggestion.  RA will flag this with Hitrans and 

see if they want to take things from there. 

Aberdeen City Council – New partnership in SNP & Lib Dems 

following the local elections. DD confirmed that the membership of the 

Nestrans Board will be confirmed shortly.  Looking at their policy 

statement however there is a strong public transport and active travel 

focus.   

Bus Users Scotland – GM heavily involved in the other partnerships 

around the country and reported that other partnerships are being 
encouraged to move as quickly as possible with their BPF projects as in 

many cases they are much smaller schemes.  

Recently completed an in-depth compliance monitoring exercise of rural 

transport elsewhere in Scotland with a number of concerns uncovered 

relating to timetables, vehicle conditions, excess speeds etc.  There is a 

long way to go in terms of improving rural transport and the way it is 

funded through contracts, with many contracts not being fit for purpose 

for passengers, historical contracts which haven’t been reviewed for 

years etc, being a particular concern.  

Also undertaking a big engagement exercise with Scottish Borders 

council who are looking to review the existing supported network.  

Trying to engage as widely as possible as part of this and may well look 

to replicate these engagement events across the country in the future.  

Stagecoach – DWS Infrastructures offer for the Stagecoach Group has 

been finalised and accepted and the company will be moved over at the 

end of June.  In the short term they don’t foresee any changes locally 

as a result of this and it is very much business as usual. 

Current funding through Network Support Grant plus (NSG+) comes to 

an end towards the end of July when there will be a change to the rates 

paid and the funding finishes completely 10 weeks or so after that.  

Discussions on what the future looks like are still going on behind the 

scenes with the Scottish Government.  Will keep a close eye on how 

things develop over the coming weeks / months as there are significant 

concerns that the funding is ending too early. 

RA – we have been fortunate as an industry that there has been 

support during the pandemic, but funding is coming to an end earlier 

than necessary and certainly there will be some challenges as a result 

of this.  It seems inequitable as funding is remaining in place for rail and 

ferry for longer than bus, so it feels that bus passengers are being 
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disadvantaged as a result.  Anything that partners can do to lobby for a 

bit more time would be beneficial.  Patronage is recovering but we are 

not there yet.  Just 8 weeks longer would even benefit by taking them 

through to universities returning and an expected jump in patronage as 

a result.  

The 22 new electric double decker vehicles are now in circulation and 

there have been a couple of stakeholder events to launch them.  

Richard Lockhead MSP launched one of the vehicles alongside the 

manufacturer AVL to celebrate the 1000th AVL electric vehicle that has 

been produced. 

Stagecoach will continue to engage with the process around Union St 

and the city centre.  

The under 22s scheme continues to grow exponentially and they are 

beginning to see some interesting trends.  No particular issues have 

been reported but there has been a bit of anti-social behaviour in the 

city centre linked to under 22s being able to travel around unlimited.  

Overwhelmingly successful however but just a few minor concerns here 
and there.  

First – 10 new Hydrogen vehicles are now on the road and 3 of the 10 

that had been off the road for repair are now returned with the 

remaining vehicles to follow shortly. 

Under 22s – there have seen some more incidences of vandalism since 

the scheme was launched but numbers are growing. 

Service changes are coming into place on the 5th July which will take 

account of the re-opening of the central section of Union Street for 

buses.  Still come uncertainty around the approach they will take if 

Union Street opens any earlier than this date.  They may decide to put 

some services down prior to the main service change.  

NSG plus rate change in July is just too early so continuing to lobby 

Scottish Government to delay this. 

 

 

 

ALL 

 

 

 

 

7 AOCB  

 There were no items raised.  

8 Date of Next Meeting: 1st September 2022  
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4.2 N estrans’ C ode of Conduct   

NORTH EAST SCOTLAND TRANSPORT PARTNERSHIP – 22 June 2022 

 

 

4.2 Nestrans’ Code of Conduct 

 

 

 Purpose of Report 

 
The purpose of this report is to request that the Board adopts an updated Code of Conduct 
as attached to this report as Appendix 1. This appendix indicates the Model Code, with 

specificity relating to Nestrans highlighted as Track Changes. 
 

 Background 

 
The Ethical Standards in Public Life etc (Scotland) Act 2000 provides for Codes of Conduct 
for local authority councillors and members of relevant public bodies. The Act requires the 
Scottish Ministers to lay before Parliament, a Model Code for members of devolved public 
bodies. Public bodies listed in schedule 3 of the Act are required to produce a Code of 
Conduct in line with the Model Code.  
 
The revised Model Code was approved by the Scottish Parliament and the Board is now 
requested to adopt the revised Code.  
 
Where relevant, the revised Code has taken into account changes introduced in the revised 
Councillors’ Code and also suggestions submitted to the public consultation which was 
undertaken. It is thought that the changes are proportionate and make it easier to 
understand.  
 
The Code now highlights the need for Board members to have an awareness of their 
Board’s policies in relation to a number of areas including appointments, equality, diversity, 
succession planning, bullying and harassment in the workplace and the Bribery Act 2010.  It 
also introduces a new requirement for registration of gifts and hospitality over £50 and 
shares and securities which may be significant to or relevant to the work of the Body.  
 

 Information for Board members on adhering to the new requirements 

 
The Code requires Board members to have an awareness of their Board’s policies in relation 
to a number of areas.  On their appointment as a Nestrans Board member, all Members are 
provided with a copy of the Code of Conduct, standing orders and constitution and are asked 
to complete a Register of Interests.   
 
All governance documents relating to Nestrans can also be found on the Nestrans website at 
http://www.nestrans.org.uk/documents.html  
 
Nestrans adopts and uses the personnel policies and procedures adopted by Aberdeenshire 
Council and these can be viewed at http://arcadialite.aberdeenshire.gov.uk/?cat=3  
 
Information and procedures for the registration of gifts and hospitality is also provided to 
members on induction as a Board Member.  In summary however it states that: 
 

“You must record details of any gifts or hospitality received by you in all situations by 
virtue of your membership of the Partnership including representing the Partnership on 
official business.  The term ‘gift’ includes benefits such as relief from indebtedness, loan 
concessions or provision of services at a cost below that generally charged to members 
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4.2 N estrans’ C ode of Conduct   

of the public.  You should record gifts and hospitality received by sending details to 
the Nestrans Director as soon as the gift or hospitality is known to you. 

 
This should take the form of a letter setting out:- 

(a) The nature of the gift or hospitality and when it was received 

(b) The person or organisation presenting the gift or affording the hospitality 

(c) If relevant, the reason for the gift or hospitality. 
 
You do not have to record the following gifts:- 

(1) Trivial or very inexpensive gifts 

(2) Normal hospitality associated with your Partnership duties 

(3) Gifts received on behalf of the Partnership. 
 
If you are in any doubt please seek advice from the Head of Legal and Democratic Services 
or her representative. 
 
Further detail or training on any of these policies can be requested should Board Members 
wish and a refreshed training could be provided at a future Board meeting if Members feel 
this would be helpful. 
 

 Background papers 

 
For details of the existing Code of Conduct see http://www.nestrans.org.uk/documents.html. 
 
The proposed Code of Conduct is appended to this report and will replace the existing Code 
once approved.   
 
Full details on the Ethical Standards in Public Life etc (Scotland) Act 2000 and guidance 
from the Commissioner for Ethical Standards can be found at  
http://www.ethicalstandards.org.uk/   

 

 Recommendation 

 
It is recommended that the Board: 

 
1. Adopt the revised Code as appended to this report; and 

 
2. Consider whether it would like any further information or training in its requirements.   

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

RD/13 June 2022 
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3  

SECTION 1: INTRODUCTION TO THE CODE OF CONDUCT 

 
1.1 This Code has been issued by the Scottish Ministers, with the approval of 

the Scottish Parliament, as required by the Ethical Standards in Public Life etc. 
(Scotland) Act 2000 (the “Act”) and endorsed by the Nestrans Board. 
 

1.2 The purpose of the Code is to set out the conduct expected of those who 
serve on the boards of public bodies in Scotland.  

 
1.3 The Code has been developed in line with the nine key principles of public life 
in Scotland. The principles are listed in Section 2 and set out how the provisions of the 

Code should be interpreted and applied in practice.  
 
My Responsibilities 
 

1.4 I understand that the public has a high expectation of those who serve on the 

boards of public bodies and the way in which they should conduct themselves in 
undertaking their duties. I will always seek to meet those expectations by ensuring 

that I conduct myself in accordance with the Code. 
 

1.5 I will comply with the substantive provisions of this Code, being sections 3 to 6 

inclusive, in all situations and at all times where I am acting as a board member of my 
public body, have referred to myself as a board member or could objectively be 
considered to be acting as a board member. 

 
1.6 I will comply with the substantive provisions of this Code, being sections 3 to 6 

inclusive, in all my dealings with the public, employees and fellow board members, 
whether formal or informal. 
 

1.7 I understand that it is my personal responsibility to be familiar with the 
provisions of this Code and that I must also comply with the law and my public body’s 

rules, standing orders and regulations. I will also ensure that I am familiar with any 
guidance or advice notes issued by the Standards Commission for Scotland 

(“Standards Commission”) and my public body, and endeavour to take part in any 

training offered on the Code. 

 
1.8 I will not, at any time, advocate or encourage any action contrary to this Code.  
 

1.9 I understand that no written information, whether in the Code itself or the 
associated Guidance or Advice Notes issued by the Standards Commission, can 

provide for all circumstances. If I am uncertain about how the Code applies, I will seek 
advice from   the Chair or Director of Nestrans. I note that I may also choose to seek 
external legal advice on how to interpret the provisions of the Code.   

 
Enforcement 
 

1.10 Part 2 of the Act sets out the provisions for dealing with alleged breaches of 
the Code, including the sanctions that can be applied if the Standards Commission 
finds that there has been a breach of the Code.  More information on how complaints 
are dealt with and the sanctions available can be found at Annex A. 

 

SECTION 2: KEY PRINCIPLES OF THE CODE OF CONDUCT 
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2.1 The Code has been based on the following key principles of public life. I will 

behave in accordance with these principles and understand that they should be used 
for guidance and interpreting the provisions in the Code. 

 
2.2 I note that a breach of one or more of the key principles does not in itself 

amount to a breach of the Code. I note that, for a breach of the Code to be found, 

there must also be a contravention of one or more of the provisions in sections 3 to 6 
inclusive of the Code. 

 
The key principles are: 

 
Duty 

I have a duty to uphold the law and act in accordance with the law and the public 
trust placed in me.  I have a duty to act in the interests of the public body of which 

I am a member and in accordance with the core functions and duties of that body. 
 
Selflessness 

I have a duty to take decisions solely in terms of public interest. I must not act in 
order to gain financial or other material benefit for myself, family or friends. 

 
Integrity 

I must not place myself under any financial, or other, obligation to any individual or 
organisation that might reasonably be thought to influence me in the performance of 

my duties. 
 

Objectivity 

I must make decisions solely on merit and in a way that is consistent with the 

functions of my public body when carrying out public business including making 
appointments, awarding contracts or recommending individuals for rewards and 
benefits. 
 

Accountability and Stewardship 

I am accountable to the public for my decisions and actions. I have a duty to 
consider issues on their merits, taking account of the views of others and I must 

ensure that my public body uses its resources prudently and in accordance with 
the law. 
 

Openness 

I have a duty to be as open as possible about my decisions and actions, giving 
reasons for my decisions and restricting information only when the wider public 

interest clearly demands. 
 

Honesty 

I have a duty to act honestly. I must declare any private interests relating to my 
public duties and take steps to resolve any conflicts arising in a way that protects 
the public interest. 
 

Leadership 

I have a duty to promote and support these principles by leadership and example, 

and to maintain and strengthen the public’s trust and confidence in the integrity of 
my public body and its members in conducting public business. 
 

Respect 
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I must respect all other board members and all employees of Nestrans and the role 
they play, treating them with courtesy at all times. Similarly, I must respect 

members of the public when performing my duties as a board member. 
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SECTION 3: GENERAL CONDUCT 

 

Respect and Courtesy 

 

3.1 I will treat everyone with courtesy and respect. This includes in person, 

in writing, at meetings, when I am online and when I am using social media. 
 

3.2 I will not discriminate unlawfully on the basis of race, age, sex, sexual 

orientation, gender reassignment, disability, religion or belief, marital status or 
pregnancy/maternity; I will advance equality of opportunity and seek to foster 

good relations between different people. 
 
3.3 I will not engage in any conduct that could amount to bullying or harassment 

(which includes sexual harassment). I accept that such conduct is completely  
unacceptable and will be considered to be a breach of this Code. 

 
3.4 I accept that disrespect, bullying and harassment can be: 
 

a) a one-off incident,  
b) part of a cumulative course of conduct; or 

c) a pattern of behaviour.  
 
3.5 I understand that how, and in what context, I exhibit certain behaviours can 

be as important as what I communicate, given that disrespect, bullying and 
harassment can be physical, verbal and non-verbal conduct. 
 

3.6 I accept that it is my responsibility to understand what constitutes bullying 
and harassment and I will utilise resources, including the Standards Commission’s 

guidance and advice notes, my public body’s policies and training material (where 
appropriate) to ensure that my knowledge and understanding is up to date. 
 

3.7 Except where it is written into my role as Board member, and / or at the 
invitation of the Chair or Director, I will not become involved in operational 

management of my public body. I acknowledge and understand that operational 
management is the responsibility of the Director and Executive Team. 
 

3.8 I will not undermine any individual employee or group of employees, or raise 
concerns about their performance, conduct or capability in public. I will raise any 

concerns I have on such matters in private with senior management as appropriate.  
 
3.9 I will not take, or seek to take, unfair advantage of my position in my dealings 

with employees of my public body or bring any undue influence to bear on 
employees to take a certain action. I will not ask or direct employees to do something 

which I know, or should reasonably know, could compromise them or prevent them 
from undertaking their duties properly and appropriately. 
 

3.10 I will respect and comply with rulings from the Chair during meetings of: 
 

a) my public body, its committees; and 
b) any outside organisations that I have been appointed or nominated to by 

my public body or on which I represent my public body. 
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3.11 I will respect the principle of collective decision-making and corporate   
responsibility. This means that once the Board has made a decision, I will recognise 

that decision as Nestrans’ position, even if I did not agree with it or vote for it. 
 

Remuneration, Allowances and Expenses 

 

3.12 I will comply with the rules, and the policies of my public body, on the payment 
of remuneration, allowances and expenses. 
 
Gifts and Hospitality 

 
3.13 I understand that I may be offered gifts (including money raised via 
crowdfunding or sponsorship), hospitality, material benefits or services (“gift or 

hospitality”) that may be reasonably regarded by a member of the public with 
knowledge of the relevant facts as placing me under an improper obligation or being 
capable of influencing my judgement. 
 
3.14 I will never ask for or seek any gift or hospitality. 

 

3.15 I will refuse any gift or hospitality, unless it is: 
 

a) a minor item or token of modest intrinsic value offered on an infrequent 

basis; 
b) a gift being offered to my public body; 

c) hospitality which would reasonably be associated with my duties as a 
board member; or 

d) hospitality which has been approved in advance by my public body. 

 
3.16 I will consider whether there could be a reasonable perception that any gift or  

hospitality received by a person or body connected to me could or would influence my  
judgement. 
 

3.17 I will not allow the promise of money or other financial advantage to induce  
me to act improperly in my role as a board member. I accept that the money or  

advantage (including any gift or hospitality) does not have to be given to me directly.  
The offer of monies or advantages to others, including community groups, may amount  
to bribery, if the intention is to induce me to improperly perform a function. 

 
3.18 I will never accept any gift or hospitality from any individual or applicant who  

is awaiting a decision from, or seeking to do business with, my public body. 
 
3.19 If I consider that declining an offer of a gift would cause offence, I will accept  

it and hand it over to my public body at the earliest possible opportunity and ask for it  
to be registered. 

 
3.20 I will promptly advise Nestrans’ Chair and Director if I am offered (but refuse) 
any gift or hospitality of any significant value and / or if I am offered any gift or 

hospitality from the same source on a repeated basis, so that my public body can 
monitor this. 

 
3.21 I will familiarise myself with the terms of the Bribery Act 2010, which provides 
for offences of bribing another person and offences relating to being bribed. 
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Confidentiality 
 

3.22 I will not disclose confidential information or information which should 
reasonably be regarded as being of a confidential or private nature, without the 
express consent of a person or body authorised to give such consent, or unless 

required to do so by law. I note that if I cannot obtain such express consent, I 
should assume it is not given. 

 
3.23 I accept that confidential information can include discussions, documents, 
and information which is not yet public or never intended to be public, and 

information deemed confidential by statute. 
 

3.24 I will only use confidential information to undertake my duties as a board 
member. I will not use it in any way for personal advantage or to discredit my public 
body (even if my personal view is that the information should be publicly available).  

 
3.25 I note that these confidentiality requirements do not apply to protected 

whistleblowing disclosures made to the prescribed persons and bodies as identified 
in statute. 
 
Use of Public Body Resources 

 

3.26 I will only use Nestrans’ resources, including employee assistance, facilities, 
stationery and IT equipment, for carrying out duties on behalf of the public body, in 
accordance with its relevant policies. 

 
3.27 I will not use, or in any way enable others to use, my public body’s 

resources: 
 

a) imprudently (without thinking about the implications or consequences); 

b) unlawfully; 
c) for any political activities or matters relating to these; or 

d) improperly. 
 
Dealing with my Public Body and Preferential Treatment 

 

3.28 I will not use, or attempt to use, my position or influence as a board member  

to: 
 

a) improperly confer on or secure for myself, or others, an advantage;  

b) avoid a disadvantage for myself, or create a disadvantage for others or 
c) improperly seek preferential treatment or access for myself or others.  

 
3.29 I will avoid any action which could lead members of the public to believe that 
preferential treatment or access is being sought. 

 
3.30  I will advise employees of any connection, as defined at Section 5, I may 

have to a matter, when seeking information or advice or responding to a request for 
information or advice from them. 
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Appointments to Outside Organisations 

 
3.31 If I am appointed, or nominated by my public body, as a member of 
another body or organisation, I will abide by the rules of conduct and will act in the 

best interests of that body or organisation while acting as a member of it. I will 
also continue to observe the rules of this Code when carrying out the duties of 

that body or organisation. 
 
3.32 I accept that if I am a director or trustee (or equivalent) of a company or a 

charity, I will be responsible for identifying, and taking advice on, any conflicts of 
interest that may arise between the company or charity and Nestrans. 
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SECTION 4: REGISTRATION OF INTERESTS 

 

4.1 The following paragraphs set out what I have to register when I am 
appointed and whenever my circumstances change. The register covers my 
current term of appointment.  
 

4.2 I understand that regulations made by the Scottish Ministers describe the 

detail and timescale for registering interests; including a requirement that a board 
member must register their registrable interests within one month of becoming a 
board member, and register any changes to those interests within one month of 

those changes having occurred.  
 

4.3 The interests which I am required to register are those set out in the 
following paragraphs. Other than as required by paragraph 4.23, I understand it 
is not necessary to register the interests of my spouse or cohabitee. 

 
Category One: Remuneration 

 

4.4  I will register any work for which I receive, or expect to receive, payment. 
I have a registrable interest where I receive remuneration by virtue of being:   
 

a) employed; 

b) self-employed; 

c) the holder of an office; 
d) a director of an undertaking; 
e) a partner in a firm;  

f) appointed or nominated by my public body to another body; or 
g) engaged in a trade, profession or vocation or any other work. 

 

4.5 I understand that in relation to 4.4 above, the amount of remuneration does 

not require to be registered. I understand that any remuneration received as a board 
member of this specific public body does not have to be registered. 

 
4.6 I understand that if a position is not remunerated it does not need to be 
registered under this category. However, unremunerated directorships may need to 

be registered under Category Two, “Other Roles”. 
 

4.7 I must register any allowances I receive in relation to membership of 
any organisation under Category One. 
 

4.8 When registering employment as an employee, I must give the full 
name of the employer, the nature of its business, and the nature of the post I 
hold in the organisation. 

 
4.9 When registering remuneration from the categories listed in paragraph 

4.4 (b) to (g) above, I must provide the full name and give details of the nature of 
the business, organisation, undertaking, partnership or other body, as 
appropriate. I recognise that some other employments may be incompatible with 

my role as board member of my public body in terms of paragraph 6.7 of this 
Code. 
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4.10 Where I otherwise undertake a trade, profession or vocation, or any 

other work, the detail to be given is the nature of the work and how often it is 
undertaken.  
 

4.11 When registering a directorship, it is necessary to provide the registered 
name and registered number of the undertaking in which the directorship is held 

and provide information about the nature of its business. 
 

4.12 I understand that registration of a pension is not required as this falls 
outside the scope of the category. 
 
Category Two: Other Roles 

 

4.13 I will register any unremunerated directorships where the body in 

question is a subsidiary or parent company of an undertaking in which I hold a 
remunerated directorship. 
 

4.14 I will register the registered name and registered number of the subsidiary 
or parent company or other undertaking and the nature of its business, and its 

relationship to the company or other undertaking in which I am a director and from 
which I receive remuneration. 
 
Category Three: Contracts 
 

4.15 I have a registerable interest where I (or a firm in which I am a partner, or 
an undertaking in which I am a director or in which I have shares of a value as 
described in paragraph 4.20 below) have made a contract with my public body: 

 
a) under which goods or services are to be provided, or works are to be 

executed; and 
b) which has not been fully discharged. 

 

4.16 I will register a description of the contract, including its duration, but 
excluding the value. 

 

Category Four: Election Expenses 

 

4.17 If I have been elected to my public body, then I will register a description 
of, and statement of, any assistance towards election expenses relating to 

election to my public body. 

 

Category Five: Houses, Land and Buildings 
 

4.18 I have a registrable interest where I own or have any other right or interest 

in houses, land and buildings, which may be significant to, of relevance to, or bear 
upon, the work and operation of Nestrans. 
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4.19 I accept that, when deciding whether or not I need to register any interest I 

have in houses, land or buildings, the test to be applied is whether a member of the 
public, with knowledge of the relevant facts, would reasonably regard the interest 
as being so significant that it could potentially affect my responsibilities to my public 

body and to the public, or could influence my actions, speeches or decision-
making. 
 
Category Six: Interest in Shares and Securities 
 

4.20 I have a registerable interest where: 
 

a) I own or have an interest in more than 1% of the issued share capital 
of the company or other body; or 

b) Where, at the relevant date, the market value of any shares and 
securities (in any one specific company or body) that I own or have an 

interest in is greater than £25,000,   
significant to, of relevance to, or bear upon, the work and operation of Nestrans. 

 
Category Seven: Gifts and Hospitality 
 

4.21 I understand the requirements of paragraphs 3.13 to 3.21 regarding gifts and 
hospitality. As I will not accept any gifts or hospitality, other than under the limited 
circumstances allowed, I understand there is no longer the need to register any.    
 

Category Eight: Non–Financial Interests 

 

4.22 I may also have other interests and I understand it is equally important that 
relevant interests such as membership or holding office in other public bodies, 

companies, clubs, societies and organisations such as trades unions and voluntary 
organisations, are registered and described. In this context, I understand non-

financial interests are those which members of the public with knowledge of the 
relevant facts might reasonably think could influence my actions, speeches, votes 
or decision-making in my public body (this includes its Committees and 

memberships of other organisations to which I have been appointed or nominated 
by my public body). 
 

Category Nine: Close Family Members 
 

4.23 I will register the interests of any close family member who has transactions 
with my public body or is likely to have transactions or do business with it.   
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SECTION 5: DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 

 
Stage 1: Connection 

 
5.1 For each particular matter I am involved in as a board member, I will first 
consider whether I have a connection to that matter.  

 
5.2 I understand that a connection is any link between the matter being 

considered and me, or a person or body I am associated with. This could be a 
family relationship or a social or professional contact. 
 

5.3 A connection includes anything that I have registered as an interest.  
 

5.4 A connection does not include being a member of a body to which I 
have been appointed or nominated by Nestrans as a representative of that body, 
unless: 

a) The matter being considered by my public body is quasi-judicial or 
regulatory; or 

b) I have a personal conflict by reason of my actions, my connections or 
my legal obligations. 

 

Stage 2: Interest 
 

5.5 I understand my connection is an interest that requires to be declared where 
the objective test is met – that is where a member of the public with knowledge of the 
relevant facts would reasonably regard my connection to a particular matter as being 

so significant that it would be considered as being likely to influence the discussion 
or decision-making. 
 
Stage 3: Participation 
 

5.6 I will declare my interest as early as possible in meetings. I will not remain in 
the meeting nor participate in any way in those parts of meetings where I have 

declared an interest. 
 

5.7 I will consider whether it is appropriate for transparency reasons to state 

publicly where I have a connection, which I do not consider amounts to an interest. 
 

5.8 I note that I can apply to the Standards Commission and ask it to grant a 
dispensation to allow me to take part in the discussion and decision-making on a 
matter where I would otherwise have to declare an interest and withdraw (as a result 

of having a connection to the matter that would fall within the objective test). I note 
that such an application must be made in advance of any meetings where the 

dispensation is sought and that I cannot take part in any discussion or decision-
making on the matter in question unless, and until, the application is granted. 
 

5.9 I note that public confidence in a public body is damaged by the perception 
that decisions taken by that body are substantially influenced by factors other than 

the public interest.  I will not accept a role or appointment if doing so means I will 
have to declare interests frequently at meetings in respect of my role as a board 
member.  Similarly, if any appointment or nomination to another body would give rise 

to objective concern because of my existing personal involvement or affiliations, I will 
not accept the appointment or nomination. 
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SECTION 6: LOBBYING AND ACCESS  

 

6.1 I understand that a wide range of people will seek access to me as a board 

member and will try to lobby me, including individuals, organisations and companies. 
I must distinguish between: 
 

a) any role I have in dealing with enquiries from the public;  
b) any community engagement where I am working with individuals and 

organisations to encourage their participation and involvement, and; 
c) lobbying, which is where I am approached by any individual or 

organisation who is seeking to influence me for financial gain or 

advantage, particularly those who are seeking to do business with my 
public body (for example contracts/procurement). 

  

6.2 In deciding whether, and if so how, to respond to such lobbying, I will always 
have regard to the objective test, which is whether a member of the public, with 

knowledge of the relevant facts, would reasonably regard my conduct as being likely 
to influence my, or my public body’s, decision-making role.  
 

6.3 I will not, in relation to contact with any person or organisation that lobbies, 
do anything which contravenes this Code or any other relevant rule of my public body 

or any statutory provision. 
 
6.4 I will not, in relation to contact with any person or organisation that lobbies, 

act in any way which could bring discredit upon Nestrans. 
 

6.5 If I have concerns about the approach or methods used by any person or 
organisation in their contacts with me, I will seek the guidance of the Chair, or 
Director of Nestrans. 

 

6.6 The public must be assured that no person or organisation will gain better 

access to, or treatment by, me as a result of employing a company or individual to 
lobby on a fee basis on their behalf. I will not, therefore, offer or accord any 
preferential access or treatment to those lobbying on a fee basis on behalf of clients 

compared with that which I accord any other person or organisation who lobbies or 
approaches me. I will ensure that those lobbying on a fee basis on behalf of clients 
are not given to understand that preferential access or treatment, compared to that 

accorded to any other person or organisation, might be forthcoming. 
 

6.7 Before taking any action as a result of being lobbied, I will seek to satisfy 
myself about the identity of the person or organisation that is lobbying and the 
motive for lobbying. I understand I may choose to act in response to a person or 

organisation lobbying on a fee basis on behalf of clients but it is important that I 
understand the basis on which I am being lobbied in order to ensure that any 

action taken in connection with the lobbyist complies with the standards set out in 
this Code and the Lobbying (Scotland) Act 2016. 
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6.8 I will not accept any paid work: 
 

a) which would involve me lobbying on behalf of any person or 

organisation or any clients of a person or organisation. 
 

b) to provide services as a strategist, adviser or consultant, for example, 
advising on how to influence Nestrans or its members.  This does not 
prohibit me from being remunerated for activity which may arise 

because of, or relate to, membership of my public body, such as 
journalism or broadcasting, or involvement in representative or 

presentational work, such as participation in delegations, conferences or 
other events. 
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ANNEX A: BREACHES OF THE CODE 
 

Introduction 

1. The Ethical Standards in Public Life etc. (Scotland) Act 2000 (“the Act”) provided for 

a framework to encourage and, where necessary, enforce high ethical standards in 
public life.  
 

2. The Act provided for the introduction of new codes of conduct for local authority 
councillors and members of relevant public bodies, imposing on councils and 

relevant public bodies a duty to help their members comply with the relevant code.  
 

3. The Act and the subsequent Scottish Parliamentary Commissions and 

Commissioners etc. Act 2010 established the Standards Commission for Scotland 
(“Standards Commission”) and the post of Commissioner for Ethical Standards in 

Public Life in Scotland (“ESC”). 
 

4. The Standards Commission and ESC are separate and independent, each with 

distinct functions.  Complaints of breaches of a public body’s Code of Conduct are 
investigated by the ESC and adjudicated upon by the Standards Commission. 

 
5. The first Model Code of Conduct came into force in 2002. The Code has since been 

reviewed and re-issued in 2014. The 2021 Code has been issued by the Scottish 

Ministers following consultation, and with the approval of the Scottish Parliament, as 
required by the Act. 
 
Investigation of Complaints 

6. The ESC is responsible for investigating complaints about members of devolved 

public bodies. It is not, however, mandatory to report a complaint about a potential 
breach of the Code to the ESC. It may be more appropriate in some circumstances 

for attempts to be made to resolve the matter informally at a local level.  
 

7. On conclusion of the investigation, the ESC will send a report to the Standards 

Commission. 
 

Hearings 

8. On receipt of a report from the ESC, the Standards Commission can choose to: 
 

 Do nothing; 

 Direct the ESC to carry out further investigations; or 

 Hold a Hearing. 
 

9. Hearings are held (usually in public) to determine whether the member concerned 
has breached their public body’s Code of Conduct.  The Hearing Panel comprises of 
three members of the Standards Commission.  The ESC will present evidence 

and/or make submissions at the Hearing about the investigation and any conclusions 
as to whether the member has contravened the Code.  The member is entitled to 

attend or be represented at the Hearing and can also present evidence and make 
submissions.  Both parties can call witnesses.  Once it has heard all the evidence 
and submissions, the Hearing Panel will make a determination about whether or not 

it is satisfied, on the balance of probabilities, that there has been a contravention of 
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the Code by the member.  If the Hearing Panel decides that a member has breached 
their public body’s Code, it is obliged to impose a sanction.  
 
Sanctions 

10. The sanctions that can be imposed following a finding of a breach of the Code are as 
follows: 
 

 Censure: A censure is a formal record of the Standards Commission’s severe 

and public disapproval of the member concerned. 

 Suspension: This can be a full or partial suspension (for up to one year). A 

full suspension means that the member is suspended from attending all 

meetings of the public body.  Partial suspension means that the member is 
suspended from attending some of the meetings of the public body. The 
Commission can direct that any remuneration or allowance the member 

receives as a result of their membership of the public body be reduced or not 
paid during a period of suspension.  

 Disqualification:  Disqualification means that the member is removed from 

membership of the body and disqualified (for a period not exceeding five 
years), from membership of the body. Where a member is also a member of 

another devolved public body (as defined in the Act), the Commission may 
also remove or disqualify that person in respect of that membership. Full 

details of the sanctions are set out in section 19 of the Act. 
 
Interim Suspensions 

11. Section 21 of the Act provides the Standards Commission with the power to impose 
an interim suspension on a member on receipt of an interim report from the ESC 

about an ongoing investigation. In making a decision about whether or not to impose 
an interim suspension, a Panel comprising of three Members of the Standards 
Commission will review the interim report and any representations received from the 

member and will consider whether it is satisfied: 
 

 That the further conduct of the ESC’s investigation is likely to be prejudiced 
if such an action is not taken (for example if there are concerns that the 
member may try to interfere with evidence or witnesses); or 

 That it is otherwise in the public interest to take such a measure.  A policy 
outlining how the Standards Commission makes any decision under Section 

21 and the procedures it will follow in doing so, should any such a report be 
received from the ESC can be found here. 

 
12. The decision to impose an interim suspension is not, and should not be seen as, a 

finding on the merits of any complaint or the validity of any allegations against a 

member of a devolved public body, nor should it be viewed as a disciplinary 
measure.  
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ANNEX B: DEFINITIONS 

“Bullying” is inappropriate and unwelcome behaviour which is offensive and 

intimidating, and which makes an individual or group feel undermined, humiliated or 

insulted. 

 

"Chair" includes Board Convener or any other individual discharging a similar 

function to that of a Chair or Convener under alternative decision-making structures. 
 
“Code” is the code of conduct for members of your devolved public body, which is 

based on the Model Code of Conduct for members of devolved public bodies in 
Scotland. 
 

"Cohabitee" includes any person who is living with you in a relationship similar to 

that of a partner, civil partner, or spouse. 
 
“Confidential Information” includes:  

• any information passed on to the public body by a Government department 
(even if it is not clearly marked as confidential) which does not allow the 
disclosure of that information to the public;  
• information of which the law prohibits disclosure (under statute or by the 

order of a Court);  
• any legal advice provided to the public body; or  

  • any other information which would reasonably be considered a breach of 
confidence should it be made public. 

 
"Election expenses" means expenses incurred, whether before, during or after 
the election, on account of, or in respect of, the conduct or management of the 
election. 

 
“Employee” includes individuals employed: 
• directly by the public body; 

• as contractors by the public body, or 
  • by a contractor to work on the public body’s premises. 
 
“Gifts” a gift can include any item or service received free of charge, or which may 

be offered or promised at a discounted rate or on terms not available to the general 
public. Gifts include benefits such as relief from indebtedness, loan concessions, or 
provision of property, services or facilities at a cost below that generally charged to 
members of the public. It can also include gifts received directly or gifts received by 

any company in which the recipient holds a controlling interest in, or by a 
partnership of which the recipient is a partner. 
 
“Harassment” is any unwelcome behaviour or conduct which makes someone 

feel offended, humiliated, intimidated, frightened and / or uncomfortable. 
Harassment can be experienced directly or indirectly and can occur as an isolated 

incident or as a course of persistent behaviour.  
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“Hospitality” includes the offer or promise of food, drink, accommodation, 

entertainment or the opportunity to attend any cultural or sporting event on terms 

not available to the general public. 
 
“Relevant Date”  Where a board member had an interest in shares at the date 

on which the member was appointed as a member, the relevant date is – (a) that 
date; and (b) the 5th April immediately following that date and in each succeeding 

year, where the interest is retained on that 5th April. 
 
“Public body” means a devolved public body listed in Schedule 3 of the Ethical 

Standards in Public Life etc. (Scotland) Act 2000, as amended. 
 
“Remuneration" includes any salary, wage, share of profits, fee, other monetary   

benefit or benefit in kind. 
 
“Securities” a security is a certificate or other financial instrument that has 

monetary value and can be traded. Securities includes equity and debt securities, 
such as stocks bonds and debentures. 

 
“Undertaking” means: 

a) a body corporate or partnership; or 
b) an unincorporated association carrying on a trade or business, with or 

without a view to a profit. 
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NORTH EAST SCOTLAND TRANSPORT PARTNERSHIP – 22 June 2022 

 

 

4.3  Risk Register Review 

 

 

 Purpose of Report 

 
To provide the Board with an opportunity to consider the recent review of the Nestrans’ Risk 
Register to ensure significant risks are identified, evaluated and controlled. 
 

 Background 

 
The Board last considered a risk register in April 2021 and instructed that it be reviewed on 
an annual basis.  The risk register has therefore been reviewed by Nestrans officers to ensure 
that Nestrans has fully considered the extent of its exposure to risk and updated the register 
to assist in ensuring the efficient running of Nestrans business in a variety of possible 
circumstances. 
 

 

 Consideration 

 
Consideration of possible risks and identifying actions to limit those risks or creating action 
plans to work within the risks is considered a prudent business practice. 
 
In Nestrans’ case, a number of the normal business risks have been largely mitigated as many 
of the services Nestrans needs to function, namely ICT, Finance, Legal, Personnel and Public 
Relations, are provided by our two constituent Local Authorities.  Each Authority has risk 
management systems in place and Nestrans ’ use of these systems falls into that 
consideration.  However, there are some risks associated with Nestrans that are unique to our 
organisation. 
 
A review of the previous risk register has been undertaken and consideration given to any 
amendments or requirements for the inclusion of new risks.  The cause and impact of identified 
risks have been considered against their likelihood of happening and their impact should they 
happen, to determine an inherent risk assessment score.  Any mitigating actions and current 
progress against these are also presented and used to determine a residual risk assessment 
score.  A key to the scoring chart adopted within the risk register is contained in Appendix 1. 

The proposed revised risk register has been drafted and is attached for consideration in 
Appendix 2.  The proposed amendments to the previous register are shown in tracked 

changes to help identify the latest revisions.  
 

 

 Recommendation 

 
That the Board consider the attached risk register and approve its implementation. 
 

 
 

JA/13 June 2022 
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Risk Register Scoring Chart Key     

Score       

1-6 Low      

7-14 Medium      

15-25 High      
       
Impact       

Catastrophic 5 10 15 20 25  

Major 4 8 12 16 20  

Moderate 3 6 9 12 15  

Minor 2 4 6 8 10  

Insignificant 1 2 3 4 5  

 Remote Unlikely Possible Probable Almost Certain Likelihood 
       
Impact     Likelihood  

Category Health & Safety Service & Reputation Financial  Category Description 

Insignificant 
No injury or 
apparent injury 

No impact on Service or Reputation, Complaint 
Unlikely, Litigation Risk Remote 

Loss/costs up to 
£5,000 

 Remote 
May only occur in 
exceptional circumstances 

Minor 
Minor Injury 
(First Aid on Site) 

Slight impact on Service or Reputation, 
Complaint Possible, Litigation Possible 

Loss/costs between 
£5,000 and £50,000 

 Unlikely 
Expected to occur in a few 
circumstances 

Moderate Reportable injury 
Some Service Disruption.  Potential for Adverse 
Publicity avoidable with careful handling. 
Complaint Expected. Litigation Probable. 

Loss/costs between 
£50,000 and 
£500,000 

 Possible 
Expected to occur in some 
circumstances 

Major 

Major reportable 

Injury or 
Permanent 
Incapacity 

Service Disrupted.  Adverse Publicity not 
avoidable (local media). Complaint Expected. 
Litigation Expected. 

Loss/costs between 
£500,000 and 
£5,000,000 

 Probable 
Expected to occur in many 
circumstances 

Catastrophic Death 

Service Interrupted for Significant Time.  
Adverse Publicity not avoidable (national 

media). Major Litigation Expected.  Resignation 
of Senior Management/ Directors. 

Theft/loss over 

£5,000,000 
 Almost Certain 

Expected to occur 

frequently and in most 
circumstances 
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APPENDIX 2 

NESTRANS’ Risk Register      

        

        
Risk No Type Description:  Risk Owner 

1 Corporate Government change role and remit of Regional Transport Partnerships Director 

Cause/Reason Impact 

Inherent Risk Assessment 

Impact Likelihood Score  

Government is continuing to review current systems 
and delivery models at local and regional levels.   

From having to change role and remit, working practices, 
Board structure and staffing to dissolution of Nestrans. 

4 3 12 
 
 

Medium 

Mitigating Actions Current Progress 

Residual Risk Assessment 

Impact Likelihood Score  

Attend regular liaison meetings with Government. 
Attend RTP Chairs meetings. 
Attend RTP Chairs meetings with Ministers. 
Nestrans Chair sits on NTS2 Delivery Board 
Director sits on Governance group, which is preparing a 
Working with Partners document 
Work with CoSLA to develop relationship between 
CoSLA and RTP's. 

Regular liaison meetings ongoing. 
CoSLA now invited to Lead Officers and Chairs meetings. 

4 2 8 
Medium 
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Risk No Type Description:  Risk Owner 
2 Corporate Pressure for Regional Transport Partnerships to move toward model 3 status   Director 

Cause/Reason Impact 

Inherent Risk Assessment 

Impact Likelihood Score  
Nestrans currently model 1 (RTS and limited transport 
powers).  Sestran considering changing to model 3 (RTS 
and significant transport powers).  This is as per SPT 
where public transport functions delivered at regional 
level, but could also include other additional functions.  
S Gov may wish to simplify regional operation to avoid 
confusion over differing types of RTP.   

May be pressure for other RTPs to become model 3. 3 1 3 
 

Low 

Mitigating Actions Current Progress 

Residual Risk Assessment 

Impact Likelihood Score  
Monitor NTS Review in relation to transport 
governance and Sestran progress in changing.  Seek 
awareness of constituent Local Authorities and CoSLA 
views. 

Director sits on Governance group and attends RTP Lead 
Officer and Chairs meetings at which CoSLA is represented 
and Transport Scotland attend.  NTS2 Roles and 
Responsibilities working group made recommendations that 
are being considered by Transport Scotland 

2 1 2 
 

Low 
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Risk No Type Description:  Risk Owner 
3 Corporate Failure to have an approved Regional Transport Strategy in place  Director/Transport Strategy 

Manager 

Cause/Reason Impact 

Inherent Risk Assessment 

Impact Likelihood Score  
No statutory RTS in place.  No longer term strategy in 
place should bulk of current document be delivered. 

 Lack of faith in regional planning of transport and reduced 
ability to deliver strategy. 

3 1 3 
 

Low 

Mitigating Actions Current Progress 

Residual Risk Assessment 

Impact Likelihood Score  

  RTS to 2040 has been agreed and was adopted as the 
statutory RTS for the area by the Board in November 
2021. 

  Work now progressing with partners on delivery of the RTS.  
Supporting Action Plans to be reviewed and updated as 
necessary. 

3 1 3 
 

 Low 
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Risk No Type Description:  Risk Owner 
4 Corporate Interruption to the operation of Nestrans due to loss of lease Director/TE (Programmes and 

Delivery) 

Cause/Reason Impact 

Inherent Risk Assessment 

Impact Likelihood Score  
Aberdeen City Council as landlords may review their 
property portfolio and terminate lease as Archibald 
Simpson House is within City Centre Masterplan area.  
 
 

Planning, timescales and disruption to service should there 
be a need to relocate, although it is noted that service has 
continued whilst staff have worked from home during the 
pandemic. 
 

2 3 6 
 
 

Low 

Mitigating Actions Current Progress 

Residual Risk Assessment 

Impact Likelihood Score  
Maintain lease on annual basis (due to RTP grant 
award being confirmed on annual basis). 
 
Maintain regular communications with corporate 
landlord and Masterplan team. 
 

Lease signed in early 2016 to end March 2017 and agreed in 
October 2016 to extension by way of Tacit relocation. 
 
 

2 3 6 
 

Low 
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Risk No Type Description:  Risk Owner 
5 Corporate Interruption to the operation of Nestrans due to major event Director 

Cause/Reason Impact 

Inherent Risk Assessment 

Impact Likelihood Score  
Rented accommodation may not be fit for purpose eg 
due to fire, flood etc 
Inadequate arrangements for business continuity in the 
event of a major interruption. 

Planning, timescales and disruption to service should there 
be a need to relocate. 
Non prevention of avoidable loss, theft, adverse media, injury 
or death, inability to recover service provision. 

4 3 12 
 

Medium 

Mitigating Actions Current Progress 

Residual Risk Assessment 

Impact Likelihood Score  
Insurance cover reviewed on an annual basis. 
Members of staff aware of contingency arrangements 
in event of emergency and have ability to work from 
home. 
Records Management Plan in place 
Service Level Agreement with ACC for ICT services and 
all staff issued with new laptops in 2020 and have 
access to all files and mobile phones and ability to work 
from home 

Adequate insurance cover in place.  
New ICT SLA being discussed. 
Office deep-cleaned and staff working/Board meetings taking 
place on hybrid model ie combination of in person and virtual 
Recordings of the Board meetings posted on the Nestrans 
website.   
Both online and in person events to be considered for future 
consultations as appropriate in each case. 

2 3 6 
 

Low 
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Risk No Type Description:  Risk Owner 
6 Corporate/ 

Financial 
Recovery from major disruption Director 

Cause/Reason Impact 

Inherent Risk Assessment 

Impact Likelihood Score  
Impact to operation during a Pandemic (realised in 
March 2020) and remaining threat of future spikes of 
Covid-19 or other outbreaks. 
Significant changes to travel and ways of working as a 
result of disruption 

Interruption of normal service.  Inability to deliver functions 
and projects.   
Financial impact of crisis on sources of funding. 
New functions in response to crisis can’t be met from existing 
resource or budget. 
Changes in travel behaviour result in strategies, policies or 
programmes requiring revision 

3 4 12 
 

Medium 

Mitigating Actions Current Progress 

Residual Risk Assessment 

Impact Likelihood Score  
Regular contact with officials of both Transport 
Scotland and constituent Councils to map a way 
forward. 
Current functions being delivered by working from 
home with safe working practices adopted for office 
visits and risk assessments undertaken for return to the 
workplace. Landlord completed ventilation 
improvements and deep clean of office undertaken. 
Being agile and responsive to changing needs 

Travel behaviour surveys undertaken, monitoring transport 
data and wider research. Building upon network of contacts 
and working closely with public transport operators to assess 
impact and support recovery. 
Developed short to medium term travel planning framework 
and communicating latest travel advice 
Impacts of Covid and risks considered within RTS2040 
Range of future forecasts being developed for strategic 
regional transport model (ASAM) that take cognisance of 
national forecast scenarios  
 

2 4 8 
 

Medium 
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Risk No Type Description:  Risk Owner 

7 Corporate/ 
Political 

Lack of continuity of Board focus and effectiveness or failure to maintain standards 
expected of organisation 

Director/Transport Strategy 
Manager 

Cause/Reason Impact 

Inherent Risk Assessment 

Impact Likelihood Score  

Failure to adhere to governance arrangements. 
Unable to attract experienced elected Members or 
non-Councillor Members with wide range of 
experience of value in developing and delivering RTS. 
Adverse publicity. 

Ineffective Board.  Difficulty in developing and delivering RTS.  
Nestrans/RTP reputation damage.  Partnership exposed to 
corporate or financial liability. 

4 3 12 
 

Medium 

Mitigating Actions Current Progress 

Residual Risk Assessment 

Impact Likelihood Score  

Governance policies in place and reviewed as 
necessary. 
Develop good working relationships with S Gov, Local 
Authorities, Community Planning Partnerships, other 
regional bodies, transport organisations and media. 
External audit of accounts and governance procedures. 
Develop relations with Board Members and provide 
good quality reports. 
Staff development and training opportunities discussed 
through Employee Reviews. 
Director delegated powers approved  

 
Four non-Councillor Members’ service terms approved to 
2024 to overlap Local Authority elections in 2022 and ensure 
Board continuity and refreshment goals. 
Director  to provide induction for new Members.   
Local code of corporate governance reviewed in June 2022 
and an annual review of the partnership's arrangements will 
be undertaken as part of the annual accounts. 

2 1 2 
 

Low 
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Risk No Type Description:  Risk Owner 

8 Financial/ 
Political 

Reduced funding available or lack of support towards delivery of the Regional Transport 
Strategy 

Director 

Cause/Reason Impact 

Inherent Risk Assessment 

Impact Likelihood Score  

Reduced grant from Scottish Government or focus on 
progressing national priorities in other areas.  
Reduction or removal of capital funding from Local 
Authorities and change in emphasis from regional 
projects to more local schemes as a priority.  
Lack of funding or commitment by private partners to 
regional transport improvements. 
Economic impact on any reserves.  

Reduced ability to deliver strategy. RTS monitoring displays 
negative impacts.  Reduction in services, project 
development and delivery and lost opportunities.   

4 3 12 
 
 

Medium 

Mitigating Actions Current Progress 

Residual Risk Assessment 

Impact Likelihood Score  

Build good working relationships with Government and 
Local Authorities and lobby/bid for funding towards 
regional projects.  Develop good working relationships 
with private stakeholders. 
Investigate alternative sources of delivery and funding. 
Manage available funding and reprioritise project 
delivery. 
New monitoring systems in place to review success in 
delivery of the RTS and achieving of outcomes. 

Commitment in place towards delivery of a number of 
strategic transport improvements. Nestrans highlighted 
importance of regional projects when draft outcomes of the 
Strategic Transport Project Review2 consulted upon in Jan 
2022. Monthly liaison meetings with Council officers (STOLG) 
and project specific and budget meetings at regular intervals. 
Council longer term capital programmes indicate a 
continuation of funding support to Nestrans 
 

3 3 9 
 

Medium 
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Risk No Type Description:  Risk Owner 

9 Financial Failure to identify Partnership opportunities  Director 

Cause/Reason Impact 

Inherent Risk Assessment 

Impact Likelihood Score  

Lack of appreciation of importance/ impact on North 
East and wider economies of some of our projects. 
Funding partners having budget priorities elsewhere.  EU 
project funding no longer available following Brexit. 

Failure to bring in other funding partners will mean that 
some projects don't proceed. 

4 2 8 
 

Medium 

Mitigating Actions Current Progress 

Residual Risk Assessment 

Impact Likelihood Score  
Develop relationships with other funding partners. 
 
Prepare good quality assessments of projects and quality 
bids, where required, to seek to maximise external 
funding opportunities. 
 
Monitoring Framework agreed and Delivery Plan will be 
developed for the RTS2040 

Developing and maintaining good working relationships with 
Scottish Government, Transport Scotland, Network Rail, 
ScotRail, bus operators, Sustrans, Paths for All and Cycling 
Scotland and other project partners.    
Meeting staff from other bodies. Setting local priorities. 
Understanding priorities of other funding partners. 
Developing assessments with partners included as part of 
overseeing team.  Nestrans participate in City Region Deal 
Joint and Programme Boards (and lead on Transport 
Working Group),  regional STPR2 group and stakeholder 
groups for several major infrastructure projects including 
Laurencekirk junction improvements, Aberdeen to Central 
Belt rail improvements, transport links to Aberdeen South 
Harbour and A96 dualling.    Have an embedded Sustrans 
active travel development officer and receive annual 
Sustrans ATDO and RTP active travel grants.  Nestrans chairs 
the Bus Alliance working group that oversees the delivery of 
over £12M awarded through the  S Gov’s Bus Partnership 
Fund. 

4 1 4 
 

Low 
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Risk No Type Description:  Risk Owner 

10 Financial Failure to prepare, monitor and manage budgets appropriately.  Partners unable to deliver 
projects as agreed. 

Director/TE (Programmes and 
Delivery) 

Cause/Reason Impact 

Inherent Risk Assessment 

Impact Likelihood Score  

Other organisations mostly responsible for delivery of 
projects funded by Nestrans.  Any delays impact on 
single year budget allocations eg due to lack 
of/competing resources, land negotiations, planning 
consent requirements etc.  Cost inflation impacting on 
delivery. 

Inability to set a balanced budget.  Under or overspend 
against approved budgets.  Money being returned (or time  
limited grant offers expire before realised. Loss of belief in 
ability of Nestrans to add value.  Nestrans exposed to 
corporate or financial liability. 

4 3 12 
 

Medium 

Mitigating Actions Current Progress 

Residual Risk Assessment 

Impact Likelihood Score  
Continued dialogue with constituent authorities and 
engagement over budget processes and project delivery.  
Budget monitoring and effective project management by 
Nestrans.  Project specific risk registers as necessary.  
Regular reporting of budget matters and project progress 
to Nestrans Board.  Clear communication with all funding 
partners. 
Systems and procedures checked by auditors. 
 
Delivery Plan to be developed for the RTS2040. 
 
Three year Strategic Investment Programme agreed as 
basis for annual budgets to 2024/25 

The provisions on RTP finance to hold a General Fund 
reserve within the Transport (Scotland) Act 2019 came into 
force on 19 March 2019.  The previously agreed principle of 
Councils allowing delayed draw will continue to apply for 
historic allocations, although the mechanism will be 
reviewed on an annual basis by all partners. Expenditure 
monitored throughout year. Progress updates on delivery 
and budget matters reported to each Board and changes 
such as virements, early/delayed draw down etc 
recommended as required. 
Financial regulations in place and Treasury Management 
Strategy reviewed annually.  Service Level Agreement with 
Aberdeenshire Council for finance being renewed. 
 

3 2 6 
 

Low 
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Risk No Type Description:  Risk Owner 
11 Financial Failure to develop and deliver identified mitigations following quashing of Strategic Transport 

Fund (STF) 
Director/Transport Strategy 
Manager 

Cause/Reason Impact 

Inherent Risk Assessment 

Impact Likelihood Score  
Funds no longer available following legal challenge and 
decision of the Supreme Court in October 2017 to quash 
the STF Supplementary Guidance.   Projects may not be 
delivered if necessary funding or land unavailable, or if 
reduced rate of development and local mitigation does 
not address strategic impacts. 

Failure to deliver previously identified strategic mitigating 
measures significant affects strategic regional transport 
network.   
Currently held funds can be requested back.   

5 5 25 
 

High 

Mitigating Actions Current Progress 

Residual Risk Assessment 

Impact Likelihood Score  

Lobbying S. Gov to enable authorities to fully address 
the cumulative impact of new development through the 
planning process.   
Work with local authorities on future Proposed 
Development Plans 
Continue to review the outcomes of the Cumulative 
Impact Assessment with respect to rates of 
development, and regular network monitoring. 
Seek alternative funding mechanisms to develop and 
implement interventions. 

An infrastructure levy was included in the Planning (Scotland) 
Act 2019 that gives Ministers powers to establish this by 
regulations within a 7 year period.  Councils continue to 
require developers to undertake their own Transport 
Assessments and mitigate their direct impact. Nestrans 
commissioned a Cumulative Transport Appraisal to assist with 
the development of the now approved SDP2020. It identifies 
the impacts and mitigation requirements to help inform 
Transport Assessments and discussions with developers and 
fed into the Strategic Transport Assessment and therefore the 
RTS2040 and STPR2. 
Nestrans has commissioned an update to the ASAM strategic 
model following the opening of the AWPR and this is being 
funded via the Aberdeen City Region Deal.  

4 3 12 
 

Medium 
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Risk No Type Description:  Risk Owner 
12 Financial Difficulty agreeing to projects/costs that extend over a single financial year  Director/TE (Programmes and 

Delivery) 

Cause/Reason Impact 

Inherent Risk Assessment 

Impact Likelihood Score  

Single year grants make it difficult to commit to funding 
to projects/costs that extend over a financial year eg 
HTAP Co-ordinator, Cycle Dev Officer, Kintore Station 
contribution. 

Failure to agree a budget for the following year could place 
burdens on the Councils.  Difficulty in obtaining approval for 
work expected to extend beyond a single financial year may 
lead to work not being commissioned. 

4 3 12 
 

Medium 

Mitigating Actions Current Progress 

Residual Risk Assessment 

Impact Likelihood Score  

The Commencement Order for Section 122 of the 
Transport (Scotland) Act came into force on 19 March 
2020 and enable RTPs to hold a General Fund reserve. 
Continued dialogue with constituent authorities and 
engagement over budget processes and project 
delivery.  Budget monitoring and project management 
by Nestrans.  Regular reporting of budget matters to 
Nestrans Board. 
Systems and procedures checked by auditors. 
 
Three year Strategic Investment Programme agreed as 
basis for annual budgets and to inform partner 
authorities medium-term financial strategies  

The previous general principle of operating a five-year budget 
plan agreed with Councils will continue to apply to remaining 
historic capital allocations granted in advance of the 
Transport (Scotland) Act 2019 that are still held by the 
Councils to be drawn down as required for agreed projects 
and this will be reviewed on an annual basis.  Majority of 
expenditure using historic allocations now incurred and 
proposals to be developed for any remaining unallocated 
grant. Expenditure monitored throughout year. Progress 
updates on delivery and budget matters reported to each 
Board and changes such as virements, early/delayed draw 
down etc recommended as required. 

3 2 6 
 

Low 

        

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
  

 
 
    

Risk No Type Description:  Risk Owner 
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13 HR/financial Failure to attract/ keep staff or inadequate resource to carry out actions agreed by Board or 
necessary to comply with legislation 

Director/Transport Strategy 
Manager  

Cause/Reason Impact 

Inherent Risk Assessment 

Impact Likelihood Score  
North East location, better salary in private sector, lack 
of training opportunity in current structure, lack of 
development opportunity in current structure.  Staff 
absence through illness or other factors, including 
maternity/ paternity, authorised unpaid leave etc. 

Projects don't get done, faith in Nestrans to deliver 
diminishes, and added value of Nestrans is lost.  Reliance on 
knowledge or actions of individuals may result in significant 
impact to Partnership if they leave or are unavailable.  Over 
reliance on agency support. 

4 3 12 
 

Medium 

Mitigating Actions Current Progress 

Residual Risk Assessment 

Impact Likelihood Score  
Service Level Agreement in place with AC Personnel and 
adopted HR Policies and Procedures.  Development and 
Training opportunities discussed through Employee 
Reviews.  Usage of consultants or Council officer 
assistance could be considered if required.  All Nestrans 
fully funded staff on permanent contracts, as is the 
jointly funded HTAP manager. 
Flexible working practices adopted during Covid-19 
pandemic likely to assist with staff retention. 
Service Level Agreement in place with ACC Legal 
Services to 31 Aug 2023. 
Maintain approved Publication Scheme and Records 
Management Plan.  Deal with Freedom of Information 
requests in compliance with statutory requirements. 
Comply with relevant Health and Safety Regulation.  

Service Level Agreement with Aberdeenshire Council for HR 
being renewed. 
Choices have been available for posts advertised to date.  
Permanent employment of Active Travel Development Officer 
and Comms/PR officer brought number of Nestrans  staff to 9 
and Transport Officer post that has been vacant from 1 
March 2021 is to be advertised.   
Ongoing monitoring of S Gov legislative processes and other 
relevant Gov publications. 
H&S policies and fire safety procedures in place.  First aider 
training provided. 
Effort made to share knowledge across team and project files 
available to all staff. 
Workloads discussed at employee reviews and also at staff 
meetings if there is a concern. 

2 3 6 
 
 

Low 
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Risk No Type Description:  Risk Owner 
14 Technical Loss of IT service  Director/Office Manager 

Cause/Reason Impact 

Inherent Risk Assessment 

Impact Likelihood Score  
ACC ICT system failure.  Link to Archibald House failure.  
Malware/cyber attack.  Ageing infrastructure.  ACC Citrix 
gateway remote access facility failure. 

Loss of communication, loss of information (temporary), 
functionality of team reduced. 

5 3 15 
 

High 

Mitigating Actions Current Progress 

Residual Risk Assessment 

Impact Likelihood Score  
Maintain a service level agreement 
Develop support systems with ACC IT service 
Usage of laptops and mobile phones and systematic 
updates as necessary 
Nestrans website hosting provided by Alt-Ten and also 
for Getabout and GCP websites. 

Service level agreement with ACC for ICT services being 
renewed Back up systems in place by ACC.  Connectivity 
between Archibald Simpson House and Marischal improved in 
2017. 
Nestrans website updated and live from 16 June 2017.  
Website hosting agreed to June 2023. 
New Microsoft Surface laptops issued to staff in autumn 2020 
and will be refreshed on 3 year basis under ICT SLA.   
All Nestrans files migrated to Microsoft Teams and accessible 
remotely via Citrix Gateway Plug-in. 

4 2 8 
 
 

Medium 
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NORTH EAST SCOTLAND TRANSPORT PARTNERSHIP – 22 June 2022 

 

 

4.4 Review of Nestrans’ Code of Corporate Governance 

 

 
 

 Purpose of Report 

 
To seek the Board’s approval of a revised Code of Corporate Governance for Nestrans.   

 
  

 Background 

 
Local Authorities and similar bodies are required to ensure that they demonstrate proper 
stewardship of their financial affairs.  A Code of Corporate Governance was initially adopted in 
September 2018 and last reviewed and reported to the Board in December 2020.  The action 
plan within the audited annual accounts for 2020/21 stated that the Partnership should review 
the Code of Corporate Governance during 2021/22.  The review was postponed until now due 
to the election of new members in May 2022. 

 
 

 Draft Revised Code of Corporate Governance 

 

A review of the Code of Corporate Governance has been conducted by Nestrans officers taking 
into account the CIPFA and SOLACE “Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: 
Framework” (2016).  The extent to which the partnership already complied with the principles of 
good governance set out within the Framework was considered along with any areas which had 
not been addressed previously or any updates required to the Code.  
 
A revised Code of Corporate Governance for the partnership has been drafted, with amendments 
to the previous Code shown in tracked changes and is attached for consideration in Appendix 
1.   

 
The Board is advised that the Service Level Agreement with Aberdeenshire Council for financial 
services that is referenced in the Code of Corporate Governance is currently being renewed, 
with the intention that it be extended for a further 3 years.  The Service Level Agreement with 
Aberdeenshire Council for Personnel Services, also referred to in the Code of Corporate 
Governance, is due to expire at the end of June and is currently in the process of being reviewed 

with the intention that it is also extended for a further three years. 

In accordance with the commitment to maintain a risk management system and previous 

instruction by the Board that the risk register be reviewed each year, it is noted that such a review 

is the subject of a separate report on this agenda.   

Board Members’ Code of Conduct is also the subject of a separate report on the agenda and it 
is suggested that a link to the revised code when approved and published on the Nestrans 
website, be updated within the Code of Corporate Governance, which will also be published on 
the Nestrans website.   
 
In addition to reviewing the Code in accordance with the Delivering Good Governance in Local 
Government: Framework, Nestrans will continue to be required to report a governance statement 
publicly on an annual basis on the extent to which they have complied with their Code, including 
how they have monitored the effectiveness of their governance arrangements in the year and 
any planned changes in the coming period and it is suggested that this continues to be done as 
part of the annual accounts. 
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 Recommendations 

 
It is recommended that the Board: 

 
1. Agree the revised Code of Corporate Governance for the partnership as detailed in 

Appendix 1, subject to any appropriate adjustments being made following the Board’s 
consideration; 
 

2. Instruct the Director of Nestrans to publish the new Code of Corporate Governance on the 
Nestrans website; and 

 
3. Instruct the Director of Nestrans to review the Code and prepare an annual governance 

statement and any planned changes to the Code and report this each year to the Board as 
part of the annual accounts. 

 
 

JA/13 June 2022 
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APPENDIX 1 

NESTRANS 
 

Code of Corporate Governance 
 

 
The aim of this Code of Corporate Governance is to set out the framework by which NESTRANS 
manages the governance of its affairs.  This Code is structured around the principles set out in the 
CIPFA Guidance Note for Scottish Authorities - Delivering Good Governance in Local Government.    
Under each principle it is outlined how NESTRANS will be addressing it. 
 
Public Focus  
 

 We will publish an Annual Report and Business Plan each year, presenting an objective 

and easily readable account of our activities, achievements, financial position and 

performance. http://www.nestrans.org.uk/about-nestrans/organisation/documents-annual-

report-business-plans/ 

 

 We will have in place arrangements designed to encourage individuals and groups from all 

sections of the community to engage with, contribute to and participate in our work. 

 

 We will conduct our business on an open basis, subject only to the requirements of 

appropriate levels of individual and commercial confidentiality. 

 

 We will establish appropriate relationships with relevant parties on matters of mutual 

interest. 

Structures and processes 
 
We will ensure appropriate processes are in place to set out strategic direction: 
 

 We will ensure that our Board meets on a formal basis regularly to set a strategic direction 

and monitor service delivery. 

http://www.nestrans.org.uk/about-nestrans/board-meetings/ 
 

 We will continue to develop and comply with documented protocols as required by statute. 

 

 We will ensure we have a documented scheme of delegation to the NESTRANS Director 

that provides the Director with the powers necessary to conduct routine business. 

https://www.nestrans.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/07/Director-Delegated-Powers-
2020.pdf 
 

 We will ensure that all activities are fully documented, appropriately authorised and carried 

out in a planned manner.  

 

 We will review our Service Level Agreement with Aberdeenshire Council for financial 

services on a regular basis and maintain proper records to ensure that the Annual Accounts 

shows a true and fair view, and that expenditure has been properly authorised and 

allocated in an appropriate manner. 

 
Risk management/internal control 
 

  We will maintain robust systems for identifying and evaluating all significant risks: 
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 Through our Service Level Agreement with Aberdeenshire Council for financial services 

arrangements will be made to review and appraise the internal controls of the Partnership 

to ensure we are identifying and managing risks. 

 

 We will develop and maintain a risk management system. 

 

 We will ensure that our Board members are provided with any training needed to perform 

their role. 

 

 We will ensure that our staff are competent to perform their roles. 

 

 We will maintain an objective and professional relationship with our external auditors and 

statutory inspectors. 

 
 Our annual statement of accounts will be published on a timely basis and contain an 

objective and understandable statement and assessment of the risk management and 

internal control mechanisms and their effectiveness in practice. 

Vision 
 

 NESTRANS main purpose is to prepare and oversee delivery of the Regional Transport 

Strategy.  NESTRANS aim is  to provide a safer, cleaner, more inclusive and accessible 

transport system in the North East, which contributes to healthier, more prosperous and 

fairer communities. 

Standards of conduct 
 

 We will have in place formal codes of conduct which define the standards of personal 

behaviour to which individual Board members are required to subscribe and ensure that 

they are complied with in practice. 

(Link to be inserted to new Code of Conduct when agreed and published on website) 
 

 Through our Service Level Agreement with Aberdeenshire Council for Personnel Services 

we will have in place formal contracts and policies defining the standards of personal 

behaviour to which our staff are required to subscribe and will ensure that they are 

complied with in practice.  

http://www.nestrans.org.uk/wp-
content/uploads/2017/02/Personnel_Policies_and_Procedures_-
_Report_to_Board_150306_1.pdf   
 
http://arcadialite.aberdeenshire.gov.uk/category/policies/ 
 

 We will put in place arrangements to ensure that Board members and staff are not 

influenced by prejudice, bias or conflicts of interest in dealing with stakeholders. 

 

 We will respond positively to the findings and recommendations of external auditors and 

statutory inspectors and put in place arrangements for the effective implementation of 

agreed actions. 
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NORTH EAST SCOTLAND TRANSPORT PARTNERSHIP – 22 June 2022 

 

 

4.5 Public Services Reform – Information Publication 

 

 

 Purpose of Report 

 
To allow the Board to consider the information that is to be published for 2021/22 in 
accordance with the Public Services Reform (Scotland) Act 2010. 
 

 Background 

 
Regional Transport Partnerships are included in the schedule of the Public Services Reform 
(Scotland) Act 2010 and as such are required to publish certain information on an annual 
basis.  In previous years the various statements that are required have been included in the 
Annual Report, however as the Annual Report for 2021/22 was reported in April due to the 
local elections in May having the potential to alter the Councillor representation on the Board, 
it was agreed that the statements be reported separately at a later date when the information 
on financial transactions for the year was available.  
 

 Implications for Nestrans 

 
Sections 31 and 32 of the Public Services Reform (Scotland) Act 2010 impose duties to 
publish information on certain expenditure and statements on steps taken to promote and 
increase sustainable growth and improve efficiency, effectiveness and economy through the 
exercise of its functions. An expenditure statement has been prepared as shown in Appendix 
1 for publication on the Nestrans website to detail expenditure in 2021/22 relating to the 
following stipulated matters: 
 

 Public Relations 

 Overseas Travel 

 Hospitality and Entertainment 

 External Consultancy 

 Payments with a value in excess of £25,000 
 Members or employees who received remuneration in excess of £150,000. 
 

Statements for 2021/22 have also been prepared and are contained in Appendices 2 and 3 

respectively, on the steps taken by Nestrans in the exercise of its functions to: 
 

 Promote and increase sustainable economic growth   

 Improve efficiency, effectiveness and economy 
 
 

 Recommendations 

 
It is recommended that the Board: 
 

 
1. Approve publication on the Nestrans website of the information for 2021/22 required 

under the Public Services Reform (Scotland) Act 2010  
 

 

JA / 10 June 2022 
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APPENDIX 1

Public Relations

Date Gross Amount Payee Subject-matter

APR-21 4,059.23 Aberdeenshire Council Additional Day Support for Civitas Project from April '20 to Aug '20

APR-21 21,300.00 Aberdeenshire Council Recharge of costs for Comms Officer for 1 April '20 to 31 March '21

JAN-22 13,846.00 Aberdeenshire Council Comms Officer supporting Nestrans from 01 April '21 - 31 Dec '21

MAR-22 2,822.64 Aberdeenshire Council

Design of Nestrans Annual Report & Business Plan 20/21 & Nestrans 

RTS to 2040

42,027.87

Promotions

Date Gross Amount Payee Subject-matter

Active and Sustainable Transport Promotion & Safety Promotion

JUL-21 2,088.00 Clear Channel UK Limited BILLBOARD CYCLING SAFETY ADS 14/6 - 11/7 + PRODUCTION

JUL-21 1,289.55 Clear Channel UK Limited DIGITAL CYCLING SAFETY ADS 28/6 - 11/7 IN CITY CENTRE

AUG-21 1,437.31 Clear Channel UK Limited DIGITAL CYCLING SAFETY ADS 14/6-27/6 IN CITY CENTRE

AUG-21 1,080.00 Clear Channel UK Limited DIGITAL CYCLING SAFETY ADS 14/6-27/6 IN UNION SQ

SEP-21 2,097.13 Clear Channel UK Limited DIGITAL CYCLING SAFETY ADS 12/7 - 25/7

SEP-21 888.00 Clear Channel UK Limited BILLBOARD CYCLING SAFETY ADS 12/7 - 25/7

NOV-21 3,540.00 Clear Channel UK Limited Adshel safety adverts from 15/11-12/12/21 + production

JAN-22 1,356.00 Clear Channel UK Limited Billboard safety adverts 15/11-12/12/21 + production

JAN-22 540.00 Clear Channel UK Limited Digital safety adverts in Union Sq 13/12/21 - 26/12/21

JAN-22 540.00 Clear Channel UK Limited Digital safety adverts in Union Sq from 29/11-12/12/21

JAN-22 3,180.00 Clear Channel UK Limited DIGITAL SAFETY ADVERTS AT ROADSIDE 13/12/21 - 26/12/21

JAN-22 444.00 Clear Channel UK Limited BILLBOARD SAFETY ADVERTS  13/12/21 - 26/12/21

JAN-22 1,500.00 Clear Channel UK Limited Adshel safety adverts from 13/12-26/12/21

JAN-22 3,180.00 Clear Channel UK Limited Digital safety adverts at roadside from 29/11-12/12/21

MAR-22 540.00 Clear Channel UK Limited Digital safety adverts in Union Sq from 15/11-28/11/21

MAR-22 3,180.00 Clear Channel UK Limited Digital safety adverts at roadside from 15/11-28/11/21

26,879.99

MAR-22 594.24 Aberdeenshire Council Road Safety Campaign Posters and Reformatting

MAY-21 2,337.98 Langstane Press Ltd COREX BOARDS WITH CYCLE NETWORK SIGN STICKERS x3000

OCT-21 33.16 Langstane Press Ltd 100X LOGO STICKERS

2,371.14              

SEP-21 210.00 Sport Aberdeen Half day Bike Doctor - Middlefield bike loan launch, 27/8

AUG-21 3,796.58 Bauer Radio Limited Cyle Safety Radio + You Tube Ads + Production in June

AUG-21 1,753.42 Bauer Radio Limited Cycle safety radio ads in July

5,550.00              

OCT-21 1,776.00 Nagels UK Ltd Dark nights safety ad on back of 200K parking tickets in Abdn

NOV-21 1,776.00 Nagels UK Ltd Dark nights safety ad on 200K P&D in Abdnshire

3,552.00              

Public Transport Promotion

APR-21 3,600.00 The City Of Edinburgh Council NESTRANS ECMA CONTRIBUTION FOR 2020/21

APR-21 1,125.47 The City Of Edinburgh Council THISTLE CARD SUPPORT 1/10/20 - 31/3/2021 AND LEAFLETS

MAR-22 3,600.00 The City Of Edinburgh Council ECMA CONTRIBUTION 2021/22

MAR-22 2,316.46 The City Of Edinburgh Council THISTLE ASSISTANCE FIXED COSTS AND LEAFLETS MAILED

10,641.93            

Getabout

APR-21 595.14 Original 106 fm RADIO ADVERTS IN MARCH

MAY-21 595.14 Original 106 fm RADIO ADVERTS ON SAFE TRAVEL IN APRIL

JUN-21 595.14 Original 106 fm RADIO ADVERTS ON SAFE TRAVEL IN MAY

AUG-21 99.19 Original 106 fm Radio adverts in July

AUG-21 495.95 Original 106 fm Radio adverts in July. Original 106 fm

AUG-21 595.14 Original 106 fm RADIO ADVERTS ON SAFE TRAVEL IN JUNE

OCT-21 595.14 Original 106 fm Radio adverts in August

OCT-21 775.14 Original 106 fm Radio adverts in Sept and 10 extra for Tour of Britain

NOV-21 595.14 Original 106 fm Radio adverts in October

JAN-22 330.00 Original 106 fm Festive Greeting

JAN-22 120.00 Original 106 fm Licensing advert to Northsound radio

JAN-22 797.94 Original 106 fm Radio adverts in Nov and "be bright" ad production

FEB-22 595.14 Original 106 fm Radio adverts in December for be bright at night

6,784.20              
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Promotions

Date Gross Amount Payee Subject-matter

Getabout (continued)

SEP-21 249.00 Clique Publications Ltd Half page advert in Autumn 2021 Raring2go! Magazine

JAN-22 211.65 Clique Publications Ltd Half page advert in Winter 2021 Raring2go! Magazine

FEB-22 249.00 Clique Publications Ltd HALF PAGE AD IN SPRING 2022 RARING 2GO MAGAZINE

709.65                 

Websites

JUN-21 1,641.60 Alt Ten Interactive Limited

WEBSITE HOSTING, DOMAIN NAME RENEWALS AND 1HR 

SUPPORT/MONTH TO JUNE 20

FEB-22 1,920.00 Alt Ten Interactive Limited Map work for RTS2040 and migration to main website

3,561.60              

APR-21 36.00 Internet For Business Ltd DOMAIN NAME - NESTRANS.ORG.UK 9/4/21 - 8/4/22

Overseas Travel

Date Gross Amount Payee Subject-matter

None

Hospitality & Entertainment

Date Gross Amount Payee Subject-matter

None

External Consultancy

Date Gross Amount Payee Subject-matter

APR-21 20,438.84 AECOM INSCH RAILWAY STN ACCESSIBILITY STUDY FINAL REPORT

APR-21 4,087.77 AECOM INSCH RAILWAY STN ACCESSIBILITY STUDY

JUN-21 17,209.06 AECOM A944 Kingswells to Westhill Cycle Route

AUG-21 1,612.31 AECOM Live Labs work in July on WP1

NOV-21 20,975.88 AECOM Live Labs work on WP2 and WP3

JAN-22 4,195.18 AECOM Live Labs work on WP2+WP3

FEB-22 18,385.39 AECOM Additional case for change work - Abdn to Lrkirk study

MAR-22 8,410.82 AECOM ABDN-LRK FURTHER CASE FOR CHANGE WORK

95,315.25            

APR-21 42,000.00 Jacobs UK Ltd Professional Services to 31 March 2021 on BPF bid

JUN-21 18,000.00 Jacobs UK Ltd Bus Priority Fund/ART work to 9 June 2021

JUN-21 24,000.00 Jacobs UK Ltd Union St Public Realm consultancy work

SEP-21 23,883.60 Jacobs UK Ltd Union St Public Realm consultancy work

JUL-21 10,678.80 Jacobs UK Ltd Bus Priority Fund/ART work to 19 July 2021

118,562.40          

MAY-21 8,069.64 Stantec UK Ltd Strategic Transport Appraisal work to end March 2021

JUN-21 2,668.86 Stantec UK Ltd ASAM19 AUDIT WORK

JUL-21 1,928.29 Stantec UK Ltd ASAM19 AUDIT WORK TO MID MAY

JAN-22 21,896.72 Stantec UK Ltd Development and appraisal of ART

FEB-22 13,497.29 Stantec UK Ltd ABERDEEN CORE PATH STUDY WORK TO END NOV 2021

FEB-22 30,000.00 Stantec UK Ltd Aberdeen Core Path Study work in Dec 21 and Jan 22

MAR-22 1,847.88 Stantec UK Ltd RTS 2040 SEA POST ADOPTION STATEMENT

MAR-22 14,237.49 Stantec UK Ltd DEVELOPMENT OF APPRAISAL OF ART 5 JAN - 4FEB

MAR-22 7,844.06 Stantec UK Ltd DEVELOPMENT AND APPRAISAL OF ART 7 FEB - 4 MARCH

101,990.23          

APR-21 5,520.00 Systra Ltd

FINAL PROJECT REPORT FOR LOCKDOWN BEHAVIOUR 

SURVEYS

APR-21 12,448.38 Systra Ltd ASAM19 UPDATE WORK FROM 1 FEB TO 12 MAR 2021

MAY-21 2,513.76 Systra Ltd ASAM19 MODEL DEV WORK TO END MARCH 2021

JUN-21 4,516.08 Systra Ltd ASAM19 model dev work in April 2021

JUL-21 5,905.20 Systra Ltd ASAM 19 MODEL DEV WORK IN MAY 2021

AUG-21 5,628.00 Systra Ltd Covid travel behaviour and attitude surveys - wave 1

SEP-21 12,132.00 Systra Ltd ASAM19 model dev work in July

SEP-21 14,139.60 Systra Ltd ASAM19 MODEL DEV WORK IN JUNE

OCT-21 15,532.80 Systra Ltd ASAM19 MODEL DEV WORK IN AUG

OCT-21 2,981.38 Systra Ltd ELLON TRAFFIC SURVEY ANALYSIS

NOV-21 9,452.52 Systra Ltd ASAM19 model dev work in Oct 2021

NOV-21 5,280.00 Systra Ltd Covid travel behaviour and attitude surveys - 12&13

NOV-21 11,298.48 Systra Ltd ASAM19 model dev work in Sept 2021

FEB-22 5,280.00 Systra Ltd Wave 14 and wave 15 travel behaviour survey reports

FEB-22 22,962.00 Systra Ltd ASAM FEES FROM 1 NOV 2021 TO 31 JAN 2022

MAR-22 17,190.96 Systra Ltd ASAM19 FEES FROM 1 TO 28 FEB 2022

152,781.16          
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Payments in Excess of £25,000

Date Gross Amount Payee Subject-matter

APR-21 8,423.10 Aberdeen City Council CHARGES FOR ICT SERVICES 1/4/20-31/3/21

APR-21 546.83 Aberdeen City Council INSURANCE PREMIUMS SUITES 1,3+PART 9 IN 2020/21

APR-21 (3,374.59) Aberdeen City Council FARBURN/WELLHEADS CYCLE LINK STAGE 1

APR-21 795.23 Aberdeen City Council FIXED LINE TELEPHONY 1/3/20 TO 28/2/21

APR-21 33,813.80 Aberdeen City Council ANPR MONITORING SITES

APR-21 7,864.08 Aberdeen City Council ACC WORKS TO PERIOD 12 2020/21

APR-21 740.10 Aberdeen City Council SERVICE CHARGE BALANCE FOR 19/20

APR-21 532.80 Aberdeen City Council LEGAL SERVICES IN Q4 UNDER SLA

APR-21 120.00 Aberdeen City Council ICT GOODS PURCHASED IN  20/21

APR-21 2,208.61 Aberdeen City Council ELECTRICITY SERVICE CHARGE BALANCE FOR 19/20

APR-21 602.79 Aberdeen City Council MOBILE PHONE COSTS 1/3/20 TO 31/3/21

APR-21 8,881.18 Aberdeen City Council

STRATEGIC NETWORK MONITORING PH4 QUEENS RD 

CORRIDOR

APR-21 1,810.20 Aberdeen City Council SWAN CIRCUIT RENTAL FOR NETWORK ACCESS IN 20/21

APR-21 665.64 Aberdeen City Council ACC PHONE AND ICT CHARGES IN 2020/21

APR-21 5,437.50 Aberdeen City Council RENT OF ARCHIBALD SIMPSON HOUSE 1/4/21 - 30/6/21

MAY-21 637.00 Aberdeen City Council BUSINESS RATE FOR CAR PARKING ON RV OF £1300

MAY-21 5,145.00 Aberdeen City Council BUSINESS RATES FOR SUITE 1 (PART) ON RV OF £10500

MAY-21 1,617.00 Aberdeen City Council BUSINESS RATES FOR SUITE 9 (PART) ON RV OF £3300

MAY-21 1,200.50 Aberdeen City Council BUSINESS RATES FOR SUITE 1 (PART) ON RV OF £2450

MAY-21 15.76 Aberdeen City Council XEROX QUARTERLY CHARGE 1/1/21 TO 31/3/21

MAY-21 1,225.00 Aberdeen City Council BUSINESS RATE FOR SUITE 3a ON RV OF £2500

JUN-21 24,000.00 Aberdeen City Council COMMITTEE SERVICES IN 20/21 AS PER SLA

JUN-21 452.40 Aberdeen City Council IAS19 Disclosure 2020/21 supplied to 31 March 2021

JUN-21 5,000.00 Aberdeen City Council ACC Community Planning Partnership Contribution 21/22

JUL-21 435.68 Aberdeen City Council FARBURN/WELLHEADS CYCLE LINK STAGE 1

JUL-21 657.50 Aberdeen City Council ANPR MONITORING SITES

JUL-21 11,661.55 Aberdeen City Council Riverview Drive Dyce Resurfacing

JUL-21 1,559.73 Aberdeen City Council A93 Multi modal corridor study

JUL-21 356.71 Aberdeen City Council Cycle Maintenance Stands

JUL-21 73.74 Aberdeen City Council Variable Message Sign Improvements at Schools

JUL-21 48,062.24 Aberdeen City Council Nestrans works by ACC to period 2 2020/21

JUL-21 44.57 Aberdeen City Council A944/A9119 low cost options business case +delivery

JUL-21 1,070.09 Aberdeen City Council Craigshaw Drive Cycle Route

JUL-21 3,581.89 Aberdeen City Council Wellington Road multi-modal corridor study

JUL-21 200.57 Aberdeen City Council A944/A9119 Multi modal corridor study - detailed appraisal

JUL-21 152,451.42 Aberdeen City Council Bus Lane Camera Infrastructure

JUL-21 15,741.18 Aberdeen City Council A96 Multi-modal corridor study

JUL-21 1,238.58 Aberdeen City Council A947 Multi modal corridor study

JUL-21 32,668.35 Aberdeen City Council Osprey Upgrade

JUL-21 12,221.70 Aberdeen City Council Low Emissions Zone

JUL-21 1,869.85 Aberdeen City Council Cross City Connections review of outcomes

JUL-21 412.47 Aberdeen City Council South College St/Q Eliz Br rbt junction review

JUL-21 756.03 Aberdeen City Council Junction Alterations Anderson Dr/Lang Stracht

JUL-21 613.17 Aberdeen City Council Bridge of Dee post AWPR capacity review

JUL-21 356.94 Aberdeen City Council Strategic Network Monitoring Ph4 Queens Road corridor

JUL-21 2,339.44 Aberdeen City Council Ellon to Garthdee multi-modal corridor study

AUG-21 244.57 Aberdeen City Council FARBURN/WELLHEADS CYCLE LINK STAGE 1

AUG-21 926.03 Aberdeen City Council A93 Multi modal corridor study

AUG-21 89.14 Aberdeen City Council Cycle Maintenance Stands

AUG-21 147.49 Aberdeen City Council Variable Message Sign Improvements at Schools

AUG-21 78.00 Aberdeen City Council A944/A9119 low cost options business case +delivery

AUG-21 8,048.78 Aberdeen City Council Craigshaw Drive Cycle Route

AUG-21 44.57 Aberdeen City Council Wellington Road multi-modal corridor study

AUG-21 66.86 Aberdeen City Council A944/A9119 Multi modal corridor study - detailed appraisal

AUG-21 26,055.22 Aberdeen City Council A96 Multi-modal corridor study

AUG-21 1,474.50 Aberdeen City Council A947 Multi modal corridor study

AUG-21 167.14 Aberdeen City Council South College St/Q Eliz Br rbt junction review

AUG-21 325.61 Aberdeen City Council Junction Alterations Anderson Dr/Lang Stracht

AUG-21 12,456.00 Aberdeen City Council Strategic Network Monitoring Ph4 Queens Road corridor

AUG-21 11,606.37 Aberdeen City Council Ellon to Garthdee multi-modal corridor study

AUG-21 491.50 Aberdeen City Council A92 multi-modal corridor study

AUG-21 407.00 Aberdeen City Council Cross City Connections

AUG-21 5.00 Aberdeen City Council XEROX QUARTERLY CHARGE 1/4/21 TO 30.06.21

AUG-21 1,298.54 Aberdeen City Council A93 Peterculter resurfacing

AUG-21 5,437.50 Aberdeen City Council RENT OF ARCHIBALD SIMPSON HOUSE 1/7/21 - 30/9/21

AUG-21 12,834.49 Aberdeen City Council Nestrans works by ACC to period 4 2021/22

AUG-21 245.14 Aberdeen City Council Bridge of Dee

AUG-21 504.00 Aberdeen City Council Legal Services in Q1 2021 under SLA

SEP-21 147.49 Aberdeen City Council Variable Message Sign Improvements at Schools

SEP-21 8,396.25 Aberdeen City Council Craigshaw Drive Cycle Route

Capital and Revenue Budget Projects Delivery and Nestrans Support Services
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Payments in Excess of £25,000

Date Gross Amount Payee Subject-matter

SEP-21 445.70 Aberdeen City Council A944/A9119 Multi modal corridor study - detailed appraisal

SEP-21 11,326.45 Aberdeen City Council A96 Multi-modal corridor study

SEP-21 39.32 Aberdeen City Council A947 Multi modal corridor study

SEP-21 133.71 Aberdeen City Council South College St/Q Eliz Br rbt junction review

SEP-21 1,076.75 Aberdeen City Council Cross City Connections

SEP-21 189.42 Aberdeen City Council Bridge of Dee

SEP-21 19,092.94 Aberdeen City Council NESTRANS WORKS BY ACC TO PERIOD 3 2020/21

SEP-21 376.96 Aberdeen City Council NESTRAN WORKS BY ACC TO PERIOD 3 2020/21

SEP-21 89.14 Aberdeen City Council CYCLE MAINTANCE STANDS

SEP-21 810.03 Aberdeen City Council A93 - MULTI MODAL CORRIDOR STUDY

SEP-21 1,199.26 Aberdeen City Council A92 MULTI MODAL CORRIDOR STUDY

SEP-21 66.86 Aberdeen City Council A944/A9119 LOW COST OPTIONS BUSINESS CASE + DELIVERY

SEP-21 12,541.28 Aberdeen City Council ELLON TO GARTHDEE MULTI CORRIDOR STUDY

SEP-21 844.98 Aberdeen City Council JUNCTION ALTERATIONS ANDERSON DR/LANG STRRACHT

SEP-21 8,943.89 Aberdeen City Council GREAT SOUTHERN ROAD RESURFACING - 20/21

SEP-21 26,197.11 Aberdeen City Council ANPR MONITORING SITE

SEP-21 24,901.83 Aberdeen City Council WELLING ROAD MULTI MODA CORRIDOR STUDY

OCT-21 768.08 Aberdeen City Council A93 Multi modal corridor study

OCT-21 6,118.10 Aberdeen City Council Craigshaw Drive Cycle Route

OCT-21 688.10 Aberdeen City Council A947 Multi modal corridor study

OCT-21 211.71 Aberdeen City Council Junction Alterations Anderson Dr/Lang Stracht

OCT-21 1,530.91 Aberdeen City Council Cross City Connections

OCT-21 368.96 Aberdeen City Council CYCLE MAINTANCE STANDS

OCT-21 1,663.95 Aberdeen City Council A92 MULTI MODAL CORRIDOR STUDY

OCT-21 1,152.00 Aberdeen City Council LEGAL SERVICES IN Q2 2021 UNDER SLA

OCT-21 3,998.68 Aberdeen City Council NESTRANS WORKS BY ACC TO PERIOD 5 2021/22

OCT-21 37.33 Aberdeen City Council A93 PETERCULTER RESURFING

OCT-21 996.80 Aberdeen City Council

A944/A9119 MULTI MODAL CORRIDOR STUDY DETAILED 

APPRAISAL

OCT-21 8,867.42 Aberdeen City Council WORKS BY ACC TO PERIOD 5 2021/22

OCT-21 9,206.58 Aberdeen City Council A96 MULTI MODAL CORRIDOR STUDY

OCT-21 9,255.88 Aberdeen City Council WELLINGTON ROAD MULTI MODAL CORRIDOR STUDY

OCT-21 5,437.50 Aberdeen City Council RENT OF ARCHIBALDSIMPSON HOUSR 1/10/21 - 31/12/21

OCT-21 15,697.35 Aberdeen City Council KINGWELLS PARK & RIDE RESURFACING PH1

OCT-21 17,742.16 Aberdeen City Council ELLON TO GARTHDEE MULTI MODAL CORRIDOR STUDY

OCT-21 44.57 Aberdeen City Council A944/A9119 CITY CENTRE INTERVENTIONS

OCT-21 2,039.76 Aberdeen City Council Works by ACC

NOV-21 584.38 Aberdeen City Council FARBURN/WELLHEADS CYCLE LINK STAGE 1

NOV-21 10,014.84 Aberdeen City Council A93 Multi modal corridor study

NOV-21 212.35 Aberdeen City Council Cycle Maintenance Stands

NOV-21 4,193.20 Aberdeen City Council Craigshaw Drive Cycle Route

NOV-21 3,116.11 Aberdeen City Council A947 Multi modal corridor study

NOV-21 5,985.61 Aberdeen City Council Osprey Upgrade

NOV-21 200.53 Aberdeen City Council South College St/Q Eliz Br rbt junction review

NOV-21 875.93 Aberdeen City Council Junction Alterations Anderson Dr/Lang Stracht

NOV-21 1,745.22 Aberdeen City Council Cross City Connections

NOV-21 121,954.18 Aberdeen City Council A93 Peterculter resurfacing

NOV-21 437.77 Aberdeen City Council CYCLE MAINTANCE STANDS

NOV-21 267.06 Aberdeen City Council WELLINGTON ROAD MULTI MODAL CORRIDOR STUDY

NOV-21 668.55 Aberdeen City Council A944/A9119 CITY CENTRE INTERVENTIONS

NOV-21 28,010.68 Aberdeen City Council NESTRANS WORKS BY ACC TO PERIOD 6 2021/22

NOV-21 828.36 Aberdeen City Council SOUTH COLLEGE ST/Q ELIZBR RBT JUNCTION REVIEW

NOV-21 10,697.11 Aberdeen City Council Nestrans works by ACC to period 7 2021/22

NOV-21 956.14 Aberdeen City Council Bridge of Dee Crossing Capacity

NOV-21 1,197.00 Aberdeen City Council Cycle Counter Maintenance

NOV-21 39,815.10 Aberdeen City Council Improvements to Variable Message Signs at Schools

NOV-21 370.18 Aberdeen City Council JUNCTION ALTERATIONS ANDERSON DRIVE/LANG STRACHT

NOV-21 116.38 Aberdeen City Council BERRYDEN PLUS ACTIVE TRAVEL CONNECTIONS

JAN-22 87.29 Aberdeen City Council FARBURN/WELLHEADS CYCLE LINK STAGE 1

JAN-22 1,289.74 Aberdeen City Council A93 Multi modal corridor study

JAN-22 388.62 Aberdeen City Council Cycle Maintenance Stands

JAN-22 795.31 Aberdeen City Council Craigshaw Drive Cycle Route

JAN-22 6,733.33 Aberdeen City Council A947 Multi modal corridor study

JAN-22 44.57 Aberdeen City Council South College St/Q Eliz Br rbt junction review

JAN-22 503.89 Aberdeen City Council Junction Alterations Anderson Dr/Lang Stracht

JAN-22 1,852.01 Aberdeen City Council Cross City Connections

JAN-22 33.43 Aberdeen City Council Bridge of Dee Crossing Capacity

JAN-22 58.19 Aberdeen City Council BERRYDEN PLUS ACTIVE TRAVEL CONNECTIONS

JAN-22 121,700.00 Aberdeen City Council A956 King Street resurfacing

JAN-22 26,697.28 Aberdeen City Council Nestrans works by ACC to period 8 2021/22

JAN-22 767.52 Aberdeen City Council Legal Services in Q3 2021 under SLA
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JAN-22 5,437.50 Aberdeen City Council RENT OF ARCHIBALD SIMPSON HOUSE 1/1/22 - 31/3/22

JAN-22 6.46 Aberdeen City Council XEROX QUARTERLY CHANRGE 1/7/21 TO 30/9/21

FEB-22 167.77 Aberdeen City Council FARBURN/WELLHEADS CYCLE LINK STAGE 1

FEB-22 1,556.49 Aberdeen City Council A93 Multi modal corridor study

FEB-22 246.42 Aberdeen City Council Cycle Maintenance Stands

FEB-22 7,800.78 Aberdeen City Council Craigshaw Drive Cycle Route

FEB-22 1,159.94 Aberdeen City Council A947 Multi modal corridor study

FEB-22 1,004.64 Aberdeen City Council Cross City Connections review of outcomes

FEB-22 147.33 Aberdeen City Council Junction Alterations Anderson Dr/Lang Stracht

FEB-22 174.57 Aberdeen City Council BERRYDEN PLUS ACTIVE TRAVEL CONNECTIONS

FEB-22 2,451.59 Aberdeen City Council Nestrans works by ACC to period 9 2021/22

MAR-22 6,277.91 Aberdeen City Council FARBURN/WELLHEADS CYCLE LINK STAGE 1

MAR-22 1,188.63 Aberdeen City Council ANPR MONITORING SITES

MAR-22 53,705.19 Aberdeen City Council A93 Multi modal corridor study

MAR-22 12,080.92 Aberdeen City Council Cycle Maintenance Stands

MAR-22 23,402.67 Aberdeen City Council Craigshaw Drive Cycle Route

MAR-22 37,809.53 Aberdeen City Council A947 Multi modal corridor study

MAR-22 22,959.35 Aberdeen City Council Cross City Connections review of outcomes

MAR-22 7,138.35 Aberdeen City Council Junction Alterations Anderson Dr/Lang Stracht

MAR-22 231.52 Aberdeen City Council A93 Peterculter resurfacing

MAR-22 9,592.50 Aberdeen City Council Cycle Counter Maintenance

MAR-22 11,081.40 Aberdeen City Council BERRYDEN PLUS ACTIVE TRAVEL CONNECTIONS

MAR-22 31,813.00 Aberdeen City Council Friarsfield Path

MAR-22 644.47 Aberdeen City Council Insurance Premium for ASH Suite 1, 3A and part 9 in 21/22

MAR-22 11.09 Aberdeen City Council XEROX QUARTLEY CHARGE 1/10/21 TO 31/12

MAR-22 23,067.71 Aberdeen City Council Nestrans works by ACC to period 12 2021/22

MAR-22 22,746.45 Aberdeen City Council Nestrans works by ACC to period 11 2021/22

MAR-22 41,242.03 Aberdeen City Council Nestrans works by ACC to period 10 2021/22

MAR-22 360.00 Aberdeen City Council Legal Services in Q4

MAR-22 20,000.00 Aberdeen City Council Hazlehead Park footpath improvement

MAR-22 768.97 Aberdeen City Council Cycle Infrastructure Repairs

MAR-22 21,123.00 Aberdeen City Council Bus Journey Time Improvements through Junction Control Review

MAR-22 12,121.90 Aberdeen City Council CYCLE DATA REVIEW

MAR-22 20,000.00 Aberdeen City Council Allan Park Access Footways

MAR-22 105,506.31 Aberdeen City Council Roadside Weather Station Network

MAR-22 1,097.05 Aberdeen City Council Cross City Connections - Review of Outcomes

MAR-22 31,859.43 Aberdeen City Council Kingswells Park & Ride resurfacing Ph 2

MAR-22 39,750.00 Aberdeen City Council Hazlehead Cemetery Disabled Parking

1,653,262.72       

APR-21 1,109.13 Aberdeenshire Council

Kintore Railway Station - Approved Programme to period ended 

31/03/21

APR-21 30,346.59 Aberdeenshire Council Ellon Park & Ride - Approved Programme to period ended 31/03/21

APR-21 18,617.02 Aberdeenshire Council

North/South Links to Inverurie Academy - Capital Programme to 

period ended 31/03/21

APR-21 2,477.15 Aberdeenshire Council

HTAP Coordinator costs - Revenue Programme to period ended 

28/02/21

APR-21 51,010.05 Aberdeenshire Council 2020/21 Nestrans Capital Programme - to period ended 31/03/21

APR-21 4,059.23 Aberdeenshire Council Additional Day Support for Civitas Project from April '20 to Aug '20

APR-21 19,080.00 Aberdeenshire Council

HR & OD Support provided to Nestrans for period 1st April 2020 to 

31st March 2021

APR-21 21,300.00 Aberdeenshire Council

Recharge of costs for Communications Officer for period 1 April '20 to 

31 March '21

APR-21 20,216.56 Aberdeenshire Council Nestrans Capital Programme 20/21 - Costs to March 21

APR-21 10,574.46 Aberdeenshire Council 2020/21 Nestrans Revenue Programme - to period ended 28/02/21

APR-21 25,320.00 Aberdeenshire Council Recharge of Finance Support 2020-21

MAY-21 11,386.98 Aberdeenshire Council Annual THInC Support - 2021-22

JUN-21 130,183.70 Aberdeenshire Council Nestrans Capital Programme 20/21 - Costs to March 21

JUN-21 2,248.93 Aberdeenshire Council 2020/21 Nestrans Revenue Programme - to period ended 28/02/21

JUN-21 28,463.75 Aberdeenshire Council Phase 2 & 3 of Upgrade of Deeside Way

JUN-21 449.79 Aberdeenshire Council

2020/21 Nestrans Revenue Programme - costs incurred per Approved 

Programme to period ended 28/02/21

JUN-21 4,963.82 Aberdeenshire Council

North/South Links to Inverurie Academy - Capital Programme 20/21 - 

Costs to March 21

JUN-21 143,226.26 Aberdeenshire Council RTP Active Travel - Formartine & Buchan Way - Ellon North Section

JUN-21 3.00 Aberdeenshire Council Kintore Railway Station - Costs to March 21

JUN-21 142,318.75 Aberdeenshire Council Costs re Phase 2 & 3 of Upgrade of Deeside Way

JUN-21 1,640.21 Aberdeenshire Council Ellon Park & Ride - Costs to March 21

JUL-21 5,000.00 Aberdeenshire Council COMMUNITY PLANING PARTNERSHIP CONTRIBUTION 21/22

AUG-21 790.21 Aberdeenshire Council Nestrans Capital to period ended Jun21 - Peterhead Bus Interchange

Capital and Revenue Budget Projects Delivery and Nestrans Support Services
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AUG-21 741.26 Aberdeenshire Council

Nestrans Capital to period ended Jun21 - A947 Route Improvement 

Strategy

AUG-21 545.73 Aberdeenshire Council

Nestrans Capital to period ended Jun21 - Refresh of Aberdeen City 

Bus Stop Flags

AUG-21 244.49 Aberdeenshire Council

Nestrans Capital to period ended Jun21 - A93 Crathes Mini 

Interchange Hub

AUG-21 25,541.61 Aberdeenshire Council Ellon Park & Ride - Capital to period ended Jun21

AUG-21 325.99 Aberdeenshire Council

Nestrans Capital to period ended Jun21 - B9000 Bridgend to Tarty 

footpath

AUG-21 304.74 Aberdeenshire Council

Nestrans Capital to period ended Jun21 - RTPI Expansion in 

Aberdeenshire

AUG-21 1,683.63 Aberdeenshire Council

Nestrans Capital to period ended Jun21 - Oldmeldrum Interchange 

Hub

AUG-21 141.74 Aberdeenshire Council

Nestrans Capital to period ended Jun21 - Aberdeen City & Shire Joint 

Bus Stop Information Initiative

AUG-21 27,834.00 Aberdeenshire Council Nestrans Revenue to period ended Jun21 - Zebra Crossing Refits

AUG-21 6,191.84 Aberdeenshire Council HTAP Co-ordinator costs - Revenue to period ended Jun21 

AUG-21 2,700.00 Aberdeenshire Council Nestrans Capital to period ended Jun21 - Sauchen/Cluny footpath

AUG-21 9,488.80 Aberdeenshire Council Upgrade of Deeside Way ph4 Milton of Crathes

AUG-21 1,742.26 Aberdeenshire Council

Capital to period ended Jun21 - North/South Links to Inverurie 

Academy

AUG-21 325.99 Aberdeenshire Council

Nestrans Capital to period ended Jun21 - A90/A92 Blackdog - Access 

to Bus Service         

AUG-21 15,720.46 Aberdeenshire Council Nestrans Capital to period ended Jun21 - Various

OCT-21 3,071.47 Aberdeenshire Council RTPI Expansion in Aberdeenshire

OCT-21 4,936.83 Aberdeenshire Council A96 Kintore / Blackburn Cycleway

OCT-21 22,885.41 Aberdeenshire Council Nestrans Capital to period ended July 2021

OCT-21 108.66 Aberdeenshire Council A90 / A92 Blackdog - Access to Bus Service

OCT-21 63,561.39 Aberdeenshire Council Ellon Park & Ride

OCT-21 325.99 Aberdeenshire Council Oldmeldrum Interchange Hub

OCT-21 262.89 Aberdeenshire Council Peterhead Bus Interchange

OCT-21 42,004.00 Aberdeenshire Council Sauchen / Cluny Footpath

OCT-21 2,204.00 Aberdeenshire Council

2021/22 Sustainable Travel Grant - contribution re cycle shelters at 

Portlethen

OCT-21 108.66 Aberdeenshire Council B9000 Bridgend to Tarty Footpath

OCT-21 47.15 Aberdeenshire Council Aberdeen City & Shire Joint Bus Stop Information

OCT-21 440.80 Aberdeenshire Council Sustainable Travel Grant

NOV-21 3,921.31 Aberdeenshire Council Deeside Way - Phase 1 upgrade of Deeside Way - snagging issues

DEC-21 7,132.94 Aberdeenshire Council RTPI Expansion in Aberdeenshire

DEC-21 10,047.74 Aberdeenshire Council A96 Kintore / Blackburn Cycleway

DEC-21 911.98 Aberdeenshire Council Oldmeldrum Interchange Hub

DEC-21 525.78 Aberdeenshire Council Peterhead Bus Interchange

DEC-21 20,000.00 Aberdeenshire Council Sauchen / Cluny Footpath

DEC-21 217.32 Aberdeenshire Council B9000 Bridgend to Tarty Footpath

DEC-21 (5,528.54) Aberdeenshire Council A96 E-paper bus stop displays

DEC-21 2,884.00 Aberdeenshire Council B9002 Kennethmont footway

DEC-21 544.17 Aberdeenshire Council Refresh of Aberdeen City Bus Stop Flags

DEC-21 244.47 Aberdeenshire Council A93 Crathes Mini Interchange Hub

DEC-21 3,927.95 Aberdeenshire Council A947 Route Improvement Strategy

DEC-21 217.32 Aberdeenshire Council A90/A92 Blackdog - Access to Bus Service

DEC-21 20,000.00 Aberdeenshire Council Region Wide Real Time system annual maintenance contribution

DEC-21 49,504.36 Aberdeenshire Council

2021/22 Nestrans Capital & Revenue Programme - to period ended 

November 2021

DEC-21 7,208.00 Aberdeenshire Council A90 Ellon / Foveran / Newburgh Cycleway

DEC-21 6,191.83 Aberdeenshire Council HTAP Coordinator costs

DEC-21 170,649.00 Aberdeenshire Council Electric mini buses for Fraserburgh area

DEC-21 2,253.55 Aberdeenshire Council North / South Links to Inverurie Academy

DEC-21 94.30 Aberdeenshire Council Aberdeen City & Shire Joint Bus Stop Information

JAN-22 136,800.00 Aberdeenshire Council

Improvements and resurfacing works of Formartine & Buchan Way - 

Ellon North Section Phase 2

JAN-22 13,846.00 Aberdeenshire Council Comms Officer supporting Nestrans from 01 April '21 - 31 Dec '21

FEB-22 24,071.86 Aberdeenshire Council Repairs & upgrade of Deeside Way at Newton of Drumduan

MAR-22 1,440.00 Aberdeenshire Council Oldmeldrum Interchange Hub

MAR-22 1,101.97 Aberdeenshire Council Peterhead Bus Interchange

MAR-22 19,690.50 Aberdeenshire Council B9000 Bridgend to Tarty Footpath

MAR-22 (40.00) Aberdeenshire Council B9002 Kennethmont footway

MAR-22 219.63 Aberdeenshire Council Refresh of Aberdeen City Bus Stop Flags

MAR-22 92.45 Aberdeenshire Council A93 Crathes Mini Interchange Hub

MAR-22 10,004.08 Aberdeenshire Council A947 Route Improvement Strategy

MAR-22 122.86 Aberdeenshire Council A90/A92 Blackdog - Access to Bus Service

MAR-22 545.71 Aberdeenshire Council Refresh to All Aberdeen City Bus Stop Flags
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MAR-22 10,356.22 Aberdeenshire Council Aberdeen City & Shire Joint Bus Stop Information Initiative

MAR-22 2,822.64 Aberdeenshire Council

Nestrans Annual Report & Business Plan 20/21 & Nestrans 2040 RTS 

for the NE

MAR-22 15,900.00 Aberdeenshire Council HR & OD Support per SLA Apr 21 - Mar 22

MAR-22 12,343.60 Aberdeenshire Council Renewal of reflective road studs 

MAR-22 3,086,721.83 Aberdeenshire Council Kintore Railway Station, car park and access road

MAR-22 244.47 Aberdeenshire Council A93 Crathes Mini-hub

MAR-22 685,405.90 Aberdeenshire Council Various Aberdeenshire Council Works

MAR-22 21,100.00 Aberdeenshire Council Finance Costs 2021/22

MAR-22 8,801.27 Aberdeenshire Council HTAP Co-ordinator Costs

MAR-22 2,527.08 Aberdeenshire Council H&T Programme Support Manager

MAR-22 6,304.12 Aberdeenshire Council Real Time Information - Expansion within Aberdeenshire

MAR-22 7,335.45 Aberdeenshire Council RTI Expansion in Aberdeenshire

MAR-22 594.24 Aberdeenshire Council Road Safety Campaign Posters and Reformatting

MAR-22 140,542.80 Aberdeenshire Council Bend Mitigation/Skid Resistance Improvements

MAR-22 438.69 Aberdeenshire Council North / South Link to Inverurie Academy

MAR-22 7,400.00 Aberdeenshire Council HR & OD Support per SLA Apr 21 - Mar 22 & Finance Costs 2021/22

MAR-22 85,352.00 Aberdeenshire Council 2 X Electric Mini Buses for the Fraserburgh Area

MAR-22 141.76 Aberdeenshire Council Aberdeen City and Shire Joint Bus Stop Information Initiatives.

MAR-22 469.61 Aberdeenshire Council B9000 Footpath and Bus Stop Infrastructure

MAR-22 16,578.42 Aberdeenshire Council E-paper bus stop displays and bus stop infrastructure

MAR-22 11,180.00 Aberdeenshire Council Contribution to Public Transport Accessibility Study

MAR-22 6,716.05 Aberdeenshire Council A947 Road Safety Improvements

MAR-22 325.98 Aberdeenshire Council A90/A92 Blackdog - Access to Bus Services

5,546,720.05       

see above 152,781.16 Systra Ltd (as above under external consultancy)

see above 118,562.40 Jacobs UK Ltd (as above under external consultancy)

see above 101,990.23 Stantec UK Ltd (as above under external consultancy)

see above 95,315.25 AECOM (as above under external consultancy)

OCT-21 73,299.12 Q-Free (Bristol) UK Limited

12xped/cycle counters, data hosting/reporting+5yr maint (reclaimed 

via Sustrans Active Travel Development Officer grant)

see above 26,879.99 Clear Channel UK Limited (as above under Promotion - Active and Sustainable Transport)
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Sustainable Economic Growth Statement 
 
Introduction 

 
Section 32(1)(a) of the Public Services Reform (Scotland) Act 2010 provides that as 

soon as reasonably practicable after the end of each financial year each listed public 
body must publish a statement of the steps it has taken during the financial year to 
promote and increase sustainable growth through the exercise of its functions. 

Nestrans is a listed body within the Act. 
 

This statement is intended to fulfil the requirement of the Act in relation to Sustainable 
Economic Growth. This statement should be read in conjunction with the statement on 
Efficiency, Effectiveness and Economy and the financial information provided on the 
Nestrans website that are also required by the Act.  Further information on our work 

can also be viewed in the Annual Report for 2021/22. 
 
Regional Transport Strategy to 2040 

 

Nestrans’ primary function is to produce and implement a Regional Transport Strategy.   
This is a statutory document, with the requirements set out in the Transport (Scotland) 
Act 2005, and associated guidance published in 2006.   
  

The Regional Transport Strategy (RTS) to 2040 received Ministerial approval on 4 

November 2021 and was formally adopted by the Nestrans Board as the statutory RTS 
for the area when they met on 10 November 2021.  It is considered that the RTS to 
2040 fulfils all the statutory requirements and complied with the necessity of STAG 

option appraisal, Strategic Environmental Assessment and Equality Impact 
Assessment.  The Vision within the RTS is “To provide a safer, cleaner, more inclusive, 

accessible and resilient transport system in the North East, which protects the natural 
and built environment and contributes to healthier, more prosperous and fairer 
communities”.   It was developed under four equal and overlapping pillars relating to 

Equality, Climate, Prosperity and Wellbeing that align with and support the pillars of 
the National Transport Strategy2 that was published in February 2020 and therefore 

many of the Scottish Government’s National Outcomes. 
 
RTS Policies and Actions 

 

The policies and actions within the RTS to 2040 are structured under 18 headings.  

They were developed to support the delivery of the strategy and meet the aims and 

objectives therein. It is recognised that delivery of the strategy will require 

implementation and input from a range of organisations.  Nestrans has therefore 

continued to seek identification of funding and a priority for the projects by partners 

that assist with this.  A progress report on delivery of the Regional Transport Strategy 

and spend to date on projects being funded by Nestrans is prepared for each Board 

meeting and all Board reports can be viewed on the Nestrans website.  A summary of 

overall progress in the past year by Nestrans is given below against the headings of 

the various policies and actions within the RTS. 
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Achievements in 2021/22 

 

Increasing the Number of People Travelling Actively for Health and the Environment 

(AT) 

Nestrans made the embedded Sustrans Cycling Development Officer post a 
permanent member of staff and changed the title to Active Travel Development Officer.  

The grant of up to £100,000 per annum this post attracts from Sustrans for 2020/21 
was still available for use in 2021/22 and was used to fund pedestrian and cycle 

counters. Cycling Scotland arranged the counter installation and directly funded an 
additional nine sites taking the overall total of new counters in the region to twenty-
one. Improvement works were completed on sections of the Deeside Way using the 

remaining grant award from the 2020/21 Sustrans National Cycle Network 
Development fund that was still available for use until end summer 2021.  The 2020/21 

Scottish Government grant to Regional Transport Partnerships was also available for 
use until end June 2021 due to the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic and this was 
used to complete the A944 pedestrian/cycle path feasibility study and improvements 

on the Formartine & Buchan Way (F&B), including resurfacing the Ellon Viaduct and 
a number of path improvements in the area. Nestrans received an RTP Active Travel 

grant award offer of £274,000 in 2021/22 and used this to fund further path 
improvements adjacent to the F&B Way in Ellon, a review of core paths in Aberdeen 
and purchase of four timber bridge kits for the F&B Way.  Nestrans and Aberdeenshire 

Council provided funding to purchase a further timber kit bridge and install the four 
timber kit bridges on the F&B Way that were previously purchased in 2019/20.  

 
Nestrans also funded almost £400,000 towards a number of pedestrian and cycle 

infrastructure improvement schemes being developed and delivered by our 

constituent Councils.  A list of Nestrans funded projects is given at the end of the 

statement, but this included the development and delivery of cycle paths and upgrade 

of footways and the installation of cycle maintenance stands and cycle racks.  As well 

as the Sustainable Travel Grant that Nestrans offers, a Communities Sustainable 

Travel Grant was launched that does not contain a requirement for 50% match funding 

that many community groups, smaller third sector organisations and social enterprises 

had found difficult to provide. Grants were paid for cycle parking shelters at the Green 

in Portlethen and at the Time to Heal offices in Aberdeen, for a cycle repair station at 

the Lodge Café near the Formartine & Buchan Way and towards path improvement 

works arranged by the Lumphanan Paths Group. 

 

Nestrans funded temporary signs for Ride the North 153, that featured suggested 

cycling routes around Aberdeenshire and Moray.  An online survey was undertaken 

after the signs were taken down to seek views from users and help determine next 

steps. Funding was also allocated to Aberdeen City Council to support membership 

subscription for third sector groups to the new electric bike hire scheme that the 

Council will be launching with Big Issue ShareBike Ltd.  Nestrans also participated in 

the “Share Space” initiative that was undertaken on a trial basis with Aberdeenshire 

Council, which signed quiet routes in three locations that link to existing footpaths and 

cycling trails and where traffic volumes and speeds are low enough to make active 
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travel more attractive. The signs were approved by Transport Scotland and aim to 

encourage motorists to make space for active travel users that may be sharing the 

road.  

 

Developing the Rail Network (RL) 

Nestrans has continued to work with Transport Scotland, ScotRail and Network Rail 
to ensure that the aspirations of the North East are taken into account in developing 
our railways. Nestrans continues to be a member of the East Coast Mainline 

Authorities grouping and participates in the project delivery group for the Aberdeen to 
Central Belt rail journey time and capacity improvements. The feasibility study into 

options for improving accessibility at Insch Station, previously funded by Nestrans and 
via a Local Rail Development Fund (LRDF) grant, was revised before being accepted 
from a technical perspective by Transport Scotland in December 2021. The Case for 

Change for the Aberdeen to Laurencekirk multi-modal corridor study, that is being 
funded through a further LRDF grant, was updated following an extensive public 

consultation in autumn 2021 and submitted to Transport Scotland in March 2022. 
 

Nestrans and Aberdeenshire Council have funded 40% of the construction costs for 

Kintore Railway Station, the car park and access roads that was recharged by 

Transport Scotland, with the national organisation funding the other 60% through a 

successful bid to the Scottish Stations Fund in 2016. 

 

Aberdeen Rapid Transit (ART) 

Nestrans funded consultancy support to develop an Aberdeen Rapid Transit (ART) 

vision that supported the Bus Partnership Fund bid that was submitted by the North 

East Bus Alliance in April 2021.  Further consultancy work was commissioned by 

Nestrans in September 2021 to develop the business case and designs for ART and 

this is being funded through part of the Bus Partnership Fund grant award to the North 

East Bus Alliance.   

 

Improving the region’s bus network (BUS) 

Nestrans funded consultancy support to assist the North East Bus Alliance to prepare 
a bid to the Scottish Government’s Bus Partnership Fund.  The bid was submitted by 
Aberdeen City Council on behalf of the Bus Alliance and an award made of 

£12,030,000.  Nestrans chair the working group that has been established to oversee 
the BPF delivery.  Several of the multi modal corridor studies that were being funded 

by Nestrans have been progressed since August 2021 via the BPF award, but the 
studies on the A947 and A93 corridors continue to be funded by Nestrans. 
 

The A956 Wellington Road corridor study was completed and published on the 

Nestrans website. The outcomes were reported to Aberdeen City Council, who 

approved progression of a hybrid package and referred this to their budget setting 

process. Nestrans continued to fund bus stop information and infrastructure and met 

the cost of construction of a footpath to connect an area to bus services that had lost 

their previous link as a result of the Balmedie to Tipperty dualling. 
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Maximising the Benefits of Park & Ride (P&R) 

The works to provide additional external waiting facilities and upgrade the turning circle 

to accommodate 15metre vehicles at Ellon Park & Ride were completed by 

Aberdeenshire Council, with Nestrans contribution this year being used for bus 

infrastructure enhancement elements.  Nestrans continued to provide budget for 

further investigation of land opportunities and design of mini-interchange hubs at 

Crathes and Oldmeldrum.  Nestrans also funded a further phase of resurfacing at the 

Kingswells Park and Ride site and this was completed in June 2021.  The Park and 

Ride website is now incorporated within the wider Getabout website and continues to 

be kept up to date with relevant changes. 

 

Managing Demand (MD) 

Nestrans responded to the Transport Scotland consultations on regulations and 

guidance for Workplace Parking Licencing and the route map to achieve a 20% 

reduction in car kilometres.  

 

Reducing Emissions from Transport (RE) 

Nestrans contributed to the cost of developing a Low Emission Zone (LEZ) within 

Aberdeen and participated in the client group for this project.  A public consultation on 

the proposed LEZ boundary was undertaken by Aberdeen City Council in summer 

2021 and the proposed scheme was published for a formal objection period in 

November 2021. A small number of further revisions were made to the LEZ boundary 

and this has now been submitted by the Council to Scottish Ministers for consideration. 

 

Nestrans contributed to the purchase of two electric minibuses and charging 

infrastructure to support school transport and social work services in the Fraserburgh 

area.  Nestrans co-ordinated with Network Rail as a single point of contact for the 

North East to arrange a meeting with relevant officers in the Council structures, 

transport and roads teams to obtain feedback regarding bridge heights for 

electrification to meet the aims of the Rail Services Decarbonisation Action Plan. 

 

Encouraging Behaviour Change (BC) 

Travel planning support and active and sustainable travel continued to be promoted 

through the Getabout brand although this mainly centred around providing advice in 

accordance with latest government guidance in response to the Covid pandemic.  

Getabout partners did however support the final stage of the 2021 Tour of Britain 

between Stonehaven and Aberdeen. 

 

A campaign focussed on road safety for cyclists, drivers and pedestrians was 

undertaken in summer 2021 in partnership with Road Safety North East Scotland.  The 

partners also worked together on the “Be Bright at Night” campaign that focused on 

road safety, particularly around vulnerable road users, in the dark or bad weather 

during winter months.  Police Scotland and City Wardens again distributed Getabout 

branded cycle lights that were purchased by Nestrans to cyclists who didn’t have lights 
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in an effort to improve safety.  Both major campaigns also used radio advertising, 

billboards, bus shelter and digital screen adverts that were funded by Nestrans.   

 

Nestrans funded replacement bikes and helmets for the Getabout Cycle Roadshow 

and for Bikeability training to enable Sport Aberdeen to replenish stock for use at 

schools and events to promote cycling and sustainable travel when restrictions allow. 

Although car sharing has not been promoted in the past year due to the ongoing Covid 

restrictions, the annual licence for the Getabout Liftshare website was renewed to 

retain membership details and enable future promotion should restrictions ease. 

 

Nestrans funded a further series of six travel behaviour and attitude surveys 
throughout the year to supplement those undertaken in 2020/21 and enable an 

awareness of how this is changing as a result of Covid-19 restrictions.  The results of 
each individual survey and a final overall report were shared with partners and 
published on the Nestrans website. 

 

Maintaining and Improving the Region’s Transport Network (MI) 

Nestrans continue to participate in the Partnership Group overseeing the A90/A937 

Laurencekirk south junction upgrade and in the past year Transport Scotland and their 

consultants have continued to look at options to address the small number of 

objections to the Draft Orders for the scheme that were published in December 2019.  

The preferred option to dual the remaining section of the A96 between east of Huntly 

and Aberdeen that was identified in December 2020 has not been progressed in the 

past year following the Bute House Agreement, which states that a transparent, 

evidence-based review of the plans to fully dual the A96 will be undertaken in 2022 

and include a climate compatibility assessment. 

 

Nestrans provided funding for resurfacing works on the A93 North Deeside Road at 

Peterculter and on the A956 King Street in Aberdeen.  Funding was also provided for 

the installation of Internet Protocol closed-circuit television (IPCCTV) equipment at 

traffic signals along the A944 Queens Road Corridor and installation of further 

Automatic Number Plate Recognition (ANPR) journey time monitoring. 

 

Facilitating the Movement of Freight (FR) 

The Freight Working Group met online in October 2021 to discuss national and 

regional freight issues. Nestrans continued to manage the E-cargo bikes pilot for last 

mile deliveries in the City Centre using the six bikes purchased through a previous 

Transport Scotland Low Emission Zone Grant to Aberdeen City Council.  In the past 

year, the bikes have continued to be used by CFine and Fargo’s Cargo for food bank 

and grocery deliveries respectively and by Aberdeen City Council Countryside 

Rangers.  Information on the trial and applicant guidance is published on the Nestrans 

website for those interested in participating and social media was used to try and 

encourage applications.  As there were unused bikes, it was agreed that they could 

be loaned to organisations within Aberdeenshire that had shown interest and bikes 

have been loaned to The Haven in Stonehaven for food bank deliveries and to Aden 

Country Park, Mintlaw where it is being managed by Buchan Development Partnership 
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and used by a variety of community groups.  The final bike was loaned to Glen Tanar 

Estate in February 2022. 

 

External Air and Sea Connections (AS) 

Works are continuing on the new Aberdeen South Harbour, in preparation for 

commencement of the operational phase in the coming year.  Nestrans continue to 
liaise closely with both Aberdeen International Airport, Aberdeen Harbour Board and 

Peterhead Port on strategic developments such as Green Freeport projects, Energy 
Transition initiatives, and representing regional interests in our responses to 
consultations such as the Strategic Transport Projects Review, and Union Connectivi ty 

Review.  
 

Road Safety and Casualty Reduction (RS) 

Nestrans is a member of the Road Safety North East Scotland (RSNES) partnership 

along with Aberdeen City Council, Aberdeenshire Council, Moray Council, NHS 

Grampian, North Safety Camera Unit, Road Safety Scotland, Police Scotland and the 

Scottish Fire and Rescue Service.  The partners continue to work together to promote 

road safety and road casualty reduction across the North East of Scotland and the 

Nestrans Director became Chair of the partnership from January 2022.  As noted 

earlier, the RSNES partners worked with the Getabout partnership for a summer road 

safety campaign and winter “Be Bright at Night” campaign.  The recent changes to the 

Highway Code Advice were also publicised.  

 

Unfortunately the intention to undertake cycle education in Aberdeenshire’s Integrated 

Travel Towns and bespoke road safety talks in towns with high collision incidences 

has had to again be postponed due to Covid restrictions, but it is intended to progress 

these when permissible.  Nestrans has however funded a number of road safety 

projects throughout Aberdeenshire that included renewal of reflective road studs, 

zebra crossing retrofits with Halo Beacons, bend mitigation and skid resistance 

improvements.  Improvements to variable message sign units at schools in Aberdeen 

have also been funded.  

 

Improving Accessibility in Rural Areas (RU) 

Aberdeenshire Council launched the Aberdeenshire Enhanced Demand Responsive 

Transport Service 'Ready2Go' in the Inverurie area in August 2021 and Nestrans is 

contributing to the evaluation of the trial that will make recommendations on where 

and how such a model of service delivery could be implemented elsewhere within 

Aberdeenshire. 

 

Nestrans is liaising with the Cairngorm National Park to discuss sustainable transport 

proposals for the Deeside area that could be delivered through some of their 

£12.5million Heritage Horizon Award funding. 

 

Improving Access to Health (HE) 

Nestrans has continued to contribute along with NHS Grampian to the cost of the 
Health & Transport Action Plan manager post.  We have worked with the manager, 
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NHS Grampian, our two Councils, Moray Council, the Scottish Ambulance Service and 

representatives from the third sector, Health & Social Care Partnerships, a member of 
the Mobility and Access Committee for Scotland (MACS) and a Public Representative 

on the two themes within the Action Plan: 
 
o Transport and Public Health – The HTAP partners continued to work 

together to promote and implement latest guidance relating to safe travel 
during the Covid-19 pandemic.  This included preparation of a film with 

travel planning advice for getting to the new vaccination centre in Aberdeen 
City Centre that opened in September 2021 and promotion of latest 
guidance via the Getabout website.  The bid by HTAP partners to Sustrans 

for a three-year NHS Workplace Engagement Project Officer was 
successful and an officer is in post that is being fully funded by Sustrans in 

2021/22, with Nestrans and NHS Grampian agreeing to match fund the cost 
of the post in the second and third years of the scheme.  The project 
focuses on four hospital locations across Grampian and the officer has 

delivered a travel survey, walking challenge, improved cycle parking and 
contributed to transportation consultations.   

 
o Access to Health and Social Care – Partnership working has been used to 

provide consistent communication across a variety of platforms for the roll 

out of vaccinations and increased usage of internet and telephone 
appointment services during the pandemic.  Nestrans again contributed to 

the Transport to Healthcare Information Centre (THInC) service that gave 
travel advice to residents from multiple transport providers for travel to/from 
test, treatment and vaccination centres throughout Grampian.  A Patient 

Guide on planning non-emergency transport was produced and forms part 
of a wider piece of work being done within NHSG on Patient Flow and 

Discharge. 
 

The Affordability of Transport (AF) 

Nestrans supported the national launch of Free Bus Travel for 5- to 21-year-olds living 

in Scotland, through its social media postings.  

 

Improving Access to the Transport Network for All (AA) 

Although it was again not appropriate to publicise public transport in the past year due 

to the Covid-19 pandemic, the GrassHOPPER multi-operator service sales and usage 

increased steadily throughout the year.  

 

Nestrans contributed along with other Regional Transport Partnerships to the 

management and marketing support for Thistle assistance website, cards and leaflet 

production and postage.  Nestrans also funded the creation of formal disabled parking 

spaces to give access to the top end of Hazlehead Cemetery, as well as Hazlehead 

Policies and Hazlehead Park to address demand identified through a consultation 

undertaken by Aberdeen City Council with those with mobility issues.  As noted under 

rail above, the technical findings of the options appraisal for improved access at Insch 

Railway Station were accepted by Transport Scotland. 
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Planning and Designing Places for People (PP) 

Nestrans officers are supporting Aberdeen City Council in various projects associated 

with the City Centre Masterplan.  These include considering options for Central Union 

Street, traffic management and bus priority proposals for Bridge Street, Market Street 

and Guild Street.  Nestrans is also supporting work on the development of a Beach 

Development Framework, including the link between the city centre and the beach 

area.   

 

The Scottish Government published the draft fourth National Planning Framework on 

10 November 2021 for consultation and Nestrans has participated with the various 

engagement mechanisms for NPF4 and submitted a response to the consultation 

regarding specific transport issues affecting the north east. 

 

Future Impact of New Technologies (NT) 

Nestrans funded a traffic signal review and software improvements to ensure optimal 

staging and synchronisation between junctions on the King Street and Market Street 

corridors and routes feeding onto these corridors that are used by a number of bus 

services.  An upgrade to the Osprey urban traffic management and control system 

was also funded to enable Aberdeen City Council's Intelligent Transport Systems unit 

to create strategies more easily, which will be particularly useful for automated network 

management during major events. 

 

Nestrans also funded the purchase of three weather stations in Aberdeen that will 

assist Council officers to make vital real-time decisions regarding the treatment of the 

road, footway and cycleway networks. 

 

 
Partnership Working 

 
Partnership working is of key importance in achieving the vision of the RTS, as most 

projects require delivery by other organisations, particularly our partners Aberdeen 

City Council and Aberdeenshire Council. Nestrans continues to collaborate with those 

developing and delivering transport strategies and projects of importance to the North 

East to seek to influence and prioritise this work to enhance travel options within the 

region and improve connections to the rest of Scotland, the UK and beyond.   

 

The Nestrans Chair sits on the National Transport Strategy (NTS2) Delivery Board and 

the Director sits on the Governance group. During the past year, Nestrans also 

continued to chair the regional working group for the Strategic Transport Projects 

Review (STPR2) for the North East, and national liaison group.  Nestrans are also 

active members of the Society of Chief Officers of Transportation in Scotland 

(SCOTS), with the Strategy Manager chairing the Transport Working Group, and 

through this is influencing national approaches through its linkages with CoSLA, and 

Transport Scotland.  
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Both the Director and Strategy Manager provide transport input to the Aberdeen City 

Region Deal.  In the past year, this has seen continued progression of the strategic 

regional Aberdeen Sub Area Model (ASAM) to a new 2019 base year to reflect 

changes to the transport network following the opening of the Aberdeen Western 

Peripheral Route.  The Strategic Business Case for the recommended option for 

transport link upgrades to the new Aberdeen South Harbour was finalised and 

approved, with design work now being taken forward by Aberdeen City Council.  

Nestrans also commissioned consultancy support for scoping of Live Lab Proposals, 

to identify potential pilot interventions as learning opportunities that are feasible for 

delivery within the next five years. 

 

Nestrans has continued to contribute financially towards and be fully involved with both 

Aberdeen City and Aberdeenshire Community Planning Partnerships.  Nestrans also 

engages in other groups/projects including the Northern Roads Collaboration, 

Regional Economic Strategy, Aberdeen Net Zero working group and Climate Ready 

Aberdeenshire.   

  

 

 
Projects 

 
In 2021/22, Nestrans provided funding towards the following projects: 
 

Strategic Investment Programme    
  

 Rail 
Kintore Station – payment of Nestrans’ share that contributed alongside 

Aberdeenshire Council’s share to 40% of the total overall cost 
 

 Strategic Roads – Capacity 

Strategic Network Monitoring Phase 4, Queens Road corridor – Installation of 
Internet Protocol closed-circuit television (IPCCTV) equipment at traffic signals to 

monitor and better manage changes in traffic flow  
Osprey Upgrade – To enable Aberdeen City Council’s traffic systems unit to create 
strategies more easily for use at events 

 

 Strategic Roads - Safety  

Active Travel Bridge Options Study between Banff and Macduff across the River 
Deveron 
Bend mitigation and skid resistance improvement on strategic routes 

Renewal of reflective road studs on various strategic routes  
Variable Message Signs at schools in Aberdeen 

 

 Strategic prioritised maintenance  

A93 Peterculter resurfacing 
A956 King Street resurfacing 
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Bus Improvements 

Ellon Park & Ride - bus infrastructure enhancement elements 
A93 Crathes mini-hub – further design and land negotiation 

Oldmeldrum Interchange Hub – Further design and land negotiation 
B9000 Bridgend to Tarty footpath and bus stop infrastructure – design and 
construction of new footpath 

Peterhead bus interchange – design work and tender documentation 
Bus stop information initiatives - Reactive programme resulting for bus stop 

changes through the year and any remedial works identified through inspections 
A90/A92 Blackdog access to Bus Services – design and tender process 
Kingswells Park & Ride - Resurfacing section of used by buses Phase 2 

Bus journey time improvements through signalised junction control review - 
revalidation of SCOOT signal timings on King St and Market St corridors 

Refresh of Aberdeen City bus stop flags – preparation of tender documentation 
Real Time Information expansion in Aberdeenshire – purchase of portable E-paper 
totem and E-paper bus stop flags. 

 

 Walking and Cycling: 

A96 Kintore/Blackburn Cycleway – design and surveys 
A90 Ellon/Foveran/Newburgh Cycleway – design and engagement 
B9002 Kennethmont footway – Land purchase and footway design 

Maconochie Rd, Fraserburgh – Design of a Shared Use Footway / Cycleway 
between Fraserburgh Community & Sports Centre to Seaforth Street 

Sauchen/Cluny - Construction of a Shared Use Cycleway / Footway contribution 
North/South Link to Inverurie Academy – Design of a shared used footway which 
extends to the new academy campus via Kellands Park to Port Elphinstone onto 

the A96 Inverurie to Kintore Strategic link 
Formartine & Buchan Way – Contribution to costs of installing 4 timber kit bridges 

Westburn/Lang Stracht /Anderson Drive junction - Detailed design of options for 
alterations with a focus on improvements for Active travel 
Craigshaw cycle route – further development and design of options for a cycle link 

Wellheads Drive cycle link – completion of design of an extension to the Wellheads 
cycle route to Farburn Terrace and progressing land acquisition 

Hazlehead Park footpath improvement - Improvements to footpath opposite 
restaurant leading to children's play area and further onto Hazlehead woodlands 
footpath network 

Allan Park access footways – Bitmac surfacing to improve accessibility 
Friarsfield Path – Resurfacing, edging of path and drainage system repairs 

CP6 Seaton Park to Car Park and Bus Parking Facility – Resurfacing to provide a 
DDA compliant surface and facilitate bus use to the area 
Cycle Racks at major play parks 

Berryden active travel connections - feasibility and design 
Cycle Maintenance Stands - Installation and Repairs 

Cycle Counter Maintenance 
Using RTP Active Travel Grant from Scottish Government:  
Formartine & Buchan Way – Resurfacing of Ellon Viaduct and a number of path 

improvements in the area 
A944 Cycle Path – Completion of study into option feasibility and design 

Review of Core Path Network in Aberdeen 
Purchase of four timber kit bridges for F&B Way 
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Using National Cycle Network Development Grant from Sustrans: 

Further Deeside Way path improvements  
 

Using Active Travel Development Officer Grant from Sustrans: 
Contribution to increase number of pedestrian and cycle counters being funded 
and installed by Cycling Scotland in the North East from nine to twenty-one 

(with Cycling Scotland also providing a 5-year warranty, data hosting and site 
maintenance support for all 21 new counters) 

Health checks and minor upgrades to Deeside Way and Formartine & Buchan 
Way  
Review of cycle network provision in Aberdeen  

 
 

 Carbon Reduction and Air Quality 
Contribution to two electric minibuses and charging infrastructure for Fraserburgh 
area 

Aberdeen Low Emission Zone – contribution to fund modelling of the LEZ boundary 
options with the City Centre Masterplan transport interventions in place 

 

 Various 

A944/B9119 multi-modal corridor study detailed appraisal and business 
case/delivery of minor schemes – contribution to progress study until 2 August 
when BPF grant funding then used 

Wellington Road multi-modal corridor study – completion of option appraisal study 
Ellon to Aberdeen City Centre to Garthdee multi-modal corridor study – contribution 

until BPF grant funding  
A96 multi-modal corridor study – contribution until BPF grant funding awarded 
Aberdeen Rapid Transit Vision and Bus Partnership Fund bid - consultancy support 

A947 multi-modal corridor study – consultancy support to commence option 
appraisal 

A93 multi-modal corridor study – consultancy support to commence option 
appraisal 
Hazlehead Cemetery Disabled Parking – Provision of formal disabled parking 

spaces 
Roadside weather station network – Purchase and installation of three weather 
stations 

Automatic Number Plate Recognition Monitoring Sites – Installation of further sites 
 

Using Local Rail Development Fund grant from Scottish Government: 
Aberdeen to Laurencekirk multi-modal corridor study 

 

 
Co-ordination & Project Development Programme 

 

 Bus Action Plan 

Real Time Information E-paper displays and bus stop infrastructure in 
Aberdeenshire 
Region Wide Real Time system annual maintenance contribution 

Contribution to  Public Transport Accessibility Study - 'Ready2Go' Evaluation 
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 General 

Zebra Crossing Retrofits in Aberdeenshire 
Travel attitude and behaviour surveys  

 

 Project Feasibility and Design 

Cross City Connections Study – Review of Outcomes 
 

 Travel Planning 

Sustainable Travel Grant Scheme and Communities Sustainable Travel Grant 
Getabout safe and sustainable travel promotion and travel planning support 

Aberdeen Bike Hire Scheme Support – purchase of membership subscriptions 
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Statement on Improving Efficiency, Effectiveness and Economy 
 
Nestrans staff continued to work predominantly from home throughout the 2021/22 
financial year as a result of the ongoing Covid-19 pandemic.  The organisation continued 

to work collaboratively to develop the new Regional Transport Strategy to 2040 and to 
seek partner support in beginning to deliver the aims within the strategy.  Every effort 

was also made to continue to secure additional external funding where available to 
deliver transport benefits for the North East.  
 

Nestrans continued to seek and implement initiatives to assist in improving the 
efficiency, effectiveness and economy of the services delivered. A brief overview of 

these initiatives has been included.  
 

Shared Services  

 
Legal, Administrative, Financial, ICT, HR and Public Relations Services  

The activities of Nestrans continue to be supported by partner Councils through the 

provision of specialist assistance and advice. These activities are governed by 
separate Service Level Agreements. The use of existing support staff is considered to 
be an efficient and economic use of an existing pool of specialist staff, the cost of 

which would be significantly higher if an external or dedicated in-house cadre of 
similarly qualified and experienced staff were to be used. Details of each support 

service are as follows: 

Legal & Administrative Services  

Legal Services etc are provided by Aberdeen City Council. Services include 
legal advice, contractual advice and provision of clerking for the Board and 
meetings. The cost of legal and contractual advice was £2,320 in 2021/22, 

whereas the administrative costs of clerking for the Board remained at £20,000.  

Treasurer 
Financial support is provided by Aberdeenshire Council. Services provided 
include invoice and payment processing, financial ledger, regular financial 

monitoring reporting to the Board, internal audit, liaising with external audit, 
assistance with budget preparation and control, final accounts preparation and 

pension fund management, general accountancy advice and treasury 
management. Since 2012/13 this has been extended to include financial 
services relating to the Strategic Transport Fund that was set up for developer 

contributions to strategic transport measures. The cost of this service has 
remained fixed at £21,100 per annum. 

ICT Services 
Aberdeen City Council provides and maintains quality Information and 

Communication Technology Services. The cost is based on the software , 
licensing and support costs per member of staff per annum and resulted in a 

charge of just over £6,300 in 2021/22.  
 

HR Services  

HR services are provided by Aberdeenshire Council. This includes drafting and 
review of HR policies and procedures, monitoring any changes in legislation, 
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support in dealing with staff matters, offering advice on related matters and 
reporting to the Nestrans Board.  The cost of this service has remained at 

£15,900 per annum. 

 
Public Relations Services  
Since July 2016 public relations, marketing and event management services 

have been provided under a Service Level Agreement by Aberdeenshire 
Council. A dedicated Nestrans communications officer works two days per 

week solely for Nestrans, with access to the wider team within the Council out 
with these days. The various duties provided include promoting Nestrans and 
Getabout, liaising with the media, arranging press releases, supporting events 

– including advising on and seeking of advertising and relevant promotional 
merchandise, attending Board meetings, arranging design work and preparing 

communications updates for Members. The Service Level Agreement was due 
for renewal in 2021 and it was suggested that Nestrans could get better value 
by directly employing the officer.  Nestrans Board agreed to employ the officer 

directly and extend the cover from two to three days per week and this took 
effect from 1 January 2022 with the cost under the SLA until then being 

£13,846.  Aberdeenshire Council have committed to providing support, 
including cover for urgent work and holiday/absence cover, if required. 

Getabout Partnership 

Nestrans is a key member of the Getabout Partnership that also consists of Aberdeen 
City Council, Aberdeenshire Council, NHS Grampian, Aberdeen University, Robert 

Gordon University, North East College, the James Hutton Institute and the Energy 
Savings Trust. The joint working of the partnership continues to provide increased 

efficiency and effectiveness when promoting sustainable travel throughout the region 
via a single brand. In the past year the website and social media have continued to be 
used to provide latest transport advice in accordance with government guidance 

relating to the pandemic. 

 ACTtravelwise Membership  
Nestrans again negotiated a group membership for all members of the 
Getabout partnership to ACTtravelwise for 2021/22 that resulted in a saving in 

comparison with the cost that individual memberships would otherwise have 
been and enabling partners to participate in online events.  

Getabout Cycle Roadshow 
Although the Getabout cycle roadshow has not been used throughout 2021/22 

due to public events not being held, Nestrans has however funded further bikes, 
scooters and helmets to replenish the stock and make it available in future at 
events organised by the Getabout partners to encourage active travel.  A 

number of bikes and helmets were also funded for I-bike and Bikeability training 
at schools to enable those that do not have a bike or helmet to still take part. 

Liftshare 
Nestrans has continued to fund the central data base for car sharing throughout 

the region under contract with Liftshare Ltd as this regional umbrella contract 

gave savings compared to each of the partners contracting individually and 

provided customers access to a larger database for potential matching of trips.  
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Although car sharing has not been recommended or promoted during covid 

travel restrictions, the contract was renewed for 2021/22 to ensure the details 

of members and those within the private groups that third parties pay for within 

the overall Getabout Liftshare umbrella were retained and so it would have 

been possible to promote car sharing again should restrictions have eased. 

 

ASAM Regional Transport Model  

The Aberdeen Sub Area Model (ASAM) is a multi-modal strategic model for the North 

East of Scotland, which is managed and maintained by Nestrans.   Transport Scotland 
however provide administration support for requests to use the latest ASAM model via 

the LATIS website. In the last year, the model has been used by local authorities for 
future year demand predictions and strategic input to local micro simulation models 
for Aberdeen City Centre that is being used to develop options for a Low Emission 

Zone and to progress development of the City Centre Masterplan.  Ongoing work for 
the Strategic Transport Projects Review (STPR2) on behalf of Transport Scotland will 

also have made use of ASAM14 as permission was previously granted for this.  
Developers have also been granted access to model and traffic survey information 
when undertaking Transport Assessments, thus ensuring that the local planning 

authorities’ requirements are met using the best available means.   
 

A further upgrade of ASAM to a 2019 base is ongoing and nearing completion.  It has 
benefitted from methodologies developed for the Tay Cities Regional Transport Model 
and data shared by Transport Scotland from National models and under Scotland -

wide licences they have obtained. 
 

East Coast Main Line Authorities 

Nestrans continue to be partners in the consortium of East Coast Main Line Authorities 
(ECMA). All partners contribute to the consortium, which is a grouping of local 

authorities and Regional Transport Partnerships that aim to work in partnership to 
promote the case for investment in the line to enable economic growth. 
 

Thistle Assistance Card 

Nestrans again contributed along with other Regional Transport Partnerships to the 

cost of marketing, maintaining and updating the website and App for the Thistle 
Assistance cards that are used by people when using public transport.  Sestran 
manage this scheme thus providing efficiency and effectiveness benefits nationally.  

As well as fixed costs for management and marketing support there was a recharge 
for the leaflets printed and posted out to the Nestrans area of which there were 110 

items posted in 2021/22.  
 

Attracted Funding and Cost Savings 

 
Sustainable Travel Grant Scheme 

Nestrans provides a Sustainable Travel Grant Scheme, which can provide up to 50% 

match funding to organisations investing in measures to promote more sustainable 
travel by their employees or customers. In 2021/22 a grant was awarded by Nestrans 

to Aberdeenshire Council, providing match funding of £2,204 for the installation of 
cycle parking at the Green, Portlethen.   
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Communities Sustainable Travel Grant Scheme 

Nestrans approved the creation of a new grant that does not contain a requirement for 

50% match funding that many community groups, smaller third sector organisations 
and social enterprises had struggled to find. An award was made to Strichen 

Community Park for a cycle repair station next to the Lodge Café, with the Community 
Park Company carrying out and meeting the costs of installing the repair station.  A 
further award to Lumphanan Paths group for draining and clearing a local right of way 

from Lumphanan Old School to Milton of Auchenlove was supported via group funds 
and in-kind volunteer time to help with the project.   

 
ASAM Regional Transport Model Update 

The update of the Aberdeen Sub Area Model (ASAM) to a 2019 base year previously 

commissioned by Nestrans has been progressed to ensure it continues to provide a 
suitably robust basis for transport and land use appraisal and reflects any change in 

travel patterns following the opening of the Aberdeen Western Peripheral Route and 
Balmedie to Tipperty dualling that was completed in February 2019. It will also provide 
greater functionality by including active travel, city centre parking capacity and 

representation of LEZ compliant vehicles. 
 

The data surveys commissioned specifically for the ASAM19 update have continued 
to be made available for a number of public and private sector studies following 
requests submitted to Transport Scotland via their Land Use and Transport 

Integrations in Scotland (LATIS) data service. The current strategic model (ASAM14) 
is also listed within the section on Regional Transport models on the LATIS website 

along with a copy of the model development report and Transport Scotland continued 
to administer the application process for access to the ASAM model or data via the 
LATIS website. 

 
The ASAM19 update has also benefited from the sharing of methodologies developed 

for other regional strategic models and input from the national suite of models. 
Although Nestrans manages ASAM, the cost of the update is being met through the 
Aberdeen City Region Deal funding as the model will be used to appraise transport 

options. The cost recharged in 2021/22 for model development and audit work 
associated with ASAM19 amounted to £106,215.  ASAM19 base model road and 

public transport matrices were made available to the consultants commissioned to 
develop options for the Aberdeen Rapid Transit scheme to provide high level demand 
flows within the study area for the purposes of the appraisal. 

 
Sustrans Grants 

Nestrans agreed in 2021 to make the cycling development officer post that had 
previously been appointed under a two-year contract, a full-time member of staff and 
rename the post as Active Travel Development Officer (ATDO). Sustrans continued to 

provide a capital contribution of up to £100,000 per annum to Nestrans as a result of 
funding this post.  The award for 2020/21 for additional pedestrian and cycle counters 

was carried forward to 2021/22 following discussion by the ATDO with Cycling 
Scotland and Sustrans that brokered an agreement for Cycling Scotland to install the 
counters and for information to feed into Cycling Scotland's Active Travel Open Data 

portal that previously had no information for the Nestrans area.  The Sustrans Grant 
funded counters at 12 locations across the region, with Cycling Scotland funding an 
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additional 9 sites as well as the installation costs, a 5-year warranty, data hosting and 
site maintenance support for all 21 sites. 

 
The ATDO grant for 2021/22 was used to fund a cycle network data review and gap 

analysis for Aberdeen and health check survey on the Deeside Way and Formartine 
& Buchan Way, followed by a number of minor upgrades on both routes.  The final 
grant claimed by the deadline of the end of the financial year amounted to £46,939 

due to both consultancy studies both being cheaper than the agreed budget and 
difficulty in procuring more of the suggested upgrades due to Council and external 

resources being allocated to other priorities. 
 
Due to the impacts of the Covid-19 pandemic, Sustrans agreed that the timescale for 

claiming the grant offered through the  National Cycle Network Development fund in 
2020/21 for improvements on the Deeside Way could be extended until summer 2021. 

As a result, officers at Aberdeenshire Council were able to complete further works 
amounting to £68,075 for path improvements between Milton of Crathes to Birkenbaud 
and a section near Drumoak as well as some snagging to address drainage issues 

near Ballater. 
 

 
RTP Active Travel Grant 

The remaining 2020/21 grant award of £180,375 could continue to be claimed unti l 

end June 2021 due to the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic.   This enabled a sum of 
£157,567 to be claimed to complete work on the A944 Westhill to Kingswells Cycle 

Route study and resurfacing of the Ellon Viaduct and phase 1 of path improvements 
in this area. The Scottish Government again offered an Active Travel Grant to Regional 
Transport Partnerships in 2021/22 with Nestrans being awarded up to £274,000.  The 

grant was used in full to fund phase 2 of further path improvements in the Ellon area, 
to undertake a review of the Core Path networks in Aberdeen and to continue the 

bridge repair/replacement works on the Formartine and Buchan Way.  As any capital 
works being funded required a 30% contribution, Nestrans provided £50,000 towards 
the cost of installing four timber bridges previously purchased and this also attracted 

funding from and was organised by Aberdeenshire Council, who also met the 
additional costs for completing the phase 2 path improvements in the Ellon area and 

provided extra funding to increase the number of bridges purchased in 2021/22 for the 
Formartine & Buchan Way to five. 
  
Local Rail Development Fund  

Nestrans was previously successful in applying to Transport Scotland’s Local Rail 

Development Fund in August 2019 for £80,000 to undertake a multi-modal STAG 
appraisal between Aberdeen and Laurencekirk.  A sum of £30,700 had been claimed 
in 2020/21 for works on the case for change and Transport Scotland agreed to 

increase the grant by £15,321 to undertake further consultation to inform the case for 
change, which was completed and submitted. The deadline for claiming the remaining 

grant was extended until 30 June 2022 due to the ongoing pandemic.   
 
Scottish Stations Fund Grant 

In 2016 the Minister for Transport approved an award of 60% for Kintore Railway 
Station.  The new station opened in October 2020 and the final costs and previous 

costs met by Nestrans and Aberdeenshire Council that were fundamental to the 
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subsequent design and delivery and in acquiring land have been agreed with 
Transport Scotland, who managed the overall delivery of the scheme.  The final share 

of the 40% to be met be Aberdeenshire Council and Nestrans following the deduction 
of the agreed costs that had previously been incurred has now been agreed and was 

invoiced in March 2022.  As a result, Nestrans met around 24.3% of the total cost of 
this project, Aberdeenshire Council funded 15.7% and Scottish Government funded 
60%.   

 
Bus Partnership Fund Grant 

Nestrans funded consultancy support to assist the North East Bus Alliance to prepare 
a bid to the Scottish Government’s Bus Partnership Fund.  The bid was submitted by 
Aberdeen City Council on behalf of the Bus Alliance and an award made of 

£12,030,000.  Several of the multi modal corridor studies that were previously being 
funded by Nestrans have been progressed since August 2021 via the BPF award and 

Nestrans funding was reallocated to deliver further walking and cycling projects. 
 
Health and Transport Action Plan 

Nestrans continued to fund 50% of the costs of a support manager for the Health and 
Transport Programme in partnership with NHS Grampian in 2021/22.  

Nestrans has also continued to contribute along with Councils and NHS Grampian to 
deliver the Transport to Healthcare Information Centre (THInC). The public transport 
unit within Aberdeenshire Council operates this dedicated telephone service to provide 
information on transport options for access to all NHS Grampian sites and continued 

to provide an excellent service to residents of Grampian during the pandemic by giving 
travel advice and co-ordination of information from multiple transport providers across 

the region, including private operators contracted by NHSG, community/voluntary 
transport organisations and Councils, for getting to/from Test Centres, treatment and 
Vaccination Centres.   

Aberdeen Low Emission Zone Development 

Nestrans contributed to the cost of developing a Low Emission Zone (LEZ) within 
Aberdeen and participated in the client group for this project.  Aberdeen City Council 

received grant from Transport Scotland for the development and appraisal of options 
for the LEZ and Nestrans funding was used to expand the appraisal to consider the 
City Centre Master Plan schemes previously approved by the Council alongside the 

LEZ options to ensure that they were complementary and to identify any necessary 
mitigation measures. 
 

Procurement Activity  
 

Scotland Excel Engineering and Technical Consultancy Services Framework 
Agreement (0820) 

Nestrans continues to be an associate member of Scotland Excel and as such can 

acquire consultancy services under the above framework agreement. Nestrans can 
use the framework to appoint consultants for services that cannot be undertaken in-

house or by neighbouring authorities, either due to a skill shortage, the specialist 
nature of the work, or due to other workload commitments.   
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APPENDIX 3 

Although there is no guarantee of work being awarded, any use of the framework 
significantly reduces the cost of procurement of services to Nestrans and the 

consultants. To award a work package there is the option of directly selecting a 
consultant within the relevant lot(s) or conducting a mini competition amongst relevant 

consultants. Work can be awarded on a priced contract (lump sum), target contract or 
time-based contract basis. Usage of the framework enables a compliant, best value 
and efficient method to procure technical services for Nestrans. In 2021/22 Nestrans 

either held mini competitions or placed direct awards through the framework for the 
following projects: 

 
o Aberdeen City Region Deal Scoping of Live Lab Proposals 
o Further Covid-19 travel attitude and behaviour surveys 

o Strategic Transport Appraisal/RTS2040 Strategic Environmental 
Assessment – Post Adoption Statement 

o Union Street Public Realm consultancy work 
o Ellon Traffic Survey Analysis 
o Aberdeen to Laurencekirk multi-modal study - additional Case for 

Change work 
o Core Path Network Survey – Aberdeen City Council Area 

o North East Scotland Bus Partnership Fund – Aberdeen Rapid Transit – 
Options Appraisal 

o Fabrication of Timber Bridge Kits for the Formartine & Buchan Way 
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NORTH EAST SCOTLAND TRANSPORT PARTNERSHIP – 22 June 2022 

 

 

5.1    Bus Partnership Fund Update 

 

 

1. Purpose of Report 

 
The purpose of this report is to update the Board on the Bus Partnership Fund (BPF) suite of 

projects, in particular the work on Aberdeen Rapid Transit.  

2. Background 

 
Nestrans’ Regional Transport Strategy to 2040 contains proposals to enhance public transport 

opportunities, particularly on key corridors and proposes a transformational Aberdeen Rapid 

Transit scheme.  As reported to the Board in September 2021, the North East Bus Alliance was 

successful in its bid to the Scottish Government’s Bus Partnership Fund and was awarded a first 

tranche of £12,030,000 for the following workstreams: 

I. £10,000,000 for ‘quick-win’ delivery of enabling works on South College Street, plus  

II. £1,400,000 for STAG/outline business case development for: 

i. City Centre; 

ii. Ellon to Garthdee; 

iii. Westhill to Aberdeen; 

iv. Inverurie to Aberdeen; 

v. Stonehaven to Aberdeen; and 

vi. Aberdeen Rapid Transit 

III. £630,000 for comms/engagement, programme management and other costs related to 

the development of the proposals. 

The wider vision of the BPF bid is to deliver Aberdeen Rapid Transit, a bus rapid transit system 

on four key radial corridors from Aberdeenshire into Aberdeen and the city centre and to deliver 

the significant bus priority on these corridors upon which a successful ART system will depend.   

3. Bus Partnership Fund Progress Update 

 
The Bus Partnership Fund Working Group continues to meet on a monthly basis and involves 
Nestrans and both Councils, along with First Aberdeen and Stagecoach, who are partners in the 
North East Bus Alliance and Transport Scotland.  Monthly progress reports are submitted to 
Transport Scotland as a requirement of the funding award and these are co-ordinated by 
Aberdeen City Council.  The table below provides a summary of progress on each of the strands 
of the BPF workstreams. 
 

Project Current Stage Progress 

BPF004-1  
A90 Ellon to Garthdee  

Completion of 
STAG (Scottish 

Transport 
Appraisal 

This project has been completed and 
approved at Gateway Review to 

progress to BPF004-2 (Outline 
Business Case at BPF004-2)  
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Guidance) 
appraisal and 
identification of 

preferred options 

BPF004-2  
A90 Ellon to Garthdee 

Outline Business 
Case 

Development 

Tender awarded and inception phase 
commencing.  

BPF004-3  
A96 Inverurie to 
Aberdeen  

Completion of 
STAG appraisal 
and identification 

of preferred 
options 

Completed public and stakeholder 
engagement and final STAG Report 
received. Study outcomes and 

recommendations for next steps being 
reported to ACC Committee. The 

project is currently proceeding 
through Gateway Review with 
Transport Scotland with the review 

workshop held in May 2022.      

BPF004-5 
A944/A9119 Westhill 

to Aberdeen 

Completion of 
STAG appraisal 

and identification 
of preferred 
options 

Concept design work has been 
completed and presented to the client 

group. STAG appraisal of the options 
is now underway. Option appraisal 
due to be completed in May 2022. 

BPF004-7  
A92 Stonehaven to 
Aberdeen 

Completion of 
STAG appraisal 
and identification 

of preferred 
options 

Case for Change draft document and 
Transport Planning Objectives have 
been agreed for the section between 

Bridge of Don and Bridge of Dee. Next 
steps for this section will be to smarten 
the Transport Planning Objectives 

and undertake an option appraisal.  
 

The section between Bridge of Dee 
and Stonehaven has up to this point 
been part of a Transport Scotland 

case for change multimodal study, led 
by Nestrans. This work has now been 

completed. For coherence it is 
anticipated that Nestrans will continue 
to lead on this section of the corridor 

as a separate study under BPF. This 
is in part due to the anticipated 

outcomes of the south section of the 
corridor being quite different to those 
of the city section. Discussions are 

ongoing with Transport Scotland to 
separate the two parts of this study. 

BPF004-9  

City Centre  

Outline Business 

Case 
development 

Development of the Traffic 

Management Plan is ongoing, with a 
focus on fulfilling the Committee 
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instruction to re-open Union Street to 
buses and taxis as soon as practically 
possible.    

 
The Experimental Traffic Regulation 

Order (ETRO) for Union Street was 
published on 20 May 2022 to allow for 
a June reopening.  

The ETRO for the Market Street, Guild 
Street, Bridge Street gyratory is in the 

process of being developed.  
 
Meetings have been held with 

stakeholders to discuss the Union 
Street Options Appraisal work, to be 

reported back to Full Council, 
alongside a full update on the City 
Centre Masterplan. 

 

BPF004-11  
Aberdeen Rapid 

Transit 

Options Appraisal Revised Case for Change report, 
including Executive Summary, was 

reported to the Nestrans Board in April 
2022 and is now available on the 
Nestrans website. Meeting held with 

Transport for West Midlands on the 
Birmingham Sprint project, with 

findings fed into the Case for Change 
report. Draft Preliminary Options 
Appraisal received and circulated to 

the client group for comment.  
Ongoing work to identify future tests 

by the ASAM19 model to assess 
potential demand.  

BPF004-13  

South College Street 

Design and 

Preparation 

Main works contract has been 

awarded. Discussions on off-street 
car park access agreement has 
concluded. Car park will not be 

proceeding as part of the project. 
Advanced payments and the works 

order have been completed. Next step 
will be site team mobilisation. 

BPF004-14  
Comms and 

Engagement 

Inception Tender awarded to partnership of 
Jacobs and Social Marketing 

Gateway. Initial inception discussions 
were held with Nestrans and Jacobs, 

with the inception workshop held in 
early May. Jacobs drafting a short-
term comms plan with immediate 

priorities for engagement which will be 
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costed and fed into the inception 
report for review.  

BPF004-15 

Programme 
Management and 
Contingency/Optimism 

Bias 

Ongoing Programme Management is ongoing 

with monthly project reports being 
submitted to Transport Scotland. 
Quarterly financial claims commenced 

from October 2021 and the second 
claim was paid by Transport Scotland 

in March 2022. 
 

4. Aberdeen Rapid Transit (ART) 

 
As reported to the Board in September 2021, consultancy support has been procured to 

undertake a STAG-based options appraisal and business case preparation for Aberdeen Rapid 

Transit.  Stantec were commissioned in September 2021 to undertake this work which includes 

confirmation of the case for change, preliminary options appraisal, detailed options appraisal 

and subsequent business case development (subject to Bus Partnership Fund gateway review).  

 

The Case for Change stage has been completed and establishes five Transport Planning 

Objectives (TPOs) for an ART scheme: 

 TPO1: Substantially reduce public transport journey times in ART corridors; 

 TPO2: Achieve consistent public transport journey times across the day and week in 

ART corridors; 

 TPO3: Make travel on ART corridors fully accessible to all; 

 TPO4: Improve the perception of quality of bus travel in ART corridors; and  

 TPO5: Integrate ART services with all transport across the region and urban realm 

improvements. 

 

The full Case for Change report is available on the Nestrans website here. 

 

Work is currently ongoing to finalise the Preliminary Options Appraisal which assesses, at a high 

level, five broad approaches which could be adopted to deliver the ART concept.  The 

approaches consider the form of the network (infrastructure, network and services), and the 

deliverability and regulatory framework (Bus Services Improvement Partnerships or Franchise 

agreements).  The draft report is currently being reviewed by the client team and will be reported 

to the next Board in September.   

 

Learning from other BRT schemes 

 

Prior to the start of lockdown in early 2020, a site visit had been planned to Belfast to learn more 

about the Belfast Glider Bus Rapid Transit system in operation there.  Due to lockdown 

restrictions, this visit never took place, although in its place a presentation was given to the 

Nestrans Board on 10th February 2021 by a representative from the Department for 

Infrastructure in Northern Ireland on the Belfast Glider.   
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It is felt that a site visit to Belfast would however still be beneficial and it is proposed that officers 

organise for a delegation including a representative of the Nestrans Board to visit Belfast.  During 

the Case for Change stage of the study, discussions have also been had with officers involved 

in the development of the Birmingham Sprint network and also Bristol Metrobus.  Building on 

these initial discussions, it is proposed that officers explore opportunities for greater engagement 

with the teams in Birmingham and Bristol to understand more about their schemes and how they 

are being / have been developed, including the potential for site visits and face to face meetings 

where appropriate.   

 

5. Stakeholder Engagement, Marketing and Communications Support 

 

As part of the BPF award, up to £300,000 was allocated to communications and engagement 

support for the suite of BPF projects listed above.  Recognising the need for specialist external 

support and resources, Consultants Jacobs, in partnership with Social Marketing Gateway, have 

been appointed to develop and deliver a wide-reaching stakeholder engagement, marketing and 

communications plan to support the development and delivery of Aberdeen Rapid Transit (ART) 

and its supporting infrastructure.  The value of this commission will not exceed the £300,000 

awarded for this workstream up until the end of 2022/23 financial year through the Bus 

Partnership Fund.  The commission seeks to utilise expert market research techniques to gain 

representative bus user and wider stakeholder public opinion and insight and use this to inform 

ongoing communications, branding and promotion of the preferred option for ART. 

 

The intended outcomes for ART communications and engagement activity are: 

 To build awareness and understanding of the ART scheme and its benefits amongst the 

public and other key stakeholders; 

 To build a groundswell of support from the public and other key stakeholders for the 

proposed ART scheme;  

 To gain buy-in from elected members by giving them a key role, so that they feel 

responsibility for selling the benefits of ART and provide positive support;  

 To build the brand identity for ART and make it visible and demonstrate the benefits for the 

people and businesses in Aberdeen and the North East; 

 To encourage the public and key stakeholders to provide their views on what ART should 

be, to ensure it meets the needs of Aberdeen City and Shire; 

 To minimise risks by proactively identifying and addressing concerns, issues and problems 

from an early stage; 

 To protect and enhance the reputation of Nestrans, its partners and the ART scheme; 

 To support the timely and smooth consenting and delivery of ART. 

An inception meeting was held on 9th May and work to date has included discussions with the client 
team, members of the Bus Alliance and Stantec (the consultants undertaking the ART work) on the 
development of the short-term priorities (June – September 2022), development of a draft comms 
plan, agreement of key messages around ART and objectives of the market research as well as initial 
discussions to develop creative briefs for branding and website development.   
 
The short-term priorities for engagement will include an elected members briefing in September, as 
well as engagement with key business representatives and communities to start to communicate more 
widely the vision for ART and to engage with a wide range of interests from an early stage.   
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6. Recommendations 

 
It is recommended that the Board: 
 

1. Note the progress against each of the BPF projects;  
 

2. Agree that a delegation including representation from the Nestrans Board visit Belfast to 
learn more about the Glider and to instruct officers to arrange this for Autumn 2022;  

 
3. Agree that officers seek opportunities for greater engagement with the teams in 

Birmingham and Bristol, including the potential for site visits and face to face meetings; 
and  

 
4. Note the progress under engagement, marketing and communications, including proposals 

for an elected members briefing on ART in September 2022, following the summer recess. 
 

          KC/13 June 2022  
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NORTH EAST SCOTLAND TRANSPORT PARTNERSHIP – 22 June 2022 

 

 

5.2:  Aberdeen City Region Deal – Transport Update 

 

 
 Purpose of Report 

 

This report provides updates for the Nestrans Board on the Transport elements of the 

Aberdeen City Region Deal. 

 

 Introduction 

 

The Aberdeen City Region Deal was signed early in 2016, between the UK Government, 

Scottish Government, Aberdeen City Council, Aberdeenshire Council and Opportunity North 

East (ONE).  It provides a ten-year direct funding agreement of £270million, leveraging in 

private sector investment to a total deal value of £826million over a number of specific projects, 

including investment in Aberdeen South Harbour, funding for the Oil and Gas Technology 

Centre, Bio-Therapeutics Hub for Innovation, Agri-Food and Nutrition Hub for Innovation, and 

regional investment in digital infrastructure.  With respect to transport, the agreement includes 

£25million investment in improved access arrangements for Aberdeen South Harbour, and 

£7million for a Strategic Transport Appraisal.  

 

Two further transport projects were announced by Scottish Ministers alongside the 

announcement of the City Region Deal, although they do not fall formally within the terms of 

the deal as they are wholly funded and managed by Transport Scotland.  These are rail journey 

time and capacity improvements between Aberdeen and the Central Belt (£200million), and 

implementation of the A90/A937 Grade Separated Junction at Laurencekirk (£24million).   

 

The City Region Deal is governed by a Joint Committee consisting of three Elected Members 

from each of Aberdeen City Council and Aberdeenshire Council and three representatives of 

ONE, usually meeting four times a year.  A Programme Board of senior officers meets several 

weeks in advance of each Joint Committee to coordinate deal matters.  A City Region Deal 

Transport Working Group meets approximately six-weekly, formed of relevant officers from 

Nestrans, local authorities and Transport Scotland.  There is also regular liaison at a 

Programme level with representatives of the two governments.  Nestrans’ Strategy Manager 

acts as the Transport Lead for the Deal, and the Director sits on the Programme Board and 

advises the Joint Committee.   

 

The following sections provide updates for the two transport elements within the Deal, and the 

two transport schemes which are being progressed by Transport Scotland but are being 

reported alongside the Deal.  

 

 External Links to Aberdeen South Harbour 

 

Aberdeen City Council are managing this project aimed at improving transport linkages 

between Aberdeen South Harbour and the regional transport network.  It links to proposals for 

an Energy Transition Zone adjacent to Aberdeen South Harbour, as well as ongoing work 

considering options for the Wellington Road corridor.   
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5.2 City R egion Deal  2 

Following an extensive appraisal process, a preferred option was approved by Aberdeen City 

Council’s City Growth and Resources Committee in February 2021.  The Strategic Business 

Case, required to release the funding consent from the two Governments to enable the next 

stages of the detailed design process, was approved in March 2022 by the Scottish 

Government.  A procurement process is nearing completion for the appointment of design 

consultants, seeking to provide an accelerated programme for the next stages of work. 

 

The preferred option, which is illustrated below, improves the existing Coast Road and traffic 

signal controlled road-over-rail bridge, linking into Wellington Road at Hareness Roundabout 

via Hareness Road.  Active travel improvements, and options for public transport have also 

been identified.  

 

Preferred Option for Improved Road Connection to Aberdeen South Harbour 
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 Strategic Transport Appraisal 

 

The Strategic Transport Appraisal is tasked with considering the future transport requirements 

of the region over the next twenty years, taking account of the impacts arising from the 

investment associated with the Deal and completion of the Aberdeen Western Peripheral 

Route.  The longer-term potential impacts of Covid-19 are now another key consideration.  

 

Work on the Strategic Transport Appraisal to date has successfully informed the Strategic 

Development Plan, supported elements of the two Local Development Plans, provided the 

evidence for the Regional Transport Strategy, and has also supported Transport Scotland’s 

Strategic Transport Projects Review 2.  It also informed the region’s response to the draft 

National Planning Framework, NPF4. 

 

Proposals for the next stages of work on the Strategic Transport Appraisal were agreed by the 

City Region Deal Joint Committee on 10th June 2022, updating outline proposals which were 

presented in May 2021.  These were identified and developed by mapping proposals coming 

out of the Regional Transport Strategy to the key opportunities where CRD funding would 

facilitate clear progression and added value.  They are summarised as follows: 

1. Completion of Strategic Modelling Work, and subsequent testing of key areas of 

interest where previous work showed particular pressures on network performance. 

2. Appraisal and Business Case Development for A90(N)/A952 Corridor, building on the 

work previously done for Nestrans which considered upgrades to the Ellon by-pass, 

Toll of Birness junction and other associated safety and reliability measures on the 

routes between Ellon, Peterhead and Fraserburgh. 

3. Business Case Development for A956 Wellington Road Corridor, following completion 

of ongoing STAG options assessment on this route. 

4. Rail Freight Demand and Options study, considering future opportunities arising from 

Aberdeen South Harbour and the adjacent Energy Transition Zone.  

5. Pilot “Live-Lab” interventions, based on demonstrator projects which can be learned 

from, prior to wider roll out:  

a. Transport Mobility Hubs – City, Suburban and Rural Small Town – locations 

facilitating interchange to sustainable modes;  

b. Regional “demountable” Hydrogen Fuelling Hubs. 

The two “Live-Lab” proposals have been developed following scoping work commissioned by 

Nestrans on behalf of the CRD Transport Working Group (funded from the CRD STA budget).   

 

Nestrans will co-ordinate the delivery of these projects, through the City Region Deal Transport 

Working Group.   

 
 Aberdeen to Central Belt Rail Improvements 

 

Transport Scotland is managing this project, which is being delivered by Network Rail.  As 

previously reported to Nestrans Board (September 2020, Item 6.1), the emerging proposals 

focus on improvements to signalling, track layouts at stations, and freight loops, to achieve 

the following key outcomes: 

1. Reduction in inter-city journey times. 

a. Reduce the Journey Time between Aberdeen and Edinburgh to 2 hours 10 

minutes or better (from 2 hours 30 minutes current average); 
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b. Reduce the Journey Time between Aberdeen and Glasgow to 2 hours 30 

minutes or better (from 2 hours 39 minutes current average); and  

c. Reduce the Journey Time between Aberdeen and Dundee to 1 hour 10 minutes 

or better (from 1 hour 15 minutes current average).  

2. Enhancement of commuter services into Aberdeen and Dundee. 

3. Increased capacity on the line to enable new freight paths. 

 

Work continues to progress on this project, with the most recent update by Transport Scotland 

confirming that the option selection process is progressing well, and that indicative planning 

work has provided assurance that the scheme is deliverable for the December 2026 timetable 

change.  The project is also helping to pave the way for decarbonisation works, which will 

deliver further benefits.  

 
 Laurencekirk A90/A937 Junction Upgrade 

 

Transport Scotland is managing this project.  A Partnership Group with Aberdeenshire and 

Angus Councils, along with Nestrans, has been set up to support this project.  Consultation 

with the group has been maintained throughout the scheme development, with the most recent 

meeting in December 2021.  

 

The DMRB Stage 3 (Design Manual for Roads and Bridges) detailed development and 

assessment of the preferred option was completed with the culmination in the publication of 

the draft Orders and an Environmental Impact Assessment Report on 19 December 2019. A 

public exhibition was held on 10 January 2020 to allow local communities and road users to 

view and comment on proposals for the scheme. The statutory consultation period closed on 

14 February 2020.  

 

Three statutory objections were received from landowners directly affected by the Compulsory 

Purchase Order. The substance of these objections was primarily in relation to loss of land  

and access arrangements.  Aberdeenshire Council as local Roads Authority also lodged a 

statutory objection on the basis that the stopping up of Oatyhill Junction to the southern end 

of the Scheme would leave residents with a single point of access over the old Oatyhill rail 

bridge, and which is now currently closed to vehicular traffic due to structural issues 

 

Transport Scotland and their consultant team is understood to be continuing to negotiate with 

these parties, and are also assessing options to resolve the Oatyhill issue, with a view to 

progressing the scheme without the need for a Public Local Inquiry.  

 

 Recommendations 

 

It is recommended that the Board: 

a) Note the progress being made on the Transport elements of the Aberdeen City Region 

Deal, and associated projects being managed by Transport Scotland.  
 

PMF- June 2022 
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NORTH EAST SCOTLAND TRANSPORT PARTNERSHIP – 22 June 2022 

 

 

6.1    Active Travel Update  
 

 

1. Purpose of Report  

 

The purpose of this report is to provide an update to Board on progress made on the 
review of the Nestrans Active Travel Action Plan, Aberdeen joining Sustrans’ Walking 
and Cycling Index programme and on significant additional funding Nestrans has been 
awarded for Active Travel projects. 
   

2. Background  

 

2.1 The refresh of the Nestrans Regional Transport Strategy in January 2014 identified the 
need to develop a dedicated Active Travel Action Plan to sit alongside and complement   
action plans already established for bus, rail, freight, health and transport and travel 
planning. 

 

2.2 The Active Travel Action Plan 2014 – 2035 (AcTrAP) was published in December 
2014. By encouraging increased levels of active travel across the north east, it was 
intended to help deliver the aims of the then RTS, support local policies and partners 
and contribute towards national objectives such as the Cycling Action Plan for Scotland 
and the National Walking Strategy.  This plan is currently being reviewed so that, moving 
forward, it better reflects the new National Transport Strategy 2, the new Regional 
Transport Strategy and other policies and legislation that have come into force since 
2014. 

 
2.3 AcTrAP’s vision is ‘to create an environment and culture in which walking and cycling 

are convenient, safe, comfortable, healthy and attractive choices of travel for everyday 
journeys”. This remains as relevant as it was when the plan was published. However, 
as part of our ongoing review, the primary focus is on; 

 whether the existing objectives and indicators remain fully relevant, 

 measuring progress towards each of the individual actions, 
 establishing if there require to be additional actions created,  

 continuing a robust monitoring framework for coming years, and   

 reflecting on the progress made since AcTrAP’s publication.  
 

 

3. Sustrans’ Walking and Cycling Index 

 

3.1 Aberdeen is now enrolled in Sustrans’ Walking and Cycling Index (WACI) programme. 
This was previously known as Bike Life but, for the first time, now includes walking and 
wheeling analysis. WACI forms the biggest ever survey of walking, wheeling and cycling 
in 18 urban areas across the UK and Ireland. Each city reports every two years on the 
progress made towards making the modes more attractive, everyday ways to travel. 

3.2    Since the first reports in 2015, this data has informed policy decisions, justified 
investment and enabled cities to develop more ambitious action plans for walking, 
wheeling and cycling. WACI supports an understanding of walking, wheeling and cycling 
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issues and provides high-quality evidence aimed at helping bring neighbourhoods back 
to life and ensure walking and cycling are attractive and accessible for everyone. 

3.3    The Aberdeen Report contains a wealth of data based on an independent survey of 

1,313 city residents aged 16 years of over between June and August 2021. Among the 
areas covered are; 

 participation, safety and satisfaction thoughts of residents on walking, wheeling 
and cycling in Aberdeen,  

 an analysis of the health, economic and environmental benefits that walking, 
wheeling and cycling bring to the city, 

 detail of what residents want to make walking and cycling better in Aberdeen,  

 what people think would improve their neighbourhoods, 

 a review of recent developments and a look forward to future plans. 

 

4. Additional Funding for Active Travel From Transport Scotland 

 

4.1 In recent years, Nestrans has helped deliver Active Travel projects by securing 
additional funding direct from Transport Scotland, over and above our routine allocation. 
For this financial year, Nestrans applied for £500,000 to deliver five further projects.  This 
application was successful with the projects concerned being: 
 
 

4.2     Formartine and Buchan Way –Bridge Repair/Replacement Works [continuation]  

 
Aberdeenshire Council undertook extensive survey works previously along the entire 
Formartine and Buchan Way bridge network, beginning a process of defect 
identification, repair and maintenance.  One significant generic defect was identified with 
“beam and troughing” type bridges, specifically, water ingress resulting in corrosion of 
the structural members. In most cases, these are now nearing or beyond repair, and 
therefore a programme of bridge replacement is planned. There are approximately 50 
bridges which fall into the project remit, with these bridges varying in length from 1.2m 
up to 10m.  
 
In early 2019, Nestrans supported Aberdeenshire Council with a project to deliver a 
generic design transferrable across the length range for replacement of all of these 
bridges.  This exercise was completed and, as a result of previous funding through this 
direct grant award from Transport six bridges have already been installed. Plans are 
in place for a further five that have been fabricated and are currently in storage 
locally, to be installed during the 2022/23 fiscal year.   

  
Consequently, over the coming years, the intention is to continue this rolling programme 
of bridge replacement and repair.  The Formartine and Buchan Way is both one of 
Scotland’s Great Trails and now part of the National Cycle Network Route 1 (NCN 
#1).  Both are extremely important locally and nationally.  Without this now hugely 

necessary work, the Way would itself cease to function.  If bridges were to be closed to 
public use under Health and Safety legislation, there would simply no longer be the 
means to negotiate the F&B Way.      
 

 
4.3 Aberdeenshire Core Path Network Survey [new project]  

 
The purpose of this network survey is to provide detailed baseline information on the 
Core Path Network across the Aberdeenshire Council area to help inform a future Core 
Path Plan Review and suggested priority actions to appropriately improve the Core Path 
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Network, allow greater confidence and accessibility of the paths and ensure the network 
can be brought up to standard in its entirety.   
  
Required actions within the network survey include;   

 ensuring the mapping of current paths is correct,  

 as a key output; a report on each Core Path and each Aspirational Core Path 
consisting of condition reports, highlighting issues such as poor drainage or 
encroaching vegetation, health and safety concerns, signage requirements, 
photographs and identifying priorities such as surfacing or fencing repairs and 
replacements.   

 identify locations where improved or additional interventions, such as 
signposting, seating, information boards and views are required to encourage 
use of the path network.   

 prioritise paths for works/ improvements. What this prioritisation would be will be 
agreed at the Inception meeting: priorities could include Health and Safety 
considerations, nearby development pressures etc.   

 adding a Path Grading for all Core Paths (as per The Path Manager's Guide to 
Grading - Paths for All | Paths for All.   

 provide overarching and detailed digitised maps, with waymarked matters of 
interest, e.g. jetties, benches, signposts and interpretation panels, and identifying 
where any corrections are required to ensure all Core Paths are accurately 
mapped.   

 wherever possible, opportunities to bring ecological, habitat or biodiversity 
enhancements to the fore as part of this survey should be seized.   

 both Nestrans and Aberdeenshire Council are particularly keen to support 
potential Green Space Network improvements in the future,  

 identify connections to the existing network from other paths which may be 
included within a future plan.  

   
The intention for this project is to build on the lessons learned from the parallel project, 
that was carried out through a Nestrans successful funding bid in 2021/22, in the 
Aberdeen City Council area.  This project will result in the entire core path network 
across the north east having been studied in detail, highlighting both their importance 
now and creating a priority action list, so that they can remain so for the future.    
 
 

4.4   Quiet Road Cycle Signing – ‘The North East Cycle Network’ [continuation] 

 
This projects seek to create a permanent signed network, akin to the National Cycle 
Network, but much more locally-focussed, to enable, encourage and support more 
people to travel actively between the various towns, villages and communities across 
the north east, on quieter roads.  
 
Increasing numbers taking part in walking and cycling on these routes, will help improve 
physical and mental well-being and reduce the number of private car journeys.  Many of 
the villages linked by some of the network of routes criss-crossing the north east are 
only a matter of a few miles apart.   
In addition, there will be benefits to the wider environment, through reduced vehicle 
emissions, as more daily journeys are taken sustainably.  
In April 2021, following on from discussions with Aberdeenshire Council, from Roads 
Managers, Roads Policy and Economic Development, Nestrans provided funding 
support for approximately 3,000 temporary signs, across 140 different routes, which 
were erected on the quieter roads of the north east, essentially creating an unofficial 
‘cycle network’. Together with the support from a local event organiser, the impetus was 
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two-fold; to encourage, enable and support more people to safely get out and about on 
their bikes, while still in the period of ongoing Covid restrictions, and for those riders to 
visit local towns and villages and potentially spend money in local businesses, for 
example, cafes and restaurants.  
 
A wide and varied combination of routes were created for this pilot; including some more 
challenging routes involving some of the hillier parts of the countryside, but mainly being 
formed of more gentle bike rides through rolling countryside and flatter coastal areas of 
Aberdeenshire.  
 
Cyclists were signed to pass many of the region’s famous castles, distilleries, and visitor 
attractions, mostly via the wide range of quieter back roads. The intention was for the 
signs to help boost business and encourage people to enjoy the exercise and fun of 
cycling. In recent times, we have seen an unprecedented growth in people experiencing 
the great outdoors, whether through walking, cycling or as part of other activities.  
 
In order to help determine whether it was successful or not and gauge people’s opinions, 
an online survey was published.  
 
In total, there were 226 separate responses to the survey;  

 97% of respondents supported the idea of the network being made permanent.  

 many respondents seized the opportunity to ride on new roads and visit different 
communities from what they would normally have done.  

 many respondents spent overnight trips in other areas of the north east; 
something most would not have done had the network not been created.  

 most respondents spent money in the various towns, villages and communities 
and saw huge potential in this if the network were made permanent, both for local 
visitors and people from further afield.   

 
The creation of a larger, more widespread and permanent network could only enhance 
the potential to market the north-east as a destination for people from further afield as a 
‘staycation’ destination.   

 
This project allows for the creation of a North East Cycle Network to build upon the 
success story, that the National Cycle Network has been.  There is much untapped 
potential in marketing the north east to both locals and visitors alike.    
 
 

4.5    North East Scotland Bike Recycling/Reuse Scheme [new project] 

 
The infrastructure for the reuse and recycling of used bikes is currently small scale and 
dispersed across Scotland.  Bike recycling is largely done by small third sector 
organisations focussed on providing affordable bikes to less affluent communities.  
Locally, the bike reuse infrastructure is even more limited. Given the sizeable population 
of the area, and the difficult circumstances many find themselves in, due to the current 
cost-of-living crisis, this project aims to deliver some much-needed change.  
  
This project aims to develop a long overdue regional hub for bike repair and reuse in 
partnership with Nestrans, Aberdeen City Council, Aberdeenshire Council with two local, 
well-established charities; Stella’s Voice and Gordon Rural Action. Dundee and 
Angus Cycle Hub, who were approached and visited for advice as part of this 

submission have since agreed to become active partners in the scheme.  
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Stella’s Voice are a charity, with a national and overseas reach. More locally, they 

provide a range of services to the needy and have long-standing relationships with both 
Councils and a range of other partners, and provide a range of services, including 
clothing, furniture, toys and electrical goods to those who would otherwise struggle or 
do without. Recently, on a small scale, they have begun to accept donated bikes. These 
undergo a triage process, repair before being offered for free, or a massively discounted 
fee, to those seeking them.  
  
Stella’s Voice have established a pilot scheme with Aberdeenshire Council where any 
unwanted bikes handed in at their Peterhead or Ellon Household Recycling Centres are 
kept aside for uplift by Stella’s Voice to undergo the triage, repair and refurbish.  
  
Gordon Rural Action, through its facility in Huntly, similarly offers refurbished bikes for 

nominal fees, but is operating at a smaller scale to Stella’s Voice.  
  
Dundee and Angus Cycle Hub are already well-versed, knowledgeable and 

experienced in growing and running such a scheme, this will doubtless prove pivotal to 
helping secure the scheme’s long-term success.  
  
A number of factors prove that much more needs to be done locally in respect of the 
recycling and reuse of bikes;   

 the rise in cycling rates during the pandemic,  

 demand for bikes, bike components and parts has led to unprecedented lengthy 
lead-in times for their manufacture and supply,  

 a growing divide in wider society with increasing numbers of people who are 
struggling to make ends meet and, among this, increasing levels of transport 
poverty and inequalities,  

 continuing need for more help to be given to ensure the physical and mental 
wellbeing needs of all of us, but particularly those more vulnerable, are taken 
account of,   

 Concern about the environmental impact of cars/vehicular traffic and exploring 
practical alternatives,  

 increase levels of recycling, and more interest in the circular economy,  
 the Scottish Government commitment to roll out a national initiative offering free 

bikes for schoolchildren (supply of bikes/parts will still then be an obvious 
obstacle). In order to be prepared in advance for this commitment, the North East 
needs to create and develop a system and process that can ensure that bikes 
get to the children that need them. Nestrans submitted a bid, on behalf of both 
Councils, last year to become part of the pilot programme. Aberdeenshire 
became involved as a result with two schools now involved; Kellands Primary, 
Inverurie and Ellon Academy. 

 
This project is hugely supportive of the circular economy as it will divert significant 
quantities of bikes from landfill or scrap and impact positively on the performance in this 
regard of both Councils in the north east.  
  
The list of accepted materials at each of the Household Recycling Centres across 
Aberdeen and Aberdeenshire does not currently specifically include bicycles.  
  
This project supports the Scottish Government’s Update to the Climate Change Plan 
2018-2032: Securing a Green Recovery on a Path to Net Zero by “encouraging more 

sustainable consumer purchasing” and “improving local authority recycling collection 
infrastructure”.  
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This project will provide;  

 a network of collection points for all unwanted bikes,    

 repair workshop processes that separate and efficiently triage the bikes; high 
value bikes for resale at discounted prices, medium value for refurbishment and 
onward sale as an affordable alternative, low value bikes or those deemed 
unsalvageable dismantled for parts (for internal use and onward sale) with the 
remainder being recycled.   

 access to affordable bikes, 

 a referral scheme for children, where Social Work Departments or a range of 
external partners, can nominate a child for a free bike, who otherwise might not 
be able to own their own bike.   

 
If accepted onto the scheme, the child would receive, for free; a refurbished bike, a 
helmet, a bicycle lock, a support pack (including lights) and access to support to assist 
them.  

 
4.6    Adult Cycle Training Project [new project] 

 
This project seeks to offer free bicycle training for adults across the north east.  It will 
build on local success stories, including The Aberdeenshire Bothy, where Cycling UK 

in Scotland in partnership with Aberdeenshire Council have created a training network 
in the area’s Integrated Travel Towns, namely Huntly, Fraserburgh, Ellon, Portlethen 
and Inverurie.  

 
Similarly, in Aberdeen, Aberdeen Cycle Forum, using funding secured from Paths 
for All / Cycling UK in Scotland have previously provided a series of adult beginner 

and refresher adult training rides.  
 
However, while these have been well-received by those taking part, it has only reached 
a small proportion of the population. 
 
This project aims to create an environment where an adult, can undergo novice or 
refresher training, at a location and time which suits them, irrespective of where they live 
in the north east.  
 
Of particular concern are those people who would like to undergo cycle training but do 
not have a bike.  Using the sister project to this one, the Bike Recycling/Reuse Scheme, 
a bike could not only be offered to those so that they can take the training, but it could 
also be provided to them, at a much-reduced cost, so that they can continue to develop 
their newly found skills, out on the roads of Aberdeen and Aberdeenshire.   
 
This project would create a platform for two of the Scottish Government’s Lead Active 
Travel Delivery partners, Sustrans and Cycling Scotland, main training opportunities 
firmly embedded in local society with the latter provider’s Essential Cycling Skills 

programme being developed into a north east wide offering.     
  

5. Recommendations 

  
The Board is recommended to: 
 

1. Note the contents of the report and request officers to keep the Board 
updated on the progress of the projects. 

 

JB/KW 13 June 2022 
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14/06/2022 Regional Transport Strategy

Progress Report 

nestrans

Nestrans RTS 2040
Current Actions/ Progress Future Actions/ Progress

Project/Action Progress Budget To be done Target

Strategic Following the Regional working group established Groupings of schemes taken through Nestrans response to the ↑National 

Transport 

Strategy

Delivery Plan and 

Monitoring Framework

The second Delivery Plan for the NTS 

was published on 8 June and sets out 

the actions underway for 2022 to 2023 

to provide attractive, affordable, 

accessible and sustainable travel 

options.

The Monitoring and Evaluation 

Baseline Report was also 

published on 8 June 2022 and 

outlines the indicators that will be 

used in monitoring and evaluating 

the progress of the strategy over 

time, while providing a detailed 

review of these indicators as they 

were in 2019, the baseline year for 

the strategy.

Further details on both 

reports is given in the 

separate publications 

and consultations item 

on the agenda.

↑

The Scottish The Scottish Gov and The transport related commitments are The shared draft policy programme The draft Nestrans ↑Current Actions/ Progress Future Actions/ Progress

Project/Action Progress Budget To be done Target

AT- Increasing the number of people travelling actively for health and the environment

ii) Inverurie to Aberdeen City Centre:  

A96 Kintore / Blackburn Cycleway. 

Contribution to land purchase and 

construction of Shared Used Cycleway / 

Footway

£145K in 22/23 (all 

c/f from 21/22)

Aecom have been commissioned to 

undertake the design. Landowner 

search concluded.  Positive 

discussions ongoing with affected 

landowner.  Topographical survey 

is complete.  Detailed design on 

preferred option progressing with 

outline design on alternative 

options as a back up.  Liaising with 

Bear on affected areas of the trunk 

road.

Match funding to be 

sought from Sustrans 

once Places for 

Everyone (PfE) portal 

opens.  Remaining 

Nestrans budget 

approved in Feb for 

carry forward to 22/23 for 

construction.

↑

Overarching at 

National Level

AT 1:

Upgrade existing 

routes and 

develop a 

network of high 

quality and safe 

active travel 

routes across the 

region, focussing 

on the key 

priorities listed.

Policy Headings

RTS actions

Status

Status

a.   Safe and 

segregated active travel 

connections within and 

connecting to Aberdeen 

City Centre from the 

main commuter towns, 

in line with and to 

complement the 

objectives of the 

Aberdeen City Centre 

Masterplan.  Wherever 

possible routes should 

be segregated and road 

space reallocation 

should also be 

considered to allow 

cyclists, pedestrians 

and wheelers 

(especially those less 

confident and able) 

sufficient space. Priority 

corridors have been 

identified opposite, 

some or all of which 

may be suitable for 

designation as ‘Active 

Travel Freeways’ as 

proposed by Transport 

Scotland:
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14/06/2022 Regional Transport Strategy

Progress Report 

nestrans

Current Actions/ Progress Future Actions/ Progress

Project/Action Progress Budget To be done Target

Policy Headings

RTS actions

Status

ii) Inverurie to Aberdeen City Centre: 

Berryden corridor active travel 

connections. Feasibility and design of 

segregated cycle paths on St Machar Dr 

(west of Tillydrone Ave), Ashgrove Rd, 

Ashgrove Rd West, Skene Sq and 

Gilcomstoun Steps

£154.3K in 22/23 

(incl  59.4K c/f 

from 21/22)

Consultancy support  procured for the 

Berryden corridor active travel 

connections feasibility and design.  

Additional budget and carry forward of 

some funding to 2022/23 approved in 

Feb.  Slight reduction to carry forward 

requested to meet costs to end 

March.  Good response to 

stakeholder and public engagement in 

March with many people visiting 

project website and subscribing to 

receive latest news. 

Ashgrove Connects 

stakeholder steering 

group established and 

objective setting 

complete.  Draft St 

Machar Dr feasibility 

report received and 

being reviewed.  

Website to be updated 

and design options 

being developed for 

consultation.

↑

iii) Stonehaven to Aberdeen City Centre 

via Chapelton, Portlethen, Cove, Altens, 

Torry and the South Harbour:

Elements of this being considered 

under various other studies such as 

the Wellington Road and Laurencekirk 

to Aberdeen multi-modal studies and 

the External links to Aberdeen South 

Harbour.

Laurencekirk to 

Aberdeen Case for 

Change Report 

submitted to Transport 

Scotland and awaiting 

comments. Looking at 

options moving 

forward with this 

corridor. Such as 

merging aspects of the 

studies.

↑

iv) Ellon to Aberdeen City Centre: A90 

Ellon / Foveran / Newburgh. Contribution 

to land purchase and construction of 

Shared Used Cycleway / Footway (match 

funding to be sought from Sustrans)

£112.8K in 22/23, 

(all c/f from 21/22)

Arcadis commissioned to undertake 

the design and detailed design 

ongoing.  Positive discussion with 

landowner and this will be 

progressed throughout summer.  

Remaining Nestrans 

budget approved in Feb 

for carry forward to 22/23 

for construction.

↑

v) Banchory to Aberdeen City Centre: 

A93 Improvements - Implementation 

of recommended outcomes from the 

A93 Corridor Study and/or, where 

necessary, further design and 

business case work. 

£50K in 22/23 Awaiting outcomes of A93 corridor 

study. ↑

AT 1:

Upgrade existing 

routes and 

develop a 

network of high 

quality and safe 

active travel 

routes across the 

region, focussing 

on the key 

priorities listed.

a.   Safe and 

segregated active travel 

connections within and 

connecting to Aberdeen 

City Centre from the 

main commuter towns, 

in line with and to 

complement the 

objectives of the 

Aberdeen City Centre 

Masterplan.  Wherever 

possible routes should 

be segregated and road 

space reallocation 

should also be 

considered to allow 

cyclists, pedestrians 

and wheelers 

(especially those less 

confident and able) 

sufficient space. Priority 

corridors have been 

identified opposite, 

some or all of which 

may be suitable for 

designation as ‘Active 

Travel Freeways’ as 

proposed by Transport 

Scotland:
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14/06/2022 Regional Transport Strategy

Progress Report 

nestrans

Current Actions/ Progress Future Actions/ Progress

Project/Action Progress Budget To be done Target

Policy Headings

RTS actions

Status

The Scottish Government and Scottish 

Green Party draft shared policy 

programme agrees Transport Scotland 

will work with local and regional transport 

authorities on the establishment of an 

active freeway network for Scotland.

The active freeway network for 

Scotland will comprise of local 

networks within towns and cities and 

connecting settlements and major 

destinations with high quality, safe 

routes.  Active freeways will provide 

high-quality direct active travel 

routes, segregated from traffic, on 

busy corridors in large urban 

areas. 

NTS Delivery Plan for 

22/23 commits to 

engage on; develop 

design standards for; 

and pilot the location 

of an active freeway 

network for Scotland. 

↑

Craigshaw Dr cycle route.  Traffic 

Regulation and re-designation Orders 

have gained committee approval. The 

Redetermination order for the shared use 

footway is still under review by the 

Scottish Ministers and an update on 

progress requested. A further meeting 

was undertaken with Sustrans to clarify 

the conditions they placed on their match 

funding and agreed minutes of this 

meeting do state that some of the 

conditions in the award letter will be 

removed. Still awaiting a formal 

acceptance that the details are in line 

with the Places for Everyone (PfE) 

funding guidance and grant will be 

awarded. 

£345.8K in 22/23 

(incl £15.8K c/f 

from 21/22)

Detailed design continues in 

preparation of the Tender drawings 

and those required by Sustrans PfE. 

Sustrans Infrastructure Steering 

Group (ISG) has now accepted the 

most recent presentation of 

documentation on 11 March 2021 

allowing the project to progress 

towards the Pre-Construction phase 

milestone, which was due to be 

reported back to the ISG in mid June. 

Due to the departure of a key ACC 

member of staff, consultant support 

has been appointed to further 

progress the project.  There is a 

significant risk to when construction 

can commence if Sustrans funding is 

not confirmed soon.

The remaining 

Nestrans funding not  

spent in 2021/22 has 

been agreed for carry 

forward to 2022/23. 

ACC submission to 

Sustrans Places for 

Everyone successful. 

Award granted and 

funding agreement 

received and being 

checked by ACC 

legal.											

↑

AT 1:

Upgrade existing 

routes and 

develop a 

network of high 

quality and safe 

active travel 

routes across the 

region, focussing 

on the key 

priorities listed.

a.   Safe and 

segregated active travel 

connections within and 

connecting to Aberdeen 

City Centre from the 

main commuter towns, 

in line with and to 

complement the 

objectives of the 

Aberdeen City Centre 

Masterplan.  Wherever 

possible routes should 

be segregated and road 

space reallocation 

should also be 

considered to allow 

cyclists, pedestrians 

and wheelers 

(especially those less 

confident and able) 

sufficient space. Priority 

corridors have been 

identified opposite, 

some or all of which 

may be suitable for 

designation as ‘Active 

Travel Freeways’ as 

proposed by Transport 

Scotland:

b.  Support ACC and 

other partners, including 

Sustrans and Paths for 

All, in developing a 

network of cycle routes 

and quiet routes across 

the city to complement 

actions on the priority 

corridors, support the 

concept of 20 minute 

neighbourhoods and 

create a cycle friendly 

city.
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14/06/2022 Regional Transport Strategy

Progress Report 

nestrans

Current Actions/ Progress Future Actions/ Progress

Project/Action Progress Budget To be done Target

Policy Headings

RTS actions

Status

Wellheads Cycle Link design. Detailed 

Design and Contract document 

preparation for an extension of the 

existing Wellheads Dr shared use path to 

the north, by-passing the roundabout, to 

connect with Farburn Terr. Also included  

will be design of a cut-through at the 

Market St closure to create a safe and 

coherent cycle connection with the 

Wellheads shared use cycle route. 

£45K in 22/23 (incl 

£15K c/f from 

21/22)

Discussions with land owners on land 

acquisition are progressing by ACC's 

Estates Team.  Plot 5 - acquisition 

complete.  Plot 4/4a - Heads of 

Terms agreed. Plot 4a (Veripos) 

complete.  Legal checking historic 

shared access in plans ongoing.  

Plot 1&2 landowner investigations 

are proceeding. 

Detailed Design and 

generation of tender 

drawings are ongoing.  

Still a risk that Sustrans 

requirements cannot be 

accommodated within 

the available 'Road' 

space and they may not 

approve the full funding 

application.  

↑

A947 Improvements - Implementation 

of recommended outcomes from the 

A947 Corridor Study and/or, where 

necessary, further design and 

business case work. 

£50K in 22/23 Awaiting outcomes of A947 

corridor study.

Fraserburgh - Maconnochie Road.  

Match funding bid to Sustrans 

unsuccessful and Nestrans agreed to 

meet full cost.  Phase 1 of the project 

Sports Centre - Maconochie is complete.

£73.1K in 22/23 

(incl 72.6K c/f 

from 21/22)

Phase 2 of project will see the shared 

use path continued from Maconochie 

Road onto Seaforth Street. Yunex 

Traffic have been commissioned to 

undertake the detailed design of a 

Toucan Crossing.

Aberdeenshire 

Construction 

department appointed 

to undertake works on 

Ph 2.  Programme 

paused for 4-5 weeks 

to allow for a structure 

of a skate park to be 

developed.

↑

Inverurie - North/South links to new 

Academy.  WSP progressing the design 

of the shared used footway which 

extends to the new academy campus via 

Kellands Park to Port Elphinstone onto 

the A96 Inverurie to Kintore Strategic 

link.

£192K in 22/23 (all 

c/f from 21/22)

Virtual engagement event held from 

22 Feb for 4 weeks and outcomes 

being fed into the designs. Awaiting 

final design from WSP.

Remaining Nestrans 

budget approved for 

carry forward to 22/23

↑

AT 1:

Upgrade existing 

routes and 

develop a 

network of high 

quality and safe 

active travel 

routes across the 

region, focussing 

on the key 

priorities listed.

c.   Support AC’s work 

with local communities, 

and aided by Sustrans 

Scotland and Paths for 

All, in their Integrated 

Travel Town (ITT) 

Project to shape more 

sustainable and active 

travel in the towns of 

Huntly, Inverurie, 

Fraserburgh, Portlethen 

and Ellon

b.  Support ACC and 

other partners, including 

Sustrans and Paths for 

All, in developing a 

network of cycle routes 

and quiet routes across 

the city to complement 

actions on the priority 

corridors, support the 

concept of 20 minute 

neighbourhoods and 

create a cycle friendly 

city.
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Current Actions/ Progress Future Actions/ Progress

Project/Action Progress Budget To be done Target

Policy Headings

RTS actions

Status

Corsemanhill Drive, Inverurie. 

Construction of Safer Routes to School 

Link as identified within the Inverurie 

Integrated Travel Town between Davah 

Wood and Corsemanhill Drive

£90K in 22/23 (all 

c/f from 21/22)

Topographical Survey complete.    

Design works to be carried out using 

AC's in house resources.  WSP 

consultants to be engaged to provide 

external support  due to small risk 

associated with the stability of the 

bank and drainage, but it is not 

thought to be significant. 

Awaiting final design 

from WSP. ↑

Ellon Integrated Travel Town (ITT) 

projects.  Budget agreed in Sept to 

contribute to the design and construction 

of ITT projects at Caroline Woods, Castle 

Park and Knockothie Road. 

£90K in 22/23 (all 

c/f from 21/22)

Final designs for Caroline's Well 

Wood nearing completion, 

following which tender will be 

submitted.  Deer Park design 

complete.  

Aecom has 

commenced design on 

McDonald park link of 

project.

↑

Aberdeen Cross City Transport 

Connections Feasibility study to 

investigate ways to maximise 

connectivity between new developments 

in the Aberdeen Local Development Plan 

was completed and STAG Part 2 report  

was reported to the ACC CG&R 

Committee in June 2019.  Budget 

approved for 20/21 to progress priority 

elements from the study. 

£5.9K in 22/23 (all 

c/f from 21/22)

Concept design work completed.  

Outline Business Case 

development completed and draft 

final report submitted for review.

↑

A92 Balmedie / Blackdog Shared Used 

Path.  The estimated cost of surfacing 

the path between Balmedie and 

Blackdog to formalise it to enable it to be 

adopted by AC is £20K.

£20K in 22/23 (all 

c/f from 21/22)

Meeting held at end May with 

Aberdeen Roads Ltd.  Access has 

been granted to allow development 

of path upgrade.  Seeking 

confirmation from Roads prior to 

tender.

↑

AT 1:

Upgrade existing 

routes and 

develop a 

network of high 

quality and safe 

active travel 

routes across the 

region, focussing 

on the key 

priorities listed.

d. Direct active travel 

links within and between 

north east communities, 

focussing on connecting 

communities and 

employment, education, 

health, social care and 

community facilities, 

alongside those 

recreational routes 

which can also link up 

communities and 

enhance access to open 

space, including the 

coastal path network.

c.   Support AC’s work 

with local communities, 

and aided by Sustrans 

Scotland and Paths for 

All, in their Integrated 

Travel Town (ITT) 

Project to shape more 

sustainable and active 

travel in the towns of 

Huntly, Inverurie, 

Fraserburgh, Portlethen 

and Ellon
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nestrans

Current Actions/ Progress Future Actions/ Progress

Project/Action Progress Budget To be done Target

Policy Headings

RTS actions

Status

e.   Improved provision 

at junctions and 

crossing points for both 

cyclists and 

pedestrians. 

Junction Alterations to Lock in the 

Benefits (LiB) of AWPR. Detailed design 

of options for alterations Westburn/Lang 

Stracht - Anderson Drive with a focus on 

improvements for Active travel.  Land 

around Woodhill House has provisionally 

been confirmed to be within ownership of 

ACC with no restrictions.  Sustrans  

decision not to provide funding towards 

the detailed design of the scheme, which 

they consider not ambitious for cyclist 

benefit has been challenged by ACC.  

Risk that full match funding for design 

and any subsequent construction may 

not be awarded by Sustrans.

£25.9K in 22/23 

(all c/f from 21/22)

Jacobs' updated the street lighting 

designs and resubmitted them in Feb 

for review and agreement by ACC 

staff. Land plans have been passed to 

ACC Estates, to progress the land 

acquisition required for the works. 

Agreement in principle has been 

reached with both land owners. ACC 

legal to progress formalisation of 

agreements. Remaining budget 

agreed for continuation to 22/23

Liaison with utilities as 

part of the C3 

consultation ongoing.  

Diversion proposals to 

be incorporated into 

project drawings.

↑

g.  Work with Sustrans Installation of the 4 timber bridges 

purchased in 2019/20 and purchase and 

installation of up to 4 further bridges. 

Condition of 21/22 grant states that 

£100K match funding required and AC 

Council Environment Planning Dept has 

allocated £50K in 21/22 and Nestrans 

budget of further £50K agreed.

£50K Capital in 

21/22 plus £115K 

of RTP 21/22 grant

Invoiced to date = 

£165K

Agreement confirmed that £35K of the 

grant award for core path surveys 

could be used for purchasing timber 

kit bridges.  Following the tender 

process, 5 kit bridges have been 

ordered from CTS Bridges for delivery 

by end March 2021, one of which is 

being funded by Aberdeenshire 

Council.  Nestrans to contribute £50K 

towards the installation costs of the 

bridges that have been in storage.

Four bridge kits that 

were purchased in 

2019/20 have been 

installed. Five new 

bridges have been 

delivered and 2021/22 

grant payment 

received.

↑

Requested funding of £100K for 

purchase and installation of further 4 

timber bridges in 22/23 has been 

agreed and is contained within the 

offer of grant received on 22 April 

2022.

£100K of RTP 

22/23 grant ↑

Sustrans Active Travel Development Sustrans ATDO £19.1K to be used to fund a Health Health check study and ↑Funding agreed for installation of 

Cycle Repair Stations at various 

Locations across Aberdeenshire 

focusing on the 5 ITT's

£40K in 22/23 No progress to date, but anticipate 

this being tendered and installed 

by end August / early September

↑

AT 1:

Upgrade existing 

routes and 

develop a 

network of high 

quality and safe 

active travel 

routes across the 

region, focussing 

on the key 

priorities listed.

AT 2:

Continue to 

protect, maintain 

and improve the 

Deeside Way 

and Formartine & 

Buchan Way as 

segregated, 

green transport 

corridors. 

Consideration 

should also be 

given to the 

creation of 

further green 

corridors and 

appropriate 

biodiversity 

improvements AT 3:

Increase the 

provision and 

quality of active 

travel facilities 

across the 

Region.

Signage, 

parking/storage (on and 

off public transport), 

changing facilities and 

tourist/ leisure-friendly 

facilities.

Formartine & Buchan 

Way corridor
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Powis Bike Lockers - Installing approx 12 

outdoor community cycle lockers in 2 

separate locations, possibly in the Powis 

Community Centre and Powis Crescent 

areas.

£11K in 22/23 (all 

c/f from 21/22)

ACC do not have resource to 

progress this and Nestrans ATDO is 

assisting the community association 

although approval from the Council 

will be required to site any lockers on 

Council land.  Feedback obtained 

from Sustrans and other Councils on 

best type of locker.  Four quotes 

obtained and site visit undertaken to 

identify possible sites.  Community 

association seeking to identify 

demand for usage of the lockers.

Budget agreed in Feb 

to be carried forward 

to 2022/23 due to lead 

time required for 

delivery and 

installation.  Route for 

the on-street 

permissions likely to 

be the ETRO process. 

Site visit to be carried 

out with ACC Traffic 

Mgmt Officer in next 

fortnight. Residents' 

Group are managing a 

list of potential 

applicants.  

↑

Cycle rack installation at major parks 

within Aberdeen and at Aberdeen 

Crematorium (for use by both staff and 

visitors to the wider area).

£0.5K in 22/23 (all 

c/f from 21/22)

Cycle racks in major parks installed. 

Cycle rack at crematorium has still to 

be installed and remaining £500 

budget agreed for c/f to 22/23 to 

enable this.

ACC due to have new 

member of staff in 

vacant post by end 

July that will progress 

the cycle rack 

installation at the 

Crematorium.

↑

RTP Active Travel grant awarded to 

develop a permanent signed Quiet 

Road Cycle Network, akin to the 

National Cycle Network, but more 

locally-focussed, to enable, encourage 

and support more people to consider 

travelling sustainably between the 

various towns, villages and 

communities across the north east.

£75K of RTP 22/23 

grant

Nestrans ATDO in discussion with 

Sustrans, Aberdeenshire Council 

and Transport Scotland regarding 

this project.

↑

Improved lighting, giving 

AT 3:

Increase the 

provision and 

quality of active 

travel facilities 

across the 

Region.

Signage, 

parking/storage (on and 

off public transport), 

changing facilities and 

tourist/ leisure-friendly 

facilities.
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Cycle Infrastructure maintenance in 

Aberdeen

£10K in 22/23 Budget approved for the ad-hoc 

repair and replacement of any 

damaged or obsolete cycle parking 

facilities or maintenance stands.

↑

Wayfinding Totem maintenance in 

Aberdeen

£15K in 22/23 Budget approved to maintain 

existing totem network in Aberdeen 

(around 75).

↑

Huntly Community E-

bike scheme

Application received from Huntly 

Development Trust (HDT) to new 

Communities Grant for up to £10K. Grant 

offer agreed and will be used for 

purchase of 10 electric bikes for with 

remaining funding via an Energy Savings 

Trust grant and from HDT

Cost being met 

from Travel 

Planning - Grant 

Schemes budget

HDT have further funding via the 

Transport Scotland/ERDF Low 

Carbon Transport Challenge Fund 

that is being used to refurbish the 

Huntly Travel Hub and develop a new 

website including an Ebike booking 

system, bike lockers and marketing 

materials.

The 10 Ebikes will be 

available for hire in the 

community. HDT 

submitted grant claim 

in June.  Seeking 

continuation of budget 

from 21/22 when grant 

was awarded to 22/23.

↑

B9002 Kennethmont 

Footway 

Land Purchase & Construction. Project is 

at and advanced stage an will be 

progressed in 2020/21

£74.8K in 22/23 

(all c/f from 21/22)

Land Purchase concluded.  A 

quotation has been received by 

SSE, albeit this will be subject to 

design.   

Full design of project 

to be undertaken. ↑

A947 Albert Road, 

Oldmeldrum

Footway Reconstruction £24.8K in 22/23 

(all c/f from 21/22)

Tender being awarded to MTM 

Construction.  

Start date for works to 

be confirmed. ↑

Shore Street, Macduff 

Phase 3

Footway Reconstruction £42.4K in 22/23 

(all c/f from 21/22)

Hunters Construction have been 

awarded contract. 

Start date for works to 

be confirmed. ↑
A947 Whiterashes 

Phase 1 

Footway Reconstruction £18K in 22/23 No progress to date. Work anticipated to 

take place in early 

2023.

↔

A98 Crook O'Ness 

Street, Macduff

Footway Reconstruction £40.6K in 22/23 No progress to date. Work anticipated to 

take place in early 

2023.

↔

A98 Skene Street, 

Macduff

Footway Reconstruction £18.8K in 22/23 No progress to date. Work anticipated to 

take place in early 

2023.

↔

AT 4: 

Implement 

regional cycle 

hire schemes, 

which can 

include bike hire, 

eBike hire, cargo 

bike hire and 

cycle share 

AT 3:

Increase the 

provision and 

quality of active 

travel facilities 

across the 

Region.

AT 5:

Extend and 

improve the 

walking network 

within all 

communities and 

the city to 

provide a high-

quality walking 

environment with 

safe crossing 

points, seating 

and wayfinding, 

which 

emphasises the 

priority of active 

travel and 

encourages 

walking or 

wheeling as the 

preferred option 

for short 

journeys.

Improved maintenance.
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Lumphanan Path 

Improvement

Application received from Lumphanan 

Paths Group to new Communities Grant 

for up to £2.7K.

Cost being met 

from Travel 

Planning - Grant 

Schemes budget

Grant offer agreed and will be used 

towards clearing and draining local 

right of way from Lumphanan Old 

School to Milton of Auchenhove. 

Progress update received and 

works nearing completion.  

Drainage issues resolved and 

savings to be used towards 

information board and fixing 

fencing.

Grant acceptance 

returned and 50% of 

grant paid upfront as 

requested.  Seeking 

carry forward of 

budget for unclaimed 

allocated grant in 

separate budget report 

as works have 

continued into 22/23.

↑

Aberdeen Paths Asset 

Management Plan

To develop a paths asset management 

plan for the maintenance of all non-

roads paths, including core paths. 

This will inform maintenance of the 

path network in future years to reduce 

the need to rebuild path networks 

once they have fully deteriorated.

£30K in 22/23 This will build on the Core Paths 

Review that was undertaken in 

2021/22 using Nestrans RTP Active 

Travel Grant from Transport 

Scotland.

↑

Core Paths 

Improvements in 

Aberdeen

Works to address the highest priority 

issues and repairs identified within 

the Core Paths Review work funded in 

21/22.

£50K in 22/23 Awaiting final Core Paths Review 

work and then will identify priority 

path work.

ACC identifying any 

additional funding 

available through 

Developer Obligations 

Money.

↑

Aberdeenshire Core 

Path Network Survey

RTP Active Travel grant awarded to 

undertake a network survey to provide 

detailed baseline information on the 

Core Path Network across the 

Aberdeenshire Council area to help 

inform a future Core Path Plan 

Review.

£150K of RTP 

22/23 grant

The survey will also be used to 

identify priority actions to 

appropriately improve the Core 

Path Network, allow greater 

confidence in the accessibility of 

the paths and ensure the network 

can be brought up to standard in 

its entirety. 

Brief being developed 

and to be tendered for 

consultancy support to 

undertake the network 

survey.

↑

AT 5:

Extend and 

improve the 

walking network 

within all 

communities and 

the city to 

provide a high-

quality walking 

environment with 

safe crossing 

points, seating 

and wayfinding, 

which 

emphasises the 

priority of active 

travel and 

encourages 

walking or 

wheeling as the 

preferred option 

for short 

journeys.
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Seaton Park Don 

Street Entrance

Provision of a separate pedestrian 

path from the main Don Street 

entrance that is currently shared with 

vehicles.  It will include new access 

through the entrance stone wall, a 

separate all abilities path with access 

to the Seaton wetland viewing 

platform and children's play area.

£35K in 22/23   Additional drawing of the dropped 

kerb on Don Street submitted to 

Sustrans to meet their 

requirements.

Funding application to 

be submitted to SUEZ 

landfill tax funding for 

the reminder of the 

project.  SUEZ offer up 

to £50,000 funding, if 

successful

↑

Donside flats Construction of a short section of 

path around the new development at 

Donside flats.  This path is part of 

Aspirational Core Path 6 and is to 

complete a link along the Don path 

near the boardwalk connecting to 

Seaton Park. 

£20K in 22/23 Discussions to take place with 

Legal to see if a path agreement is 

required.

↑

Path from 

Craigiebuckler Drive to 

Springfield Rd

Formation of a 2m wide tarmacadam 

path through grassed area and 

associated drainage works (aspirational 

core path no 64).

£81K in 22/23 (all 

c/f from 21/22)

Pricing work in progress.
↑

River Don Path - Seaton 

Park

Upgrade to popular path including 

improvements to withstand increased 

rainfall/storm conditions.

£68.2K in 22/23 

(all c/f from 21/22)

Fallen trees removed from site, 

drainage works started, granite 

dust laid on parts of path.

↑

CP83 Souterhead Rd to 

Cove Crescent

Works to construct and resurface the 

existing path area in a tarmacadam 

surface including the regrading and 

formation along boundary edges of 

existing materials to marry in with the 

finished surface levels of the tar path. 

£64K in 22/23 (all 

c/f from 21/22)

Pricing work in progress. ↑

River Don Path 

Improvements 

Woodside - Persley

Upgrade to popular path  on the south 

side of the river between Woodside 

Pitches and Persley including 

improvements to withstand increased 

rainfall/storm conditions.

£60K in 22/23 (all 

c/f from 21/22)

Tendering process undertaken and 

work on site scheduled for start 

week commencing Monday 6th 

June 2022.

↑

AT 5:

Extend and 

improve the 

walking network 

within all 

communities and 

the city to 

provide a high-

quality walking 

environment with 

safe crossing 

points, seating 

and wayfinding, 

which 

emphasises the 

priority of active 

travel and 

encourages 

walking or 

wheeling as the 

preferred option 

for short 

journeys.
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Scottish Government 

Free bike pilots

The first 6 pilot projects selected to offer 

free bikes to school age children who 

cannot afford one were announced in 

Aug 2021 and will test delivery models in 

urban and rural locations, across primary 

and secondary schools ages and trial 

various procurement models. They  will 

run for 12 months and be evaluated  to 

determine what the best models of local 

delivery could look like.  The suggestion 

submitted by Nestrans was not 

successful, but  feedback from TS has 

been received and we have been 

encouraged to re-apply once applications 

are open in early 2022.  

The pilots will test a variety of 

ownership, loan and subscription 

models and undertake various 

methods of assessing need to ensure 

inclusion and accessibility.  They are 

linked to existing community networks 

across schools, charities, cycling 

clubs and active travel hubs and will 

explore opportunities to maximise 

benefits for the local supply chain, 

including recycling bikes.  

Aberdeenshire Council is part the 

Sustrans IBike project pilot that is 

progressing at Ellon Academy and 

Kellands Academy in Inverurie.  

Sustrans lead officer appointed and 

stock ordered.  Half will be for long 

term loan and half for short term loan. 

Training support for staff at schools 

involved to be arranged. 

The NTS2 Delivery Plan 

for 22/23 states the 

programme is being

independently 

reviewed, an interim 

report was published 

March 2022 and the 

final report is due late 

Summer 2022. A partial 

upscaling of the rollout 

will happen between 

August 2022 and 

March 2023, with a full 

solution likely in the

first half of 2023. 

↑

North East Scotland 

Bike Recycling/Re-use 

Scheme 

RTP Active Travel grant awarded to 

develop a  regional hub for bike repair 

and re-use in partnership with 

NESTRANS, both Councils and 2 

local, well-established charities; 

Stella’s Voice and Networks of 

Wellbeing

£100K of RTP 

22/23 grant

Agreement with Nestrans, 

Aberdeen City Council, 

Aberdeenshire Council, Stella’s 

Voice and Networks of Wellbeing 

to be formalised and roles and 

responsibilities allocated.

Further details in 

separate report on 

agenda

↑

Adult Cycle Training 

Project

Nestrans budget will be used to fund 

a contribution to ACC towards the 

cost of an officer to undertake the 

project and pay for supporting 

resources. The RTP active travel grant 

will be used to offer free cycle training 

for adults across the region.

£35K in 22/23 and 

£75K of RTP 22/23 

grant

The aim is to build on the success 

of I-Bike officers in schools to 

equip children with skills and 

enthusiasm for cycling, by also 

offering cycle training to adults 

(especially parents in the I-Bike 

school cluster areas). 

Virement proposed for 

£35K Nestrans budget 

in separate budget 

report as ACC awarded 

Sustrans and Smarter 

Choices Smarter 

Places funding

↑

AT 6:

All children and 

adults should be 

provided with the 

opportunity to 

learn to ride a 

bike and support 

provided to those 

who do not have 

access to a bike 

in order to do so.
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Scottish Government The Scottish Government and Scottish 

Green Party draft shared policy 

programme commits to increase the 

proportion of Transport Scotland's budget 

spent on Active Travel initiatives so that 

by 2024/25 at least £320M or 10% of the 

total transport budget will be allocated to 

active travel.

Letter with offer of £500K grant in 

22/23 to Nestrans received on 22 

April.  This is for the full amount 

submitted as proposed schemes in 

January 2022, namely F&B Way 

bridges, Aberdeenshire Core Path 

Network Survey, Bike Recycling/Re-

use scheme, quiet road cycle 

signing and adult cycle training 

project

Details on funding 

amount and progress 

on individual elements 

given in individual 

project updates above 

and further information 

in separate report on 

agenda.

↑

Cycling Action Plan for 

Scotland

Cycling Action Plan for Scotland (CAPS) 

was published in 2010 and refreshed in 

2013.  Latest refresh CAPS 2017-2020 

published 17 Jan 2017.

First draft of Cycling Framework and 

Delivery Plan for Active Travel in 

Scotland has been shared among key 

stakeholders.  Nestrans' comments 

provided to TS/SCOTS.  NTS2 

Delivery Plan for 22/23 commits to 

hold a public consultation on the 

Cycling Framework and Delivery 

Plan for Active Travel in Scotland 

during the period of this plan.

While the Framework 

and Delivery Plan will 

acknowledge the 

importance of all types 

of cycling, its focus is 

on cycling for active 

travel on everyday 

journeys and modal 

shift from the private 

car.

↑

Places for Everyone 

(PfE)

S Gov provides funding to Sustrans that 

is open to bids for infrastructure projects 

to promote cycling and walking.  The 

Community Links Programme is now 

called Places for Everyone. The Cab Sec 

for Transport announced on 21 August 

that the Scottish Gov is reducing the 

match funding rate for PfE in 20/21 from 

50% to 30%.

The NTS2 Delivery Plan for 22/23 

states that the Sustrans Places for 

Everyone programme will reopen 

for new applications on 25 July 

2022 and that Sustrans’ Grant for 

2022-23 includes conditions to 

ensure they will encourage more 

school-focussed projects. 

Sustrans have 

published specific 

application guidance.

↑

AT 7: 

Work with 

partners, 

including 

Transport 

Scotland, Local 

Authorities, 

Sustrans, 

Cycling Scotland 

and Paths for All 

to ensure the 

funding models 

for active travel 

improvements 

can help us 

deliver the 

priorities for the 

north east.
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RL - Developing the rail network

Aberdeen-Central Belt 

improvements to reduce 

journey times by 20 

minutes or more, 

through the Aberdeen to 

Central Belt and 7 Cities 

Projects. Network Rail 

and Transport Scotland 

are considering the 

constraints on this 

corridor and are looking 

at how to deliver 

benefits for the entirety 

Ministerial announcement on STPR 10 

Dec 08 includes rail service 

enhancements between Aberdeen and 

the Central Belt and reconfiguration of 

the national rail timetable (incl trying to 

reduce journey times to the Central Belt 

by up to 20mins) as priority projects.  On 

28 Jan 2016 S Gov announced 

£200million to help improve journey 

times and increase capacity between 

Aberdeen and the Central Belt as part of 

a £254million package in addition to the 

City Region Deal. Mar 2017 Minister 

Project Delivery Group set up with 

representation from Nestrans, Tactran 

and City Region Deal teams.   

Network Rail has produced a GRIP2 

report on behalf of Transport Scotland 

that develops options based on 

rearranging use of line by 

local/intercity trains and introduction 

of freight loops.  GRIP3 report and the 

Outline Business Case for the project 

being progressed.

Stakeholder group 

meeting held 25 April 

2022 and further 

details in Director's 

Report. The  option 

selection process  is 

nearing completion 

and it is hoped to have 

an Outline Business 

Case in the summer.                                           

↑

East Coast Main Line Authorities - 

Manifesto launched 15 July 2014.  

SYSTRA appointed to refresh the 2016 

“Investing for Economic Growth” study 

for ECMA.  LNER has introduced Azuma 

trains.

£3K Revenue in 

22/23

Budget agreed for membership 

costs in 22/23 ↑

Rail Timetables - New temporary 

timetable to be introduced on 23 May 

2022 that cuts services across 

Scotland due to driver shortages 

whilst many are choosing not to work 

on rest days during an ongoing pay 

dispute.

ScotRail in talks with Aslef and 

RMT ↓

RL 1:

Due to the high 

proportions of 

long-distance 

business and 

leisure travel by 

rail to and from 

the north east, 

the highest 

priority should be 

investment in 

improving the 

quality of 

InterCity 

services, 

ensuring 

reliability and 

performance, 

adequate 

capacity and 

improved on- 

board facilities as 

well as reducing 

end-to-end 

journey times 

between key 

centres

Addressing resilience 

and timetable 

constraints, including 

addressing the single-

track section at Usan, 

near Montrose. This will 

help ensure that 

capacities are not 

limited unnecessarily 

and that delays do not 

impact on other services
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Aberdeen-Inverness 

Phase 2 enhancements. 

This will enable an 

hourly service with a 

journey time of less than 

two hours (previous 

commitment in Strategic 

Transport Projects 

Review)

Phase 1 was completed in December 

2019 and included re-doubling of most of 

the track between Aberdeen and 

Inverurie, signalling enhancements 

between Inverurie and Nairn, platform 

extensions at Insch and Elgin, relocation 

of Forres Station and extension of 

passing loop at Forres.  The Scottish 

Government and Scottish Green Party 

draft shared policy programme agrees to 

work to improve the resilience, reliability 

and efficiency of the Aberdeen to 

Inverness rail corridor, alongside our 

commitment to decarbonise the rail 

network, to make it more competitive to 

road and encourage modal shift for both 

passengers and freight.

£3.209M contribn 

to Kintore Station in 

2021/22 (all 

delayed draw down 

from 20/21)

Invoiced to date = 

£3,086,721.83

Kintore Station was reopened on 

Thursday 15 October 2020.   It is also 

the largest electric vehicle charging 

location in north east Scotland, with 

24 of the 168 spaces at the new 

transport hub fitted with charging 

points.   Project costs now confirmed 

as having increased to £15M, with 

regional contribution therefore almost 

£5.5M.  Previously funded work that 

will contribute to this total agreed.  

Media work undertaken to mark 1st 

year since opening.  Final invoice 

received within financial year 21/22 

and was less than  allocated due to 

work previously funded prior to 

stations fund bid being accepted as 

legitimate costs within final share.

Aberdeenshire Council 

has requested that 

Nestrans unused 

budget allocation be 

used to increase 

Nestrans proportion of 

the NE contribution 

and mitigate some of 

the cost to the Council 

as a result of the 

increase in project 

costs since the 

funding was initially 

agreed.  Continuation 

of unused budget to 

22/23 requested in 

separate budget 

report.

↑

A bid was made to the Local Rail Dev 

Fund in 2019 to cover the cost of a 

feasibility study into new rail stations on 

the line south of Aberdeen and the full 

requested funding was awarded in Aug 

2019, although it will be provided in 

stages subject to approval that 

justification to progress the study to the 

next stage is evidenced. LRDF grant 

award provided on basis that a multi-

modal corridor study between Aberdeen 

and Laurencekirk be undertaken.  

Deadline for claiming Round 2 LRDF 

grants extended to 30 June 2022 due to 

covid.

£95.3K LRDF grant 

(of which £42.3K 

remains to claim 

until end June 

2022)

Aecom appointed and initial case for 

change report drafted that 

recommends a number of options for 

preliminary qualitative appraisal. 

Feedback received from Transport 

Scotland on case for change and they 

wish further evidence to be provided 

by collecting information from corridor 

users and additional analysis of public 

transport data.  Cost estimate for 

undertaking further work to address 

comments obtained from Aecom and 

Transport Scotland has agreed to 

meet this additional cost and increase 

the overall grant by £15,321.

Public Consultation on 

the Laurencekirk to 

Aberdeen multi-modal 

Study has been 

completed and a high 

response of 1,104 online 

surveys were received. 

A Case for Change 

document has been 

completed and sent to 

Transport Scotland. We 

are still awaiting 

feedback on this.

↑

The Scottish Government and Scottish 

RL 2:

The provision of 

improved access 

to the railway 

network by 

considering 

opportunities for 

additional 

stations, better 

integration of 

local services 

with InterCity 

services, full 

access for all 

and improved 

access to 

stations by non-

car modes. 

RL 1:

Due to the high 

proportions of 

long-distance 

business and 

leisure travel by 

rail to and from 

the north east, 

the highest 

priority should be 

investment in 

improving the 

quality of 

InterCity 

services, 

ensuring 

reliability and 

performance, 

adequate 

capacity and 

improved on- 

board facilities as 

well as reducing 

end-to-end 

journey times 

between key 

centres

Undertake a review of 

the Cross Aberdeen 

local rail corridor 

(Montrose-Aberdeen-

Inverurie) and previous 

Crossrail business case 

to determine whether 

there remain markets 

that may be 

appropriately served by 

improved access to rail. 

Development of 

business cases for 

additional stations to 

enhance the viability

of the local cross 

Page 14 of 44

P
age 222



14/06/2022 Regional Transport Strategy

Progress Report 

nestrans

Current Actions/ Progress Future Actions/ Progress

Project/Action Progress Budget To be done Target

Policy Headings

RTS actions

Status

Insch Station Accessibility Study £8.5K in 2022/23 

(all delayed draw 

down from 

2020/21) 

Detailed appraisal of Insch Station 

Accessibility complete and updated 

final study report sent to TS on 28 

August and published on Nestrans 

website.  TS accepted findings from a 

technical perspective in December 

2021.

Remaining Nestrans 

budget agreed for c/f to 

22/23.  Nestrans 

officers continue to 

press TS regarding 

supporting the 

recommendations of 

the study.

↑

Wayfinding signs - Stonehaven.  Bid 

submitted to ScotRail Station Travel Plan 

Development Fund for £10K and this 

budget forms part of the Nestrans match 

funding in partnership with £5K via 

Aberdeenshire Council's Smarter 

Choices Smarter Places funding.

£5K in 22/23 (all 

c/f from 20/21)  

ScotRail confirmed that they will not 

be able to contribute to this in 

2021/22. Nestrans applied for funding 

through CrossCountry Rail services 

and have had an email saying this 

was successful.  Nestrans budget 

approved to be continued to 2022/23.  

Revised costs for bus 

shelter and other items 

being obtained and 

likely to have risen 

since funding bid 

initially submitted to 

ScotRail.

↑

ART - Aberdeen Rapid Transit

Aberdeen Rapid Transit 

(ART) investigation and 

Bus Partnership Fund 

Bid preparation 

Jacobs appointed following competitive 

tender to provide Aberdeen Rapid Transit 

and Bus Partnership Fund Bid support. 

ART Vision work reported to Nestrans 

Board in June 2021 and published on 

Nestrans website.  The NE Bus Alliance 

was successful in its bid for £12M 

through the Bus Partnership Fund and 

part of this will be used to develop the 

business cases and designs for the 

Aberdeen Rapid Transit system.

Stantec appointed following 

competitive tender.  Initial discussions 

have taken place and formal inception 

meeting arranged for 5 October.  This 

further work to develop the business 

case and designs for ART has been 

commissioned by Nestrans but will be 

funded via the Bus Partnership Fund 

grant to the North East Bus Alliance. 

Case for Change report and Exec 

Summary published on Nestrans 

website.

Meeting held with 

Transport for West 

Midlands on the 

Birmingham Sprint 

project, with findings 

fed into the Case for 

Change report. Draft 

Preliminary Options 

Appraisal received and 

circulated for 

comment.  

↑

Travel plans to be 

developed and updated 

for all stations across 

the north east to 

consider and improve 

access to stations by all 

modes. 

ART 2:

Develop and 

deliver a bid to 

Transport 

Scotland’s Bus 

Partnership Fund 

to take forward 

feasibility and 

business case 

development for 

two ART cross 

city corridors 

connecting Park 

& Ride sites and 

the Airport with 

the City Centre.

RL 2:

The provision of 

improved access 

to the railway 

network by 

considering 

opportunities for 

additional 

stations, better 

integration of 

local services 

with InterCity 

services, full 

access for all 

and improved 

access to 

stations by non-

car modes. 

Upgrading of stations to 

ensure accessibility for 

all and improvement of 

interchange 

opportunities, including 

as priorities, 

accessibility at Insch 

Station and the 

development of 
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ART marketing and 

Communications

As part of the BPF award, £300K was 

allocated to communications and 

engagement support for ART and the 

other BPF projects

Nestrans tendered for consultancy 

support and Jacobs/Social 

Marketing Gateway appointed to 

develop and deliver a wide-

reaching stakeholder engagement, 

marketing and communications 

plan to support the development 

and delivery of Aberdeen Rapid 

Transit (ART) and its supporting 

infrastructure.  

The commission will 

use expert market 

research techniques to 

gain representative 

bus user and wider 

stakeholder public 

opinion and insight 

and use this to inform 

ongoing 

communications, 

branding and 

promotion of the 

preferred option for 

ART.

↑

BUS - Improving the region’s bus network 

North East of Scotland 

Bus Alliance

The North East of Scotland Bus Alliance 

has been approved by both Councils and 

the operators and has been signed.  

£55.3K in 22/23 

(all carry forward 

from 21/22)

The Bus Action Plan produced by the 

Bus Alliance and based on the State 

of the Network Report was published 

on the Nestrans website in April 2020 

and will be updated and reported to 

the Bus Alliance Board every 6 

months. The Bus Alliance submitted a 

bid to the S Gov's Bus Partnership 

Fund that was successful and was 

awarded over £12M funding.

Promotional campaign 

for public transport 

being developed

↑

ART 2:

Develop and 

deliver a bid to 

Transport 

Scotland’s Bus 

Partnership Fund 

to take forward 

feasibility and 

business case 

development for 

two ART cross 

city corridors 

connecting Park 

& Ride sites and 

the Airport with 

the City Centre.

BUS 1:

Continue to be a 

key partner of 

the North East 

Bus Alliance and 

ensure a strong 

partnership 

continues for the 

benefit of the 

north east.
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Bus service powers The Transport Bill was passed on 10 

October 2019 and  received Royal 

Assent on 15 November 2019 making the 

Transport (Scotland) Act 2019 law.  The 

new legislation will give local councils 

and RTPs more flexibility to improve 

services, either by working with bus 

companies or by stepping in and running 

services themselves.  It includes new 

local franchising powers, and 

requirements on bus operators to provide 

more information to the public about 

routes, timetabling and fares.

NTS Delivery Plan for 2022/23 

states we will support local 

authorities to look at different ways 

of delivering bus services in their 

areas and making use of the 

provisions in the Transport Act 

2019, as they are commenced. 

Local transport authorities will 

have the power to run their own 

bus services by July 2022 and 

secondary legislation to enable bus 

franchising and partnership 

options will be introduced before 

the end of 2023.

Transport Scotland will 

continue to work with 

partners on the 

implementation of 

these measures

↑

South College St Ph1 improvements 

being progressed by ACC and involve 

linking Palmerston Road through to North 

Esplanade West and a package of 

junction improvements and road 

widening measures to increase capacity 

and improve traffic flow. Alongside the 

carriageway there will be shared and 

segregated facilities for pedestrians and 

cyclists.

The £12M Bus Partnership Fund 

award will be used to deliver the 

improvements at South College 

Street, in support of the City Centre 

Masterplan by helping to unlock wider 

improvements for bus priority in the 

city centre and enabling public realm 

measures to enhance the city centre 

as a destination. 

Main works contract 

has been awarded. 

Discussions on off-

street car park access 

agreement has 

concluded. Car park 

will not be proceeding 

as part of the project. 

Advanced payments 

and the works order 

have been completed. 

Next step will be site 

team mobilisation.

↑

Bus priority measures in support of 

Aberdeen City Centre Masterplan

£50K in 22/23 Contribution to delivery of Union 

Street, Guild Street, Market Street 

and Bridge Street pedestrianisation 

and supporting bus priority. Phase 

1 works agreed by ACC with Phase 

2 works being developed, including 

elaboration of bus priority 

measures

ACC has also attracted 

additional Air Quality 

Action Plan funding for 

this project.  Report on 

traffic management 

plan to be prepared to 

Council in June.

↑

Implement town centre Better engage with the 

Support the City Centre 

Masterplan proposals to 

create a network of bus, 

cycle and local access 

only sections within the 

city centre, similar to 

that already introduced 

on Broad Street.

BUS 1:

Continue to be a 

key partner of 

the North East 

Bus Alliance and 

ensure a strong 

partnership 

continues for the 

benefit of the 

north east.

BUS 2:

Develop and 

deliver the 

actions 

contained within 

the Bus Action 

Plan, in 

partnership with 

the members of 

the North East 

Bus Alliance. Our 

priorities being:

a) bus journey 

times and 

reliability
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Further support the 

development of the 

GrassHOPPER 

integrated ticketing 

arrangement to develop 

online retail solutions, 

alternative ticket types, 

mobile and fares 

capping technology.

Launch of new multi operator ticket 

scheme - Grasshopper took place on 8 

May 2014.  Full details on prices and 

coverage on grasshopperpass.com 

website. Grasshopper pass coverage 

extended to allow travel on multi-operator 

services over a wider area in 2015. From 

22 Aug 2016 the Grasshopper ticket can 

be stored on a smartcard, making it 

Scotland's first means of smart multi-

operator travel.

£4K in 22/23 Nestrans had agreed to contribute 

in 2022/23 along with both 

Councils, Stagecoach and First 

Aberdeen to  marketing to 

advertise the smartcard

↑

Transport Bill was passed on 10 October 

2019 and received Royal Assent on 15 

November 2019 making the Transport 

(Scotland) Act 2019 law.  It includes 

mention of "smart-ticketing" across bus, 

rail, ferry, subway and tram networks, 

with a "national technological standard" 

that such schemes would have to live up 

to.  

NTS Delivery Plan for 2022/23 

states TS will We will develop and 

engage on the smart ticketing and 

bus open data powers in the 

Transport Scotland Act 2019 and 

start to commence these. The 

analysis of the public consultation 

on the National Smart Ticketing 

Advisory Board, which closed in 

October 2021, was published on 11 

March 2022 and work is underway 

to commence this.

↑

Explore options to See AF1 and AF5: the affordability of Continue to engage with 

disability groups to 

improve access for all.

NTS Delivery Plan for 2022/23 states 

that after engaging with disabled 

people and the organisations that 

represent them, the 22/23 Annual 

Delivery Plan for the Accessible Travel 

Framework will be published in 

Summer 2022.

This Framework will set out the 

agreed priorities that will support 

improved door to door journeys.

↑

Contribution towards the Construction of 

a 300m Footpath connecting Hareburn 

Terrace, Blackdog to A90 to assist 

access to bus services

£71.3K in 22/23 

(all c/f from 21/22)

Internal Resources within AC's 

Projects team are now working on 

the detailed design.

Aim to complete the 

design work and 

consultation by August 

2022 prior to issuing a 

tender for the works

↑

New footpath and bus stop infrastructure £25K Capital in Transport Scotland /Aberdeen Roads Works complete and ↑

BUS 2:

d) Affordability 

and accessibility:

Improved and safe 

pedestrian access to 

bus stops.

BUS 2:

e) Interchange 

between bus 

services and with 

other modes:

BUS 2:

c) Fares and 

ticketing
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Refresh of All Aberdeen City Bus Stop 

Flags resulting from information being 

out of date ie/ bus service numbers etc

£91.5K in 22/23 

(all c/f from 21/22)

Invitation to tender being finalised 

for release to the market in June 

2022.

Anticipate all product 

being delivered by 

October 2022.

↑

Craigiebuckler turning circle.  

Resurfacing the existing Craigiebuckler 

terminus turning circle and redesigning it 

to accommodate the swept path of the 

bus service.

£28K in 22/23 (all 

c/f from 21/22)

Works completed on 13 May 2022.  

Final cost to be confirmed by ACC 

Roads Operations.

Awaiting invoice. ↑

Bus Stop Upgrades in Aberdeen - 

budget agreed for upgrades to bus 

stop infrastructure (est approx. 15 bus 

shelters per year) to replace existing 

infrastructure which has reached the 

end of its useable life

£100K in 22/23 Site visits completed to confirm 

priority ranking.  Requirements for 

SSE input prepared and liaison 

commenced with ACC Roads 

Operations (lighting) colleagues.

Replacement List 

presented to supplier 

for quotation and draft 

schedule to be 

prepared.

↑

Remaining funding from Nestrans budget £15.3K in 21/22 (all Refund received from SSE due to Budget in 21/22 has ↑Work with the bus 

operators to increase 

the proportion of the bus 

fleet operating with low 

or zero emission 

vehicles.

The Scottish Government has awarded 

over £62 million through the first phase of 

the Zero Emission Bus Challenge Fund 

(ScotZEB).  It will support operators in 

replacing 276 old diesel buses with new 

battery-electric models and the required 

charging infrastructure

Awards offered include £3,066,547 to 

Bluebird Buses Ltd for 13 buses and 

£18,599,858 to First Aberdeen & First 

Glasgow No1 Ltd for 74 buses

NTS Delivery Plan for 

22/23 states that the  

Bus Decarbonisation 

Taskforce will publish 

the Bus 

Decarbonisation 

Pathway in summer 

2022.

↑

Work with bus BUS 3: Progression of the previously funded 

corridor study Phase 2 elements that 

require further development to STAG 

detailed (Part 2) appraisal and thereafter 

preliminary design 

Being funded via 

BPF award

Client group set up. Stantec appointed 

and inception meeting held in early 

August. This project received funding 

via the Bus Partnership Fund and 

Nestrans budget vired to other 

projects in Sept.  Concept design 

work has been completed and 

presented to the client group. 

STAG appraisal of the 

options is now 

underway.  

Consultation on 

options launched on 

ACC website on 25 

May and open until 1 

July.

↑

BUS 2:

g) Quality of the 

vehicles:

Work with the two local 

authorities to upgrade 

bus stop infrastructure 

across the region to 

ensure it is high-quality, 

fit for purpose, safe and 

accessible.

Westhill to Aberdeen 

multi-modal corridor 

study looking at both 

Queens Road and the 

Lang Stracht .

BUS 2:

f) Bus stop 

infrastructure:

BUS 4:

Work through the 

Bus Alliance to 

develop Bus 

Service 

Improvement 

Partnership 

agreement(s) (or 

alternative 

statutory 

agreement) 

based on a 

package of 

infrastructure 

and service 

improvements 

and 

commitments to 

be delivered by 

both public 

sector and bus 

operator 

partners. 

Corridor studies, 

in line with the 

principles of 

STAG will be 

used to identify 

appropriate 

infrastructure 

measures to feed 

into these 

agreements. 
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The outcomes of the City Centre 

Masterplan (CCMP) Management Plan 

will feed into the Outline Business Case 

for improvements to city centre bus 

infrastructure. ACC's CGR Cttee agreed 

on 12 Nov to fully pedestrianise Union St 

Central section except for cyclists and 

time limited service and that to do so, 

bus, taxi and cycle priority, will be 

required on Bridge St, Market St and 

Guild St, Schoolhill/ Upperkirkgate will 

require to be pedestrianised between 

Harriet St and Flourmill Lane, and right 

turns prohibited except for buses, taxis 

and cycles from Union Terr into 

Rosemount Viaduct and instructed Traffic 

Regulation Orders to be progressed.

Development of the Traffic 

Management Plan is ongoing, with 

a focus on fulfilling the Committee 

instruction to re-open Union Street 

to buses and taxis as soon as 

practically possible.   The 

Experimental Traffic Regulation 

Order (ETRO) for Union Street was 

published on 20 May 2022 to allow 

for a June reopening. The ETRO for 

the Market Street, Guild Street, 

Bridge Street gyratory is in the 

process of being developed. 

Meetings have been held with 

stakeholders to discuss the Union 

Street Options Appraisal work, to 

be reported back to Full Council, 

alongside a full update on the City 

Centre Masterplan.

ACC has appointed 

consultancy support to 

develop the Phase 2 

Traffic Management 

Plan, including further 

development of public 

transport priority 

proposals, in tandem 

with the evolving 

streetscape design for 

the priority 

intervention areas, 

connectivity to the 

Beach and Beach 

Boulevard and will 

report progress back 

to CGR Cttee in June 

2022.  

↑

Wellington Road multi-

modal corridor study 

Nestrans commissioned a pre-appraisal 

that was completed and published in 

2015.  ACC commissioned the STAG 

part 1 initial appraisal that was completed 

in 2018.  Aecom again appointed to 

undertake STAG part 2 detailed appraisal 

following competitive tender. Paramics 

Discovery micro simulation model 

developed  by Aecom and audited by 

Stantec who also used it for the transport 

links to Aberdeen South Harbour Stag 

part 2 study.

£37.9K in 21/22 (all 

delay draw down 

from 20/21)

Invoiced to date = 

£34.5K

Final appraisal complete and reported 

to Board on 10 Nov.  ACC CGR Cttee 

approved progression of 

recommended hybrid package and 

referred recommendation "to progress 

outline design, route option 

assessment and Outline Business 

Case as soon as funding and 

resource is identified" to the budget 

setting process.

City Region Deal Joint 

Committee on 10 June 

agreed to business 

case development for 

the A956 Wellington 

Road corridor. 

↑

Westhill to Aberdeen 

multi-modal corridor 

study looking at both 

Queens Road and the 

Lang Stracht .

BUS 4:

Work through the 

Bus Alliance to 

develop Bus 

Service 

Improvement 

Partnership 

agreement(s) (or 

alternative 

statutory 

agreement) 

based on a 

package of 

infrastructure 

and service 

improvements 

and 

commitments to 

be delivered by 

both public 

sector and bus 

operator 

partners. 

Corridor studies, 

in line with the 

principles of 

STAG will be 

used to identify 

appropriate 

infrastructure 

measures to feed 

into these 

agreements. 
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Ellon to Robert 

Gordon’s University via 

King Street and Holburn 

Street multi-modal 

corridor study. 

Aecom appointed following tender in 

2020 to undertake a multi-modal study on 

the Ellon-City Centre - Garthdee corridor. 

Problems, Opportunities, Issues and 

Constraints identified and over 100 

options generated. High level sifting 

undertaken.

Being funded via 

BPF award

This project also received funding via 

the Bus Partnership Fund and 

Nestrans budget no longer fully 

required was vired in Sept 2021. 

STAG study outcomes were reported 

to ACC CGR on 3 Feb 2022 and 

approval given to progress this to 

outline business case stage  

Project approved at 

gateway review to 

progress to Outline 

Business Case.  

Tender awarded and 

inception phase 

commencing.

↑

A96 Inverurie - Aberdeen City Centre 

multi-modal corridor study. Stantec 

appointed following tender in 2020.  The 

Scottish Government and Scottish Green 

Party draft shared policy programme 

agrees to  develop a programme of 

enhanced public transport improvements 

in North East Scotland, which will include 

reviewing the A96 corridor with a view to 

implementing appropriate bus priority 

measures

Being funded via 

BPF award

£5K in 22/23 (all 

c/f from 2021/22)

This project also received funding via 

the Bus Partnership Fund.  Remaining 

Nestrans budget approved in Feb for 

continuation to 22/23 as contingency. 

Systra procured to test emerging 

options using ASAM strategic model. 

Option appraisal of the agreed list of 

options for further development 

completed and to be shared with 

public and stakeholders.

Public and stakeholder 

engagement complete 

and final STAG report 

received.  Project is 

proceeding through 

gateway review with 

Transport Scotland.

↑

A92 multi-modal corridor study between 

Bridge of Don and Bridge of Dee via 

Anderson Dr and Parkway.  Study will 

also consider B9077 Great Southern 

Road and B985 West Tullos Road and 

previous and ongoing work in relation to 

Wellington Rd, Bridge of Dee and A90(S) 

Park & Ride and combine this into a 

coherent whole 

Being funded via 

BPF award

This project received  funding via the 

Bus Partnership Fund and Nestrans 

budget vired to other projects in Sept.  

Jacobs appointed following 

competitive tender.  Objectives 

agreed following consultation on 

problems, issues, opportunities 

and constraints.

Long list of options 

drafted and 

consultation on these 

being held on ACC 

website from 30 May to 

1 July 2022.

↑

South Aberdeen to Laurencekirk 

Corridor Study.  Additional budget 

allocated as expect that funding in 

excess of current BPF funded 

appraisal of Anderson Drive and 

Parkway and LRDF grant for the 

Laurencekirk to Aberdeen study will 

be required to complete overall multi-

modal corridor appraisal

£100K in 22/23 Anticipated that Nestrans will 

continue to lead on study for this 

section of the corridor as a 

separate study under BPF.  

Discussions are ongoing with 

Transport Scotland to separate this 

part of the study from the above 

section between Bridge of Dee and 

Bridge of Don.

↑

Similar studies will then 

be progressed on the 

remaining radial 

corridors into Aberdeen.

BUS 4:

Work through the 

Bus Alliance to 

develop Bus 

Service 

Improvement 

Partnership 

agreement(s) (or 

alternative 

statutory 

agreement) 

based on a 

package of 

infrastructure 

and service 

improvements 

and 

commitments to 

be delivered by 

both public 

sector and bus 

operator 

partners. 

Corridor studies, 

in line with the 

principles of 

STAG will be 

used to identify 

appropriate 

infrastructure 

measures to feed 

into these 

agreements. 
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A947 multi-modal corridor study from 

A96 Inverurie Road roundabout to City 

boundary at River Don.  Study will 

include options for formalising the 

change of alignment of the A947 from 

Victoria Street to Riverview Drive through 

eg placemaking interventions on Victoria 

Street  It will also take cognisance of and 

complement the A947 Route Action Plan 

developed by Aberdeenshire Council 

£123.1K in 22/23 

(all c/f from 21/22)

Aecom appointed following 

competitive tender.   Public 

consultation was extended to January 

and responses analysed and 

Problems, Issues, Opportunities and 

Constraints technical note developed.  

Transport Planning objectives for the 

study developed along with long list of 

options that will next be appraised.

Option sifting of the 

long list of options has 

been completed and 

option packages have 

been proposed.  

Option appraisal to 

commence.

↑

A93 multi-modal corridor study.  Study 

will investigate options along the corridor 

between Peterculter and Aberdeen City 

Centre 

£89.8K in 22/23 

(all c/f from 21/22)

Aecom appointed following 

competitive tender.  Transport 

Planning objectives for the study 

developed along with long list of 

options that will next be appraised.

Option generation, 

sifting and 

development 

completed and option 

appraisal to 

commence.

↑

Assessment of Cumulative impact of 

Bus Partnership Fund and Aberdeen 

traffic interventions.  

£50K in 22/23 Use of the strategic ASAM19 model 

to assess the cumulative impact of 

all of the proposals following the 

multi-modal studies, BPF 

corridors, CCMP, Beach 

Masterplan and other relevant 

works that will limit/reduce/redirect 

traffic in Aberdeen.

Brief being developed 

and to be tendered for 

consultancy support to 

undertake the 

assessment once 

ASAM19 forecasts and 

audit are completed.

↑

BUS 5: Nestrans appointed Jacobs following SEE ART 2, BUS 2a and BUS 4 BUS 6:	

Lobby Scottish 

Ministers to 

continue their 

support for bus 

passengers 

across Scotland, 

beyond the Bus 

Partnership 

Fund, through 

enhanced capital 

The Scottish Government and Scottish 

Green Party draft shared policy 

programme agrees a Community Bus 

Fund will be introduced, which will 

support local transport authorities to 

improve local public transport in their 

areas. This fund will support transport 

authorities to explore the full range of 

options set out in the Transport 

(Scotland) Act 2019, including municipal 

bus services.

The NTS2 Delivery Plan for 22/23 

states that "We will develop the 

Community Bus Fund scheme, 

engaging with local government on 

the design and making funding 

allocations in 2022-23."

↑

Similar studies will then 

be progressed on the 

remaining radial 

corridors into Aberdeen.

BUS 4:

Work through the 

Bus Alliance to 

develop Bus 

Service 

Improvement 

Partnership 

agreement(s) (or 

alternative 

statutory 

agreement) 

based on a 

package of 

infrastructure 

and service 

improvements 

and 

commitments to 

be delivered by 

both public 

sector and bus 

operator 

partners. 

Corridor studies, 

in line with the 

principles of 

STAG will be 

used to identify 

appropriate 

infrastructure 

measures to feed 

into these 

agreements. 
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P&R - Maximising the benefits of Park & Ride 

Crathes mini-

interchange hub

Contribution towards the creation of a 

Mini Interchange Hub which would 

include for a designated car park, 

improved bus stop facilities and 

pedestrian crossing facilities

£51.5 in 22/23 (all 

c/f from 21/22)

AC officers in Estates and Legal are 

in the process of concluding the land 

purchase.  No progress yet this 

financial year, but anticipate this 

can be completed by end March 

2023.

↑

Oldmeldrum mini-

interchange hub

Contribution towards the development of 

a Mini Interchange Hub at Oldmeldrum to 

complement the existing services 

operated by Stagecoach and Bain 

Coaches and enhance the long term 

viability of these commercial services.  

The scheme includes the creation of a 

car park, footways, and lighting to 

enhance alternative modes of transport 

and encourage people out of their 

vehicles to reduce the carbon footprint.  

Aecom appointed to progress detailed 

design. 

£80K in 22/23 

(includes £61.4K 

c/f from 21/22)

Alternative land opportunities being 

explored by AC PTU in conjunction 

with their colleagues within Property 

and Legal.  Progress being made with 

two landowners, one at Newbarns, the 

other at Parcock Quarry.  Concept 

drawings complete for both locations.  

Land valuations have been conducted 

on 2 alternatives sites, with at least  1 

further site (possibly 2) to be valued.

Third valuation carried 

out during May. AC 

PTU officers awaiting 

report prior to 

presenting the 3x 

opportunities to the 

Local Members for 

feedback 

↑

P&R 6: ...and requirements for See RL2 Travel plans for all rail stationsMD - Managing demand

National Policy The Scottish Gov are seeking views on 

how to implement a clearer and more 

consistent approach to parking laws in 

Scotland ahead of the development of 

new policies having obtained the 

necessary powers in the Scotland Act.  

The Transport Bill was passed on 10 

October 2019 and received Royal 

Assent on 15 November 2019 making 

the Transport (Scotland) Act 2019 

law.  It includes the outlawing of 

pavement and double parking and 

gives all Scottish Councils the power 

to impose a workplace parking levy. 

NTS2 Delivery Plan 

states that we will 

introduce regulations 

in 2022 to bring 

national enforcement 

of pavement parking 

bans in 2023, with 

exemptions as 

designated by local 

authorities.

MD 4: ... provide protection to See AT and BUS

MD 2:

Identify the most 

appropriate 

charging regimes 

in and around 

Aberdeen, such 

as Workplace 

Parking Levies or 

other charging 

options, which 

could manage 

P&R 5:

Nestrans will 

support AC in the 

expansion of the 

network of mini- 

interchange hubs 

to improve 

accessibility in 

rural areas, 

including support 

for a transport 

hub in Banchory 

and further mini-

interchange sites 

where 

appropriate. 

These will allow 

people in more 

rural parts of the 

region to access 
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RE - Reducing emissions from transport

 ... and substantially 

reduce traffic in the city 

centre. ...

South College St/QE Rbt Ph2 review. 

Feasibility study to review options for the 

junction (including active travel) following 

the opening of the AWPR and any impact 

this has had on traffic flows in the area 

with the intention that providing 

alternative routes for general traffic will 

help to enable delivery of the City Centre 

Masterplan and support the Roads 

Hierarchy proposals.

£47.3K in 22/23 

(all c/f from 21/22)

Draft brief has been developed by 

ACC staff and circulated for comment 

to likely members of the client group, 

which will include Nestrans staff.

Awaiting completion of 

ASAM strategic 

transport model.  

↑

… Work with RE 4:

Support 

Aberdeen City 

Council in the 

delivery of a Low 

Emission Zone in 

Aberdeen City 

Centre with the 

primary focus to 

reduce levels of 

vehicle 

emissions that 

are harmful to 

human health.

Low Emission Zone 

(LEZ)

The Scottish Gov announced a 

commitment to introduce LEZs into 

Scotland's 4 largest cities by 2020 

although indicative extended timeframe 

of Feb - May 2022 now earliest realistic 

period due to Covid . An LEZ Project 

Group (including Nestrans) has been 

formed. ACC awarded S Gov funding to 

assist in LEZ development and to 

upgrade the City Centre micro-simulation 

model.  Systra appointed.  Nestrans 

budget contribution approved for 

modelling of LEZ options with City Centre 

Master Plan interventions in place to aid 

further development of options.

£12.5K in 22/23 

(all c/f from 21/22)

Systra has completed reports on 

option testing modelling and NLEF 

Stage 2 appraisal and this is 

published. ACC has received funding 

for enforcement cameras from S Gov 

and this will be procured. ACC 

consulted on LEZ boundary from 28 

June to 22 Aug 2021. Over 1,700 

responses received and some minor 

changes to the LEZ boundary made 

based on the outcomes of the 

consultation.  Remaining budget 

continued to 2022/23 should any 

further appraisal be required, but 

no longer needed now LEZ 

approved and virement proposed 

in separate budget report.  

ACC formally submitted 

the proposed LEZ 

scheme to Scottish 

Ministers in Feb 2022. 

ACC received 

confirmation in May 

that scheme has been 

approved by Scottish 

Ministers.  LEZ made 

and came into effect 

on 30 May 2022, with 

enforcement to 

commence on 1 June 

2024.  ACC has 

established the 

locations for the LEZ 

signage and applied 

for funding for 

installation.

↑

RE 3:

Support 

Aberdeen City 

Council in the 

delivery of its 

City Centre 

Masterplan and 

Roads Hierarchy 

proposals to 

dissuade through 
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Scoping of Live Lab 

Proposals

Aecom appointed following competitive 

tender to undertake Scoping of Live Labs 

Proposals.  This has been commissioned 

and will be project managed by Nestrans, 

but is being funded via Aberdeen City 

Region Deal (CRD).  The aim is to 

develop a long-list of potential pilot 

interventions and assess them to decide 

promising concepts that would be 

deliverable within next 5 years and 

provide valuable learning opportunities 

and support the RTS and CRD so they 

can be considered for further 

development. 

Being funded via 

CRD

Desktop research and evidence 

gathering, including stakeholder 

engagement complete and draft long 

list of potential projects developed.  

Long list of options has been sifted to 

provide shorter list for appraisal, with 

several related around the themes of 

mobility hubs and alternative fuels.  

Initial appraisal of remaining options 

completed using the agreed 

assessment tool methodology and 

outcomes discussed.

Suggestions for small 

number of best trial 

options considered by 

CRD committee as part 

of the  Strategic 

Transport Appraisal 

programme.  

Proposals for Mobility 

hubs and demountable 

hydrogen refuelling 

facilities to be 

progressed further.

↑

EV charge points in 

Aberdeen

Budget agreed to extend the warranty 

and maintenance agreements for 

charge points, make repairs that fall 

out with this and extend the Sim 

agreements to allow charge points to 

stay connected to Chargeplace 

Scotland network. 

£13K in 22/23 ACC's current contracts do not 

expire until the end of the calendar 

year, so work on this project has 

yet to commence. 

↔

EV charger installation 

in Aberdeenshire

Aberdeenshire Council is arranging a 

programme of EV charger installations 

across the area and Nestrans 

contribution in 21/22 for a charge 

point in Balmedie  has been carried 

forward and additional funding 

approved in 22/23 for new EV charger 

locations and potential upgrades of 

50KWh to 150KWh

£349K in 22/23 

(incl £98K c/f from 

21/22)

Discussions with Aberdeenshire 

Facilities have been progressing, 

with 11 sites identified ie Westhill - 

Academy or Library; Meldrum 

Academy, Linden Centre, Huntly; 

Deveron Sports Centre, Banff; 

Buchan House, Peterhead; Bellfield 

Car Park, Banchory; Viewmount, 

Stonehaven; Kemnay Academy; 

Mearns Academy and Ellon and 

Portlethen Community Campuses. 

Tender for works being developed.

Connected Kerbs have 

been appointed as 

contractor to 

undertake works to 

instal the charge point 

at Balmedie. Envisage 

this being completed 

within the next 4 - 6 

weeks.

↑

RE 5:

Work with 

partners to 

extend the 

network of 

publicly available 

electric vehicle 

charging points 

across the 

region, 

facilitating a 

move away from 

petrol/diesel to 

RE 8:

Work to ensure 

full 

decarbonisation 

of council, car-

club, taxi and 

other community 

planning and 

Getabout partner 

vehicle fleets 

within the period 

of this Strategy, 

with significant 

progress by 

2030.
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BC - Encouraging behaviour change

BC 1:

Continue to 

support the 

Getabout 

Partnership and 

development and 

roll out of a 

Regional 

Sustainable 

Travel Promotion 

Strategy to 

encourage 

people to travel 

by active and 

sustainable 

modes.

Getabout Getabout continuing to be promoted as 

the Sustainable Transport Brand at 

events.  Getabout partnership celebrated 

10th (tin) anniversary in 2019 and 

produced money tin can promotional 

items, encouraging people to save 

money in the tins from travelling actively 

and sustainably. Getabout website 

(www.getabout.org.uk) refreshed to 

improve editorial access and update 

graphics. The costs were met from the 

Travel Planning budget and the new 

version of the website went live in May 

2020.

Costs met from 

Travel Planning 

budget

Getabout have started the Summer 

campaign to promote active travel 

using social media and radio 

adverts.  An advert was also placed 

in the Raring2go! Magazine that 

goes out to parents via children at 

Primary Schools in the north east 

to promote the getabout website 

for advice and ideas on walks, 

cycle routes and public transport 

information for days out in the 

summer holidays.

A new radio advert 

promoting Sharing 

space is now on 

Original FM.

↑

Radio Advertising Radio advert booking contract on 

Original 106fm for a minimum of 50 

adverts per month has been extended to 

Feb 2022.  

Costs met from 

Travel Planning 

budget unless 

otherwise stated.

Active Travel Radio adverts are 

currently on Original FM. ↑

Travel Planning support Continuing to provide assistance to 

companies to develop travel plans. 

Sweco completed work on the Civitas 

Portis project on Travel Planning in the 

North Dee, Tullos and Altens business 

parks in Aberdeen. Travel planning 

leaflets for the areas have been designed 

and printed in 2020 and will be 

distributed once co-vid restrictions allow. 

£68.7K in 22/23 

(incl £16K c/f from 

21/22)

Electronic copies of the leaflets and 

travel planning reports prepared 

through the Civitas Portis project are 

available on the Nestrans website.  

Travel Planning work is ongoing with 

partners to promote travel planning to 

vaccination centres and further details 

in info bulletin. The major vaccination 

centre opened w/c 13 Sept at the Bon 

Accord Centre (old John Lewis site).

Nestrans has worked 

with NHSG and Abdn 

Health & Social Care 

Ptnrship on travel 

planning including 

getting a film made to 

show how to get to the 

former John Lewis 

vaccination centre by 

walking, cycling or bus. 

BC 3:

Encourage and 

support more 

organisations to 

develop and 

implement travel 

plans, including 

workplaces and 

schools across 

the region.

BC 2:	

Continue to use 

the Getabout 

sustainable 
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Dyce Travel Plan Nestrans contributed in 19/20 to cost of 

consultancy study led by ACC as 

available Civitas funding insufficient to 

cover full cost.  Atkins consultants 

appointed and business breakfast held in 

Jan 2020.

Costs met from 

Travel Planning 

budget

Nestrans was to lead on development 

of travel planning information for 

TECA - P&J Live, but this project has 

been cancelled due to the high public 

knowledge of travelling to TECA/P&J 

live due to it being a vaccination 

centre.

Nestrans are working 

with BP to help them 

develop a travel plan 

for moving to new 

premises within Dyce. 

An electronic travel to 

Dyce Leaflet is 

currently being 

developed.

BC 4:

Continue to 

support the 

Nestrans 

Sustainable 

Travel Grant to 

help 

organisations 

promote and 

encourage active 

and sustainable 

travel.

Sustainable travel grant 

schemes (STGS)

Combined budget approved to continue 

to provide Sustainable Travel Grant 

Scheme and Community Sustainable 

Travel grant  in 2022/23.  Details on 

Sustainable Travel Grant Scheme criteria 

and guidance and the new Community 

Sustainable Travel Grant approved by 

Board in June 2021 can be viewed on the 

Nestrans website.  

£51.3K in 22/23 

(incl 31.3K c/f 

from 21/22)

Approved in 21/22 

= £22K

Paid in 21/22 = 

£10.1K

Grants paid to Strichen Community 

Park for a cycle repair station, to 

Aberdeenshire Council for cycle 

shelter at the Green, Portlethen and to 

Time to Heal for cycle parking 

(awards also detailed at AT3 above).  

Awards made to Huntly Development 

Trust for E-bikes (see AT4) and to 

Lumphanan Paths Group for path 

clearance and drainage (see AT5).  

Huntly Dev Trust has submitted a 

claim for their grant in June.

Details regarding 

applications for the two 

Sustainable Travel Grant 

schemes on Nestrans 

website. Unclaimed 

grant from 21/22 

requested for carry 

forward to 22/23 in 

unaudited accounts 

report as both 

outstanding awards 

nearing completion.

↑

BC 3:

Encourage and 

support more 

organisations to 

develop and 

implement travel 

plans, including 

workplaces and 

schools across 

the region.
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Aberdeen Car Club Aberdeen first launched a car club on 2 

April 2012 which, under previous supplier 

Co-wheels, saw it become the first car 

club in Scotland to introduce electric 

vehicles and the first in the world to trial 

hydrogen vehicles. Although no longer 

the main contract supplier for the City 

Council, Co-wheels will continue to 

operate car club vehicles in Aberdeen.  

Nestrans has agreed budget in 22/23 

for car club bay implementation.

£5K in 22/23 Following a tendering process ACC 

announced that Enterprise has 

been chosen to run the Car Cub 

service, bringing members access 

to over 30 cars across the city in 

designated car club bays and also 

access to the largest Car Club in 

the UK with  1,500 cars and vans 

located in more than 180 UK cities, 

towns and communities, including 

cars parked within 500 metres of 

180 railway stations.  The service 

launched on 1 June 2022 and the 

contract will last for an initial 3-

year period, with the option to 

extend for up to a further two.

Members of the club 

can book a car, via an 

app or the internet, 

when they need it and 

are charged on a pay-

as-you-drive basis. 

Enterprise will also 

provide ACC 

employees with 

managed pool cars for 

work purposes.  

Nestrans budget to be 

used for car club bay 

implementation and 

maintenance.

↑

BC7:

Investigate the 

opportunities for 

mainstreaming 

Mobility as a 

Service (MaaS) 

measures …

 ... focussing on 

integration of journey 

planning and ticketing 

across different modes 

of travel.

See RE5 - Scoping of Live Lab 

proposals.  The themes suggested for 

exploration through the live labs 

commission include Mobility Hubs and 

Rural Mobility as a Service Applications.

NTS2 Delivery Plan 22/23 states We 

will complete the procurement for 

digital travel data services to 

ensure continued and improved 

journey planning information in 

2022

↑

BC 6:

Continue to 

support and 

promote shared 

transport 

initiatives, 

including Car 

Sharing, Car 

Clubs and bike 

hire schemes as 

useful tools to 

encourage 

behaviour 

change.
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Real Time Passenger 

Information 

Budget approved in 15/16 to replace 

existing RTPI screens in Aberdeen with 

modern screens that will run on the 

Aberdeenshire System and installation of 

further solar powered screens in 

Aberdeenshire.  New system allows 

messages to be sent to the screens to 

assist with disruption management. 

Region wide live bus departure info can 

be found online at AC, First and 

Stagecoach websites, on mobile phones 

using the free Traveline Scotland app, or 

via QR codes on timetables at bus stops 

using smartphones.

£20K in 22/23 Nestrans has again agreed to 

contribute to the annual 

maintenance costs of the system in 

2022/23.  

↑

Extended Real Time Expansion of RTI to include for the £78K in 21/22 Blackbox Company have been All displays purchased ↑RTPI E-paper Major 

Component 

Replacements

Due to the move to renewable 

energy/low powered displays, there is 

a requirement to replace parts such as 

solar panels, batteries etc. 

Component life is estimated at 

present so this is principally a 

contingency budget based on best 

judgement

£25K in 22/23 Aberdeenshire Council public 

transport unit officers planning a 

replacement programme with a 

view to completing orders for 

components by September 2022

↑

BC 9:	

Utilise increased 

access to data 

and enhanced 

digital 

capabilities to 

improve 

provision of 

information on 

journey options, 

live journey 

updates, 

ticketing and 

interchange 

information to 

inform journey 

choices, inform 

users about their 

journey both 

prior to and 

during the 

journey itself and 

enable 
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NTS2 - managing 

demand

The National Transport Strategy NTS2 

Delivery Plan has a section on Managing 

Demand that states "We will work across 

government to develop a coordinated 

package of policy interventions to reduce 

car kilometres by 20% by 2030. 

Assuming the health pandemic has 

moved to a phase to allow more certainty 

regarding future forecasting, a route map 

to meet the reduction will be published in 

2021".  The Scottish Government and 

Scottish Green Party draft shared policy 

programme agrees that as part of work 

on policy measures to reduce car/km by 

20%, we will publish an analysis of 

options to assess and identify demand 

management options at the local and 

national level to encourage the use of 

active travel and public transport as an 

alternative to cars.

£50K in 22/23 (incl 

£25K c/f from 

21/22)

Nestrans has approved a budget to 

meet the cost of any studies to 

look into the regional implications 

of the national traffic demand 

targets.  This allocation would 

provide an opportunity to ensure 

that we have evidence available to 

ensure that the needs of our region 

are properly represented. This 

work was not commissioned in 

advance of STPR2 publication and 

continuation of the budget was 

agreed in Feb. The Scottish 

Government and Scottish Green Party 

draft shared policy programme also 

agrees to support and guide positive 

choices that will help Scotland 

achieve a 20% car kilometre reduction 

by 2030.  Policy report on the subject 

presented to the Nestrans Board on 8 

Dec 2021.

The S Gov published its 

route map on 13 Jan 

2022 outlining steps 

needed to reduce car 

kilometres travelled by 

20% by 2030.  

Partnership working will 

be required to deliver 

this as part of the effort 

to achieve net zero by 

2045.  NTS2 Delivery 

Plan 22/23 says TS will 

explore options for 

demand management 

to discourage car use, 

including pricing.  

Additional research 

commissioned to 

provide a short list of 

options for further 

exploration and 

feasibility analysis. 

↑

Active Travel Counters Cycling Scotland are funding the Agreement from Site visits undertaken and locations Counters now installed ↑Cycle Counter 

Maintenance

Budget approved again in 22/23 for 

reactive maintenance/repairs; annual 

software licence renewals and 

replacement batteries of cycle 

counters in Aberdeen  to ensure 

continuity of monitoring from these 

sites.

£15K in 22/23 Quotes requested for repair to 

Ellon Road - Denmore counter.  

Inconsistent pedestrian data from 3 

counters to be investigated and 

requirements to rectify this to be 

scoped.

↑

BC 10:	

Enhance data 

gathering, 

including 

conducting a 

region-wide 

travel survey to 

provide 

comprehensive 

data on how 

people in the 

North East of 

Scotland travel 

and how they 

potentially could 

travel in the 

future. This will 

allow Nestrans to 

focus our work 

on removing 

barriers to 

sustainable 

travel and 

improving 

walking, cycling 

and public 

transport in the 

North East as 

well as providing 

us with a 
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RD - Maintaining and improving the region’s road network

a) Dualling the Ellon 

bypass to Toll of 

Birness including 

upgrades to 

roundabouts

b) Junction upgrade at 

Toll of Birness to an at-

grade roundabout

c) Provision of sections 

of 2+1 lanes on the 

A90(N) and A952 

between Toll of Birness 

and Peterhead & 

Fraserburgh

d) Targeted safety 

improvements to the 

A952, including a 

roundabout at Cortes 

junction.

a) Upgrade to modern 

dual carriageway 

standard including a 

strategy of grade 

separation of junctions

Laurencekirk Flyover -Infrastructure 

Secretary Keith Brown announced £24M 

of funding on 28 Jan 2016 to take 

forward the design and construction of a 

grade separated junction on the A90 at 

Laurencekirk junction. Transport 

Scotland has appointed Amey to 

undertake route option assessment work 

and develop a preferred junction option, 

leading to the preparation of draft road 

Orders. Nestrans has shared previous 

work and will be part of the Partnership 

Group overseeing the project along with 

Transport Scotland, Aberdeenshire and 

Angus Councils.

S Gov has 

committed £24 

million in addition to 

City Region Deal 

Funding

Draft Orders and the Environmental 

Impact Assessment Report published 

on 19 December 2019 and the 

Statutory Consultation Period closed 

on 14 Feb 2020.  The Scottish 

Government and Scottish Green Party 

draft shared policy programme agrees 

that  work on other trunk roads 

projects and programmes under 

construction, design, development or 

procurement will continue and be 

subject to the normal statutory 

assessment and business case 

processes.

Amey and TS continuing 

to look at options to 

address some of the 

objections raised. 

Officers to seek a 

meeting of the 

Partnership Group as 

last meeting was in 

December 2021.

↑

c) Safety improvements 

The City Region Deal Joint 

Committee agreed when they met 

on 10 June 2022 that the next 

stages of work on the Strategic 

Transport Appraisal would include 

appraisal and business case 

development for the A90(N)/A952 

corridor building on the work 

previously done for Nestrans on 

the routes between Ellon, 

Peterhead and Fraserburgh.  

Nestrans will co-ordinate the 

delivery of this through the City 

Region Deal Transport Working 

Group.

Initial STAG appraisal work has already 

been carried out to identify and assess 

the options on this section of the corridor. 

This strategy will build on the initial work 

to further develop and deliver a preferred 

option for each of the above, taking into 

account the results of the appraisal 

carried out to date, in particular the 

environmental constraints associated 

with the crossing of the River Ythan 

which has designated areas of nature 

conservation associated with its estuarial 

waters and should be protected.

RD 1:

A90(N) and Ellon 

to Peterhead and 

Fraserburgh 

route action

RD 2:

A92/A90(S) 

Aberdeen to 

Perth route 

action
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RD 3:	

A947 Aberdeen 

to Banff and 

Macduff route 

action to deliver 

safety and 

operational 

efficiency 

improvements.

A947 Route Action Aecom commissioned in 2016/17 to look 

at opportunities such as overtaking lanes 

and junction improvements.  Night time 

audit of any missing road studs and 

average speed camera case studies 

undertaken.  Delivery of Action Plan to be 

progressed and business cases 

developed for individual schemes along 

the corridor. Aecom commissioned  to 

undertake Banff Bridge Feasibility Study 

at an estimated cost of £70K. Bid 

submitted to Sustrans Places for 

Everyone Fund for this study in Aug 

2020.

£209.2K in 22/23 

(incl £109.3K c/f 

from 21/22)

Report going to B&B Area 

Committee re. A98 Banff Bridge, 

the outcomes of which will identify 

the preferred option, following 

which detailed design would be 

undertaken.  Nestrans funding will 

also be used to enable AC to 

submit a bid to Transport Scotland 

for funding from their Levelling up 

Fund for the A947 corridor for 

works such as Overtaking Lanes, 

Junction Improvements, Widening 

and General Upgrades.

Traffic surveys to be 

arranged to support 

this project and £25K 

to be used for white 

lining improvements 

between Whiterashes 

and Plaidy.

↑

RD 4:	 Bridge of Dee STAG part 2 assessment reported to 

ACC's CHI on 24 Jan 2017 and is 

published on ACC website.  Agreed to 

review concepts after the opening of the 

AWPR to enable any changes in traffic 

patterns to be accurately assessed and 

for the indicative costs being brought up 

to date. Option of a 4 lane rather than a 6 

lane bridge considered, but based on  

modelling predictions of significant 

congestion it was agreed not to progress 

investigation into 4 lane option further.  

£72.8K in 22/23 

(all c/f from 21/22)

Brief being developed for consultancy 

work to undertake further investigation 

of the options developed through the 

Bridge of Dee Stag Part 2 following 

the settling of traffic patterns after 

opening of AWPR. Draft brief has 

been circulated for comment to likely 

members of the client group, which 

will include Nestrans staff.

Awaiting completion of 

ASAM strategic 

transport model.  

↔

Wellington Road See BUS 4 - Wellington Road multi- ↑

RD 5:	

A92 Blackdog to 

Stonehaven 

route action to 

deliver safety 

and operational 

efficiency 

improvements 

including at 

Bridge of Dee, 

improvements on 

Wellington Road, 

and access 

upgrades to 

Aberdeen South 

Harbour
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Access upgrades to 

Aberdeen South 

Harbour

Appraisal and delivery of any approved 

outcomes to be funded through £25M 

allocation within City Region Deal.  

Combined pre-appraisal and part 1 Stag 

report completed. Stantec completed 

STAG part 2 detailed appraisal in Jan 

2021.  ACC CGR Cttee considered 

STAG part 2 detailed appraisal on 3 Feb 

21 and approved recommended option to 

route via Hareness and upgrade the 

coast road and bridge. 

Funding for study 

being provided 

through the City 

Region Deal

Updated Strategic Business Case  

considered at CRD Joint Cttee on 20 

Aug and ACC CGR on 25 Aug and 

both approved seeking draw down of 

£1.2M of CRD budget for this project 

to progress the design and an Outline 

Business Case.  This includes, but is 

not limited to, surveys and 

investigations, design development, 

obtaining all necessary approvals, 

permissions, licences, agreements 

and consents required. 

Strategic Business 

Case was approved in 

March 2022 by the 

Scottish Government. 

A procurement 

process  for the 

appointment of design 

consultants is nearing 

completion, with 

submitted tenders 

currently being 

assessed.

↑

RD 5:	

A92 Blackdog to 

Stonehaven 

route action to 

deliver safety 

and operational 

efficiency 

improvements 

including at 

Bridge of Dee, 

improvements on 

Wellington Road, 

and access 

upgrades to 

Aberdeen South 

Harbour
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RD 6:	

A96 Aberdeen to 

Inverness - The 

Scottish 

Government 

remains 

committed to 

improving the 

A96 corridor and 

will take forward 

a transport 

enhancements 

programme that 

improves 

connectivity 

between 

surrounding 

towns, tackles 

congestion and 

addresses safety 

and 

environmental 

issues.  As part 

of the 

cooperation 

agreement with 

the Scottish 

Green Party the 

Scottish 

Government ... 

...has agreed to conduct 

a transparent, evidence-

based review of the A96 

dualling programme 

which will report by the 

end of 2022.Delivery of 

any section of the 

programme can only 

commence if approved 

under the relevant 

statutory procedures 

and thereafter a 

timetable for their 

progress can be set.  

The investment will 

enhance transport 

connectivity between 

the two cities and is 

aligned with one of the 

north east’s identified 

strategic growth 

corridors (as identified 

in the 2020 Strategic 

Development Plan). 

Improvements to the 

A96 support the 

objectives of the 

Regional Economic 

Strategy and ...

... Nestrans will continue to work closely 

with both Transport Scotland and 

Aberdeenshire Council to ensure 

improvements deliver the intended 

benefits for the north east, promote 

facilities for non-motorised users along 

the corridor as well as effective future 

integration with the public transport 

network (bus and rail).

The Scottish Gov’s Infrastructure and 

Investment Plan set out the aim to dual 

the A96 (T) between Aberdeen and 

Inverness by 2030.  Project included 

within NPF3: Proposed Framework. 

Contract worth up to £50M awarded by 

Transport Scotland to Amey Arup Joint 

Venture for the route option assessment 

and detailed design work to dual the A96 

between east of Huntly and Aberdeen.  

Options being appraised were displayed 

at public events in May 2019 and virtual 

consultation on preferred option 

undertaken from 21 Dec 2020 to 15 

February 2021.

The SNP and S Green Party have 

differing positions on the dualling, but 

agreed a Cooperation Agreement and 

shared policy programme in Aug 

2021. The S Gov will take forward a 

programme on the A96 that includes 

dualling from Inverness to Nairn; 

bypassing Nairn, Keith and Elgin; 

targeted road safety improvements 

where needed, eg between 

Fochabers and Huntly and Inverurie 

to Aberdeen and the development of 

an A96 “Electric Highway”. They 

agreed to conduct a transparent, 

evidence-based review on plans to 

fully dual the A96 to include a climate 

compatibility assessment to assess 

direct and indirect impacts on the 

climate and the environment. This will 

report by the end of 2022.  Draft 

STPR2 contains recommendation to 

undertake STAG-based review of 

future options.

TS appointed Jacobs 

and Aecom to 

undertake the STAG 

review and a public 

consultation was 

launched on 13 May 

2022 with responses 

due by 10 June.  This 

seeks info from 

individuals and 

businesses on 

satisfaction and usage 

of corridor by each 

mode, how they 

anticipate using it in 

future, any changes to 

travel behaviour or 

working patterns due 

to the pandemic or 

changes to travel due 

to the climate 

emergency and 

suggestions for 

improvement.  

Nestrans proposed 

response is within 

separate report on 

agenda.

↑
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RD 7:

Nestrans 

considers that 

the remainder of 

A96 between the 

AWPR and 

Inverurie also 

requires to be 

upgraded to 

modern 

standards, 

addressing 

safety and 

congestion 

Haudagain Junction 

Improvement

Nestrans funded STAG 2 study 

completed in 2008 to determine optimum 

solution at Haudagain roundabout and 

Ministers committed to funding this 

following completion of AWPR.  TS 

announced Farrans Construction 

appointed in Jan 2019. Minister for 

Transport advised on 21 Dec that the 

revised date for completing the works is 

now by the end of March 2022 due to 

resource impacts of the pandemic, 

supply chain issues and the impacts from 

recent storms.

The Minister for Transport cut the 

ribbon to open the new 500m of 

dual carriageway bypass of the 

Haudagain roundabout between 

North Anderson Drive and Auchmill 

Road on Monday 16 May 2022.  The 

scheme cost £49.5M and has been 

funded by the Scottish 

Government.

Farrans Construction 

will remain on site for a 

period of time to 

complete work on the 

side roads and to 

undertake necessary 

finishing, snagging 

and seasonal 

landscaping works.

↑

RD 8:	

A944 route 

action measures 

to deliver safety 

and operational 

efficiency 

improvements. 

Strategic Network 

Monitoring – Phase 4 

Queens Road Corridor

Expansion of ACC's current Internet 

Protocol closed-circuit television 

(IPCCTV) equipment at traffic signals, 

along the A944 Queens Road Corridor 

between Groats Road and Springfield Rd 

to monitor and better manage changes in 

traffic flow to assist in reducing 

congestion and improve journey times

£15.3K in 22/23 

(all c/f from 21/22)

Equipment has all been delivered and 

installation of CCTV columns to be 

arranged. Phase 1 of installation was 

completed and remaining budget 

agreed for continuation to 22/23 to 

complete phase 2 of installation.

Columns have now 

been installed and 

contractor aiming to 

complete works by end 

of June.

↑

RD 9:	 See BUS 4 - A93 multi-modal corridor Berryden Corridor ACC approved funding for this project Full planning permission has been ACC CGR Cttee on 25 ↑Automatic Number Plate 

Reading (ANPR) 

Journey time monitoring 

sites

Installation of further sites to monitor 

traffic flow and journey time and would 

have the potential to collect data on 

vehicle types and emissions associated 

with each vehicle.  

£79.2K in 22/23 

(all c/f from 21/22)

ANPR will provide an accurate data 

set for journey time monitoring. It will 

enable network events to be 

monitored in real-time and could be 

used to provide info to road users on 

the time it will take to travel parts of 

the network ahead eg via Variable 

Message Signs and other user 

interfaces. The data set could also be 

used to assess vehicle types including 

emission details.

Phase 1 of installation 

completed and 

remaining budget agreed 

for c/f to 22/23 to 

complete project.  Ph 2 

due to start after 

completion of above 

Queens Rd CCTV 

project, so aiming for 

early July start date.

↑
RD 10:

Monitor and 

alleviate pinch 

points on the 

network to 

improve journey 

reliability where 

appropriate and 

in line with 

sustainable 

travel and 
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King George VI Bridge - Carriageway 

resurfacing between Riverside Dr and 

West Tullos Rd following completion 

of structures work. This would include 

the carriageway resurfacing and the 

central reserve. 

£265K in 22/23 Contract was awarded on 18 May 

and on site visit with contractor 

has been held.  Details of 

Temporary Traffic Regulation Order 

(TTRO), traffic management and 

site compound to be arranged.

Option for resurfacing 

of central reserve to 

replace granite setts to 

be confirmed before 5 

July to allow ordering 

of new paving

↑

e) Improved adaptability 

to climate change; and

The NTS2 Delivery Plan 22/23 states - 

We will publish Transport Scotland's 

Approach to Adaptation and 

Resilience. This will address the risks 

associated with changing weather 

patterns attributed to climate change 

and provide a strategic overview to 

our approach to adaption.

f) Effective routine and FR - Facilitating the movement of freight

FR 4:

To support the 

development of 

connections from 

Craiginches Rail 

Freight terminal 

to Aberdeen 

South Harbour, 

… 

...recognising the 

potential future 

importance of the 

movement of goods 

between the two.

CRD Joint Committee agreed on 10 

June that the next stages of work on 

the Strategic Transport Appraisal 

would include a Rail Freight Demand 

and Options study, considering future 

opportunities arising from Aberdeen 

South Harbour and the adjacent 

Energy Transition Zone. 

Nestrans will co-ordinate this 

project through the City Region 

Deal Transport Working Group.  

↑

FR 5:

To promote the 

opportunities for 

less 

environmentally 

damaging 

practices, by 

supporting the 

use of cleaner 

vehicles... 

... such as through the 

ECO Stars programme, 

encouraging mode shift 

to railfreight or maritime 

where appropriate, 

break bulk and effective 

last mile solutions 

where there is a 

demonstrated need.

The ECO Stars Fleet Recognition 

Scheme is  free to participants and aims 

to help fleet operators improve efficiency, 

reduce fuel consumption and emissions 

and make cost savings. Aberdeen City 

Council, Aberdeenshire Council and 

Nestrans have agreed to facilitate a 

regional Eco Stars programme for the 

north east and it was launched in Nov 

2016.

The NTS2 Delivery Plan for 22/23 

states that We will establish a new 

HGV Taskforce bringing together 

stakeholders from all sectors to 

develop and deliver a pathway to 

zero-emission HGVs.

↑

a) Increased investment 

in maintenance of the 

existing road network;

RD 12:

Consolidated 

asset 

management 

and prioritisation 

system:
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FR 6:

Support the 

uptake of cargo 

bikes and 

alternatively 

fuelled smaller 

vehicles for 

shorter distance 

internal freight 

movements 

within the region.

E-cargo bikes ACC awarded funding for cargo bikes 

through £10.3M for S Gov for LEZ 

schemes in 2019/20 and Nestrans 

undertook the procurement on behalf of 

the Council of 6 E-cargo bikes 

(4xChristiana, 2xRiese and Muller) and 

accessories.  

Nestrans is now managing the pilot 

trial that offers businesses in 

Aberdeen city centre a bike for up to a 

year for last mile deliveries and full 

details for applicants are on the 

Nestrans website.  Bikes being piloted 

currently by CFINE, The Haven - 

Stonehaven, Fargo Cargo, ACC 

countryside rangers, a variety of 

groups at Aden Country Park, Mintlaw 

and the Glen Tanar Estate.  Social 

media has been used to encourage 

organisations to sign up.

A few of the bikes 

being moved around, 

with those at CFINE, 

Aden and the Haven 

coming back and two 

of the three new 

interested parties 

planning to do city 

centre deliveries.  

Agreement forms for 

use of bikes issued 

and to be returned.

↑

AS - External air and sea connections

Scottish Ferry Services Scottish Ferries Plan published 

December 2012 with strategic guidance 

for the provision of ferry services in 

Scotland through to 2022.  Road 

Equivalent Tariff (RET)  introduced on 

the Pentland Firth routes, whilst a variant 

of the scheme will be brought in on the 

routes from Aberdeen to Kirkwall and 

Lerwick. The proposals will see foot 

passenger fares cut by an average of 

more than 40%, whilst car fares will be 

reduced by an average of more than 

30%. This will bring fares into line with 

those on the Clyde and Hebrides 

network.  In June 2018, the Minister 

announced that they would be unable to 

implement the RET cut in fares on the 

routes to and from Orkney without the 

risk of a legal challenge.

The NTS2 Delivery Plan 22/23 

states the draft Islands 

Connectivity Plan (ICP) will be 

published for consultation. This 

will replace, the Ferries Plan 2013-

22. It will include objectives based 

on supporting delivery of NTS2 and 

the National Islands Plan, and 

develop proposals to meet those 

objectives which represent value 

for money. The ICP will be closely 

linked to the outcomes of the 

STPR2, in order to consider island 

connectivity more broadly, having 

regard to aviation, ferries and fixed 

links, and to connecting and 

onward travel

Northern Isles Ferry The new contract for the Northern Isles The contract will run from 30th June 

AS 3:

We will work in 

partnership with 

Hitrans, 

ZetTrans, the 

Scottish 

Government and 

others to 

maintain and 

enhance lifeline 

maritime and air 

services serving 

Aberdeen and 

connections to 

Orkney and 

Shetland.
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The Port of Aberdeen Funding arrangements for Aberdeen 

South Harbour incorporated commercial 

borrowing from the European Investment 

Bank, and funding from the Aberdeen 

City & Region Deal.  Construction 

contract signed with Dragados UK on 20 

Dec 2016 for the £350 million project that 

will include 1,400 metres of new quay, 

with a water depth of up to 10.5 metres 

and create an additional 125,000 square 

metres of lay-down area.  Quay names 

are to be  Dunnottar the 400m east quay, 

Crathes the 175m south quay, Balmoral 

the 300m west quay and Castlegate the 

540m north quay.  New construction 

schedule for the South Harbour 

Expansion Project will see a phased 

completion in 2021 through to 2022.

Aberdeen Harbour has been 

rebranded and changed name to 

The Port of Aberdeen following the 

latest strategic review and new 

vision to become Scotland’s 

premier net zero port, offering 

world class facilities and services, 

at the heart of the nation’s energy 

transition efforts.  Construction of 

Aberdeen South Harbour has 

continued at pace with the project 

moved from marine to land 

construction in the past year.

The Port is gearing up 

for operations at the 

port expansion project, 

with the first 

commercial vessels 

expected this summer 

as a ‘soft start’ prior to 

operations 

commencing in 

October.

↑

Green Freeport 

designation bid

Port of Aberdeen, Peterhead Port 

Authority and Aberdeen International 

Airport, Aberdeen City and 

Aberdeenshire Councils, and industry 

reps, incl ONE and ETZ Ltd 

announced its formal bid on 10 June 

2022 for Green Freeport designation

The North East Scotland Green 

Freeport alliance also includes 

Aberdeen and Grampian Chamber 

of Commerce and the two 

Universities. The bid sets out how 

they will regenerate the area, create 

high-quality jobs, and support 

transition to a net-zero economy.

The deadline for bids 

is 20 June and the two 

winning bids for green 

freeports in Scotland 

are expected to be 

announced this 

summer.

RS - Road safety and casualty reduction 

RS 2: North East Scotland Membership of NESCRS is drawn from Nestrans has purchased 500 getabout Police Scotland will ↑Cycle education linked to Integrated 

Travel Towns (Peterhead, Fraserburgh, 

Inverurie, Huntly & Portlethen)

£10K in 22/23 (all 

c/f from 21/22)

AC has not been able to progress this 

to date due to concerns regarding 

Covid restrictions.  No progress to 

date, following a reallocation of 

available resources.  Recruitment 

underway. 

↑We will work with 

partners including the 

local authorities, 

Sustrans and others to 

deliver segregated 

provision for vehicles, 

pedestrians and cyclists 

AS 5:

We will work with 

Aberdeen 

International 

Airport and the 

relevant Harbour 

authorities to 

reduce their 

carbon 

emissions and to 

AS 4:

In line with the 

Regional 

Economic 

Strategy for the 

north east, 

Nestrans 

supports the 

continued 

investment in the 

development of 

our ports and 

harbours 

(Aberdeen, 

Peterhead, 

Fraserburgh and 

Macduff) and the 

Aberdeen 

Harbour 

RS 3:	

Nestrans will 

work with 

partners to 

deliver safe 

cycling and 

walking 
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Bend Mitigation/Skid 

Resistance 

Improvements

An Aberdeenshire wide project to 

improve skid resistance at locations 

where there have been identified "run-off" 

incidents. Sites will be identified by 

Roads service and prioritised by 

Transportation service. Sites where there 

have been injury collisions will receive 

higher priority.

£145.8K in 22/23  

(all c/f from 21/22)

Vehicle Restraining 

System repairs and 

improvements

Ongoing project to repair and in some 

cases replace VRS across 

Aberdeenshire.  Additional funding in 

20/21 approved.

£120K in 22/23 (all 

c/f from 21/22)

General Road Safety 

Improvement in 

Aberdeenshire

Contribution to works, including bend 

mitigations/skid resistance, road 

studs renewal and vehicle restraining 

system repairs and improvements

£389.7K in 22/23 Roads schemes have identified a 

number of schemes to take forward 

this year and work ongoing to 

prioritise these.

Additional budget 

proposed in separate 

report as list of 

schemes exceeds 

available funding

↑

A98 Watermill Road, 

Fraserburgh at B9031 

Junction

Provision of Turning Lane £40K in 22/23 Amendment to project requested in 

separate budget report as AC 

officers  to undertake a feasibility 

report on options for this junction 

and report back to Members.

Should the amendment 

be agreed the 

underspend is 

proposed as a 

contribution to a 

turning lane at A98 

Ladysbridge.

↑

Request made in separate report 

that budget be amalgamated with 

the general Road Safety 

Improvements Budget to allow for 

greater flexibility to increase spend 

in one area if there was greater 

demand for one type of 

intervention, be that bend 

mitigation/skid resistance, crash 

barriers or road studs.

RS 4:

Work with the 

Roads 

Authorities to 

identify routes 

and locations 

where 

enhancements or 

speed 

restrictions could 

contribute 

towards fewer 

collisions or 

result in less 

severe injuries. 

This will include 

priority routes 

identified in the 

section on 

Maintaining and 

Improving the 

Region’s our 

Road Network 

and at individual 

locations where 

↑
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20 mph areas The Scottish Government and Scottish 

Green Party draft shared policy 

programme agrees that all appropriate 

roads in built up areas will have a safer 

speed limit of 20 mph by 2025. A multi-

stakeholder task group was formed in 

Dec 2021 to plan the most effective 

route for implementation

The NTS2 Delivery Plan 22/23 

states that The group are exploring 

the parameters to help determine a 

consistent method which will allow 

road authorities to undertake an 

assessment of the local and trunk 

road networks by spring 2023. The 

road assessment will identify the 

number of roads affected, the 

requirements for implementation 

and the financial costs

Research is also 

underway to identify 

the most effective 

approach for a national 

communications plan 

for pre and post 

implementation of 20 

mph speed limits, with 

further research 

planned to develop a 

suite of speed 

management measures 

to bring about speed 

compliance.

↑

RS 6:  ... Transport Police to Road Safety Education Bespoke talks in towns with high collision 

incidences by professional engagement 

team.  Budget approved to carry forward 

to 21/22 as talks were unable to take 

place in 20/21 due to covid.

£40K in 22/23 (all 

c/f from 21/22)

Proposed programme being 

developed and costed and likely to 

include cycle roadshows for adult and 

child cycling engagement

No progress to date, 

following a reallocation 

of available resources.  

Recruitment underway. 

↑

Road Safety North East 

Scotland (RSNES)

Getabout regularly participate in safety 

campaigns in partnership with the Road 

Safety North East Scotland partnership 

and Police Scotland.

£15K in 22/23 Budget agreed for 22/23 as 

contribution to RSNES activities

No progress to date, 

following a reallocation 

of available resources.  

Recruitment underway. 

↑

RS7:

Nestrans will 

continue to 

engage with the 

public and other 

partners, 

including Road 

Safety North 

East Scotland, to 

raise awareness, 

educate and 

promote 

messages of 

RS 5:

Work with 

partners to 

deliver 

enhancements 

which can 

contribute 

towards safer 

and more 

attractive 

environments, 

particularly for 

pedestrians and 

cyclists. This will 

include 20mph 

areas, 

implementation
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RU - Improving accessibility in rural areas 

RU 1:

Building on the 

work that 

Aberdeenshire 

Council has done 

to review fixed 

route and 

demand 

responsive 

transport 

provision in the 

area, undertake 

a rural ...  

...  accessibility audit to 

better understand which 

areas are most likely to 

experience poor levels 

of accessibility and to 

establish appropriate 

levels of connectivity 

across all of Aberdeen 

and Aberdeenshire, 

based on settlement 

type.

Tender issued by Aberdeenshire Council, 

with assistance from Nestrans, to 

evaluate the performance and benefits of 

the Aberdeenshire Enhanced Demand 

Responsive Transport Service 

'Ready2Go' which was launched in 

August 2021. The Study will provide a 

robust evaluation of the performance of 

the trial and make recommendations on 

where and how such a model of service 

delivery can be implemented elsewhere 

within Aberdeenshire. 

Nestrans 

contributed to the 

£37.6K cost of 

this study through 

the Bus Action 

Plan budget in 

21/22.

Stantec appointed following 

evaluation of tender returns and 

inception meeting held.  Baseline 

service review and surveys with users 

and some non-users of the Ready2Go 

service completed.  Draft of final 

report received and being 

reviewed.

Nestrans contribution of 

£11.3K invoiced and 

funded via Bus Action 

Plan budget.

↑

RU 2: ...smaller towns and HE - Improving access to health

Health & Transport 

Action Plan

HTAP works being progressed by HTAP 

support manager and sub groups.  

Further funding approved for 2022/23 

to continue part funding of the HTAP 

Programme Support Manager and 

general HTAP actions.

£35K in 22/23 (incl 

£10K c/f from 

21/22)

The HTAP Steering Group meet every 

2 months.  Last meeting was held 

on 16 May and minutes are within 

the Director's Report.    A review of 

the main HTAP document is 

underway.  The process will be 

overseen by the HTAP Steering 

Group.  A final draft is anticipated 

by the end of 2022.  

The HTAP Annual 

Report is being drafted 

and will be reported to 

the Steering Group in 

August.

↑

Grampian Volunteer 

Transport Awards

Plans being progressed for the fifth 

awards event

Aim to hold the awards and 

recruitment drive towards the end 

of 2022.

↑

National Health The Programme Manager is a member of The group is making preparations to NHSG Patient Transport NHSG have recruited a Project Manager The meeting is Chaired by the HTAP ↑BeLinkD Nestrans had previously awarded £2.5K 

to this free to the user community 

transport pilot in the Buchan area of 

Aberdeenshire.  The pandemic and 

lockdowns and physical distancing 

restrictions have all impacted on the pilot.  

The Be-Link’D pilot in Buchan 

providing free transport continues to 

operate.  The funding for the service 

will end March 2022.  Discussions 

around its evaluation and 

opportunities for HTAP to support this 

are ongoing.

Dialogue ongoing with 

community transport 

and local authority 

managers about 

transport for health 

and social care in the 

Banff area

↑

HE 1:

Continue to work 

with partners, 

including the 

NHS, Health and 

Social Care 

Partnership, 

Scottish 

Ambulance 

Service, 

Community 

Transport 

Association and 

Local Authorities, 
HE 2:

Continue to work 

with our partners 

in the Health and 

Transport Action 

Plan to provide 

advice, guidance 

and support for 
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THInC, Public Transport 

Units and Support to the 

NHS/Patient Transport 

Service.

Patient transport requests for hospital 

appointments, hospital discharge and 

COVID-19 tests were directed to THInC 

from NHSG, the PTS, the Grampian 

Coronavirus Assistance Hub and direct 

from members of the public. THInC staff 

liaised with transport operators including 

private operators contracted by NHSG, 

community/voluntary transport 

organisations and Councils to arrange 

transport.

£9.5K in 22/23 THInC continues to be funded by 

Nestrans, NHS Grampian, Aberdeen 

City Council and Aberdeenshire 

Council.  THInC is included within 

vaccination appointment letters.  

Work is ongoing to 

create a Thinc 

webpage hosted by 

Nestrans but with its 

own domain name. 

Graphics to support 

this also being 

developed.

↑

Patient Transport Guide A Patient Guide on planning non- It is proposed that NHSG publish this Text widely consulted ↑HE 4:

Lobby to raise 

the profile of 

access to health 

issues at a 

national level, 

the need for a 

more consistent 

approach and for 

greater financial 

support for 

transport

to health 

services, 

including support 

Partnership working Colleagues from NHSG have met with 

Scottish Government colleagues to 

discuss challenges relating to transport 

facing their organisation. Additionally, on 

4 Aug RTPs met with S Gov to discuss 

the theme of health and transport.  

Nestrans presented on HTAP and the 

benefits of having a formalised 

partnership structure for issues cutting 

across transport and health.  A follow up 

meeting was held on 24 Aug between 

Nestrans and Hitrans to discuss the local 

experience of establishing a health and 

transport specific partnership. 

A one day training session has 

been arranged on the links 

between road transport and health 

to give attendees insights and 

confidence to engage more 

effectively with public health 

professions in order to achieve 

transport solutions and better 

health outcomes through transport 

planning policies and 

interventions. It will explore 

collaboration across professions 

and the value of co-benefits eg 

where carbon energy is replaced by 

calorific energy expenditure. 

The talk by Dr Adrian 

Davis, Professor of 

Transport & Health at 

Napier University is 

being held on 29 June 

at Curl Aberdeen.  It is 

being funded via 

Nestrans HTAP actions 

budget.

↑

NHSG Active Travel & The Programme Manager continues to It is hoped that the Sustrans NHS NHSG's workplace ↑Sustrans NHS 

Workplace Engagement 

Officer

An officer has now been recruited by 

NHSG/Sustrans to engage with NHS 

staff on benefits of active travel in the 

workplace and at home.  They will link to 

the wider work of measures delivered 

using £850K Spaces for People funding 

previously awarded to NHSG.  Post 

100% funded by Sustrans in 21/22, then 

50% funded in 22/23 and 23/24 with 

match funding being split 66% NHSG 

and 33% Nestrans

£12.5K in 22/23 as 

Nestrans 

contribution to 

post.

They will gather baseline data and 

use this to target programmes, and 

investigate barriers to active and 

sustainable travel and develop a 

wider Active Travel Strategy.  

NHSG's workplace engagement 

officer is continuing to deliver 

internal NHS staff engagement and 

promotion of active travel.

Travel plans being 

developed for four 

NHSG sites being 

produced by Travel 

Know How.

↑
HE 5:

Work to develop 

active travel 

routes which link    

local 

communities to 

green networks 

and open spaces 

as part of a high 

quality and safe 

active travel 

network and to 

support both 

mental and 

physical health 

(see actions 

under  

HE 3:

Continue support 

for THInC, to 

provide advice 

and sign posting 

for transport to 

health and social 

care 

appointments.
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Current Actions/ Progress Future Actions/ Progress

Project/Action Progress Budget To be done Target

Policy Headings

RTS actions

Status

HTAP Spaces for 

People Knowledge 

Share

Various colleagues from partner 

organisations liaise on the SfP funding 

awarded to NHS Grampian and wider 

SfP measures.  

Through funding from Spaces for 

People NHSG has improved cycle 

parking, provision of e-bikes for 

staff and other improvements on 

the estate, including rest points. 

A path between ARI 

and Woodhill House is 

currently under 

construction.

↑

AA - Improving access to the transport network for all

f) Upgrade facilities at 

Peterhead bus station to 

improve access and 

operation of services 

within the site.

Opened July 2007.  Redesign of Site to 

include waiting room minor 

refurbishments, footpath improvements, 

bus shelter replacement and upgrade of 

RTI to E-paper Displays.

£250K in 22/23 Plan for works now in progress. 

Roads Team have estimated 

footpath costs, awaiting 

confirmation of their availability to 

deliver works. Seeking a quotation 

from shelter supplier with regard to 

the replacement shelter 

programme and exploring other 

street furniture options to enhance 

the customer experience. 

May have to consider 

the passenger waiting 

facility fascia 

improvements next 

financial year

↑

g) Upgrade facilities at PP - Planning and designing places for people

Aberdeen Sub Area 

Model (ASAM) - 

Nestrans manage and 

maintain the strategic 

regional model to 

ensure it provides a 

suitably robust tool for 

transport and land use 

appraisal

CRD funding used to meet costs of 

upgrade to strategic Aberdeen Sub Area 

Model (ASAM) to 2014 base year.  

Transport Scotland  managing requests 

for access to ASAM14 through Latis 

framework with Nestrans being contacted 

to grant formal approval. The ASAM 

2014 base model and forecast models 

for 2017,2022, 2027, 2032 and 2037 

completed. 

Costs for ASAM 

update to 2019 

base year following 

opening of AWPR 

to be met via CRD

Nestrans in partnership with TS, AC, 

ACC and SDPA appointed Systra in 

July 2019 following competitive tender 

to update ASAM to a 2019 base year 

with 2022, 2027, 2032, 2037 and 2042 

forecast years.  Significant data 

collection exercise undertaken in 

autumn 2019 to update and calibrate 

the base model to 2019 and to reflect 

the change in traffic patterns as a 

result of the AWPR.  PBA appointed 

as auditor through Transport 

Scotland's Latis framework. Base 

2019 model, realism sensitivity 

tests and demonstration tests 

completed.   

Further info from the 

national land use 

model received and 

being used to develop 

forecast years under 

high and low growth 

scenarios in 

accordance with the 

national model.  

Progress meeting 

being arranged for end 

June to present results 

and model 

development report 

and audit to take place 

thereafter.

↑

Development Plans Further cumulative transport appraisal 

PP 1:

Provide support 

and input to the 

development 

planning process 

at a national, 

regional and 

local level, in line 

with the key 

priorities of this 

strategy.

AA 1:

A programme of 

access for all 

improvements at 

all key public 

transport points, 

and within urban 

areas and town 

centres, to 

benefit those 

who have 

HE 5:

Work to develop 

active travel 

routes which link    

local 

communities to 

green networks 

and open spaces 

as part of a high 

quality and safe 

active travel 

network and to 

support both 

mental and 

physical health 

(see actions 

under  
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Current Actions/ Progress Future Actions/ Progress

Project/Action Progress Budget To be done Target

Policy Headings

RTS actions

Status

PP 4:

We will support 

Placemaking 

principles, 

creating 

environments for 

people which … 

...are not dominated by 

traffic in town and city 

centres, residential 

areas and communities 

as well as other places 

where people will want 

to walk, linger and visit.

Aberdeen Beach Masterplan - 

Contribution to the development of an 

Access Strategy that considers the 

traffic elements of the proposals and 

supports the Development Framework 

for the Beach area.

£50K in 22/23 ACC has procured consultancy 

support and the Access Strategy - 

Traffic Impact Assessment has 

been completed.

Work on-going to 

determine the nature 

and location of 

required infrastructure 

mitigation, indicative 

plans and the potential 

level of demand 

reduction required

↑

NT - Future impact of new technologies

NT 5:

Work with 

Community 

Planning 

Partnerships, our 

partner local 

authorities and  

… 

... Universities to identify 

the potential for and 

provide support to 

enhanced awareness 

around opportunities 

and future skills in the 

transport sector.

Nestrans are statutory partners, 

contribute financially and attend 

appropriate meetings.    Two active travel 

Project Charters (one cycling and one 

walking) have been produced for the 

Aberdeen Sustainable City LOIP group, 

which Nestrans is leading on.

£10K in 22/23 Budget agreed to cover 

membership costs for both CP 

partners in 2022/23.

↑
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8.  Publications and Consultations 

 

 
 
1. Purpose of Report 

 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to inform Members of recent publications and consultation 

responses.   

 
2 National Transport Strategy (NTS) –Delivery Plan 2022-23 

 

2.1 The second NTS2 Delivery Plan was published by Transport Scotland earlier this 

month covering the period 2022-23.  The aim of the plan is to continue to work across 

the country to build and grow a sustainable, inclusive, safe and accessible transport 

system, helping to deliver a healthier, fairer and more prosperous Scotland for 

communities, businesses and visitors. A link to the document is available:  Scottish 

Government National Transport Strategy 

 

2.2 The Delivery Plan provides a package of actions and interventions which support the 

Scottish Government’s vision and strategic themes for Transport, including the 

Sustainable Transport Hierarchy, and Sustainable Investment Hierarchy.  Some key 

actions including in the document, which have particular relevance to Nestrans and the 

region are highlighted below. 

 

 Progression of ongoing review of transport governance in Scotland to ensure it is 

aligned with climate and traffic reduction targets, and ensure that national and local 

capacity is in place to deliver active travel goals. 

 Proposals to consult on the preparation of Regional Spatial Strategies, which in 

turn will co-ordinate with Regional Transport Strategies, which will include a focus 

on 20-minute neighbourhoods. 

 A plan to consult on women’s safety across public transport. 

 Ongoing support to public transport via the Bus Partnership Fund, which in the 

Nestrans region is funding a number of corridor studies, and development of plans 

for Aberdeen Rapid Transit. 

 Ongoing policy support to embed and support changes necessary to reduce Car 

kilometres by 20% by 2030. 

 Ongoing review of the A96 corridor with a view to implementing bus priority and 

active travel measures, to report by the end of 2022. 

 Progressing a range of infrastructure improvement projects, including A90/A937 

Laurencekirk scheme through the statutory process. 

 

2.3  For Nestrans, the Regional Transport Strategy provides a detailed overview of the 

regional priorities, projects, actions, which is aligned with the NTS priorities.  Both 

Aberdeen City Council and Aberdeenshire Council are now working on developing 

Local Transport Strategies.  
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3 World Health Organization – Walking and Cycling Latest Evidence to Support 

 Policy Making and Practice 
 

3.1 The World Health Organization have published a new document on walking and 

cycling.  It highlights the importance of walking and cycling being equal amongst other 

modes of transport as well as the research showing the benefits from active travel in 

terms of transport, health and the environment and guidance on promotion. The full 

report can be accessed here. 

 

3.2 One of the report authors is Professor Adrian Davis, from Napier University in 

Edinburgh.  It is noted that Professor Davies is coming to Aberdeen on 29th June to 

provide training to transport and public health professionals entitled Road Transport 

and Public Health, as part of our Health and Transport Action Plan (HTAP). 

 

4. A96 Public Consultation 

 

Nestrans have compiled a draft response to the Transport Scotland public consultation 
on the review of the A96 corridor, which is available in Appendix 1. A link to the 

consultation is available here. 

 

 
5. Recommendations 

 
5.1 It is recommended that the Board:  

 

a. Note the publication of the National Transport Strategy Delivery Plan 2022 – 

2023; 

b. Note the publication of the World Health Organization, Walking and Cycling 

Latest Evidence to Support Policy Making and Practice report; and 

c. Approve the draft consultation response for the A96 review public consultation. 
 

 
RD/KW/PF 13 June 2022 
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Appendix 1 
 
Proposed Response to Transport Scotland 
A96 Corridor Review - Consultation 
 
Introduction 
 

Nestrans, alongside our local authority partners, have had a long and deep involvement in 

the A96 dualling project since commencement of the project, and particularly since the 

commencement of the work considering options between Aberdeen and Huntly.   

 

You will be aware of the vast amount of evidence and numerous consultation responses 

prepared by north east partners during this period.  We have also enjoyed meaningful 

engagement with Transport Scotland and Network Rail on rail corridor development between 

Aberdeen and Inverness, recently culminating in the re-dualling between Aberdeen and 

Inverurie, the opening of Kintore Station, and option assessment work looking at accessibility 

issues at Insch Station.  

We are also active in supporting active travel and bus infrastructure and services on the 

corridor.   

 

In relation to the A96, our RTS states: 

A96 Aberdeen to Inverness – The investment will enhance transport connectivity between 

the two cities and is aligned with one of the north east’s identified strategic growth corridors 

(as identified in the 2020 Strategic Development Plan). Improvements to the A96 support the 

objectives of the Regional Economic Strategy and Nestrans will continue to work closely with 

both Transport Scotland and Aberdeenshire Council to ensure improvements deliver the 

intended benefits for the north east, promote facilities for non-motorised users along the 

corridor as well as effective future integration with the public transport network (bus and rail). 

 
Overview of Problems, Opportunities and Issues 

 

Strategically, the A96 transport corridor corresponds with one of the area’s Strategic Growth 

Corridors (2020 Strategic Development Plan) forming the basis of Local Development Plan 

future housing and employment land allocations.  Sustainable connectivity along the corridor 

is a key requirement for future growth, and partners have accordingly invested in the 

infrastructure to support this.  Resolving decisions on road alignment and standards is 

important to enable sustainable growth of settlements such as Inverurie, Kintore and 

Blackburn to continue.   

 

The corridor attracts traffic movements from across its hinterland, including from the A947, 

B9001, and B9170.  This confluence of traffic adversely impacts on Inverurie town centre in 

particular, as previous traffic modelling has demonstrated.  This constrains options to 

provide a safer and more attractive environment within the town.  

 

The mix of traffic on the corridor, particularly the single carriageway sections, can contribute 

to driver frustrations. This can materialise in drivers taking risks to overtake slower moving 

vehicles.  There is a mix of long distance and local traffic, agricultural traffic, and freight 

vehicles.  The mix of speeds and level of familiarity with the route, combined with varying 

vertical and horizontal road geometries, can contribute to dangerous overtaking 

manoeuvres, and other road safety issues.  The numerous at-grade junctions, 
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property/business access points, and field access points also contribute to heightened road 

safety risk. 

 

The relative performance of the road link, relative to the rail link is considered a problem.  

The corridor is well-served with rail stations, but end to end timings/service patterns are not 

necessarily competitive with the road.  The frequency of rail services between Inverness and 

Inverurie is poor. The rail stations along the route are also constrained by poor physical 

accessibility. In particular, Insch, which despite serving a large rural catchment and being a 

significant distance from other more accessible stations, has one platform which is wholly 

inaccessible if you are a wheelchair user or unable to climb stairs on the footbridge. 

 

Long distance coach journey timings along the corridor are particularly uncompetitive.  The 

local bus services are a combination of commercial and tendered services, with it being 

important to consider safe pedestrian access to bus stops, and school transport pick up/drop 

off locations.   

 

The current road alignment and traffic volumes will act as a deterrent to active travel, despite 

recent investment such as between Inverurie and Kintore.  This includes the road acting as a 

barrier severing walking and cycling routes, but also traffic volumes/speed/proximity along 

the route, even where there is a degree of separation.  

 

There are climate change concerns related to the impact of new carriageway construction, 

and resultant increases in vehicle kms arising from future improved road conditions, and this 

should be considered and captured within any impact assessments. The future risk of route 

resilience is also important, in terms of climate change adaptation considerations such as 

flooding, storms (high winds, trees etc), or other weather-related impacts.  

 

There is a lack of appropriate and modern freight rest facilities along the route, which can 

comprise off-carriageway lay-bys, service stations with rest facilities beside the carriageway, 

or separate parking and welfare facilities in the towns served by the corridor.   

 

Whilst I understand colleagues in NHS Grampian will separately be preparing a response, 

the importance of the corridor to facilitate access to health care should also be considered, 

including the principal acute and emergency services provided at the Foresterhill Campus 

Aberdeen and Dr Grays hospital in Elgin, the community hospitals at Huntly, Insch and 

Inverurie, and the more numerous primary health and social care facilities in the individual 

communities along the route. 

   
Suggestions for Consideration 

 

Active travel needs to consider attractive and safe links between, into, and within, the key 

communities served by the corridor, including the Inverurie-Kintore-Blackburn-Aberdeen link.   

 

The adequacy of EV charging points needs to be considered strategically along the route, 

understanding the different demands of different types of EV user.  Hydrogen fuelling 

opportunities should also be considered in the context of future freight demand, and the 

north east’s Hydrogen capabilities.  

 

Rail investment needs to continue, to include fully accessible stations along the route, 

signalling and passing loop investment north of Inverurie, to reduce journey times, and 

increase service levels.  
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Bus priority should be considered where this can provide a meaningful advantage, most 

likely in targeted sections between Inverurie and Aberdeen.  Within the rural hinterland 

served by the corridor, meaningful impacts on accessibility could be made considering the 

results from the Inverurie Ready to Go pilot, Digital Demand Responsive Trial, providing 

DRT services in the area between Insch, Inverurie and Kintore.   

 

Improvements to the road corridor need to consider future sustainable growth of local 

communities such as Blackburn, Kintore and Inverurie, and the improvement of conditions 

within their centres for active travel and wider environment.  It is also important to consider 

not only the Kintore to Huntly section, but also the section between the Aberdeen Western 

Peripheral Route (AWPR) and Kintore. 

   
Changes to Travel Patterns arising from Covid 19 / Climate Emergency 

 

Nestans have commissioned research onto changes to travel patterns and attitudes arising 

from the Covid-19 pandemic, and this is available here.  This points to a reduction of in-work 

business trips, more flexible work patterns including start and finish times, and an increase in 

home working for a proportion of the workforce.  In terms of traffic impacts, other surveys 

undertaken point to freight movements being generally unaffected, a reduction in peak traffic 

volumes, and potentially more complex local trips taken across the course of the day.   

 

Whilst the climate emergency may have engendered some change in travel patterns, it is 

considered that individual and household travel patterns are probably being more 

disproportionately affected by the current increases in cost of living / fuel prices, most likely 

affecting rural residents to a larger extent due to dependence on private car motoring (and 

higher mileage).  The post-pandemic acceleration of on-line activity, affecting retail and other 

services, will also be impacting on travel patterns and town/city centre activity.   

 
Summary 

 

The review currently being undertaken provides an opportunity to consider the previous 

proposals in the light of the NTS2 priorities, sustainable transport hierarchy, and sustainable 

investment hierarchy.  The Nestrans RTS supports improvements on the corridor, as it 

corresponds with one of the area’s strategic growth corridors, and improvements are an 

important component of facilitating the planned sustainable growth of communities such as 

Inverurie, Kintore and Blackburn, and significantly improving town centre environments and 

safety.   

 

The review affords the opportunity to consider active travel provision, improvements to the 

accessibility and service levels offered by the rail service, improvements to the bus services 

and supporting infrastructure, and freight facilities.  There are also opportunities to consider 

the strategic provision of EV charging and Hydrogen fuelling opportunities.  Route resilience 

in the face of climate change must also be built into the review, alongside embedded and 

operational carbon impacts. 

   

Nestrans, alongside our regional partners, look forward to continuing to contribute to the 

corridor review, and the progression of its outcomes.   
 

PMF, June 2022 
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9.    Information Bulletin 

 

 Purpose of Report 

 

The purpose of this report is to provide information and updates for the Board on a number 
of matters not requiring decisions. 
 

 Getabout Update 

 
Getabout is the Sustainable Travel Brand used in the north east to promote road safety and 

sustainable travel. This brand is used by Getabout partners (Aberdeenshire Council, 

Aberdeen City Council, Nestrans, NHS Grampian, University of Aberdeen, Robert Gordon 

University, Nescol and Energy Savings Trust) in order that the partnership can make best 

use of limited resources and have consistent messaging.  

 

The Getabout working group continues to meet virtually and key messages continue to be 

promoted through social media and advertising.   

 

A summer advertising campaign promoting Active Travel, has begun using social media and 

on radio. The messages focus on encouraging people to share space, act respectfully and 

to be aware of the recent changes to the Highway Code. 

 

Future campaigns on promoting bus use and public transport are being progressed, working 

alongside other bus alliance partners.  

 Press and Communications 

 
A summary of Press Enquiries, Media Releases and coverage relevant to Nestrans since the 
last Board meeting is attached as Appendix 1 to this report. 

 

 Recommendation 

 
It is recommended that the Board note the contents of this report. 
 

PF/JB/LJ/KW   14 June 2022 
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Appendix 1 

 

Nestrans Communications Report  

2 April – 12 June 2022 

   

 Nestrans Statements/News Releases 

 

Date Details 

23.05.22 Nestrans’ Strategy Manager, Paul Finch, speaks with BBC Radio Scotland 

as part of the North East news bulletin, to discuss the local impact of the 

ScotRail timetable changes. 

17.05.22 News release issued on success of Active Travel Grant Bid, and a 

breakdown of the five projects supported by the funding. News release 

includes a quote from Dr Bochel as Nestrans Vice Chair. 

   

 Nestrans News Coverage 

 

Date Details 

26.05.22 Articles from Grampian Online and the Buchan Observer on road safety 

concerns at the A90/A952 Cortes junction. The article follows a letter from 

Liam Kerr MSP to Transport Minister Jenny Gilruth, urging an upgrade. 

Article notes Nestrans previous STAG work, and plans for a roundabout as 

part of the current RTS. 

25.05.22 

19.05.22 Articles from the Press and Journal, Deeside Piper, and Grampian Online 

regarding the Active Travel Grant projects. 17.05.22 

21.04.22 Article from the Press and Journal focusing on the joint Aberdeen and 
Aberdeenshire manifesto from the Scottish Greens. Article discusses the 
Greens’ plans for bus, rail and tramways, and notes Nestrans work on the 
“tram-like” Aberdeen Rapid Transit scheme. 

06.04.22 Article from Grampian Online as the Stage One route for this year’s Tour of 
Britain is announced, Dr Bochel quoted as Nestrans Vice Chair, among 
quotes from partners across the North East. 
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10    Conferences and Presentations 

 

  

  

1 Purpose of Report   

  

The purpose of this report is to update the Board on conferences, training and presentations 
which may be of interest to Board members or for members to seek feedback on events which 
have been held.    

    

2 Background   

   
Conferences etc are authorised by the Director and where there are budgetary implications, 
these are considered under the Budget Matters items of the Board agenda.   

 

3 Recommendations   

 

The Board is recommended to: 

 
1. Note the contents of Appendix 1 

 
 
 
 
 
   

RD 14 June 2022  
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 Recent and Forthcoming Conferences of Interest to Nestrans 

Date Location Title Organiser 

Conf 

Cost 
(Excl. 
Vat) 

Nestrans 
Attendees 

Tuesday 14th  

June 2022 

Perth National Active 

Travel Conference 
Sustrans 

Scotland, 

Cycling 

Scotland, 

Paths for All, 

Living Streets 

Scotland 

£150 Jon Barron 

      

 

 Other Training 

Date Location Title Organiser Cost   (excl. VAT) Attendees 

6 June 2022 for 
8 weeks part 
time. 

Online Digital Literacy in 
Health and Social 

Care 

RGU Nil, fully funded 
by Scottish 
Government 

upskilling 

Kelly 
Wiltshire 

Wednesday 

29th June 2022 

Curl 
Aberdeen 

Road Transport 

and Public Health, 

Prof Adrian Davies 

Nestrans  Nil for attendees, 
training funded 
by Nestrans, 
HTAP budget 
circa £2,500 

Paul 

Finch, 

Kelly 

Wiltshire 

 

 Presentations by Nestrans  

Date Location Presentation Title 
Organisation 

and Audience 

Press 
Involve
ment 

Presenters 

Thursday  

9th June 2022 

Online Walking and 
Cycling Update 

Community 
Planning 
Partners 

nil Kelly Wiltshire 

      

KW June 2022 
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11    Pending Business and Reports for Future Meetings 

 

 

 Purpose of Report 

 
The purpose of this report is to advise of progress on pending business requested by the Board 
and major reports scheduled for forthcoming Board meetings, and to provide the opportunity 
for the Board to add to or amend this scheduling. 

 

 Background 

 
It has been agreed that this be a standing item on the Board's agenda, listing progress on 
major areas of work which are not yet in final form to report to the Board with reasons for any 
delays explained, together with a provisional list of major reports for future Board meetings. 

 

 Reports brought forward 

 

The following items which had previously been indicated as pending are included on the 

agenda for this meeting: 

 

 Risk Register is covered as Item 4.3 on this agenda.  

 

 

 Major Reports for Future Meetings 

 

It is currently intended to bring the following reports to future meetings of the Board: 

 

 Pensions Discretion (for homologation, as discussed under item 3.4); 

 Audited Annual Accounts; 

 Inverurie pilot Demand Responsive Transport study;  

 Health & Transport Annual Report and Update 

 Climate Change reports; and 

 Live Labs Proposals – final report from AECOM. 

 

 

 Recommendation 

 
It is recommended that the Board note the report on pending business. 

 
 

RD/14 June 2022 
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